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State of South Carolina
Office of Comptroller General

1200 Senate Street
305 Wade Hampton Office Building
Columbia, South Carolina 29201

Telephone: (803) 734-2121
Fax: (803) 734-2064
RICHARD ECKSTROM E-Mail: cgoffice@cqg.state.sc.us NATHAN KAMINSKI, JR.
COMPTROLLER GENERAL CHIEF OF STAFF

December 29, 2003

Tothe Citizens, Governor and
Members of the South
Carolina General Assembly

| am pleased to present to the citizens of South Carolina this Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report for the State of South Carolina for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. The report provides
financial information about the State's operations during the year and describes its financial position at
the end of the year.

Management is responsible for the accuracy of the data in this report as well as for the
completeness and fairness of the presentation. To the best of our knowledge and belief, this information
is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner that presents fairly the State's financial
position and results of operations and provides disclosures that enable the reader to understand the
State’s financial condition. For the convenience of users, we have divided the report into three sections
asfollows:

* The Introductory Section, containing this letter of transmittal; the Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the report as of June 30, 2002;
alist of State officials; and an organizational chart of State government.

* The Financia Section, including the independent auditors’ report, management’s
discussion and analysis, government-wide financial statements, fund financial
statements, required supplementary information, other combining financia
statements, and schedules.

* The Statistical Section, presenting comparative financial data and other non-financial
data.

This letter of transmittal is designed to complement management’s discussion and analysis that
immediately follows the report of the independent auditors.

PROFILE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

South Carolina stretches from the Atlantic Ocean to the Blue Ridge Mountains, containing
30,111 sguare miles. The coastal area, which is one of the leading recreation centers on the east coast, is
the anchor of the State’s thriving tourism industry. Since 1970, over 740,000 people have relocated to
South Carolinato take advantage of its growing economy and to retire here.

As shown in the organization chart on page 15, South Carolina's government is divided into
three separate branches. legidative, executive, and judicial. State government provides a full range of
services to South Carolina’s citizens including educational, health, social/human, transportation, public
safety, regulatory, and conservation/natural resources services. In addition, the State provides grants and
loans to local governments, including school districts, within its borders.
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South Carolina is primarily a manufacturing state. While the textile industry is still the major
industrial employer in the State, the State’s economy has undergone a gradual transition to other sectors.
Since 1950, the State's economic base has diversified into other sectors such as trade, health care,
services, and durable goods manufacturing.

BUDGETARY AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Statewide Accounting and Reporting System (STARYS) is the State's budgetary-basis
operating accounting system. The STARS system processes cash and budgetary transactions and
maintains records for all budgeted funds and some unbudgeted funds. The State's higher education
institutions and most of the other enterprise entities maintain separate accrual-basi s accounting systems.

The Comptroller General's Office maintains an automated annual financial reporting system as
well as an automated interface between STARS and that system. The Comptroller Genera’s Office uses
this automated system and interface to prepare this report in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). State agenciesthat use STARS prepare year-end forms to report amounts
needed to adjust their budgetary-basis balances to comply with GAAP. The Comptroller General's
Office then enters the data from these forms into its GAAP financial reporting system. Additional
information entered into the GAAP financia reporting system is derived from the audited financia
statements of certain entities and from other supplemental data provided by those entities.

South Carolina's annual Appropriation Act includes legally adopted budgets for the Budgetary
General Fund and for Tota Funds. For additional information, see the notes to the required
supplementary information—budgetary. The initial budget appears in the annual Appropriation Act.
After the budget year begins, the State Budget and Control Board may order spending cuts if revenue
collectionsfail to reach predicted levels.

The State's internal controls, designed by the management of the State, provide reasonable
assurance that the State will achieve the following objectives:

» Reliability of financial reporting,
» Effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and
»  Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the
resulting benefits.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

The General Assembly spent much of its 2003 session addressing concerns regarding the State’'s
2003-2004 budget. However, it also passed some maor agency restructuring bills that reorganized the
State’ s motor vehicle functions and its homeland security duties.

In order to improve agency accountability and provide to the public more cost efficient and
effective services, the General Assembly, through the Department of Motor Vehicles Reform Act of
2003, carved from the Department of Public Safety two discrete units: the motor vehicle division and the
motor carrier services unit. These units were moved under the supervision of the newly created
Department of Motor Vehicles, established by the Act as a separate administrative agency, with a
director appointed by, and directly accountable to, the Governor.

The homeland security legislation assigned most homeland security functions to the State Law
Enforcement Division (SLED). Under the new law, SLED may establish and operate tactical response
law enforcement units, coordinate counter-terrorism efforts in or affecting South Carolina, coordinate
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federa homeland security grants, and represent the Governor in dealing with the United States
Department of Homeland Security.

In a related effort, the South Carolina Maritime Security Act created the Maritime Security
Commission. It also reestablished the South Carolina Naval Militiato augment port and coastal security.

Among other legidlative actions, the General Assembly during the 2003 session strengthened
laws for dealing with DUI offenders, domestic violence offenders, and predatory lending practices.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Over the last three decades, South Carolina s economy has grown, and continues to grow, faster
than that of the rest of the country. Businesses have migrated here from all over the world to take
advantage of the State’s skilled labor force, competitive wages, lower-priced land, excellent port
facilities, accessibility to markets, and in recent years, substantial tax incentives.

Several global companies have located corporate headquarters or multi-million-dollar
manufacturing facilities within South Carolina. BMW recently announced that it plans to invest an
additional $400 million in its Upstate factory, creating 400 more jobs. In addition to BMW, other newly
announced plants and expansions of existing facilities are expected to contribute to South Carolina's
continued economic growth.

An impressive influx of people into South Carolina over the last three decades has generated
tremendous economic growth in the State’s coastal regions. These areas continue to distinguish
themselves as leading tourist, recreation, and retirement centers relative to the entire United States East
Coast. The growth along the coast has contributed significantly to the burgeoning economy of the State
asawhole.

Since 1970, total South Carolina personal income increased over 1,200 percent and grew
20 percent faster than total United States personal income through 2000. During this period, 1970's
personal income grew at an average annual compound rate of 11.9 percent in South Carolina (compared
to 10.7 percent nationwide). During the 1980’s, the State’s personal income grew 8.7 percent per year
(compared to 7.8 percent nationwide). Even in the 1990's, when inflation was lower, personal income in
South Carolina grew a healthy 5.7 percent per year (compared to 5.6 percent nationwide). Despite the
recent recession, South Carolind s total personal income still managed to grow 20 percent faster than the
rest of the country.

Between 1970 and 2000, employment in South Carolina grew approximately 40 percent faster
than in the United States as awhole. Despite the recent slowdown in the economy, employment levelsin
South Carolina have continued to fare better than in the nation as awhole. In fact, South Carolina had at
least 246,000 jobs more in September 2003 than it had during the recession of 1991. See the
management’s discussion and analysis section of this report for additional information on the State’s
economy.

LONG TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

In June 2003, Governor Mark Sanford issued an executive order establishing the Governor’'s
Commission on Management, Accountability and Performance (the MAP Commission). This
fourteen-member Commission, comprised of prominent business leaders and state officials, was charged
with the responsibility of analyzing government systems and services in South Carolina and was directed
to propose changes to “reduce costs, increase accountability, improve service, consolidate similar
functions, return functions to the private sector, and help South Carolina be more competitive in a world
economy.”
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The MAP Commission issued a comprehensive report on September 30, 2003, which can be
found on the Internet at www.state.sc.us/governor. The report recommended sweeping changes for the
structure of state government and focused on a number of areas dealing with its fiscal management.

Among some of the MAP Commission recommendations are proposals to increase the accuracy
and reliability of revenue forecasting upon which the state appropriations act is based each year; increase
the Constitutionally-established set-aside for capital and nonrecurring purposes from 2% to 3%
discontinue the practice of funding recurring expenses with non-recurring revenues, adopt a
performance-based budgeting process instead of the current practice of incremental budgeting; and
gradualy eliminate the mismatch in revenues and expenditures resulting from using a “13th month”
accrual of selected revenues.

The MAP Commission also recommended implementing a statewide capital budgeting process
that would improve the current multi-year planning process contained in the State Comprehensive
Permanent Improvement Plan by establishing a Capital Budgeting Authority to analyze and screen capital
projects planned over the next three to five years and establishing a separate maintenance budget. Many
of these recommendations will require authorization by the General Assembly and, in some cases,
amendments to the State Constitution. It is expected that many of the recommendations included in the
MAP Commission report will be reviewed and considered in the 2004 session of the General Assembly.

FIDUCIARY OPERATIONS

The most significant of the State’s fiduciary funds are the four retirement plans administered by
the South Carolina Retirement Systems. Those plans include: the South Carolina Retirement System,
the Police Officers Retirement System, the Retirement System for Members of the General Assembly,
and the Retirement System for Judges and Solicitors. The State has funded al four of those plans in
accordance with at least the minimum recommendations of the consulting actuaries, both in the current
period and in past periods. See Note 9, Retirement Plans, in the notes to the financial statements for
more information.

CASH MANAGEMENT

The State Treasurer is responsible for managing the State's cash and investments, except for
certain component units included within the reporting entity that manage and invest their own funds.
State law requires full collateralization of all State Treasurer bank balances. Some component units may
have collateralization policies that differ from those of the State Treasurer.

Investment income includes appreciation and depreciation in the fair value of investments.
Increases in fair value during the current year, however, do not necessarily represent trends that will
continue; nor is it always possible to realize such amounts, particularly in the case of temporary changes
in the fair value of investments that the State plans to hold to maturity. For additional details, see
Note 1f, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, and Note 5, Deposits and Investments, in the notes
to the financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The State conducts various risk control programs to help minimize losses to which it is exposed.
The health insurance program conducts extensive wellness education programs that promote
development and maintenance of healthful lifestyles for covered employees. The State self-funds many
types of general liability and property losses rather than purchasing insurance. For additional
information on the State’s risk management activities, see Note 11, Insurance Activities, in the notes to
the financial statements.
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AUDIT

The State Auditor and KPMG LLP, an independent certified public accounting firm, jointly
performed an independent audit of the State’'s basic financia statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003. The auditors have provided an unqualified opinion, the most favorable outcome of the
audit process.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of South
Caralina for its comprehensive annual financia report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002.
To receive a Certificate of Achievement, which isvalid for one year only, a government must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. The CAFR contents must conform to rigorous program
standards, including generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. The
State of South Carolina has received a Certificate of Achievement for the last fifteen consecutive years.
This year, the State again plans to submit its CAFR to the GFOA' s Certificate of Achievement program.
We believe that South Carolina's report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, continues to meet the
requirements to receive the Certificate of Achievement.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Production of this report would not have been possible without the support of al State agencies
and component units that supplied GAAP closing data on atimely basis. We extend specia appreciation
to Mr. Larry Pearce, Director of Publications and Printing and to Mr. Jim Green, Graphic Designer of the
Publications and Printing Department at the University of South Carolina, for designing the report’s
cover. We aso are grateful to Dr. William C. Gillespie, Chief Economist for the State of South Carolina
Board of Economic Advisors, for providing information on the State’ s economy.

Sincerely,

Clitng &

Richard Eckstrom
Comptroller General
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Principal State Officials

LEGISLATIVE—THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY
André Bauer, President of the Senate and Lieutenant Governor
Glenn F. McConnell, President Pro Tempore of the Senate
David H. Wilkins, Speaker, House of Representatives

EXECUTIVE
STATE BUDGET AND CONTROL BOARD
Marshall (Mark) Clement Sanford, Jr., Chairman, Governor
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Term
of Office
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2003-2005
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2000-2004

The State’s citizens elect the legidative and executive officials named above. The General Assembly elects the Chief Justice of the

Supreme Court.
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Office of the Htate Auditor

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Mark Sanford, Governor
and

Members of the General Assembly

State of South Carolina

Columbia, South Carolina

We have jointly audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the State of South Carolina (the State), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003, which
collectively comprise the State’s basic financial statements as listed in the accompanying table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the State's management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not jointly audit the financial statements
of certain component units and agencies of the State of South Carolina, which represent the indicated
percent of total assets and total revenues as presented in the table below. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors, including KPMG LLP acting separately, whose reports thereon have been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those component units and
agencies, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Percentage not Percentage audited Percentage audited
jointly audited by KPMG separately by other auditors
Total Total Total Total Total Total
Assets  Revenue Assets Revenue Assets  Revenue
Government-wide
Governmental activities 76 18 1 1 75 17
Business-type activities 99 98 40 56 59 42
Component units 100 100 - - 100 100
Fund statements
Local Government Infrastructure 100 100 - - 100 100
Department of Transportation
Special Revenue Fund 100 100 - - 100 100
Higher Education 100 100 59 58 41 42
Unemployment Compensation 97 91 - - 97 91
Housing Authority 100 100 - - 100 100
Education Assistance Authority 100 100 - - 100 100
Other remaining fund information 94 88 10 51 84 37

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. The financial statements of the discretely presented component units identified in Note 1(a)



The Honorable Mark Sanford, Governor
and

Members of the General Assembly
State of South Carolina

were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to on
the preceding page present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of South Carolina as of June
30, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As discussed in note 1(b) to the required supplementary information - budgetary, the State has adopted the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 41, Budgetary Comparison

Schedules — Perspective Differences, effective July 1, 2002.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 19,
2003 on our consideration of the State’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, listed in the
accompanying table of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the State’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplementary information, and
statistical section, listed in the accompanying table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and
statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

N\

e
Colum ’iYa,)Sou CaroliW" Greenville, South Carolina

December'19, 2003 December 19, 2003
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M anagement’s Discussion and Analysis

In this section of the State of South Carolina's
annual_ report, we provide a narrative overview and
analysis of the State’s financial performance for its
accounting year (fiscal year) that  ended
June 30, 2003” Please read it together with the
financial statements, which follow this section.

Overview of the Financial Statements

~ This_ discussion and anal%sis provides an
introduction to the State of South Carolina's basic
financial statements, which include the following
arts. (1) government-wide financial statements,
EZ) fund financial statements, §3) component unit
inancial statements, and (4) notes to the financial
statements.  This report, ‘also contains certain
required supplementary information and other
supplementary information.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statements present a long-
term view of the State's finances as a whole, using
accrual-basis accounting—the same accounting
methods that most businesses use. The basic
government-wide financial statements are on
pages 33 through 125 of this report.

There are two government-wide financial
statements:

. Satement of net assets: This statement presents
informalion on all of the State's assets and
liabilities, both short-term (current) and long-term
(non-current). In addition, the statement reports the
difference between assets and liabilities as net
assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may indicate whether the State’s financia
health (financial position) is strengthening or
weakening. However, the statement of net assets
does not tell the whole story. To assess the State's
overal financial hedth, you would also need to
consider factors such as the State’ s economy and the

condition of its capital assets such as its buildings
and infrastructure (roads and bridges).

. Satement of activities: This Sstatement presents
information showing how the State’'s overall net
assets changed during the year. The State reports a
change in its net asSets a soon as an underly}ng
event’ occurs that would cause a change. h
statement of activities accounts for all current-year
revenues and expenses, regardless of when the State
received or pad cash. = Although governments
compile the statement of activities Using accounting
methods similar to businesses, this™ statement’s
format is quite different from the format of a
business's income statement. The statement of
activities can help to show how much it costs the
State to provide various services. It aso can help to
show the extent to which each government function
covers its own costs through user fees, charges, or
grants. The net revenue (expense) column onthe far
right of this statement shows how much a particular
function relies on taxes and other general revenues
to finance its programs.

__The government-wide statements report three
different kinds of activities:

‘Governmental activities: Most of the State's
basic services are included here, such as genera
government, education, health and environment
Socia  services, administration of justice, and
intergovernmental (State aid to local governmental
entities, including aid to the State’s public school
systererg. Taxes (primarily income and sales taxes)
and federal grants finance’most of these services.

Business-type activities. = These activities
usually recovér al, or a significant portion, of the
costs of their services or goods by charging fees to
customers. Higher _education” (State-supported
colleges . and universities), . unemployment
compensation  benefits, financing of ~ hdusing
facilities, and financing of student loans are the
most_ significant of South Carolina's business-type
activities.

Component units:  Although_component_ units
are Tegaly separaite from the State, the State's
elected officials are flnar]uallx accountable for
them. The Public._Service Authority (Santee-
Cooper, an electric utility comBm)Q, the State Ports
Authority, the Connector 2000 “Association, Inc.
(which operates the Southern Connector, a toll
road), and the Lottery Commission are the State’s
major component unifs. . Some financial information
for these component units is included in this report.
You aso can obtain complete financial statements
for these component units from their respective
administrative offices (see Note 1a of the notes to
the financial statements).

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financia statements on pages 40
through . 63 of this report provide = detailed
information about the State's most significant
funds—not the State as a whole. Funds are
accounting devices that the State uses to track
specific funding sources and spending for particul ar
purposes. South Carolina, like other’ governments,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
The State reports three types of funds:

. Governmental funds; The State reports most of
its “basic  services in governmental funds.
Governmental funds account for activities that the
State reports. as governmental activities in its
overnment-wide statements. These funds focus on

ort-term _inflows and outflows of expendable
resources. The balances remaining at the end of the
}/.ear heAP determine whether a fund has more or less
inancial_resources available to spend in the near
future. Because the governmental fund statements
lack the additional™ long-term focus of the
government-wide statements, we provide a
reconciliation that explains the relationship (or
differences). between the two kinds of statements.
By comparing the two kinds of statements and
examining the reconciliation, you m better
understand the long-term impact of the Stafe's near-
term financing decisions.

The basic governmental fund statements are on
pages 40 through 47 of this report.

Proprietary funds. . Proprietary funds charge
customers for the services they provide—whether
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they are outside customers (enterprise funds) or
other State agencies or other governments (internal
service funds). Proprietary funds use accrual basis
accounting like businesses. The State reports all of
its enterprise funds as business-type activities in the
government-wide statements.  However, because our
internal service fund operations primarily benefit
governmental  funds, they are included as
?overnmental activities in” the government-wide
Inancial statements.

The basic roErietary fund statements are on
pages 48 through 61 of this report.

~Fiduciary funds. The State is the trustee, or
fiduciary, for its employees retirement plans. The
State also is responsible for other assets that,
because of atrust agreement, it can use only for trust
beneficiaries. We exclude these activities from the
State's  government-wide financial  statements
because the State cannot use these assets to finance
its operations. The State is responsible for ensuring
that the net assets it reports in fiduciary funds are
used for their intended purposes.

The basic fiduciary fund statements are on
pages 62 and 63 of this report.

Component Unit Financial Statements

The Government-wide Financial Satements
section above lists the State’s major component
units. More detailed financial statemnents for these
comptonent units are on pages 64 through 67 of this
report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Immediatel e)( following the financial statements
are notes that help explain'some of the information
in the financia statements and provide more
detailed data. The notes on pages 71 through 125
are necessary to fully undersitand the financia
statements.

Required Supplementary Information

. This section includes certain required reportin

information that supplements the basic financi

statements. Included in this section is a schedule
that compares the State's legally adopted budget for
the General Fund with actua revenues collected and
expenditures paid for the year. Following the
schedule, at the end of the notes to the required
wePpIanmtwy information, is a reconciliation that
helps  explan the differences between the
budgetary-basis budget funds and the GAAP-basis
reported in the governmental fund statements. This
section also includes schedules related to the State's
National Guard Pension System. This required
supplementary  information is on pages 127
through 135 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

~ Exhibits1 and 2 summarize the State's overall
financial position and results of operations for the
past two years based on_information included in the
government-wide financial statements.

Exhibit 1

State of South Carolina's Net Assets as of June 30, 2003, with Restated Com parative Data as of June 30, 2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Governmental Business-type Totals— Percentage
Activities Activities Primary Government Change
2002 2003 2003 2002 2003 2002-2003
Assets
Current and other assets..........c..cooueee. $ 5947937 $ 5,826,749 $ 3564834 $ 3,628526 9,512,771  $ 9,455,275 (0.6%)
Capital assets 10,178,240 10,973,503 2,205,705 2,430,956 12,383,945 13,404,459 8.2%
Total aSSetS. ... 16,126,177 16,800,252 5,770,539 6,059,482 21,896,716 22,859,734 4.4%
Liabilities
Long-term liabilities 4,297,085 4,567,721 2,088,293 2,174,106 6,385,378 6,741,827 5.6%
Other liabilities. 2,778,287 2,909,443 679,617 832,297 3,457,904 3,741,740 8.2%
Total liabiliti 7,075,372 7,477,164 2,767,910 3,006,403 9,843,282 10,483,567 6.5%
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of debt..... 7,621,846 8,077,945 1,551,604 1,648,504 9,173,450 9,726,449 6.0%
Restricted. ... 2,431,538 2,385,607 1,291,069 1,187,558 3,722,607 3,573,165 (4.0%)
Unrestricted............... (1,002,579) (1,140,464) 159,956 217,017 (842,623) (923,447) (9.6%)
Total net assets 9,050,805 $ 9,323,088 $ 3,002,629 $ 3,053,079 12,053,434 $ 12,376,167 2.7%
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Net Assets

~As we noted earlier, net assets may serve, over

time, as a useful indicator of the Stafe’s financial
osition. For the 2002-2003_accounting year, the
ate' s net assets totaled $12.376 billion.

The_ largest portion of the State’s net assets
reflects its investment in capital assets (for example,
buildings, roads, and brid %)H less any related debt
used to acquire those asse%s_t at is still outstanding.
The, State uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens, consequently, they are not
available for future spending. Further,” the State
cannot sell the capital assets themselves to pay off
the related debt because it needs the assets for its
?ﬁe{%l) g[)ns; so it must find other resources to pay off

e .

Restricted net assets generally are available for
future . spending but are subject to externd
restrictions (such as bond covenants, federa
government ‘grant restrictions) or restrictions
imposed by enabling State legislation or through
State constitutional provisions.” The State’s largest
restricted balances include capital improvement
bond proceeds (restricted for various capital
projects), and loan program funds (restricted

primarily for local government water and sewer
pI’OJeC'[S},.

The remalnlng% unrestricted net assets—
resources available Tor future spending—reported a
deficit balance of $923.447 million. = The overall
negative unrestricted net assets balance resulted
from the $1.140 billion deficit that the governmental
activities reported. This deficit largely consisted of
the following: (1) $828.843 million”in long-term
debt to finance capital assets that are not On the
State’s financial statements because they belong to
local governments, (22 a $220.021 million deficit
related to the use of Tobacco Settlement bond
proceeds for operating purposes, and (3)an
accumulated enerd Fund  deficit of
$146.370 million. Please see Note 4 in the notes to
the financial statements for a more detailed
explanation of the deficit reported for the State’'s
governmental activities.

The State' s business-type activities, on the other
hand, reported a positive _$217.017 million
unrestricted net asset balance. This resulted from
net positive balances of $435.531 million associated
with higher education and certain other business-
ty?e activities. However, that positive balance was
offset by a $218.514 million deficit related to the
State-run medical malpractice insurance program.
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Exhibit 2
State of South Carolina's Changes in Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003, with Restated Comparative Data for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Governmental Business-type Totals— Percentage
Activities Activities Primary Government Change
2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002-2003
Revenues
Programrevenues:
Charges for services $ 1,543,457 $ 1,500,240 $ 2,402,503 $ 2,813,392 $ 3,945,960 $ 4,313,632 9.3%
Operating grants and contributions.. 4,472,482 5,041,709 523,672 429,283 4,996,154 5,470,992 9.5%
Capital grants and contributions... 514,815 516,167 29,635 47,381 544,450 563,548 3.5%
General revenues:
Individual inCome tax..........ccoeeeierieicienienns 2,357,050 2,282,464 — — 2,357,050 2,282,464 (3.2%)
Retail sales and use tax... 2,788,909 2,820,520 — — 2,788,909 2,820,520 1.1%
Other taxes 1,271,326 1,323,521 — — 1,271,326 1,323,521 4.1%
Unrestricted grants and contributions. 37,744 82,721 — — 37,744 82,721 119.2%
Unrestricted investment income. 79,119 29,535 — — 79,119 29,535 (62.7%)
Tobacco legal settlement. 88,290 86,313 — — 88,290 86,313 (2.2%)
70,137 71,621 — — 70,137 71,621 2.1%
Total FEVENUES ...coviiieieiee e 13,223,329 13,754,811 2,955,810 3,290,056 16,179,139 17,044,867 5.4%
Expenses
Governmental activities:
General government.. 1,548,072 1,485,190 — — 1,548,072 1,485,190 (4.1%)
Education... 920,695 1,110,675 — — 920,695 1,110,675 20.6%
Health and environment. 3,888,356 4,142,255 — — 3,888,356 4,142,255 6.5%
Social services 798,409 846,818 — — 798,409 846,818 6.1%
Administration of justice 693,478 676,157 — — 693,478 676,157 (2.5%)
Resources and economic development. 221,644 202,982 — — 221,644 202,982 (8.4%)
Transportation 400,646 473,086 — — 400,646 473,086 18.1%
Intergovernmental .. 3,807,548 3,686,361 — — 3,807,548 3,686,361 (3.2%)
71,883 76,130 — — 71,883 76,130 5.9%
Business-type activities:
Higher education............c.cccoevveriicnsiennns — — 2,270,359 2,460,589 2,270,359 2,460,589 8.4%
Higher education institution support 2 — — 717,480 728,103 717,480 728,103 1.5%
Unemployment compensation benefits — — 526,954 546,389 526,954 546,389 3.7%
Financing of housing facilities — — 125,422 133,632 125,422 133,632 6.5%
Medical malpractice insurance — — 78,949 50,113 78,949 50,113 (36.5%)
Financing of student loans — — 36,748 41,409 36,748 41,409 12.7%
Tuition prepayment program... — — 33,862 27,208 33,862 27,208 (19.7%)
Patriots Point development.. — — 6,717 6,986 6,717 6,986 4.0%
Insurance claims processing.. — — 1,467 1,603 1,467 1,603 9.3%
— — 28,362 25,452 28,362 25,452 (10.3%)
Total eXPENSEeS ..o 12,350,731 12,699,654 3,826,320 4,021,484 16,177,051 16,721,138 3.4%
Excess (deficiency) before
transfers and special and
extraordinary items.... 872,598 1,055,157 (870,510) (731,428) 2,088 323,729 15,404.3%
Special and extraordinary items. — — (6,851) (996) (6,851) (996) 85.5%
Transfers (862,126) (782,874) 862,126 782,874 — — N/A
Increase (decrease) in net assets............ 10,472 272,283 (15,235) 50,450 (4,763) 322,733 NA
Net assets, beginning of year..........ccccocc... 9,040,333 9,050,805 3,017,864 3,002,629 12,058,197 12,053,434 0.0%
Net assets, end of year........coconiins $ 9,050,805 $ 9,323,088 $ 3,002,629 $ 3,053,079 $ 12,053,434 $ 12,376,167 2.7%
aThe higher education institution support activity represents associations, foundations, and authorities created for the benefit of the State's higher education institutions.
Changes in Net Assets Governmental Activities
The State’ net assets increased Net assets of the State’ s governmental activities
$322.733 million, or 2.7% over the prior year's net increased by  $272.283 million, or  3.0%,.
assets. Governmental~ activities revenues are derived
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mostly from taxes; grants and contributions
including federal aid; and charges for goods and
services.  Exhibit 3 illustrates the sources of
revenues that these activities reported.

Governmental activities' expenses were mostly
associated with services provided for health and
environment, intergovernmental general
government, and education. Exhibit 4 compares the
cost of these services with their program revenues—
revenues derived directly from the program itself or
from parties_outside ‘the State’'s faxpayers or
citizenry. The difference between the two
represents the net cost of these services that taxes
and other general revenues  financed.
Intergovernmental” expenses of  $3.686 billion
represent aid provided to local governments,
including local school districts; taxes and other

eneral revenues entirely supported these expenses.
his aid includes formula-based State revenue
sharing, aid to local school districts for public
education, and subsidies to reimburse counties for
the State's residential property tax relief program.
For the accountln%_ ear ended June 30, 2003, the
State used $5.642Dbillion in tax and other general
revenues to finance the net cost of all services that
the State's governmental activities provided.
Governmental activities reported $782.874 million
in net transfers to the State’s business-type
activities, most of  which represents support
provided to the State’s public colleges and
universities.

. The following paragraphs highlight the most
significant changés In revenues, expenses, and net
transfers for governmental activities during the
2002-2003 accounting year:

*  Operating grants and contributions increased hy
$569.227 million, or 12.7%, over last year. This
increase related to increases in federal grant
revenues and in contributions for education
from the Lottery Commission. = Federa
Medicaid funding increased due to rising health
costs and increased client participation. In
addition, the percentage of federal funding for
Medicaid expenses increased as a result of the

Jobs and Growth Tax Relief Reconciliation Act
of 2003 (JGTRRA). Federa funds for food
stamp benefits were greater as a result of higher
unemployment in = the State. Lottery
contribufions increased signifi cantIY_ during this
first full year of lottery opéerations. Lottery sales
also grew in response to the introduction of the
multi-state Powerball game and other new
games.

Unrestricted grants and contributions increased
$44.977 million, or 119.2%, because of the
receipt of unrestricted, population-based grant
revenues from the federal government under the
JGTRRA of 2003.

Unrestricted . investment income  declined
$49.584 million, or 62.7%, because the State
had less cash to invest, interest rates were lower,
and the State moved from longer-term to
shorter-term investments.

Education expenses rose $189.980 million, or
20.6%. Lottery-based scholarships paid to the
State’'s colleges and universities accounted for
the majority Of the increase during thisfirst year
of lottéry-based scholarship funding.

Transportation expenses increased
$72.440 million, or 18.1%, as the State

epartment of Transportation . spent bond
proceeds_ received in a prior fiscal year on
various highway maintenance projects.

Various program expenses, such as those for

eneral government, administration of justice
?prlsons_ and public %ffeto?/)_, resources and
economic development, and ‘intergovernmental
frevenue—sharmg with local governments) were
ess than the prévious year, primarily because of
Genera Fund budget cuts.

Net transfers to busi n%s—t)épe activities declined

$79.252 million, or 9.2%, because General Fund

géxdggtt_ cuts reduced State funding of higher
ucation.
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Exhibit 3
Governmental Activities Revenues

Individual income

Restricted grants tax
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40%

Sales and use tax
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Exhibit 4
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Business-type Activities

. Net assets of the State’ s business-type activities
increased $50.450 million, or 1.7%.

Business-type . activities revenues included
charges for ‘services (85.5%) and grants and
contributions  (including federal aid) (14.5%).
Business-type activities™ expenses were mostly to
rovide higher education services and support
79.3%), unemployment. compensation benefits
13.6%), and housing services (3.3%).

Most businesstype activities are self-
supporting. Tuition and student fees, research and
other grants (both private and %overnmental), and
other charges primarily pay for the services that the
Higher Education Fund “provides. The Higher
Education Fund, however, receives substantial
resources . (primarily  transfers of  annual
ap{_)ro{grlatlons from the State's governmental
activities. Essentialy, net transfers to the Higher
Education Fund represent the cost of educational
services that taxes and other genera revenues of
governmental activities support.

. The following paragraphs highlight the most
significant changés in revenues, expenses, and net
transfers for businesstype activities during the
2002-2003 accounting year:

Chargges _ for services, increased
$410:889 million, or 17.1%. This was primarily
because of increases for higher education and
unemployment compensation activities.
Revenues of State-supported colleges and
universities were up significantly beCause of
tuition and fee incréases and increased
enrollment. Institutions raised tuition and fees
to help offset. a reduction in State
appropriations. Higher education revenues also
increased because of lottery-funded scholarships
that for the first time beCame available to in-
State students who met certain requirements. In
addition, the largest universities reported an
increase in fedefaly funded research grants.
Unemployment _ compensation  assesSments
experienced a 0.5% base rate increase in

January 2003. Higher unemployment and the
related increase in unemploymerit claims led to
the increase in assessments.

. Oéjerating, grants and contracts declined
$94.389 million, or 18.0%. This decrease
mostly came from a decline in federal, grants for
unemployment compensation benefits. The
State received $109.412 million in surplus
federal funds through a Reed Act distribution
ltﬂSt year but did notreceive any surplus funding

isyear.

. Higher education expenses  increased
$190.230 million, or 8.4%, over last year. This
increase was primarily due to~ first-year
expenses of the |ottery-funded _scholarshlﬁ
program, additional costs associated wit
increased enrollment, and increases in employee
compensation.

Medical malpractice insurance  expenses
declined . $28.836 million, or 36.5%. The
program_ incurred an unusualy large amount of
clams in 2001-2002 but Saw a return in
2002-2003 to claims levels more in line with the
2000-2001 levels.

* Ne transfers received from governmental
activities_decreased by $79.252 million, or
2%. This represents a reduction in State
appropriation _funding to State-supported
colleges and universities due to budget cuts.

Financial Analysis of the State’s Funds

The State of South Carolina uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. Within the
fund financial statements, the focus is on reporting
major funds.

Governmental Funds

Exhibit 5 shows the components of fund balance
for the State's various governmental funds as of
June 30, 2003.
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Exhibit 5

State of South Carolina's Governmental Fund Balances
(Expressed in Thousands)

Departmental Local Department of State Nonm ajor Total
General General Government Transportation Tobacco Governmental  Governmental

Fund Operating Infrastructure Special Revenue Settlement Funds Funds
Reserved.........ccooeveiiiiiinnnnns $ 57,982 $ 936 $ 1,494,124 $ 8,815 $ 2,250 $ 138,745 $ 1,702,852
Unreserved, designated.......... — — — — — 120,604 120,604
Unreserved, undesignated...... (204,352) 295,666 (163,760) (5,719) 536,991 404,658 863,484
TotalS...oooviviiiiiiccce $ (146,370) $ 296,602 $ 1,330,364 $ 3,096 $ 539,241 $ 664,007 $ 2,686,940
Change from prior year... $ (6,419) $ 52,656 $ 77,721 $ (187,681)  $ (129,585) $  (49,071) $ (242,379)
Percentage change.......... (4.6%) 21.6% 6.2% (98.4%) (19.4%) (6.9%) (8.3%)
As the exhibit shows, at June 30, 2003, the purposes.  These resources _include significant
State’'s governmental funds’ ending fund balance amounts of federal grant receipts. Fund balance
was $2.687 hillion, which represents a decrease of increased by $52.656 million, or 21.6%, over last
$242.379 million (or 8.3%) from the prior year. ear, in part because the State received additional
Almost half of this total (45.1%) makes up the ederd edicaid funding a the end of the

unreserved fund balance—the amount available for
spending in the coming year. The remaining, fund
balance, or 54.9%, is reServed and is not available
for future appropriation because it is accessible only
for specific purposes. The following paragraﬁhs
discuss the maor governmental funds th ad
significant changes in fund balance:

The General Fund is one of two large State
operating funds.. This fund includes resources that
ay for the services that the State traditionally has
rovided to its citizens. These resources, such as
axes, are accounted for in the General Fund unless
State law requires them to be accounted for_in
another fund. During the 2002-2003 accountin
year, the total fund balance of the General Fun
decreased by $6.419 million, or 4.6%, from last
ear. That is, the General Fund spent more than it
ook in, even though its revenues increased and its
expenditures decreased relative to the previous year.
Budget cuts and the receipt of unrestricted federal
aid "under the Jobs and Growth Tax Relief
Reconciliation Act of 2003 helped stabilize fund
balance, but offsetting negative factors were at work
as well.  For examplé individual income tax
revenues lagged behind last year because of higher
unemployment and reduced Corporate earnings.” In
addition,” investment_earnings decreased and debt
service expenditures increased.

The Department General Operating Fund
accounts for resources, other than General Fund
resources, that State agencies may use for operating
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2002-2003 accounti _nE% %ear under the federal Jobs
Growth and Tax Reli econciliation Act of 2003.

The Department of Transportation (DOT)
Fpecial Revenue Fund accounts for various gasoline
taxes, fees, fines, and federal grant resources. The
DOT uses these resources to Play for its general
operations, which include highway mainténance,
regulation, and construction of public hlghways and
bridges. The decrease in fund balance _of
$187.681 million resulted primarily because durin
2002-2003, the DOT spent bond proceeds. i
originally had received in a previous accounting
year.

The Sate Tobacco Settlement Fund accounts for
revenues received from the General Fund and from
the Tobacco Settlement Revenue Management
Authority, a blended component unit and nonmajor
governmental  fund designated to receive and
manage the State's share of the multi-state legal
settlement with the tobacco industry. Fund balance
declined =~ $129.585 million during 2002-2003
because the fund's health-related expenditures for
the year exceeded its interest and investment
earnings.

Proprietary Funds

Exhibit 6 shows the components of net assets for
the State's various proprietary funds.
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Exhibit 6

State of South Carolina's Proprietary Fund Net Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)

Enterprise Funds

Education Internal
Higher Unemployment Housing Assistance  Nonmajor Total Service
Fund Net Assets Education Compensation Authority Authority Enterprise Enterprise Funds
Invested in capital assets

(net of related debt)............. $ 1535579 $ — 73 % 95 $ 112,757 $ 1,648,504 $ 125,437
Restricted, expendable........... 217,530 535,674 222,928 127,300 35,771 1,139,203 87,972
Restricted, nonexpendable..... 29,155 — — — 19,200 48,355 353
Unrestricted.........ooceeeeieenenne 332,097 — 965 1,064 (105,402) 228,724 (103,355)
TotalS. oo $ 2114361 $ 535674 $ 223966 $ 128459 $ 62,326 $ 3,064,786 $ 110,407
Change from prior year.. $ 158,070 $ (139,047) 11,674 $ 4980 $ 18937 $ 54,614 $ (95,556)
Percentage change.......... 8.1% (20.6%) 5.5% 4.0% 43.6% 1.8% (46.4%)

The State has two kinds of proprietary funds:
enterprise funds and interna service® funds.
Enter,Pnse funds are reported as. business-type
activities in  the government-wide financial
statements. EnterpriseTunds sell goods or services
primarily to parties outside of State government.

The Higher Education Fund, an enterprise fund,
accounts for the general operations of ten four-year
higher education institutions and sixteen area
teChnical colleges. Fund net assets increased
$158.070 million, or 8.1%, over last year. Thistotal
increase _included a $76.645 million, or 5.3%,
increase in capital assets, net of related debt, and a
$62.255 million, or 23.19%, increase in unrestricted
net assets. Capita assets, net of related debt,
increased because of the completion of several large
construction projects.  Some of these projects are
discussed in the Capital Assets subsection of the
discussion and analysis. Unrestricted net assets
represent resources” that can be_used for the
institutions' on-going operations. The increase in
this_portion of "net assets primarily was due to
significant increases in tuition. and student fees
increased enrollment, and an increase in federa
research grants and contracts.

The Unemployment Compensation Fund
experienced a significant decline in fund balance
dur_ln? the accounting year ended June 30, 2003.
This fund collects assesSments from employers and
uses these resources to pay benefits to unemployed
gersons who_are legdly “eligible to recejve such

enefits. ~ The fund’s net assets decreased

$139.047 million (20.6%) from the preceding year.
The economic downturn put more people out of
work, so the fund paid out more benefits. In
addition, the fund earned less interest income than
last year because it had less cash and because
interést rates were lower.

South Carolina’'s internal service funds provide
certain services (including maintenance, insurance,
printing, data processing, and motor poal services)
and some goods (such as office supplies) primarily

to other State funds but sometimes to local
governments as well. The objective of an interna
Service fund is to charge its customers for the costs
of the services or goods that it provides. Because
internal  service funds primarily benefit State
government, South = Carolina reports them as
overnmental activities in the government-wide
Inancia statements.

Budgetary General Fund Highlights

. Differences between the origina budget and the
final amended budget were substantial.

. The State’s Board of Economic Advisors (BEA)
is responsible for forecasting revenues for thé
budget. State law requires that the BEA meet at
least quarterly to review revenue collections and to
adjust_ its estimates if necessary. _ During _the
2002-2003 accounting year, the BEA révised
origina revenue estimates downward by $478.491
milTion, or 8.7%. These downward revisions were
the result of unrealistic revenue forecasts as well as
dower than expected economic growth.

. If. the BEA reduces revenue projections
significantly, the State’ s Budget and Control Board
the Board)yls responsible for reducing spending to
ﬁ the budget in balance. In response to the
BEA's revised estimates, the Board reduced
ap(ngoprlatlons by $518.200 million by eliminating a
2.0% set-aside for_capital and nonrecurring items
and by ordering 8.7% cuts for most State agencies.
é? ropriations had to be increased by
.961 million during the year to fund certain
State-mandated programs that’ were underestimated
in the Appropriation Act.

~ BEven with these substantial reductions to the
original budget, actual revenues at June 30, 2003
were $82.153 million less than the revised expected
revenues. Furthermore, actual revenues fell short of
actual expenditures by $26.780 million. The State
was forced to expend all of the remaining
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$38.797 million from its “rainy day account,” full
depleting that account. De%mte these deficit-
avoidance actions, the State ended the year with a
budgetary fund deficit of $131.227 million._See the
Budgetary Reporting subsection of the Required
Supplementary Information section on pages 128
through 133 of this report for a detailed budgetary
comparison schedule.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

At the end of the 2002-2003 accounting year
the State had $13.404 billion invested in capital
assets.  This represented a net increase (including
additions and deductions) of $1.020 billion, or
8.2%, over the previous accounting year (see
Exhibit 7).

Exhibit 7

State of South Carolina's Capital Assets
(Net of Depreciation, Expressed in Thousands)

Total

Governmental Business-type Percentage

Activities Activities Totals—Primary Government Change
2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002-2003
Land and improvements.............c.cccceeveee $ 648,770  $ 858,814 $ 184,799  $ 201,018 $ 833,569 $ 1,059,832 27.1%
Infrastructure...........cccoce. 5,174,989 5,647,697 — — 5,174,989 5,647,697 9.1%
Buildings and improvements... 844,698 890,319 1,479,836 1,709,790 2,324,534 2,600,109 11.9%
Vehicles......ccooorvicnnenn 178,065 181,426 8,688 9,099 186,753 190,525 2.0%
Machinery and equipment....................... 121,666 112,180 176,442 198,575 298,108 310,755 4.2%
Works of art and historical treasures..... 974 3,667 19,064 19,029 20,038 22,696 13.3%
Construction in progress..........c.coceevvnnne 3,202,996 3,258,002 331,024 288,409 3,534,020 3,546,411 0.4%
Intangible assets 6,082 21,398 5,852 5,036 11,934 26,434 121.5%
Total. oo $ 10,178,240 $ 10,973,503 $ 2205705 $ 2,430,956 $ 12,383,945 $ 13,404,459 8.2%
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. Asin the previous accounting year, the State’s
investment in land increased significantly during
2002-2003, because it acquired rights-of-way for
highway construction and widening projects and it
purchased several parcels of land and easements for
conservation purposes.

~ The Stat€'s  infrastructure investment also
increased significantly during the 2002-2003
accountln%Nyear. Thé $232.000 million Carolina
Bays Parkway opened in December 2002, and an
Interstate-85 widening gr%ect was completed at a
cost of apIprOX|ma_ter 70.000 million. * The State
aso installed median cable barriers on the State’'s
interstates. Construction continues on the Cooper
River Bridge project and various road-widening
projects.

. The State's. investment  in buildings and
improvements  increase significantly, ~ partly
because public universities completed several large
construction projects. The University of South
Carolina had the largest increase to its_reported
buildings because it completed a new multi-purpose
entertainment arena and a 170,000 square-foot

fitness and wellness center. = Also, Clemson
University renovated its recreation and wellness
center and various athletic facilities.

_ Intangible assets increased from last fiscal year,
primarily”because the Department of Public Safety
impleménted its new FProject Phoenix software
élasttemdm Department of 'Motor Vehicle offices

ewide.

See Note8 in the notes to the financial
statements within_ this report for additional
information on the State’' s capital assets.

Long-term Debt

At the end of the accounti n% year, the State had
$6.513 billion in bonds and notes outstandi Er:ﬁq—an
increase of ¢ .586 million, or 7.3%, over last year
%_see Exhibit 8). Notel3, in the notes tothe
financial statements, includes more detailed
information about the State' s long-term debt.

Exhibit 8

State of South Carolina's Outstanding Bonds and Notes
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Governmental Business-type Percentage
Activities Activities Totals—Primary Government Change
2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002-2003
Backed by the State:
General obligation bonds........ $ 2,204,129 $ 2,239,207 $ 134,235 $ 208,968 $ 2,338,364 $ 2,448,175 4.7%
Bond anticipation notes.......... — — 8,400 — 8,400 — (100.0%)
Backed by specific revenues:
Revenue bonds and notes..... 4,398 33,429 1,574,598 1,643,188 1,578,996 1,676,617 6.2%
Infrastructure Bank bonds...... 1,193,046 1,463,582 — — 1,193,046 1,463,582 22.7%
Tobacco Authority bonds....... 902,920 869,870 — — 902,920 869,870 (3.7%)
Limited obligation bonds.......... 30,597 27,040 — — 30,597 27,040 (11.6%)
Bond anticipation notes.......... — — 16,400 28,025 16,400 28,025 70.9%
Total $ 4,335,090 $ 4,633,128 $ 1,733,633 $ 1,880,181 $ 6,068,723 $ 6,513,309 7.3%

31



State of South Carolina

M anagement’s Discussion and Analysis

New debt resulted mainly from the issuance of
$285.195 million in Infrastfucture Bank revenue
bonds. The State Infrastructure Bank uses its own
revenues to pay the principal and interest (debt
se_rwce% on thése bonds. @ These revenues are
anan y truck registration fees and penalties that
he Department of Public Safety collects and
transfers to the Bank.

Three bond rating services assign ratings. to
bonds that the State backs with itS own taxin
authority ége_neral obligation bonds). Standard
Poor’s and Fitch, Inc., rate these bonhds as “AAA,"
and Moody’ s Investors Service rates them as “Aaa.”
These are the highest ratings that these services
assign. In September 2003, Moody’s revised the
outlook for the State from stable t0 negative. In
announcing the change in outlook, Moody’s stated:
“The negalive outlook reflects a trend of ‘weakened
revenues resulting from continued slowing in the
State's  economy, which has led to multi-year
Genera Fund year-end deficits.”

The State limits the amount of annual payments
for principal and interest on genera  aobligation
bonds and notes rather than directly limiting the
amount of those bonds and notes that’the State may
have outstanding. At . June 30, 2003, the State
legally could issue additional bonds as long as the
new debt would not increase the State's annual
Prmupal and interest pa{ment_s by more than the
following amounts. $11.131 million in total_for all
institution bonds, $22.012 million for highway
bonds, and $24.978 miliion for general obligation
bonds, excluding institution and highway bonds.
E)Instlt_utmn bonds are general ohligation bonds that

enefit the State’ s Higher Education Fund.)

Economic Factors and Next Year's
Budget

The “Rainy Day Account”

At June 30, 2003, the General Reserve Fund,
sometimes called the rainy day account, had a zero
balance instead of the $147.708 million that would
have been in the reserve had it been fully funded at
that date. The State's Constitution, requires
restoration of the reserve to full funding within three

ears after a withdrawal. State law™ defines fulll
unding for the reserve as 3% of the Budgetary
Generd_. Fund's revenues for the latest completed
accounting year.

Budgetary General Fund for the 2003-2004
Accounting Year and Mitigation of the
2002-2003 Operating Deficit

~ On August 15, 2003, based on current-year and
prior-year Tevenue collection trends, the State’s

Board of Economic Advisors (SEEA) declared a
revenue shortfall for the 2003-2004 accounti gg_year.
As a result, the BEA adjusted its revenue estimate
for the Budgetary Genera Fund downward by
$112.976 million from the amount included in the
annual Appropriation Act.

On August 20, 2003, the State Budget and
Control Board ordered $141.804 million in spending
reductions for 2003-2004. As required by
Section 11-11-325 of the Code of Laws, the first
$98.599 million of this cut eliminated the entire
2.0% “set-aside” for capita and nonrecurring
Buaposes. In accordance with Section 63.18 of the

003-2004 A(%)roprlanon Act and Section 6 of
Act 356 of 2002, the Board ordered an additional
$43.205 million in budget cuts for State agencies to
help mitigate the uo‘la?_etary Gener Fund's
2002-2003" operating deficit” as well as any
anticipated 2003-2004 shortfall in revenue, The
cuts will reduce most agencies spending in
2003-2004 by approximately 1.0%.

See the Budgetary General Fund Highlights
subsection above for additional information about
the responsibilities of the BEA and the State Budget
and Control Board.

Economic Conditions

The State's Budgetary General Fund revenue
collections through the first five months of the 2003-
04 accounting year were $50.725 million, or
2.4%, higher than the level collected in the same
period in"2002. For July through November 2003,
retail sales tax collections were 6.8% greater than
July through November 2002 receipts, while net
individual income tax collections were up 1.4% over
the same period. Y ear-to-date net corporate income
tax collections were up 109.5%, or $16.106 million,
for July through November 2003 as compared to the
same period in 2002.

The BEA adopted a preliminarg Budgetary
General Fund revenue estimate of $5.491 billion for
the 2004-2005 accounting year. This revenue
forecast represents a 2.0% increase over the revised
base for 2003-2004 but is roughly $4.000 million
less than 2003-2004' s appropriaied base. The BEA
will review this estimate in February 2004 and
either adjust or finalize it then.

Requests For Information

The primary purpose of thisfinancial reportisto
provide = South = Carolina's citizens, taxpayers
customers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the State€' s finances and to demonstrate
the State's accountability for the money it receives.
Please address your questions ~ concerning

information in this report as follows:

Office of the Comptroller General
1200 Senate Str ) o
305 Wade Hamﬁton Office Building
Columbia, South Carolina 29201
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Business-type COMPONENT
Activities Activities Totals UNITS
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equIValeNnts...........cccceceevieiiieeie e $ 2,026,992 $ 1,431,405 3,458,397 $ 142,681
INVESTMENES.....vvvieeeeieiiiiee e 168 47,111 47,279 181,380
Invested securities lending collateral.............cccoociieeeniiiieenn. 383,765 127,556 511,321 159
Receivables, net:

ACCOUNES. ...eiiiiiiiiiiee e e e e ettt e e e e et e e e e e e e eaba e e e e e e e ssareeeaeesanees 231,390 55,407 286,797 167,783

CoNtriBULIONS.....coiiiiiee e — 10,202 10,202 1

PartiCiPantS..........ueeiii i — 5,987 5,987 —

ACCIUE INTEIEST.....vviiieeiiiieiee e e ceiee e e r e e e e seree e e e e e e 19,002 18,747 37,749 4,364

INCOME TAXES....etiiiiie ittt 255,073 — 255,073 —

Sales and Other taXES.......ccvcuueieeeiiiieie e 399,020 — 399,020 —

StUAENT ACCOUNTS......uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiirirere e e ereeeeaeaeaaaaaaaeas — 28,900 28,900 —

Patient aCCOUNLS.......ccceiiiiiiiiee e 14,024 97,408 111,432 —

LOANS AN NOLES......uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieie e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaa e 23,188 52,852 76,040 —

ASSESSIMENTS....eiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieeeee ettt reeee e — 46,079 46,079 —

Due from Federal government and other grantors.................. 567,772 99,211 666,983 —
Internal balancCes...........ccoiviiiiiie i 19,728 (19,728) — —

Due from component UNItS.........oocuveieieriiiiiiee e 25,822 — 25,822 —

Due from primary goVernment..........ccccovveeiiieeenireenineeesieeennns — — — 3
INVENTOMIES. .. eeiiiieiiiiie et e e e e e e e e e e e e e areeeas 42,805 28,497 71,302 155,765
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents.............cccceeeiiiiiiieiiiiiieee e, 45,137 271,993 317,130 67,305

INVESTMENES....eiiiiie e e e e 115,109 6,132 121,241 71,373

Loans reCeivable..........uuuiiiieiiiiiieiiiiieeeeeeee e — 258 258 —

(@1 =T S OSSR 2,404 2,069 4,473 —
Other CUIMTENt ASSELS.....ccccieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiet e e e e e 15,999 20,454 36,453 10,095

Total CUMTENT ASSELS....uuuiiieieiiiiiiiee e ciiere et a e saeee e 4,187,398 2,330,540 6,517,938 800,909

Long-term assets:
Receivables, net:

ACCOUNTES...eeteeiiiiiiiie e e e ettt e e e st e e e e ae e e e e e e e snnraeeaeeaannes 56,908 364 57,272 —

ContribULiONS. ..o — 4,029 4,029 —

PartiCIPANTS. ...ccoviiiiiiee it — 18,320 18,320 —

INCOME AXES....eiiiiiieieieiiieie et e 33,575 — 33,575 —

Sales and Other taXeS.......covcuuvieeeiiiiiiee e 35,817 — 35,817 —

Patient aCCOUNLES.......cccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieere e e e e e e aeeeaes 13,227 — 13,227 —

[ F= T E- Vo Lo [ (0] = 323,874 301,477 625,351 —
INVESTMENES. .. .uviiiiiiiiiiie et e 220,331 10,024 230,355 23,483
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents............ccceeieiiiieiieiniiicee e, 502,126 286,005 788,131 159,006

INVESTMENTS....eviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeceeeeeeeee e — 49,516 49,516 342,770

Accounts receivable.............ccccooiii i 437,069 — 437,069 —

L0oans reCceivable...........oveieiiiiiiiee e — 587,227 587,227 —

(@] 1 =T PR RO PPURRRRROOt 6,324 6,672 12,996 41
Other 10Ng-term aSSEeLS.......uueiiiiieiieeeiiiiiie e e e sraeee e 1,122 27,112 28,234 2,290
Deferred Charges. ... 8,978 7,240 16,218 274,634
Investment in jOINt VENTUIe........c.oooiiiiiiiiiiiiicece e — — — 21,136
Non-depreciable capital aSSets.........cccovveeriiiiiereiiiiieee e, 4,102,096 469,196 4,571,292 507,938
Depreciable capital assets, Net...........cccceereeiiiieeniieenieeee 6,871,407 1,961,760 8,833,167 2,717,899

Total long-term assets 12,612,854 3,728,942 16,341,796 4,049,197

TOtAl ASSELS..uiiiiieiiiiiiiie ettt 16,800,252 6,059,482 22,859,734 4,850,106

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Business-type COMPONENT
Activities Activities Totals UNITS
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNtS PAYADIE .....eeivieiieciie et $ 583,552 $ 96,461 $ 680,013 $ 87,377
Accrued salaries and related expenses 113,084 54,360 167,444 8,571
Accrued interest payable... 39,814 9,666 49,480 60,823
Retainages payable........... 5,548 5,319 10,867 —
Tax refunds payable............ccccoeuneee. 431,787 3,985 435,772 —
Payables-aid to individuals/families...........cccccccovvvieeeevinnnn.. 96 — 96 —
Prizes payable...........coooiiiiiiiiii e — — — 23,611
Unemployment benefits payable............cccccoiiiiniiiniiennn. — 5,259 5,259 —
Intergovernmental payables.............ccoceiiiiiiiiiniiiii 314,314 3,262 317,576 5,416
Tuition benefits payable...........cccooeiiiiii — 2,280 2,280 —
POIICY CIRIMS. ...t 436,936 35,000 471,936 25,787
Due to COMPONENE UNILS.....ccuvviiriiiieiiieeiiice e 3 — 3 —
Due to primary governmMent..........c.eeeeeeiiueieeeneiiieeeeeeiieeee — — — 25,822
Deferred revenues and deferred credits............cccooevvveneennen. 190,890 120,311 311,201 19,358
DEPOSIES. ..ttt — 4,485 4,485 80
Amounts held in custody for others..........ccccceevvviieeeiiciineennnn — 3,844 3,844 —
Securities lending collateral...........c..coeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 383,765 127,556 511,321 159
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Accounts payable............cccioiiiii s — 4,444 4,444 2,744
Accrued interest payable...........ccoeiiiiieiii 26,021 18,160 44,181 4,938
Bonds payable..........cuueiiiiii e 26,195 66,155 92,350 —
OFNET ... — 99,113 99,113 —
NOtES PAYADIE.......eeiiiee e 1,035 30,194 31,229 6,332
Revenue bonds anticipation notes payable..............cccceuee.. — 28,025 28,025 —
General obligation bonds payable............ccccoooiiiiiiiiiinennnes 164,530 10,120 174,650 —
Revenue bonds payable..........ccccceeiiiiiiiciiiieec 1,140 15,835 16,975 84,525
Limited obligation bonds payable.............cccccoiviiiiiiiniiieenn. 3,755 — 3,755 —
Certificates of participation payable... — 13,525 13,525 —
Capital leases payable................... 850 10,496 11,346 2,800
Commercial paper notes............. — — — 303,177
Compensated absences payable 132,141 55,437 187,578 2,467
Other current liabilities ...... . 53,987 9,005 62,992 26,402
Total current liabilities. ... 2,909,443 832,297 3,741,740 690,389
Long-term liabilities:
Retainages payable............ccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiic — 2,012 2,012 7,092
Tuition benefits payable..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiee, — 111,725 111,725 —
POIICY CIAIMS. ... 41,620 175,312 216,932 116,789
Deferred revenues and deferred credits...........cccoocveeeeinnennn. — — — 101,060
Notes payable..........cccoovieiiiiiiiiiiicieee 6,360 132,940 139,300 3,930
General obligation bonds payable.. 2,074,677 198,848 2,273,525 —
Tobacco Authority bonds payable.. 869,870 — 869,870 —
Infrastructure Bank bonds payable. 1,437,387 — 1,437,387 —
Revenue bonds payable.............. 24,894 1,398,064 1,422,958 2,589,351
Limited obligation bonds payable 23,285 — 23,285 —
Capital leases payable................ 3,256 54,949 58,205 21,562
Compensated absences payable..........cccocevieiiiiiieeeeiniinen. 57,440 43,952 101,392 13,474
Other long-term liabilities...........ccooveiiieieeiiiiiee e 28,932 56,304 85,236 21,144
Total long-term liabilities...........cccooverieiiiiccce, 4,567,721 2,174,106 6,741,827 2,874,402
Total [iabilities........ccocveiiiiii e 7,477,164 3,006,403 10,483,567 3,564,791

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Net Assets (Continued)

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Business-type COMPONENT
Activities Activities Totals UNITS
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt......................... $ 8,077,945 $ 1,648,504 $ 9,726,449 $ 512,794
Restricted:
Expendable:
Unemployment compensation benefits............ccccooieinenns — 535,674 535,674 —
EdUCALION.......ueiiiiiii e 257,472 126,115 383,587 1,532
Health.. ..o 7,185 — 7,185 —
TraNSPOTAtION. .....oieiiieeee ettt e e 212,363 — 212,363 —
Capital ProjeCtS.......cceecviiiiiiieiie e 177,758 93,650 271,408 350,270
DEDE SEIVICE. ...ceiiiiiiiiiie e 969,288 315,402 1,284,690 82,331
LOBN PrOgramMS. .....ceeiiiirireeee et 540,188 68,312 608,500 —
Waste ManagemeNnt........cocvvviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeee e 89,169 — 89,169 —
INSUranCe ProgramsS.........uueieeeirreeieeerireeee e sinreeee e e senreeeens 67,971 — 67,971 —
(@4 1T SO PP PPPPPRTPN 62,026 50 62,076 73,884
Nonexpendable:
EdUCALION.......eeiiiiiiie e 353 48,355 48,708 —
1,834 — 1,834 _
(1,140,464) 217,017 (923,447) 264,504

$ 9,323,088 $ 3,053,079 $ 12,376,167 $ 1,285,315

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Program Revenues
Operating
Grants and

Capital Net

Charges for Grants and (Expense)

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Functions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government................oococcinnins $ 1,485,190 $ 1,020,219 $ 260,990 $ 7,511 $ (196,470)
EdUcation........ccccooiiiiiiiieiiiccee e 1,110,675 34,293 813,915 1,369 (261,098)
Health and environment............ccccccceevneeee.n. 4,142,255 140,467 3,041,914 3,500 (956,374)
S0oCial SEIVICES.....uvvvveieeeiiieeeeieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 846,818 2,439 691,604 — (152,775)
Administration of juStiCe............ccceeiiieernnen. 676,157 168,226 36,388 636 (470,907)
Resources and economic development........ 202,982 44,962 61,248 10,588 (86,184)
Transportation...........cceeeveeeeiiieeiiee e 473,086 89,634 135,650 492,563 244,761
Intergovernmental...........cccocveiniiiinieecnnnen. 3,686,361 — — — (3,686,361)
Unallocated interest expense............c.ccuee.... 76,130 — — — (76,130)
Total governmental activities.................. 12,699,654 1,500,240 5,041,709 516,167 (5,641,538)
Business-type activities:
Higher education............cccocvveviiiiiiininineene 2,460,589 1,543,441 213,827 47,328 (655,993)
Higher education institution support.............. 728,103 742,754 43,570 53 58,274
Unemployment compensation benefits......... 546,389 374,112 34,169 — (138,108)
Financing of housing facilities....................... 133,632 45,564 101,899 — 13,831
Medical malpractice insurance..................... 50,113 37,855 344 — (11,914)
Financing of student loans.............c.cccceen.e. 41,409 33,806 12,583 — 4,980
Tuition prepayment program............cc.ceeeueee. 27,208 85 21,280 — (5,843)
Patriots Point development..............cccccceeee. 6,986 7,511 172 — 697
Insurance claims processing 1,603 1,602 — — 1)
Other ... 25,452 26,662 1,439 — 2,649
Total business-type activities.................. 4,021,484 2,813,392 429,283 47,381 (731,428)
Total primary government $ 16,721,138 $ 4,313,632 $ 5,470,992 $ 563,548 $ (6,372,966)
Component units:
Public Service Authority...........ccccoveveeriienieneens $ 984,901 $ 1,033,746 $ 22,805 $ = $ 71,650
State Ports AUthOrity.........ccccoovieiniiiiniiccieee 119,090 110,269 1,140 5,612 (2,069)
Connector 2000 Association, Inc...................... 21,500 3,083 1,191 — (17,226)
Lottery COMMISSION........cccvvvireeeiiiiireeeesiiieeenn 727,900 726,910 223 — (767)
Other .. 68,994 27,785 29,058 — (12,151)
Total component units............ccoocevinns $ 1,922,385 $ 1,901,793 % 54,417  $ 5612 $ 39,437

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Activities (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Changes in net assets:
Net (EXPENSE) FEVENUE ........coeerruviieeaaiiiieeeeeiieeee e $ (5,641,538) $ (731,428) $ (6,372,966) $ 39,437
General revenues:
Taxes:
Individual iINCOME..........cooooiiiiiiiiii e, 2,282,464 — 2,282,464 —
Retail sales and use... 2,820,520 — 2,820,520 —
Other........... 1,323,521 — 1,323,521 —

TOtaAl tAXES..eeieeeiiiiieie et 6,426,505 — 6,426,505 —
Unrestricted grants and contributions...............ccccee.. 82,721 — 82,721 —
Unrestricted investment income... 29,535 — 29,535 —
Tobacco legal settlement...........ccooceveieeiiiiiieeeeeniiee. 86,313 — 86,313 —
Special I[temMS.......cooiiiiiiiiieiiee e — (458) (458) —
Extraordinary loss on debt extinguishment................... — (538) (538) —

Other reVENUES..........cceeiiiiiiiieeeee e 71,621 — 71,621 —
Transfers—internal activities... (782,874) 782,874 — —
Total general revenues and transfers................. 5,913,821 781,878 6,695,699 —
Change in net assets......ccccoiiieiiniiiiee e 272,283 50,450 322,733 39,437
Net assets at beginning of year, restated.................... 9,050,805 3,002,629 12,053,434 1,245,878
Net assets at end of year........ccooooiiii, $ 9,323,088 $ 3,053,079  $ 12,376,167  $ 1,285,315

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Balance Sheet

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Departmental Local Department of
General General Government Transportation
Fund Operating Infrastructure Special Revenue
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents............c.cccoceeiiiiiiiinicie e, $ — $ 250,555 $ 242,112 $ 202,569
Investments...........cceeeveviiiiiiiniiiene 4,743 340 — —
Invested securities lending collateral...............ccccocveeineeen. 41,067 5,660 161,068 28,777
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES ...ttt ettt 7,469 110,265 46,339 14,381
AcCrued iNtErest........cooovvviieiieriiieieeee e 2,668 300 4,956 1,448
Income taxes 288,648 = = —
Sales and other taxes.........cccoovvieiieiienei e 300,515 8,560 — 6,685
Patient aCCOUNLS. .......cooiiiiiiiee e 15,079 12,172 — —
Loans and NOLES..........cccvriiieeiieireeee e 9 541 312,317 10,692
Due from Federal government
and other grantors...........ccocvuveeiiieeriee e 10,761 455,944 — 98,440
Due from other funds..........cceoeeiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 50,753 15,089 8,328 3,355
Due from component UNItS............cccvevverienernneeneesee s — 2 8,000 —
Interfund receivables 10,784 10,016 235,523 —
INVENEOMIES. ..o 13,872 15,016 — 6,470
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.............cccoccevoiiiienieniennenn — — 547,093 162
INVESIMENTS. ... — — — —
Accounts receivable... . — — 437,069 —
OtNEI .. — — 6,324 —
Other @SSetS.......veiiiiieiieeeecee e — 547 — 5,169
Total ASSELS....cceieeiiiiiieie e $ 746,368 $ 885,007 $ 2,009,129 $ 378,148
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Liabilities:
Accounts payable..........ccoooveiiiiiiiiien $ 131,805 $ 272,096 $ 23,739 $ 69,380
Accrued salaries and related expenditures..................... 63,258 29,498 24 15,116
Accrued interest payable . — — — 78
Retainages payable.............ccccoiiiiiiiiiiii e, — 754 — 2,720
Tax refunds payable............coeoiiiiiii 431,594 — — —
Payable—aid to individuals/families... . 96 — — —
Intergovernmental payables............cccoocveiiiiiinieciieeee 14,148 159,035 863 —
Due to other funds............cccceiiiiiiiiiiii e 69,444 58,707 2,338 13,340
Due to cCompoNEeNt UNItS.........coovveirieneriiieieiee e 3 — — —
Interfund payables...........cccoiiiiiiiiiii 9,538 6,185 6,500 235,451
Deferred revenues............... 103,248 56,440 484,233 10,190
Securities lending collateral.... 41,067 5,660 161,068 28,777
Other liabilities ..........ccovoiiiiii e 28,537 30 — —
Total liabilities. ... 892,738 588,405 678,765 375,052
Fund balances (deficits):
RESEIVEM. ...t 57,982 936 1,494,124 8,815
Unreserved, designated reported in:
Special revenue funds. ... — — — —
Capital projects fund...........cceevvieeiiiieiniieee e — — — —
Unreserved, undesignated reported in:
General FUNd..........oooviiiiiiiiie e (204,352) — — —
Special revenue funds............ccocceeiciiiiiiiniiii e — 295,666 (163,760) (5,719)
Permanent funds...........ccooviiiiiiiiiicne e — — — —
Total fund balances (defiCits)........ccceviviiriiiiiinenns (146,370) 296,602 1,330,364 3,096
Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits)............ $ 746,368 $ 885,007 $ 2,009,129 $ 378,148

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

State Nonmajor Total
Tobacco Governmental Governmental
Settlement Funds Funds
$ 540,282 $ 584,521 $ 1,820,039
— 501 5,584
5,261 69,821 311,654
— 4,242 182,696
743 5,058 15,173
— — 288,648
— 119,077 434,837
— — 27,251
— 23,503 347,062
— 2,627 567,772
— 7,887 85,412
— 17,819 25,821
3,000 459 259,782
2 32 35,392
— 8 547,263
— 115,109 115,109
— — 437,069
= 2,404 8,728
— — 5,716
$ 549,288 $ 953,068 $ 5,521,008
$ 3,453 $ 17,255 $ 517,728
8 1,714 109,618
— — 78
— 1,935 5,409
— 193 431,787
— — 96
1,311 137,297 312,654
14 21,764 165,607
— — 3
— 23,344 281,018
— 15,685 669,796
5,261 69,821 311,654
— 53 28,620
10,047 289,061 2,834,068
2,250 138,745 1,702,852
— 16,315 16,315
— 104,289 104,289
— — (204,352)
536,991 403,819 1,066,997
— 839 839
539,241 664,007 2,686,940
$ 549,288 $ 953,068 $ 5,521,008
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State of South Carolina

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total fund balances—governmental fUNAS. ...
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Certain assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the funds. These assets consist of:

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable capital ASSELS..........cuiiiiiiiiiieiiie e
Depreciable Capital BSSELS........coiuiiiiiiiiiiii e
Accumulated dePreCiatioN............cie it
Total CAPItAl BSSELS. ... .viieiiiie it

oo T It 4]0 oo 111 =T SRR
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Bond issue costs are reported as current expenditures in the funds. However, issue costs are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds and are included in governmental
activities in the statement Of NEt ASSELS...........ooiiiiiiii e

Certain State revenues will be collected after year-end but are not available soon enough to pay
for the current period's expenditures, and therefore are deferred in the funds............ccoccoeeiiiiiinns

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual
funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement Of NEE ASSELS.......c..uuiiii e e

Eliminations relating to the consolidation of internal service funds resulted in an amount due from
business-type activities to governmental activities in the statement of net assets............ccccoceeveeeene

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the
funds. Those liabilities consist of:

Bonds payable
Notes payable....................
Accrued iNtEreSt ON DONAS. ......c..uuiiiie et e e e e e
CAPILAl IBASES. ...ttt
Compensated absences...........
Intergovernmental payable....
Policy claims.........c.cccceene

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

4,095,322
9,504,102
(2,781,341)
10,818,083

652

(4,572,659)
(7.174)
(64,822)
(1,164)
(184,104)
(1,660)
(6,670)
(51,685)

$

2,686,940

10,818,735

8,805

576,432

110,407

11,707

(4,889,938)

$

9,323,088
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changesin Fund Balances

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Taxes:

Licenses, fees, and permits..........cccevvereiiienienieenee e
Interest and other investment income............cccoceeieeiieeiienns
FEABTAL ...t
Local and private grants..........cocceeoeereeeieenieesie e
Departmental SErVICES.........cooiiiiiriieiieiie e
CONtHDULIONS. ...

Expenditures:
Current:
General gOVErNMENL.......c.ooiieiieriiere e
Education....................
Health and environment.
Social services...............
Administration of justice...........ccccvevrueenn.
Resources and economic development..........cccceeevvveeniinnenne
TranSPOIALION. ......eeveeieeeesiee et eeseiee e see e ee e e sneeee e
Capital OULIAY......ccoeieeeiieeeiee e
Debt service:
Principal retir€mMent...........cooiiiieeiiie e
Interest and fiscal charges........cccocveeviieeevieenie e
INtergovernMENtal..........c.coiiviiiieiiiiieeee e

Total eXPENItUIES....ccceveeiiiee e

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) eXpendituresS........cccoceveeneenieniieenee e

Other financing sources (uses):
Bonds and NOtES iSSUEM.........ccuuveirieeeeiiieeiiieeesiee e siee e
Refunding bonds issued......
Premiums on bonds issued.
Capital 1eases.......ccccocvvevvveeviieeciiee e,
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent...
Transfers iN......ccccovveeeie e
TraNSTEIS OUL.....coiiiieeiiiee e

Total other financing sources (USeS).....cccceevveeevriveeennnns
Net change in fund balances.........cccccocveeivieeenceeennnen.
Fund balances (deficits) at beginning of year.....................

Fund balances (deficits) at end of year........ccccceeevveevceeennns

Departmental Local Department of
General General Government Transportation
Fund Operating Infrastructure Special Revenue
2,282,196 $ = $ 5,793 $ =
2,068,826 604 — —
686,483 21,253 18,000 458,009
135,365 98,487 50,589 —
27,180 1,790 76,737 8,201
176,343 4,378,309 13,878 431,887
— 8,319 — —
427,327 148,194 75,912 35,751
11,874 23,227 62,849 —
18,461 39,951 — —
12,814 103,032 — 6,439
5,846,869 4,823,166 303,758 940,287
271,083 101,478 486 —
309,013 155,751 — —
1,292,867 3,035,607 — —
83,176 757,559 — —
503,424 126,276 — —
87,618 66,210 753 —
— — 11,882 547,584
— — — 443,343
155,656 269 20,440 22,102
74,003 51 67,574 35,693
2,511,128 612,324 418,145 70,238
5,287,968 4,855,525 519,280 1,118,960
558,901 (32,359) (215,522) (178,673)
107,700 — 285,195 —
59,335 — — 46,080
762 — 5,782 669
629 — — 459
(59,927) — — (46,340)
204,880 106,128 3,554 444
(878,699) (21,113) (1,288) (10,320)
(565,320) 85,015 293,243 (9,008)
(6,419) 52,656 77,721 (187,681)
(139,951) 243,946 1,252,643 190,777
(146,370) $ 296,602 $ 1,330,364 $ 3,096

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

State Nonmajor
Tobacco Governmental
Settlement Funds Totals

$ — $ — 2,287,989

— 747,708 2,817,138

— 108,631 1,292,376

— 105,949 390,390

15,922 28,028 157,858

— 13,622 5,014,039

— 1,011 9,330

— 16,639 703,823

— 237,896 335,846

— 23,120 81,532

— 86,313 86,313

251 1,502 124,038

16,173 1,370,419 13,300,672

10,749 91,909 475,705

— 168,142 632,906

103,355 80,791 4,512,620

_ 4,192 844,927

— 15,196 644,896

3,672 4,545 162,798

— — 559,466

— 81,941 525,284

— 33,066 231,533

— 58,960 236,281

30,491 826,696 4,469,022

148,267 1,365,438 13,295,438

(132,094) 4,981 5,234

— 100,000 492,895

_ — 105,415

_ 4,110 11,323

— — 1,088
— — (106,267)

6,758 86,899 408,663
(4,249) (245,061) (1,160,730)
2,509 (54,052) (247,613)
(129,585) (49,071) (242,379)

668,826 713,078 2,929,319

$ 539,241 $ 664,007 2,686,940
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State of South Carolina

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changesin Fund Balances of Governmental Fundsto the

Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Net change in fund balances—total governmental fUNAS..........coooiiiiiiiiiiii e
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their useful lives as depreciation expense.
In the current period, these amounts are:

(0T o] = o101 £- Y2 PP PP PUPPTROPPPPP
Depreciation EXPENSE. ......ccuuveiiiiiiiieeiiieeniee e
Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense....

Donations of capital assets increase net assets in the statement of activities, but do not appear in
the governmental funds because they are not financial reSOUICES............cccvvveiiiiiiiiee i

Losses on disposals of capital assets are reported as an expense in the statement of activities..................

Expenses for food commodities in the statement of activities do not provide current financial
resources and are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds............ccccceeiiiiieiiiienns

Bond and note proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds; however,
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. In the current
period, proceeds were received from:

BONAS @nd NOES ISSUET..........ociiiiiiiiieiii e
Refunding DONAS ISSUEA. ........c.uuiiiiiiiiiii et
BONA PrEMIUMS. ...coiiiiiieiit ettt ettt e e e st e e e

Net bond and NOE PrOCEEUS. ........eiii it e e

Bond issuance costs are expenditures in governmental funds, but are deferred assets in the
StALEMENT Of NEL ASSELS.......ii it

Certain capital additions were financed through capital leases. In governmental funds, a capital
lease arrangement is considered a source of financing, but in the statement of net assets, the
lease obligation is reported as @ ability...........ccueeiiiiiiiiii e

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. In the current year,
these amounts consist of:

Bond prinCipal retir@MENT..........coiiiiiiiie ittt
Note principal retirement....
Capital [EASE PAYMENTS. .......viiiiiiieiiiie ettt ettt
Payment to bond refunding @gent...........c...eieiiiiiiiie s
Intergovernmental liability PaYMENTS.......coouiiiiiieiii e

Total long-term debt repayMeNt..........c..uviii i

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The net revenue of the internal service funds is included in
governmental activities in the statement of ACIVItIES. ........cc.ueiiiiiiiiii e

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

(201,961)

(11,323)

$  (242,379)
673,943

471,982

338,266

(9,546)

(288)
(492,895)
(105,415)

(609,633)

2,899

(1,088)
224,964
1,651
4,918
106,267
1,570

339,370

(95,556)

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changesin Fund Balances of Governmental Fundsto the

Statement of Activities (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Because certain receivables will not be collected within one year after the State's fiscal year ends,
the related revenues are not considered "available" and are deferred in the governmental funds.

INCrease iN deferred FEVENUES. ........coiuieiie e ccieiee e st e e e e s e e e et e e e e snnee e e e e s snnaeeeeenns $ 96,757

Eliminations relating to the consolidation of internal service funds resulted in a net increase in expenses
for the business-type activities in the statement of actiVities............cooccueiiiiiiiiiii e 4,164

Certain items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. These
activities consist of:

Net increase in accrued iNtErest..........ccocviiiiiiiiiiiiii i, $ (4,154)
Interest accreted on capital appreciation debt.. (1,314)
Amortization of bond iISSUANCE COSES..........ccccciiiiiiiiiiiii (309)
Net amortization of bond premiums and diSCOUNtS...........ccoooieiieriiiiiniiceeree e 1,018
Amortization of deferred losses on refunding of debt (484)
Decrease in compensated absences payable..............ccoooiiiiiiiiii 2,984
Decrease in retainages payable.............ccooiiiiiiiiiii 53
Decrease in policy claims payable.. 1,682
Net increase in other payables.............cciiiiiiiiiiii e (22,141)
Total additioNal EXPENSES.......ccviiiiiiiiiiie e (22,665)
Change in net assets of governmental aCtiVItIES.........ccccuiiiee i e e saee e $ 272,283

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Net Assets

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

ENTERPRISE
Higher Unemployment Housing
Education Compensation Authority
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.. . $ 402,075 $ 500,554 $ 7,764
INVeStMENtS......ccvveviiiiiiieee e, . 39,307 — —
Invested securities lending collateral...........cccoccceeviieeniieennnns 53,636 2,670 10,890
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES. ...ttt ettt e e e e e e eeeeeas 30,072 8,367 1,428
CONIDULIONS.......eiecciiecce e e 10,083 — —
PartiCIPANTS. ... vee et — — —
ACCIUEA INTEIEST....cvvii ettt 10,132 7,442 40
Student accounts.. . 28,900 — —
Patient @CCOUNES........ueeeiiiieiiiee e — — —
LO@NS @NA NOES....ccvvieeiiieeeiiie et 107 — 745
ASSESSMENTS....iiiiiiiie ettt et e e e e e e e e e e s sbrae e e e e aaes — 46,079 —
Due from Federal government and other grantors................... 94,403 3,317 1,485
Due from other funds.........ccoeeoiiieeiiie e 31,688 14 —
Due from component UNItS.........c.ceeveeeeeeiiieeeniieesieeesieeesnineen — — —
INVENTOTIES. . .eiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e e anee s 13,709 — —
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...........cccccerieiieiiieiie e 77,380 — 74,442
INVESTMENES. ...eeiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e 64 — —
L0oans receivable..........cceieiiiiiiiiee e 193 — —
(O T PSPPSR 181 — —
Other CUIMENt @SSELS.......cccuviiiiiiieeiiiee et e e eree e e sree e eaae e 16,199 — —
Total CUMENt ASSELS...ccuiieeiiiie et 808,129 568,443 96,794
Long-term assets:
INVESTMENTS. ....eiiiiiiiiiii e 9,203 — 664
Receivables, net:
Accounts..... 364 — —
Contributions.. . 3,779 — —
PartiCIPANTS. .....vee ettt — — —
LOANS @NA NOES.....cuviieiiiie ettt 75,125 — 17,279
Interfund receivables............ooouvviiiiee e — — 4,950
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..........c.cccooueeriiieeniiee s 98,148 — 159,497
Investments....... 16 — 4,311
Loans receivable... . 49,690 — 521,651
[©1 =T TP OPPRPPPPPNE 131 — 5,141
Other [ONg-terM aSSEtS.......uviiiiiieiiiie e 3,376 — —
Deferred Charges. .......oooee i 1,206 — 4,430
Capital assets:
Land and improvements..........ccceveeiiriiieeriee e seee e 203,539 — —
Buildings and improvements............ccceevveeeiieeeinieeesiee e 2,453,421 — —
Construction in progress....... . 238,586 — —
VENICIES. ...ttt 35,481 — —
Machinery and equUIPMENt..........cccceeviiiiiiiiienienie e 374,576 — 309
Works of art and historical treasures..........cccooccvveevieeeiiieeennns 16,809 — —
INtangible aSSetS.......ccciiiiiiiiiie 9,381 — —
Less: accumulated depreciation...........ccoocveeveeeeiiieeniieennnes (1,213,208) — (236)
Total capital aSSets, Net .....cccevvieriiieiieiieeee e 2,118,585 — 73
Total IoNg-term aSSEetS......cccuveeriieeiiiie e 2,359,623 — 717,996
Total assets 3,167,752 568,443 814,790

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

FUNDS
Education INTERNAL
Assistance Nonmajor SERVICE
Authority Enterprise Totals FUNDS
$ 354,481 $ 166,531 $ 1,431,405 $ 206,953
— 7,804 47,111 —
359 60,001 127,556 72,111
8,050 7,490 55,407 77,273
— 119 10,202 —
— 5,987 5,987 —
328 805 18,747 3,829
— — 28,900 —
— 97,408 97,408 _
52,000 — 52,852 —
— — 46,079 —
— 6 99,211 —
— 15,661 47,363 43,704
— — — 1
— 14,788 28,497 6,760
26,529 93,642 271,993 —
— 6,068 6,132 —
— 65 258 —
— 1,888 2,069 —
— 4,255 20,454 11,396
441,747 482,518 2,397,631 422,027
— 157 10,024 214,915
— — 364 165
— 250 4,029 _
— 18,320 18,320 —
209,073 — 301,477 —
— 21,954 26,904 45,292
— 28,360 286,005 —
1,803 43,386 49,516 —
— 15,886 587,227 —
— 1,400 6,672 —
— 23,736 27,112 9
1,604 — 7,240 173
— 26,428 229,967 7,842
— 270,193 2,723,614 185,649
— 49,823 288,409 98
12 1,690 37,183 37,778
115 167,289 542,289 59,401
— 6,967 23,776 —
— 5,486 14,867 9,386
(32) (215,673) (1,429,149) (144,734)
95 312,203 2,430,956 155,420
212,575 465,652 3,755,846 415,974
654,322 948,170 6,153,477 838,001

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Net Assets

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

AcCCOUNtS PAYADIE.......cooiiieiiie e
Accrued salaries and related eXpenses.........ccovvevveenieerieenne.
Accrued interest payable..........cccooveeeiiie i
Retainages payable........
Tax refunds payable...................
Unemployment benefits payable. .
Intergovernmental payables..........cccooovieeiiiie e
Tuition benefits payable...........ccccviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee
POlICY ClaIMS.....coiiiieeiie e
Due to Other fUNAS........cooeeiiiiiieie e
Deferred revenues... .
DBPOSIES. .ttt ettt
Amounts held in custody for others .
Securities lending collateral............cccocovereiiiiiienieieeeee
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:

Certificates of participation payable..........c..cccoceviiveinieennnnen.

Capital leases payable............ccocoeiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieee e
Compensated absences payable .
Other current liabilities ...........ccoooeiiiiiiiiie e
Total current liabilities..........coovieiiiieeeeee e
Long-term liabilities:

Retainages payable...........coceviieiiieeiiieceee e
Tuition benefits payable..
Policy claims.........
Interfund payables .
NOtES PAYADIE......eoeiiieeie e
General obligation bonds payable............cccooiiiiiiiiiieiinnnn.
Revenue bonds payable..........ccccovviieiiiiiiiiieeee s
Limited obligation bonds payable............cccccooiiiiiinnininnn
Capital leases payable....................
Compensated absences payable...
Other long-term liabilities......... .
Total long-term liabilities..........ccooeeiieiiiieee e,
Total lIabilitieS.......ccorviiiiieree e

ENTERPRISE
Higher Unemployment Housing
Education Compensation Authority
56,180 $ 5,742 $ =
37,228 — 472
6,017 — —
4,487 — —
— 3,985 —
— 5,259 —
— 3,085 177
19,683 12,028 27
107,561 — —
4,485 — —
3,844 — —
53,636 2,670 10,890
4,444 — —
— — 14,562
— — 52,405
— — 7,476
2,918 — —
28,025 — —
10,120 — —
14,937 — —
2,893 — —
40,314 — 285
4,295 — 914
401,067 32,769 87,208
2,012 — —
22,285 — —
13,638 — —
198,848 — —
289,071 — 503,328
33,130 — —
42,684 — 288
50,656 — —
652,324 — 503,616
1,053,391 32,769 590,824

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

FUNDS
Education INTERNAL
Assistance Nonmajor SERVICE
Authority Enterprise Totals FUNDS
$ 341 $ 31,270 $ 93,533 $ 7,873
— 16,660 54,360 3,466
— 3,649 9,666 935
— 832 5,319 139
— — 3,985 —
— — 5,259 —
— — 3,262 —
— 2,280 2,280 —
— 35,000 35,000 434,286
— 9,749 41,487 2,098
— 12,750 120,311 97,526
— — 4,485 —
— = 3,844 —
359 60,001 127,556 72,111
— — 4,444 —
3,082 516 18,160 —
13,750 — 66,155 —
16,319 75,318 99,113 —
— 27,276 30,194 108
— — 28,025 —
— — 10,120 —
— 898 15,835 1,140
— — — 3,755
— 13,525 13,525 —
— 7,603 10,496 550
151 14,687 55,437 3,498
1,688 2,108 9,005 2,615
35,690 314,122 870,856 630,100
— — 2,012 —
— 111,725 111,725 —
— 175,312 175,312 37,600
— 21,444 43,729 7,231
— 119,302 132,940 113
— — 198,848 —
489,021 116,644 1,398,064 24,894
— — — 23,285
— 21,819 54,949 2,392
— 980 43,952 1,979
1,152 4,496 56,304 —
490,173 571,722 2,217,835 97,494
525,863 885,844 3,088,691 727,594

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Net Assets

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

ENTERPRISE
Higher Unemployment Housing
Education _Compensation_ ___Authority
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt..............cccceene.. $ 1,535,579 $ — $ 73
Restricted:
Expendable:
Unemployment compensation benefits..........cc.ccooeriienennnns — 535,674 —
EdUCALION. ... 103,894 — —
Capital PrOJECES. .......iiivieiiiiiieitie sttt 93,432 — —
Debt service 20,204 — 184,225
LOBN PrOGIAMS. ...ccoiiiieiitiie ittt ettt — — 38,703
INSUrANCE PrOGraMS. ....c.vevieiieieaiieiesieere st — — —
Oher ... — — —
Nonexpendable:
EAUCALION. ..ot 29,155 — —
UNFESHHCIEU. ... 332,097 — 965
Total NEt ASSELS...cciiiiiiciieriie e $ 2,114,361 $ 535,674 $ 223,966

Adjustment in Higher Education Fund related to consolidation of internal service funds

Net assets of business-type aCtivities.........ccoceieriiiiii i

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

FUNDS
Education INTERNAL
Assistance Nonmajor SERVICE
Authority Enterprise Totals FUNDS
$ 95 $ 112,757 1,648,504 $ 125,437
— — 535,674 —
— 22,221 126,115 —
— 218 93,650 —
97,691 13,282 315,402 —
29,609 — 68,312 20,000
— — — 67,972
— 50 50 —
— 19,200 48,355 353
1,064 (105,402) 228,724 (103,355)
$ 128,459 $ 62,326 3,064,786 $ 110,407
........................................................................................... (11,707)
........................................................................................... 3,053,079

53



State of South Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changesin Fund Net Assets

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

ENTERPRISE
Higher Unemployment Housing
Education Compensation Authority
Operating revenues:
ASSESSIMENTS. ...t $ — $ 223,108 $ —
Charges fOr SEIVICES. .....coiuuiiiiee ittt 639,862 — 8,337
CONIIDULIONS.....coiiiiii e — — —
Interest and other investment INCOME...........ccueieiiiiiiiee e — 789 42,945
Operating revenues pledged for revenue bonds.. 122,423 — —
Federal operating grants and contracts.................. 447,378 128,716 —
State operating grants and contracts............. 168,408 — —
Local/private operating grants and CoONtracts..........ccccoevcveveeiiiiiienennne 46,526 — —
Other operating reVENUES. .........coiiuiiiiiieiiie et 156,220 22,278 39
Total Operating reVENUES.........cooivieiiiieiiee e 1,580,817 374,891 51,321
Operating expenses:
General operations and administration.............cccccevvveeiiiieniee e 2,174,665 70 8,759
Benefits and claims — 546,319 —
Tuition plan disbursements............cccooviiiiiiiii e — — —
INEEIEST. ...ttt e e — — 30,326
Depreciation and amortization.............ccceeerieierieeineie e 103,424 — 287
Scholarships and fellowships.............eveiiiiiiiieii e 147,873 — —
Other operating EXPENSES. ........cooviiiiieiiiieaiie et 585 — 1,812
Total Operating EXPENSES.......oviiiiiiiieeiiie et 2,426,547 546,389 41,184
Operating income (loss) (845,730) (171,498) 10,137
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Federal and local government appropriations.............ccccveevciereennnns 53,891 — —
Interest iNCOMe.........ccooovviieiieiic e 26,197 33,390 —
Contributions..........ccccccoeene 67,889 — —
Federal grants and contracts............ 7,106 — 96,134
Local/private grants and CONtraCtS.........ccuvveeeriiiiieeeiiiiiee e 8,703 — —
INEEIESE EXPENSE. ...ttt (26,977) — —
Other nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES).....cccuiuureeerrurereearireeeessnenes 9,478 — (92,424)
Total nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES).....ccueeeeeeiiireeeeniieeeeanes 146,287 33,390 3,710
Income (loss) before other revenues, expenses,
losses, and transfers........ocoo i (699,443) (138,108) 13,847
Capital contribUtioNS...........ueiiiiiii e — — —
Federal capital grants and CONracts.............cccevveeiriieiniee e 27,006 — —
Local/private capital grants and CONtractS............ccceevieveeeeiniiineeennnns 20,322 — —
Additions to endowments...........cccoceevieiiiiiiennnne 195 — —
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt...............c..c.ocee. — — (538)
SPECIAI IEMIS...iiiii ittt — — —
TrANSTEIS Nttt 830,073 40 —
B = L0 1S (=T 0 10 SR (20,083) (979) (1,635)
Change in NEt @SSEeIS.....cuuiiiiiiiiiie e e 158,070 (139,047) 11,674
Net assets at beginning of year (restated).........ccccceeeiiieeiiiiiieenins 1,956,291 674,721 212,292
Net assets at end Of Year........cccccveiiiiiieciic e $ 2,114,361 $ 535,674 $ 223,966

Adjustment in Higher Education Fund related to consolidation of internal service funds

Change in net assets Of DUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES ... ... v et e e e et e e et et e et e e ee e e senean e naeas

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

FUNDS
Education INTERNAL
Assistance Nonmajor SERVICE
Authority Enterprise Totals FUNDS
$ = $ = $ 223,108 $ =
33,806 276,598 958,603 1,407,304

— 15,673 15,673 777

2,969 5,615 52,318 49

— 537,121 659,544 —

— — 576,094 —

— — 168,408 —

— — 46,526 —

— 33,737 212,274 11,857
36,775 868,744 2,912,548 1,419,987
28,038 723,406 2,934,938 298,474

— 49,367 595,686 1,190,723

— 26,704 26,704 —
11,300 24 41,650 —

154 21,858 125,723 14,168

— — 147,873 —

1,917 965 5,279 3,551
41,409 822,324 3,877,853 1,506,916
(4,634) 46,420 (965,305) (86,929)

— — 53,891 —

— 2,794 62,381 26,797

— 3,300 71,189 —

— — 103,240 —

— 1,266 9,969 —

= (13,909) (40,886) (2,174)

9,614 3,517 (69,815) 160

9,614 (3,032) 189,969 24,783

4,980 43,388 (775,336) (62,146)

— — — 259

= = 27,006 =

— 52 20,374 —

— 405 600 —

— — (538) —

= (458) (458) —

— — 830,113 7,554

= (24,450) (47,147) (41,223)

4,980 18,937 54,614 (95,556)

123,479 43,389 205,963
$ 128,459 $ 62,326 $ 110,407
............................................................... (4,164)

............................................................... $ 50,450
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Cash Flows

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

ENTERPRISE
Higher Unemployment Housing
Education Compensation Authority
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers, patients, and third-party payers.................. $ 816,200 $ — —
ASSESSMENLS rECEIVEM. ... — 216,093 —
GrantS FECRIVEM. ... .uvveiiee e ittt e et e e e et rre e e e e e searaees 634,543 126,591 5,404
Receipts from collection of loans and notes.. 319,761 — 121,772
Internal activity—payments from other funds. 54,307 = =
Tuition plan contributions received... — — —
Other operating cash receipts....... 29,132 20,566 1,258
Claims and benefits paid.............cccccceiiiiinnnns — (551,625) (1,442)
Payments to suppliers for goods and Services............cccoeveeiiieeieeninns (831,230) — (9,963)
Payments to emplOyees............ccocciiiiiiiiiiiic e (1,393,575) — (4,842)
Payments for scholarships and fellowships.. (108,462) — —
Loans iSSUEd t0 STUAENES. ......cc.eiiiieiieiiieeiie et (292,959) — —
Program 10ans iISSUEM...........cciuiiuiaiiiiiieiee et — — (59,128)
Internal activity—payments to other funds.. — — —
Other operating cash PaYMENLS. ..........ccoiieiuiiiiiiieiieie e (2,132) (70) —
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities...................... (774,415) (188,445) 53,059
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State, county, and local appropriations..............ccccceieiiiniiciic e, 51,365 — —
Federal appropriations..............cccccc.... 13,384 = =
Funds held for others............cccoiiiiiiiii s 910 — —
Principal payments received from other funds.............ccocceeiiiiinienne 20 = =
Principal payments made to other funds.......... — — —
Receipt of interest from other funds....... — — —
Interest payments made to other funds.. — — —
Loans made to other funds..................... — — —
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds. —_ — 73,000
Principal payments on revenue bonds... — — (6,690)
Early retirement of bonds payable................ — — (36,665)
Proceeds from issuance of noncapital debt.. 1,000 = =
Principal paid on noncapital debt...............cccocoiiiiiiiiiis (216) — —
Interest payments on noncapital debt................cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiis (369) — (30,202)
Payment of bond issuance costs — — (577)
Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes.............cccccceeiieiiens 101,971 — —
FEABIAl TEVENUE.... ..ot eeaaes —_ — 96,134
Payments from Federal grants.. — — (92,423)
Other Cash FECEIPLS .....vviiiiiieeie e 3,372 4,977 —
Other cash PaYMENTS .........couiiiiiiiiiie e (1,433) — —
Transfers in............... 830,073 40 —_
Transfers out (20,083) (979) (1,635)
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities..............ccociviiiiiiiiiiiiii 979,994 4,038 942
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital appropriations.............cooeeiiiiiiiiiie e 61,878 — —
Acquisition of capital @SSEtS ........cccceiieiiiiiieiee e (297,233) — —
Principal payments on notes payable .............. (2,429) — —
Principal payments on limited obligation bonds... — — —
Proceeds from issuance of capital debt..... 142,601 — —
Principal paid on capital debt and lease. (87,920) — —

Interest payments on capital debt....... (27,831) —

Payment of agent and broker fees... (15) — —
Proceeds from sale or disposal of capital assets 9,001 — _
Capital grants and gifts received............cceeviiiiiiii i 40,708 — —

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities............. (161,240) — =

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

FUNDS INTERNAL
Education Assistance Nonmajor SERVICE
Authority Enterprise Totals FUNDS
$ 27,341 $ 776,413 $ 1,619,954 $ 949,922
— 133,388 349,481 —
— — 766,538 —
580,005 — 1,021,538 —
— — 54,307 459,597
— 18,717 18,717 —
— 35,328 86,284 11,403
— (151,812) (704,879) (1,169,257)
(49,397) (314,720) (1,205,310) (204,445)
(2,521) (327,740) (1,728,678) (56,854)
— — (108,462) —
— — (292,959) —
(526,017) — (585,145) —
— (54,307) (54,307) (14,602)
— (6,917) (9,119) (1,035)
29,411 108,350 (772,040) (25,271)
— — 51,365 —
— — 13,384 —
— — 910 —
— 3,082 3,102 959
— (446) (446) —
— — — 1,412
— (1,275) (1,275) —
— — — (23,696)
— — 73,000 26,164
(3,400) — (10,090) —
— — (36,665) —
— 36,000 37,000 —
— (24,425) (24,641) —
(11,335) (5,411) (47,317) —
— (553) (1,130) —
— 5,134 107,105 —
— — 96,134 —
— — (92,423) —
— 307 8,656 —
(9,278) @) (10,718) —
— — 830,113 7,554
— (24,450) (47,147) (41,223)
(24,013) (12,044) 948,917 (28,830)
— — 61,878 —
(59) (33,190) (330,482) (9,521)
— ©) (2,431) (2,919)
— — — (3,575)
— 4,950 147,551 —
— (13,450) (101,370) (249)
— (6,665) (34,496) (2,174)
— (121) (136) —
— 63 9,064 242
_ 59 40,767 —
(59) (48,356) (209,655) (18,196)

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Cash Flows
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments.................c..coce...
Purchase of investments ...........cccccceeiviiiniiennenne
Interest and dividends on investments.........
Collection of escrow payments from borrowe

Net cash provided by investing activities..........cccoccevviieniieeninnne

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents....

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (restated).................
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year..........ccccovvvveviieeniiecnee e,

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating iNCOME (I0SS) ..vvveeeuiieeeiiie et ee e eeeeenaee e
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ...........ccccceeerieeeniieeiiiie e
Provision for bad debts............c.cccoeiiiiinennn.
Net increase in the fair value of investments
Realized gains and losses on investments...
Issuance of loans and notes.............cccocoe.eee.
Collection of loans and NOES...........ccceevieriiiiieiiicnieceeeee e
Interest payments reclassified as noncapital financing activities..........
Interest and dividends on investments and interfund loans.................

Change in assets—decreases (increases):
Accounts receivable, Net.............cccciiiiiiiiiii
Receivable from participants, net..
Assessments receivable, Net..............ccocoeiiiiiii
ACCIUE INTEIESL.......iiiiiiiiiiiii i
Loans receivable
Due from Federal government and other grantors.............ccccceeevveeennn.
Due from other funds..........cccccooviiiiiiiiiii
Inventories
Other assets
Change in liabilities—increases (decreases):
ACCOUNLES PAYADIE. ...
Accrued salaries and related eXPENSES..........oovvveeiiiieiiiieeniiee e
Accrued interest payable............ccooiiiiiiiiii e
Retainages payable
Tax refunds payable.............cccoiiiiiiiii
Unemployment benefits payable...........c.ccoooviiiiiiceee
Intergovernmental payables......
Tuition benefits payable......
Policy claims.......
Due to other funds..
Deferred revenues .
Deposits.................
Amounts held in custody for others .......
Liabilities payable from restricted assets
Interfund payables..........cocoii i
Compensated absences payable .............ccccoieiiiiiiiiiien
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities......................

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

ENTERPRISE
Higher Unemployment Housing
Education Compensation Authority
71,164 $ — $ —
(78,902) — —
23,550 37,065 5,383
15,812 37,065 5,383
60,151 (147,342) 59,384
517,452 647,896 182,319
577,603 $ 500,554 $ 241,703
(845,730) $ (171,498) $ 10,137
103,424 — 287
370 — —
— — (59,128)
— — 81,974
— — 30,326
— (789) (5,718)
(12,167) — (184)
(46,091) (1,706) (1,309)
— (6,843) —
— — 17)
(420) — —
— 43 (498)
— ®) 2
(3,869) — —
4,453 287 —
— — (145)
— (172) —
— (5,567) —
— (175) (5,567)
— (2,020) 27
13,195 — —
(700) — —
253 — —
— — 1,950
415 = 9
12,452 — 913
(774,415) $ (188,445) $ 53,059
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State of South Carolina

INTERNAL
SERVICE
FUNDS

$

152,066
(107,051)
21,927

66,942

(5,355)
212,308

206,953

(86,929)

14,168

714
(1,000)
86

(23,870)
B (798)
_(7,942)

(137)
(710)

(9,295)
2,549
904
33

FUNDS
Education Assistance Nonmajor
Authority Enterprise Totals
$ = 57,160 $ 128,324
— (55,405) (134,307)
3,742 17,425 87,165
— 1,566 1,566
3,742 20,746 82,748
9,081 68,696 49,970
371,929 219,837 1,939,433
$ 381,010 288,533 $ 1,989,403
$ (4,634) 46,420 $ (965,305)
154 21,858 125,723
— 59,071 59,441
1,144 — 1,144
— (514) (514)
(544,864) — (603,992)
591,909 — 673,883
11,973 1,919 44,218
(4,113) (8,442) (19,062)
— 131,786 131,786
— (110,105) (110,105)
— 5,576 5,576
— (622) (622)
(269) 905 (11,715)
(3,581) (61,522) (114,209)
— 3,044 3,044
— — (6,843)
— 51 34
— — (420)
— — (455)
— (8,159) (8,162)
— (2,087) (2,087)
595 51 (3,223)
(18,898) (1,594) (15,752)
— 2,696 2,551
— 359 359
— — (172)
— — (5,567)
— — (5,742)
— 26,270 26,270
— 7,660 7,660
(47) (2,132) (4,172)
— (676) 12,519
— — (700)
— — 253
— 41 1,991
— (623) (623)
42 (806) (340)
— (2,075) 11,290
$ 29,411 108,350 $ (772,040)

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Cash Flows
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Noncash capital, investing, and financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets through:
Assumption of liabilities...........cceeiiiieiiiie e
Transfers from other funds..
Donations..........c.ccceueee
Disposal of capital assets......
Assignment of Perkins Loans............cccccoeeuveennns
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments...........cccccceevvvveenneenn.
Accrual of arbitrage iNCOME..........cccuvieiiieeiiiie e
Long-term debt forgiven........
AssUMPLioN Of AEDL.........eeviiiieeiieeeee e
Total noncash capital, investing, and financing activities.............

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

ENTERPRISE

Higher
Education

Unemployment
Compensation

Housing
Authority

(49)

2,745
69

1,395

1,042

173

5,227

173
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State of South Carolina

FUNDS INTERNAL
Education Assistance Nonmajor SERVICE
Authority Enterprise Totals FUNDS
$ — $ 52 $ 3 $ —
— — 18 —
_ — 2,745 =
N N 7 N
— 2,829 4,397 (3,145)
9,613 — 9,613 —
— — — 673
— (18) 1,024 —
$ 9,613 $ 2,863 $ 17,876 $ (2,472)
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Investment Trust

Pension Local Government Private-Purpose
Trust Investment Pool Trust Agency

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents...........c.cccccvenn. $ 2,876,473 $ 1,356,098 $ 30,569 $ 170,572
Receivables, net:

ACCOUNES....eeiiiiiiiiiiiieee e — — 81 12,414

ContributioNS......cccvveeeiiieece e 120,615 — — —

Employer long-term.........ccccveeviuveenieeennnnns 1,567 — — —

Accrued interest........ccceeviveeniieeniieeeenn 161,747 6,829 376 1,215

Unsettled investment sales..............cccee.. 20,210 — 792 —

Sales and other taxes.........ccccceeevveeeieennne — — — 3,045

Total receivables.... 304,139 6,829 1,249 16,674
Due from other funds. 3,776 — — 57,702
Investments, at fair value:

United States government securities......... 2,198,688 — — 250
United States government agencies and

government-insured securities................. 1,792,774 79,929 — —
Corporate bonds........cccoovvveeviiieeiiiieiiieens 5,178,951 655,145 — —
Financial and other..........cccccoooceviiiieiiinnne 2,604,602 — 145,205 14,194
EQUItIES...eeeeeieie e 7,919,429 — — —

Total investments.........cccceeveeeeeiieeennnen. 19,694,444 735,074 145,205 14,444
Securities held in lieu of surety bonds......... — — — 334,693
Invested securities lending collateral........... 3,913,893 511,725 6,167 25,748
Capital assets, Net ........cccccvvvevieeeviieeiiienns 4,052 — — —

Other @sSets.......cccvveiieeeriieeiie e 596 — 4,482 —
Total asSSetS......cvvevviiiiiiiieeieiiiiieeenn 26,797,373 2,609,726 187,672 619,833
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable...........cccoeeriiiciiiieiiieee 4,198 — 254 28,767
Accounts payable—unsettled investment
PUIChASES.....ooiiiieeiieeeiee e 31,070 — 693 —
Due to other funds..........ccccevvviieiniieeniieens 28,765 — — —
Tax refunds payable............cccooeeiiiinnnenn. — — — 481
Intergovernmental payables........................ — — — 5,901
DEPOSItS.....eeiiiiiieiiiie e — — — 744
Amounts held in custody for others............. — — — 558,192
Deferred retirement benefits..........cccccc........ 424,906 — — —
Securities lending collateral.... 3,913,893 511,725 6,167 25,748
Other liabilities.........c.ccoovveiiiieeiieecee e 3,705 — — —
Total liabilities........cocvvviveviiieiiieee 4,406,537 511,725 7,114 619,833
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for:
Pension benefits..........cccooieiiiiiiiieeien. 22,390,836 — — —
External investment pool participants........ — 2,098,001 — —
Other PUIPOSES.......cceviiieiiiieeiieee i — — 180,558 —
Total net assets.......ooviiiinnnn 22,390,836 2,098,001 180,558 —

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Changesin

Fiduciary Net Assets
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Additions:
Licenses, fees, and permitS..........ccccovovieiiiiiiiiie s

Contributions:
EMPIOYET. ..t
EMPIOYEE. ...
Deposits from pool partiCipants...........ccocveeiiieiiiiie i
TUItION Plan dEPOSILS. ....eeviiiiiiiiiiie et

Total CONHDULIONS. ....ceeiiiiiiiieee e e

Investment income:
INEErESt INCOME......iiiiiiiie et
Securities [ending INCOME...........ccuuiiiiiiiiiii e

Total INVEeStMENT INCOME........uuvieeeeeciiiiie e eaeee s

Less investment expense:
INVESIMENT EXPENSE....cciiiiiiiiiii e
Securites 1ending EXPENSE........cccuiuiiiieiiiiiiee e

Net iNVeStMENt INCOME........ccoiiiiiiiie e e

Transfers between pension trust funds...........ccoccceviiiiiiiiniiiee s
TrANSTEIS iMoo

Total additiONS.....uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e

Deductions:
Regular retirement benefits...........ooiviiiiii i
Supplemental retirement benefits..
Deferred retirement benefits.......
Refunds of retirement contributions to members....
Group life insurance Claims..........cccoeiieeeiiie i
Accidental death benefits. ...
Withdrawals, pool participants....
Distributions to pool partiCipants............coccueieeeiiiiiere e
DEPIECIALION. ...ttt
Administrative expense............cccoccuveeennn.
Transfers between pension trust funds...
Transfers Out........cccooocveeeeeiiiiiiiieee s
Other EXPENSES. ... .viiiiiiieeieee et

Total dedUCtiONS......ccooeiiie e

Investment Trust

Change in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year (restated)

Net assets at end Of Year.......ccccvvvviiieeiiiiiie e

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Pension Local Government Private-Purpose
Trust Investment Pool Trust
= $ = $ 276
609,632 — —
465,709 — —
— 5,298,324 —
— — 116,260
1,075,341 5,298,324 116,260
1,860,880 28,413 10,206
66,037 6,433 —
1,926,917 34,846 10,206
18,881 — —
47,353 5,390 —
1,860,683 29,456 10,206

1,580 — —

2,770 — 597
2,940,374 5,327,780 127,339
1,163,148 — —

2,770 — —

240,667 — —
71,657 — —
16,366 — —

955 — —

— 4,462,717 —

— 26,248 —

119 — —
14,498 61 996

1,580 — —

— — 597
— — 340
1,511,760 4,489,026 1,933
1,428,614 838,754 125,406
20,962,222 1,259,247 55,152
22,390,836 2,098,001 180,558
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Net Assets

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Connector
Public State 2000 Nonmajor
Service Ports Association, Lottery Component
Authority Authority Inc. Commission Units Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 97,687 $ 14,708 $ 369 $ 13,943 $ 15,974 142,681
Investments, 180,695 — — — 685 181,380
Invested securities lending collateral............... — — — — 159 159
Receivables, net
ACCOUNES ..o 119,606 15,942 — 32,147 88 167,783
Contributions — — — — 1 1
Accrued interest 4,009 — — — 355 4,364
Due from primary government...............cccoc.... — — — — 3 3
INVENTOMES. ... 150,403 3,079 — 2,283 — 155,765
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 65,846 — 1,097 362 — 67,305
Investments..... 71,373 — — — — 71,373
Other current assets... 3,471 6,125 222 264 13 10,095
Total current assets........ccooeeveeneeieeiieniienns 693,090 39,854 1,688 48,999 17,278 800,909
Long-term assets:
INVESIMENLS.....coiiiiiiiiic e, — — — — 23,483 23,483
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 82,320 73,055 3,631 — — 159,006
Investments 316,542 5,935 20,293 — — 342,770
_ — 41 — — 41
Other long-term assets. — — — 2,290 — 2,290
Deferred charges 268,335 1,754 4,545 — — 274,634
Investment in joint venture 21,136 — — — — 21,136
Non-depreciable capital assets 314,987 192,951 — — — 507,938
Depreciable capital assets, net..............cc....... 2,295,675 223,998 183,051 15,172 3 2,717,899
Total long-term assets.........c.cccevveeieriennens 3,298,995 497,693 211,561 17,462 23,486 4,049,197
Total @SSetS.....eeiviriiiiiiiiiee e 3,992,085 537,547 213,249 66,461 40,764 4,850,106

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Connector
Public State 2000 Nonmajor
Service Ports Association, Lottery Component
Authority Authority Inc. Commission Units Totals
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable...........ccooiiiininiis $ 78,990 $ 2,168 $ 42 $ 5,964 $ 213 $ 87,377
Accrued salaries and related expenses........ 4,878 2,920 — 723 50 8,571
Accrued interest payable............ccccooveiiiinns 60,823 — — — — 60,823
Prizes payable — — — 23,611 — 23,611
Intergovernmental payables 5,333 45 — — 38 5,416
Policy claims — — — — 25,787 25,787
Due to primary government............ccccceveevene — 8,000 — 17,818 4 25,822
Deferred revenues and deferred credits........ — — 56 1,869 17,433 19,358
DEPOSIES. ...ttt — — 7 — 73 80
Securities lending collateral..............cc.cceueee — — — — 159 159
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Accounts payable — 777 1,967 — — 2,744
Accrued interest payable.. . — 3,172 1,766 — — 4,938
Notes payable — 57 — 6,275 — 6,332
Revenue bonds payable 81,740 2,785 — — — 84,525
Capital leases payable.... 2,762 38 — — — 2,800
Commercial paper notes 303,177 — — — — 303,177
Compensated absences payable.... — 2,124 — 270 73 2,467
Other current liabilities 22,815 3,429 — 158 — 26,402
Total current liabilities...........c.ccocecvviiiennne, 560,518 25,515 3,838 56,688 43,830 690,389
Long-term liabilities:
Retainages payable.. . 7,092 — — — — 7,092
Policy claims — — — — 116,789 116,789
Deferred revenues and deferred credits........ 101,060 — — — — 101,060
Notes payable — 480 — 3,450 — 3,930
Revenue bonds payable 2,203,708 143,466 242 177 — — 2,589,351
Capital leases payable 21,516 46 — — — 21,562
Compensated absences payable.... 12,929 — — 514 31 13,474
Other long-term liabilities..............c.ccoovinens 21,144 — — — — 21,144
Total long-term liabilities..............c..cccveuenee. 2,367,449 143,992 242,177 3,964 116,820 2,874,402
Total liabilities 2,927,967 169,507 246,015 60,652 160,650 3,564,791
NET ASSETS (DEFICITS)
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 253,984 269,949 (16,589) 5,447 3 512,794
Restricted, expendable:
Education — — — — 1,532 1,532
Capital projects 275,423 73,055 1,792 — — 350,270
Debt SEIVICE.......oocveeeee e, 76,396 5,935 — — — 82,331
71,353 — — 362 2,169 73,884
386,962 19,101 (17,969) — (123,590) 264,504
Total net assets (deficits)... $ 1,064,118 $ 368,040 $ (32,766) $ 5809 $ (119,886) $ 1,285,315
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Statement of Activities

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Public Service AUthOIitY.........cccvvevvieeviiesie e $ 984,901 $ 1,033,746 $ 22,805 $ —
State Ports AUthONtY..........oooviiiiieie e 119,090 110,269 1,140 5,612
Connector 2000 Association, INC............ccceeeeeeeeeennnnn. 21,500 3,083 1,191 —
Lottery COmMMISSION........ccovvvirierieeeeiiiiiee e e 727,900 726,910 223 —
Nonmajor component UNitS..........ccuuveeereeeeenniiieeennnn. 68,995 27,785 29,059 —
TOtAlS ciiiie e $ 1,922,386 $ 1,901,793 $ 54,418 $ 5,612

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net Assets (Deficit)

Net Beginning Net Assets (Deficit)
(Expense) of Year End
Revenue (Restated) of Year
$ 71,650 $ 992,468 % 1,064,118
(2,069) 370,109 368,040
(17,226) (15,540) (32,766)
(767) 6,576 5,809
(12,151) (107,735) (119,886)
$ 39,437  $ 1,245,878  $ 1,285,315
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

a. Scope of Reporting Entity

The South Carolina Genera Assembl gan
elected legidative body) and severa elected
executives govern the Staté of South Carolina. The
acc,om_panylng] financial statements = present the
activities of the State of South Carolina's primary
government and its component units.

Component units are legaly _ separate
organizations for which the Staté i$ financial
accountable. Blended component units, athoug
Iegal{lj%{ separate from the State, are part of the State's
operations in substance. Accor mtgly, the State
presents them as funds in _its fund financia
statements and as activities in its government-wide
financial statements. In contrast, the State excludes
its discretely presented component units from the
fund financia statements included within its basic
financial statements and it reports the discretely
presented component _ units separately in ifs
government-wide financial statements.

_ As explained more_fully below, the State's
primary government and its component units include
various ~ State  funds, encies, departments,
ingtitutions, authorities, and other organizations.

Primary Government

The State’s primary government includes all
constitutional  offices,”. ‘departments, agencies
commissions, and authorities unless otherwise noted
below. Most of these have executives or boards
appointed by the Governor, the General Assembly,
or a combination thereof. These entities are
financially accountable to, and fiscally dependent
on, the State.

Although they operate somewhat autonomously,
the entities listed below are included in the Stat€'s
primary government because they lack full corporate
powers.

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2003:
Staté Housing Finance and Devel opment
Autharity ] ]
South Carolina Education Assistance
Authority ]
Jobs-Ecorniomic Devel opment Authority
Patriots Point Devel opment Authority

Fiscal year ended December 31, 2002:
ThePublic Railways Division of the
Department of Commerce

The State's five retirement systems are part of
the State's primary government. “The State lég?et
and Control Board, which consists of five elected
officials, serves as trustee of the systems. The State
Treasurer is custodian of the funds.

_The State reports ten  State-supported
universities and sixieen area technical colle%ﬁs
within its Higher Education Fund, part of the

primary government. Although the universities and
collegés operate somewhat autonomously, they lack
full corporate powers. In addition, the Governor and
the General Assembly appoint most of their boards
and budget a significant portion of their funds.

The accompanying financial statements exclude
the related foundations listed in Note 21 because the
State does not significantly influence operations of
the related foundations™ nor are the reated
fogtrgdanons accountable to the State for fiscal
matters.

Blended Component Units

Unless otherwise indicated below, the blended
component units have fiscal years ended June 30,
and the accompanying. financial statements include
component unit financial information for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2003.

Tobacco Settlement Revenue Management Authority

The Tobacco Settlement Revenue Management
Authority, a blended component unit accounted for
as a governmental fund, commenced operations in
August 2000._Its creation was in accordance with an
act” of the General Assembly that resulted from
South Carolina's participation in a settlement (the
Master Settlement Agreement or MSA) that arose
out of litigation that a group of state g_(IJ_vernments
brought agal nst the tobacco industry. “The legaly
separate Authority's primary purposes are (@) to
receive all receipts due to South Carolina under the
MSA after June 30,2001, and (b)to issue the
Authority's bonds payable solely from, and secured
solely by, those receqpts. The Authority's governing
board is composed of the Governor or ‘his'designee,
the State Treasurer, the Comptroller Genera, the
Chairman of the Senate Finance Committee, and the
Chairman of the House Ways and Means
Committee. The State receives the funding from the
bond issuances, except in the event that the
Authority issues bonds expresdy to refund its
outstanding bonds.

State Housing Corporation

The State Housing Corporation, a blended
component unit accounted for as an enterprise fund
was organized to lease, operate, manage, and
contract for the construction of office facilities for
the South Carolina_State Housing Finance and
Development Authority and for affordable housin
facilities for members’of the beneficiary classes o
the Authority.

Governor's School for the Arts Foundation, Inc.

The State's interna service funds include the
Governor's School for the Arts Foundation, Inc,, a
blended component unit. The Foundation exists
solely to support the South Carolina Governor's
School for the Arts and Humanities.

Blended Component Units Associated with the Higher
Education Fund

The State's nonmajor enterprise funds include
the following blended component units, al of which
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are associated with the Higher Education Fund, a
major enterprise fund:

The Citadd Trust, Inc., was formed for the
purpose of investing funds in order to provide
scholarship and other financial assistance or support
to the Citaddl. ] ]

The Pharmaceutical Education and
Development  Foundation (PEDF% promotes
educational, research, clinical, and other facilities
and Programs of the Medica University of South
Carolinas College of Pharmacy. DF is a
nonq_overnme_ntal component unit.” _

he Medical University Hospital Authorlé%/ (the
Authority) was created to 'manage and operafe the
Medica University of South Carolina's hospitals and
clinics. The Ieg[lslanon establishing the Authority
requires that the members of  the Medica
University’s Board of Trustees also congtitute the
Authority’s Board of Trustees. ]

The Medical University Facilities Corporation
was established to obtain financing for the Medical
University of South Carolina to purchase land, an
office building, and a parking garage. .

The University of South™ Carolina Trust (the
Trust) operates exclusively for the benefit of the
University’s School of Medicine to augment and aid
education, research, and service in thefield of health
sciences. The financial information presented in the
accompanying financial statements is for the Trust's
fiscal yearended December 31, 2002.

University Medical Associates (UMA)  was
established to _Promote and support educational,
medical, scientitfic, and research purposes of the
Medica University of South Carolina (MUSC).
UMA promotes the recruitment and. retention of
superior faculty at MUSC.. UMA is a blended
component unit because it amost exclusivel
benefits MUSC even though UMA does not provide
all of its services directly to MUSC.

Obtaining More Information about Blended Component
Units

One may obtain complete financia statements
for the above blended component units from the
following administrative offices:

South Carolina Tobacco Settlement
Management Revenue Authority

Post Office Box 11778

Columbia, South Carolina 29211

State Housing Corporation

c/o South Carolina State Housing
Finance and Devel opment Authority

919 Bluff Road _

Columbia, South Carolina 29201

Governor's School for the Arts
Foundation, Inc.

15 Univerdity Street

Greenville, South Carolina 29601

The Citadd Trust

c/o The Citadel

171 Moultrie Street ]
Charleston, South Carolina 29409

Pharmaceutical Education and
Development Foundation

¢/o Health Sciences Foundation

18 Bee Street

Post Office Box 250450

Charleston, South Carolina 29425

Medica University Hospital Authority
Fiscal Services Offices

Post Office Box 250603

Charleston, South Carolina 29425

Medical University Facilities
Corporation, )

c/o Vice President for Finance and
Administration ]

Medical University of South Carolina

171 Ashley Avenue

Post Office Box 250003

Charleston, South Carolina 29425

University of South Carolina School of
Medicine Educational Trust

Post Office Box 413

Columbia, South Carolina 29202

University Medical Associates
Suite 355

1180 Sam Rittenberg Boulevard
Charleston, South Carolina 29407

Discretely Presented Component Units

Unless otherwise indicated below, the discretely
presented component units have fiscal years ended
June 30, and the accompanying financia statements
include component unit financial information for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2003.

Public Service Authority

The State General Assembly created the South
Carolina Public Service Authority (Santee Cooper),
a public utility company, in 1934. " The Authority’'s
primary purp0se is to ‘provide electric power and
wholesale water to the people of South Carolina,
The Governor appoints the Authority's Board of
Directors. The Governor has the ability to remove
the appointed members at will. y law, the
Authority must annually transfer to the State's
Genera "Fund any net eéarnings not_necessary for
prudent = businesS operations. The financia
information, presented in the accompanying financial
statements is for the Authority’s fiscadl year ended
December 31, 2002.

State Ports Authority

The State General Assembly created the South
Caralina State Ports Authority Tn 1942 to develop
and improve the State's harbors and seaports. The
State Ports Authority owns and operates seven ocean
terminals that handle import and export cargo. The
Governor appoints the members of the Authority's
governing board, The Governor has the ability 'to
remove the appointed members at will. The State's
Prlmar overnment has provided financial support
0 the Authority in the past, and State law grants the
primary government access to the Authority's
surplus nef revenues.
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Connector 2000 Association, Inc.

Connector 2000 Association, Inc., was created in
1996 to assist the Department of Transportation in
the financing, acquisition, construction, and
operation of ~“turnpikes ‘and other transportation

rojects, primarily the pr%ect known as the Southern

onnector in Greenville ount%/. The Department of
Transportation initially set the toll raies for the
Southern Connector and has the right, but not the
obligation, to revise the rates as 10ng as they are
within 90.0% to 120.0% of the optimum toll rates as
estimated by an independent traffic consultant
retained by the Association. The rates also must be
in compliance with revenue covenants of the
Association's financing agreements. The financial
information presented in the accom[f),anyl ng financial
statements is for the Association’s fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002.

Lottery Commission

The South Carolina_ Lottery = Commission
commenced operations in July 2001 in accordance
with an_act of the General Assembly. = The
Commission, established to serve the State's citizens,
is governed by a ninemember board with three
members appointed by the Governor, three
%%Romted by the President Pro Tempore of the

ate, and three aop_m nted by the er of the
House of Representatives. State law requires that
the Commission transfer its net proceeds to the State
to smépport improvements and enhancements for
educational purposes and programs.

Other Discretely Presented Component Units

The State considers the four discretely presented
component units described above as”its maor
compaonent units. The_ State's government-wide
financial statements also include the following non-
major di scretelh/ presented component units: _

_"The South Carolina,  Medical Malpractice
Liability Joint Underwriting Association (the
Associdation) was established "to provide medical
malpractice’ insurance on a self-supporting basis.
The Association is governed by a board of thirteen
directors, al of whom are’ appointed by the
Governor, The Governor has the ability to rémove
the appointed members at will. The financia
information presented in the accom[f),anyl ng financial
statements is for the Association’s fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002.

The South Carolina First Seps to School
Readiness Board of Trustees was established in 1999
as a hon-profit, tax-exempt corporation under
Section 5015&)(3) of the Internal. Revenue Code.
The corporation was created eC|f[calI|¥_to carry out
the objectives of The South Carolina First Steps to
School Readiness Act and to lessen the burdens on

overnment by overseeing the South Carolina First

s to School ReadineSs initiative for improvin
early childhood development. The corporation’s
governing board is composed of two classes of
members, voting and nonvoting. The Board' s votin
members include the Governor, State Superintenden
of Education, ten Governar appointees, four
members apP0| nted by the President Pro Tempore of
the Senate, Tour members appointed by the Speaker

of the House of Representatives, the Chairman of the
Senate Education Committee, and the Chairman of
the House Education and Public Works Committee.

The Children’s Trust Fund of South Carolina,
Inc. (the Fund), is a non-profit, tax-exempt
organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Fund’s purpose is to stimulate
innovative prevention and treatment programming to
meet critical needs of South Carolina s children by
awarding grants to private non-profit organizations.
The Governor oints the Board of Trustees nine
members.. The Governor has the ability to remove
the appointed members at will. The financia
information presented in the accompanying financial
statements _is for the Fund’'s fiscal” year ended
December 31, 2002. )

The Savannah_ Lakes Regional Loan Fund (the
Fund) was established in 1990. It maintains a
revolving loan fund to promote economic
development in the State's Savannah Lakes Region.
The Fund's Board of Directors consists of three
members from each of two State agencies, the
Department of Commerce and the Jobs—Economic
Development  Authority | (IJEDA). ~ The State's
prrlmary government initialy capitalized, the fund.

he primary government regularly provides gratis
administrative services to thetund.” In August 2003,
JEDA provided written notice of its intent to
dissolve the fund. Dissolution was to be effective
within sixty days of the notification.

Obtaining More Information about Discretely Presented
Component Units

One may obtain complete financia statements
for the discretely presented component units from
the following administrative offices:

South Carolina Public Service Authority
Santee Cooper) .

One Riverwood Drive ]

Moncks Corner, South Carolina

29461-2901

South Carolina State Ports Authority
Post Office Box 22287
Charleston, South Carolina 29413-2287

Connector 2000 Association, Inc.
7486 Augusta Road

Suite C, PMB #12 )
Piedmont, South Carolina 29673

The South Carolina L ottery Commission
Post Office Box 11949
Columbia, South Carolina 29211

The South Carolina Medical Malpractice
Liability Joint Underwriting
Association

c/o Marsh USA

P.O. Box 128 _

Greenville, South Carolina 29161

The Children’s Trust Fund )

c/o United Way of South Carolina
2711 Middleburg Drive, Suite 307
Columbia, South Carolina 29204
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Savannah L akes Regional Loan Fund

c/o Jobs—Economi¢ Development
Autharity

Post Office Box 8327

Columbia, South Carolina 29202

Fund financia statements for The First Steps to
School Readiness Board of Trustees are included in
the Supplementary Information section of the State's
Comprehensive Annual Financia. Report.  This
entity does not issue separate financial statements.

Related Organizations

_ A related organization is one for which the
Prlmar_y government is accountable but not
inancially™ accountable. The South Carolina
Reinsuranice Facility, the Associated Auto Insurers
Plan, and the Rural” Crossroads Institute are related
organizations because the State is not financialy
accountable for them despite the fact that the
Governor appoints a _voting majority of their
governing boards.  County boards “of menta
retardation and. redevel opment authorities are related
organizations if the Governor appoints a voting
maority of the members.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The Governor, in conjunction with officials of
certain local governments, appoints the board
members of two military facility redevelopment
authorities. The State does not have an_ongoing
financial interest in these authorities. The Governor
%opm nts one out of seven board members of the

harleston Naval Complex  Redevelopment
Authority and three out of nine board members of
the Myrtle Beach Air Force Base Redevelopment
Authority. )
.. During the 2001-2002 fiscal year, the State
joined the Atlantic Low-Level Radioactive Waste
Compact, a voluntary association of states that, by
federal law, |sl%gall i separate from each of the party
states.. South Carolina does not have an ongoing

financial interest in the Compact.

b. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements

_The statement of net assets and the statement of
activities report information about al activities_of
the primary government and its component units,
except for” fiduciary activities. These statements
distinguish between the State's governmental and
business-type activities. Taxes, federal revenues,
and othér nonexchange transactions primarily
finance the governmental activities whereas fees
charged to externa parties finance, in whole or in
part, the business-type activities. All of the State's
governmental and internal service funds are reported
in the government-wide financial statements as
governmental activities and all of its enterprise funds
are reported as busmeﬂs-t%/pe activities.” (See the
Fund Financial Satements subsection bdow for
more information about fund types.)

Statement of Activities and Eliminations

The doatement of activities presents a
comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for the different business-type activities of
the State and for each function” of the State's

overnmental activities. Direct expenses are those
a are speuflcal‘ls}/ associated with a program or
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a
particular function. The State does not eliminate
direct expenses and does not allocate indirect
expenses to functions in the statement of activities.
In the statement of activities, reimbursements under
indirect cost plans for federal reimbursement
Purposes are_reported as program revenues of the
unction that includes the reimbursed expenses.

Eliminations have been made to minimize the
double-counting of internal activities. For example
the State eliminates payments the Department of
Health and Human “Services makes to the
Department of Mental Health for provision of
Medicaid services because it reports both
departments in its health and environment function.
An exception_ to this genera rule is that_interfund
services provided or Used between functions have
not been eliminated in the statement of activities
because to do so would distort the net cost data for
functional activities as reported in the total column
of that statement. The State treats these internal
payments as program revenues and treats interfund
reimbursements in the statement of activities in the
same manner_as described below for fund financial
statements. For example, when the Department of
Health and Human vices purchases computer
services from one of the State's higher education
institutions, the heath and = environment
%_overnmental function reports an expense, and the

igher education businesstype activity reports
pro%am revenue (chargesfor Services). .
rogram revenues include: (a) fees, fines, and
charges'paid by the recipients of goods, services, or
privileges offered by the programs,; (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular
program; and (c) investment earnings that are Ieg?l ly
restricted for a gf)ecmc program. The State
classifies as general revenues dl revenues that are
not program revenues, including all taxes.

Major Component Units

The State's management designates the Public
Service Authority, the State Poris Authority, the
Connector 2000 Association, Inc., and the Lottery
Commission as major , component units. The
nonmajor component” units include aggregate totals
of _all "remaining  discretely presented component
units. In determining which discretely presented
component units to designate as major, the State
considered each compodnent unit's significance
relative to the other dlscretelal presented component
units and the nature and significance of its
relationship to thesgl mary /govern_ment.

The Public vice” Authority is a regulated
electric utility that uses accounting principles
established by the Federa, Energy™ Regulator
Commission "and reports in accordance wit
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types

of Rgul ation.
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Fund Financial Statements

. The fund financiad statements provide
information about the State's funds, including its
fiduciary funds and blended component units. “The
State presents separate statements for each fund
category—governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.
The emphasis of fund financia statements is on
major governmental and enterprise funds, with each
displajed in a separate column.. The State
aggregates and reports as nonmajor funds all
rémaining governmental and enterprise funds.
The State eliminates material intrafund activity.

It also treats interfund reimbursements (repayments
from the funds responsible for arti cul ar
expenditures or expenses to the funds that initialy
pad for t_h_em% as reductions of expenditure/expense
in the initial fund. For example, during the fiscal
%ear ended June 30, 2003, an employee of the

epartment of Social Services, reported within the
social services function, worked on a temporary
assignment at the Department of Alcohol and Other
Drug Abuse Services, reported within the health and
environment function. While on this assignment, the
Department of Social Services continued to record
the employee's sdary and related benefits
expenditures in a special revenue fund. However,
the Department of Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse
Services later reimbursed the Department of Social
Services for these costs with General Fund monies.
That is, the Department of Alcohol and Other Dru
Abuse Services recorded a Generd Fun
expenditure while the Department of Social Services
reduced its special revenue funds expenditures by
the same amount.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds focus primarily on the
sources, uses, and baances of current” financial
resources. The governmental fund category includes
the General Fund, special revenue funds, the Capital
Projects Fund, and permanent funds. The State
reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the State's genera
operating fund. It accounts for resources that fund
the services South Carolinds, State government
traditionally has provided to its citizens, except those
required to’be accounted for in another fund.

The Departmental General Operating Fund
accounts for resources, other than Genera Fund
resources, that State agencies may use for operatin
purposes.  These resources include significan
amounts of federa grant receipts.

The Local Governmental Infrastructure Fund
accounts for grants, loans, and other financia
assistance to local governments for infrastructure
purposes. Certain motor fuel taxes, federal funds,
and transfers from other funds are the fund’ s primary
resources. This fund includes operations_of the
South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Bank,

The Department of Transportation Special
Revenue Fund accounts for the various gasoline
taxes, fees, fines, and federal grant resourcesthat the
Department of Transportation Uses in its general
operations. Those qperations include highway
maintenance and repair as well as most of the
Department’ s administrative activities.

The Sate Tobacco Settlement Fund accounts for
revenues received from the General Fund and from
the Tobacco Settlement Revenue Management
Authority, a blended component unit and nonmajor
governmental fund designated to receive and
manage South Carolinas share of the multi-state
legal Settlement with the tobacco industry. Various
healthcare and local government progranis use these
funds and the related Tnterest. )

The State aggregates other _ nonmajor
?overr]mental funds in a'single column in its fund

Inancial statements.

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise  funds (which are reported as
business-type activities in the government-wide
financial ‘statements) report activities that char%e
fees to external users for goods or services. The
State reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Higher Education Fund accounts for the
general, operations of ten four-year higher education
ingtitutions and sixteen area technical colleges, al of
which are part of the State's primary government.

The "Unemployment = Compensation Fund
accounts for the State's unempl oyment compensation
benefits.  Revenues consist ‘of assessments on
employers to pay benefits to qualified unemployed

ersons.

P The Housing Authority Fund facilitates medium-
income and low-income housing opportunities by
providing_ reasonable financing to the State’s
citizens. “To provide such financing, the Fund issues
bonds and notes and administers federal grants and
contracts. Mortgage interest is a primary resource
forthe Fund. ] ) )

The Education Assistance Authority Fund issues
bonds to make loans to individuals to enable
students to attend. higher education institutions.
Resources include intefest charges, subsidies from
the United States Department of Education, loan
repayments, and investment earnings. ,

he State aggregates other nonmajor enterprise
funds in a single column in its fund financia
statements.

Other Fund Types

The State reports the following fund types in
addition to governmental and enterprise funds.
Internal” service funds account for various goods
and services provided to other State departments or
encies (primarily to governmental funds), or to
other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis.
Services provided by these funds include several risk
management_activifies for which the State is the
rimary participant, mcludmlg underwriting related
o the'following risks; public buildings and their
contents, torts, medical. malpractice, automobile use
b¥_p_ubllc employees in the performance of their
official duties, employee health and disability, and
workers' compensation benefits.  Other sérvices
include those relating to telecommunications,
computer operations, ~ office rental, . janitorid,
building maintenance, lease and repair. of fleet
vehicles, procurement, employee training, and
management of public employee’retirement systems.
The internal service funds also sell goods produced
with prison inmate labor. In addition, the internal
service funds purchase selected supplies and
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equipment in bulk and sell these items to other State
funds (primarily governmenta funds) and to loca
overnmental Units. The State's internal service
unds are considered to be governmental activities
because they primarily serve governmental funds..

Pension trust funds account for the pension
benefits of the South Carolina Retirement System
the Police Officers Retirement System, the Generdl
Assembly Retirement System, “the Judges . and
SolicitorS Retirement System, and the Nationa
Guard Pension System.

The State's investment trust fund accounts for a
local government investment pool that the State
Treasurer operates. ) .

Private-purpose trust funds include a tuition
savings plan benefiting college students. Another
private-purpose trust fund sefS aside assets for site
stabilization and closure of a nuclear waste site
operated by a private company within the State's
borders in the event that the company ceases
operations or loses its license to operaie, The
private-purpose  trust funds aso . include
miscellaneous other trust agreements holding assets
that benefit non-State parties.

Agency funds account for assets that the State
holds™as an agent. These assets include deposits of
insurance companies in lieu of suretty bonds;
employee and employer payroll deductions and
contributions for the snort period of time between
the issuance of payroll checks and payment to the
recipients, and various other assefs held for
prisoners, patients of State ingtitutions, and other
external parties.

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses in
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Enterprise and internal service funds distinguish
operating revenues and expenses from nonoper ati ng
revenues and expenses. . Operating revenues an
expenses generdly are limited to “items resulting
from the “provison of services. and goods  in
connection ~ with _the fund's principa ~ ongoing
operations. The State generally classifies revenues
and expenses as operating only if the related cash
flows appear in the operating section on the
statement of cash flows.  Accordingly, grants and
grant-like transactions are reportable”as operating
revenues only if they are essentidly the same as
contracts for” servicesS (i.e.,, exchange transactions)
and they finance programs that the proprietary fund
would not otherwise undertake (i.e., the activity of
the grant is inherently part of the operations of the
grantor). Conversdy, the State classifies most
nonexchange and = exchange-like transactions as
nonoperating.  This includes all grant revenues
except those reportable as operating revenue as
described above and those restricted by the grantor
for use exclusively for capital purposes. The State
reports as operating most expenses it pays from
operating revenues but usualy reports ”interest
expense as honoperating. _ _

In accordance with the general policy stated in
the OPrecedlr]g paragraph, the Higher "Education
Fund's principal operating revenues include tuition;
student fees; student loans; scholarships and grants
(including Pell grants) where the providef has
Identifi the “student recipients; sales of
miscellaneous goods and services, and certain

research grants that, in substance, are contracts for
services ~rather than nonexchange  revenues.
However, the Higher Education Fund generally does
not report as revénue third-party |oan amounts that it
receives and disburses. (In a third-party loan, a
student or a student’s parents secure(s) a student
loan from a governmental fund or from another
lender such as the federal government; the Higher
Education Fund then receivés funds from the lender
and disburses the funds to the student or applies
amounts to the student’ s account.) _

_ For the Unemployment Compensation Fund,
principal operating revenues include amounts
received from covered employers and from federal
agencies. The amounts réceived from federa
agencies are classified as operating revenues because
they are provided to the State primarily to provide
unémployment benefits, athough amounts not
needed for that pug)ose mg%{ be used for other
purposes. This fund's operating expenses consist
primarily of unemployment compensation benefits
paid. Interest income is classified as nonoperating
revenue. _ _

For the Housing Authority Fund and the
Education  Assistancé Authority Fund, principal
operating items include revenues and _expenses
associated with program loans that provide direct
benefits to individuds. ] ]

The principal ongoing operation of The Citadel
Trust, Inc., a nonmajor enterprise fund, is investing.
Accordingly, the State reports its investment-related
transactions as operating rather than nonoperating.

Component Unit Financial Statements

The State presents a statement of net assets and a
statement of activities for each of its major discretely
presented component units and for the aggregate of
its nonmajor discretely presented component units.

Use of Private-Sector Accounting and Financial
Reporting Principles

._The government-wide and proprietary fund
financial Statements reflect the State's compliance
with private-sector . standards of accounting and
financial r ortlngt issued prior to
November 30, 1989, to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance
of the Governmental Accounting StandardS Board.
Goverments also may opt to follow private-sector
uidance issued after” November 30, 1989, for their
usiness-type activities (enterprise funds) and for
their discretely presented component units that
follow enterprise fund accounting, subject to the
same limitation. _Only the Public Service Authority
and the State Ports Authority, major discretely
pr?_sented component units, have ‘selected this
option.

c. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

A particular measurement focus determines what
resources are. measured. The State reports its
?overr]ment-mde, proprietary, and fiduciary fund
Inancial statements using the economic reSources
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measurement focus. Business enterprises use this
same measurement focus. The State rePorts its
governmental funds using the current financial
resour ces measurement focus. _

The basis of accounti ng determines when the
State recognizes revenues and expenditures/expenses
as well asthe related assets and liabilities, regardless
of measurement focus. Generally accepted
accounting principles for governments require the
use of the accrual and the modified accrual bases of
accounting as described below.

Accrual Basis

The State uses the accrual basis of accounting in
reporting its government-wide financial statements
aswell asits proprietary and fiduciary fund financi
statements and its mgor component unit financia
statements. Under the accrual basis, the State
generally records revenues when eaned and
reasonably measurable and records expenses when a
ligbility is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. ) ] ]

_Nonexchange transactions, in which the State
ives (or receives) value without directly receiving
or giving) equal value in exchange, include taxes,
grants, donations, fines, and pendties. On the
accrual basis, the State recognizes income, sales, and
similar taxes in the period when the underlying
income or sales transactions occur. The State
recognizes grants, donations, and similar items as
revenue as sgon as it meets al digibility
requirements. Fines and penalties are recognized in
the period when an enforceable legal claim_ to the
related assets has arisen. Pledges are recognized as
receivables and revenues, “net of estimated
uncollectible amounts, if all eigibility requirements
are met, the promise is verifiable, and the resources
are measurable and probable of collection.
Note 18b provides additional details regarding
pledges that were not measurable at June 30, Z003.

Modified Accrual Basis

The State uses the modified accrua basis of
accounting to report its governmental funds. Under
the modified accrua ~basis, revenues, net of
estimated uncollectible amounts, are recognized in
the fiscal year when they become suscéptible to
accrual—that is, as soon as they become both
measurable and available to finance expenditures of
the fiscal year. Deferred revenue is recorded for
recaval()jles that are measurable but not available at

ear-end.

y Under the modified accrual basis, the State's
governmental funds consider receivables collected
within one year after year-end to be available and
recognize them as revenues of the current year if
measSurable. Interest on investments is recorded as
earned because it is deemed available when earned.
Taxes, grants, donations, revenue resulting from the
provison of material services and commodities,
interest on_ investments, = fines, and pendlties
associated with the current fiscal year are considered
susceptible to accrua and so have been recognized
as revenues of the current fiscal year. All” other
revenue items in governmental funds are considered
to be available only when the State receives the
related cash.

Under the modified accrual basis, expenditures
generally are recorded when aliability isincurred, as
under accrua accounting. An exception, however, is
that principa and interest on genera long-term debt,
clams and judgments, and Compensated absences,
are recognized as exlgendnur% only to the extent
they have matured. Proceeds of general long-term
debt and acquisitions, under capita leases are
reported as other financing sources. General capital
asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures
(rather than as assets) in governmental funds.

Recognition of Specific Grant and Shared
Revenue Transactions

The State's governmental funds do not report the
receipt of food commodities as revenue and do not
report the distribution of commodities as
expenditures because there is no flow of financial
resources in conjunction with these transactions.
However, the State does record these receipts and
distributions as revenues and expenses on the
accrual basis of accounting.

The State recognizeS the face value of food
stamp _ benefits distributed as revenue and
expenditures/expenses under both the accrual and
modified accrual bases of accounting. It aso
recognizes food stamp coupons on hand as other

sand as deferred revenue. )

The State shares certain of its revenues with
municipalities, counties, and districts within its
borders, recognizing expenditure or expense when
the recipient” government has met all digibility
requirements.

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents

. The amounts shown in the accompanying
financial statements as cash and cash equivalents
represent petty cash, cash. on deposit in banks,
restricted cash’and cash equivalents on deposit with
externa Partleﬁ, and cash invested in various
instruments as a part of the State's cash management
pool, an internal investment pool. Because the cash
management pool operates as a demand deposit
account, amounts invested in the pool are classified
as cash and cash equivalents. The State Treasurer
administers the cash management pool. The pool
includes some long-term™ investments such as
obligations of the United States and certain agencies
of the United States, obligations of domestic
corporations,  certificates “of  deposit, and
collateralized repurchase agreements.

. Most entities in the primary government and the
discretely presented governmental component units
participate in the cash management pool. Significant
exceptions, however, are:” retirement plans, the
Loca Government [nvestment Pool (an external
investment pool), the Tobacco Settlement Revenue
Management Authority (a blended component unit
and a nonmajor governmental fundg, the Housing
Authority ?a major enterprise fund), and certain
activitieS of the Higher Education Fund (a major
enterprise fund). ~Of the discretely presented
component units, the State Ports Authority, the
Lottery Commission, and the First. Steps to School
Readiness Board of Trustees partici ﬁate in the pooal.
For activities excluded from the pool, cash
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equivalents include investments in short-term
highly liquid securities having an initial maturity of
three'months or less.

e. Cash Management Pool-Allocation of Interest

The State's cash management pool consists of a
general deposit account and several specia deposit
accounts. The State records each fund's equity
interest in the general deposit account. All earnlnﬁs
on that account, however, are recorded in the
Genera Fund. In contrast, each special deposit
account retains its own earnings.

f. Investments

. The State Treasurer is authorized by _statute to
invest all State funds. The State “Treasurer's
investment obgectlves are preservation of capital,
maintenance of adequate |IC]UIdI%, and obtaining the
best yield possible within prescribed parameters.” To
meet” those objectives, the State Treasurer uses
various resources including an investment advisory
service, | edectronic  financial quotation  and
information services, various economic reports, and
daily communication with brokers and financia
ingtitution investment officers.

To insure safety of principal, the State
Treasurer's policy is to limit liquid.investments (i.e.,
those with maturities not exceeding one a)(ear to
cash, repurchase agreements (when collateralized b
United States Treasury, federal agency or other
federally guaranteed obligations with a market value
in excess of 100.0% of funds advanced), United
States Treasury hills, federal g({;ean discount notes,
and commercia paper.. The State Treasurer further
preserves Prmu pa by investing in only the hlgihest
investment grade securities (i.e., those rated at Teast
A by two leading national rating services). In order
to diversify investment holdings, asset’ alocation

olicies are utilized for investments having more
han one year to maturity. Overall credit exposureis
managed” by asset dlocation policies and
additional congraints controlling risk exposure to
individual corporate issuers. _

Under State law, the State Retirement Systems
Investment Panel (the Panel) may make [imited
investments in equity securities for the State's
ension trust funds. © Each member of the State
udget and Control Board appoints one member of
the five-member Panel. The el's objective is to
optimize the long-term performance™ of equity
investments consistent with a _Prudent level of
portfolio risk, considering the liabilities and liquidity
needs of the pension trust funds. _

Substantially all of the State's investments are
resented at fair value, securities are valued at the
last reported sales price as provided by an
independent pricing service. In contrast, however,
the State has presented at historical cost the
investment securities and other instruments that the
Chief Insurance Commissioner holds for insurance
companies in lieu of surety honds. These securities
are separately classifi in, the accompanyin
financial statéments as securities held in liell o
surety bonds. These instruments are recorded in the

State's agency funds and are not held for investment
purposes.

The State slg_)onsors the Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP), an external investment pool
reported as an investment trust fund. The LGIP's
complete financial statements may be obtained by
writing to the following address:

The State Treasurer's Office

L ocal Government Investment Pool
Post Office Box 11778

Columbia, South Carolina 29211

g. Receivables and Payables

The State records amounts receivable from
parties outsde the primary government net of
adlowances for uncollectible amounts and
contractual adjustments. It estimates uncollectible
amounts_b on past collection experience. The
State discloses the gross amounts of these
recelvables and the amounts of related allowances
and adiustments, as well as any significant
recelvable balances not expected to” be Collected
within one year, in Note6. Further, the State
di regates its receivable balances in Note 6 if any
signitficant components thereof have been_obscured
in the financial statements by aggregation or if
different components _ of " reCavables have
significantly different |IC%IIdI'[y characteristics.

The State presents balarices outstanding at the
end of the fisca vyear tha relae to
lending/borrowing arrangements between funds as
interfund receivables and payables and reports all
other outstanding balances between funds as due
to/from other funds.. ~ The government-wide
statement of net assets displays internal balances that
involve fiduciary funds as accounts receivable and
accounts payable. The State reports as interna
balances any residua balances outstanding between
the governmental and business-type activilies in the
government-wide financial staternents.

h. Inventories

The State values its inventories at cost,
predominantly using the first-in, first-out
methodology™ for _its™ proprietary  funds and its
business-type activities and Predpml nantly using the
average cost methodolol or its other funds and
activities and its_discrelely presented component
units. The State records expenditures in
%overnmental funds when it consumes inventory
items rather than when it purchases them.

i. Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs
applicable to future accounting periods. . The State
records these payments as prepaid items in both the
government-wide and fund financial statements.
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j. Capital Assets

The State reports its capital assets in the
following categories in the applicable governmental
or business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. land and land improvements,
infrastructure (i.e., highways and bridges), buildings
and. improvements,” construction “in" progress
vehicles, machinery and_equipment, works of ar and
historical treasures, and intangible assets.

_ Capital assets are valued at historical cost or at
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost data
are not avalable. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value on the
donation date. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not significantly add to the value of
an asset or materially extend an asset's useful life are
not_c&t)ltahzed. Cumulative costs incurred on major
capital assets under construction but not yet placed
in service are capitalized and reportéd in the
construction in progress account. = Net interest
incurred . by a proprietary . fund _during the
construction’ phase of a major capital asset is
included as part of the capitalized value of such

~Anindividua asset is capitalized and reported if
it has an estimated useful lite of at least two years
and a historical cost as follows. more “than
$5 thousand for vehicles, machinery and equipment,
and works of art and histarical treasures;, more than
$100 thousand for _buildings and improvements,
depreciable land improvements, and intangible
assets; and more than $500 thousand for roads and
bridges. All land and non-depreciable land
improvements are capitalized and reported,
regardless of cost. Certain State agencies aso
capitalize those assets with a useful life between one
and two years that meet the preceding dollar
thresholds,”and the Lottery Commission, a major
discretely presented component unit, capitalizes all
property and equipment purchases of $1 thousand or
more,

Once the State or one of its discretely presented
component unlt%placesadeprecmble capital asset in
service, depreciation is recorded using the straight-
}!ne method over the following estimated useful
ives:

Asset Category Years
Land improvements..........c.ccceeveveeennnnen. 3-60
Infrastructure—highways....................... 75
Infrastructure—bridges..........cccccocvveen. 50
Buildings and improvements.................. 5-55
VehiCles.......cccooviiiiiiiii 3-20
Machinery and equipment..................... 2-25
Works of art; historical treasures........... 10-25
Intangible assets.........cccociieieiininnnnn. 3-38

_In addition, certain capitalized works of art and
historica treasures are not depreciated because they
are considered to be inexhaustible. ] )

The State does not capitalize certain collections
of works of art and historical treasures that are held
for public use, are protected and preserved, and are

sales of collection items to be used to acquire other
items for collections.  These non-capitalized
collections include _portraits of political 'leaders,
historica relics, antiques, fossils, and other South
Carolina artifacts. ) )

The State reports losses on disposals of capital
assets as expenses of its General Government
function and %ams on such disposals as genera
revenues in the government-wide statement of
activities.

The State reports the Southern Connector toll
road as a capita asset of the Connector 2000
Association, Inc., the major discretely presented
component unit that financed, constructed, and is
responsible for maintaining and operating the toll
road. Under an agreement between the Association
and the State Department of Transportation (DOT),
the DOT retains fee simpletitle to the road.

k. Deferred Charges

Deferred costs to be recovered from future
revenues of the South Carolina Public Service
Authority (a reg{ulated utility reported as a rggjor
discretely presented component unit) are recorded as
deferred charges. Deferred costs include unrealized
%alns_ and losses related to the Authority's gas

edging activities. The Authority's rates are based
upon debt service and operating fund requirements.

he Authority recognizes differences between debt
principal maturitiesand straight-line depreciation as
costs to be recovered from future revenue. The
recovery of outstanding amounts associated with
costs t0 be recovered from future revenue will
coincide with the retirement of the outstanding long-
term debt of the Authority. .

Deferred charges also include the cost of a buy-
out option on a coal contract exercised by the
Authority. The cost is being amortized "as a
componént of fuel costs over the remaining life of
the former contract. Unamortized bond issuance
costs are reported as deferred charges and are
amortized as described in Note 1m.

I. Tax Refunds Payable

Most of the tax refunds payable balance in the
Generad Fund relates to individual income tax.
During the calendar year, the State collects
employee v_\/lthholdlngg and taxpayers payments.
Taxpgyersfllereturns y April 15 for the preceding
calendar year. At Juné 30, the State estimates the
amount if owes_taxpayers for_overpayments during
the preceding six months. The State records this
estimated payable as tax refunds payable and a
reduction of tax revenues.

m. Long-Term Obligations

The State records general long-term debt and
other long-term obligations of the primary
government's governmental funds in the
governmental activities reported in its government-
wide financial statements. 'Long-term debt and other

sub'lect to a Eolicz that rguires he Eroceeds from
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obligations financed. by proprietary funds are
recorded as liabilitiesin the appropriaté funds.

The State defers and. amortizes bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, over the life
of the bonds predominantly using the effective
interest method. For current refundings and advance
refundings resulting in defeasance™ of debt, the
difference between the reacquisition price and the
net carrying amount of the old debt is also deferred
and amortized over the remaining life of the old debt
or thelife of the new debt, whichever is shorter. The
State reports bonds payable net of the applicable
bond premium or discount and deferred amount on
refunding. Unamortized issuance costs are reported
as deferred charges.

n. Compensated Absences

. During their firgt ten years of service, most full-

time permanent State émployees annually earn
15 days of vacation leave and 15 days of sick |leave,
After“ten years, most employees earn an additional
1.25 days of vacation leave for each year of service
over ten until they reach the maximum of 30 da){s
per year. Employees may carry forward up 1o
45 days of vacation leave and 180 days of sick leave
from~one cadendar year to the "next.  Upon
termination of employment, the State pays
employees for accumulated vacation |leave at the pay
rate then in effect. Employees do not receive pay for
accumulated sick leavée when they —terminate.
However, at retirement, employees participating in
the South Carolina Retirement System and the South
Carglina Police Officers Retirement System may
receive additional service credit for up to 90 days of
accumulated unused sick leave. ]

The government-wide and proprietary fund
statements record an expense and a liability when
employees earn compensated absence “credits.
Governmental fund financial statements record a
liability for compensated absences payable at
June 30 only if the'liability has matured but has not
yet been paid at that date (for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements). The State
d_oeksI not record a liability for unpaid”accumulated
sick leave.

0. Perkins Loan Liability

The Higher Education Fund, a major. enterprise
fund, records aliability related to the Perkins student
loan program and certain other federal student loan
program$S to reflect the amount of capital
contributions recelved to date from the federal
government Iol us any other amounts that ultimately
are refundable to the federal government under the
programs. The State has recorded this liability as
part of its other liabilities account.

p. Restricted Net Assets

The State reports a portion of its net assetsin its
overnment-wide financial statements as restricted,
n this context, restricted means that, as of

June 30, 2003, this portion of net assets was
restricted for a particular purpose either by external

parties, by praovisions of the State Constitution, or by
enabling ~ legidation.  Net assets restricted by
enabling legislation are subject to change by a
majority vote of the Generd Assembly.” If "the
General Assembly subsequently removes restrictions
from amounts réported as restricted net assets at
June 30, 2003, the State reclassifies such amounts as
grr%reﬁmcted net assets when the change becomes
ective.

g. Flow Assumption, Net Assets

The State's policy is to first %réPIy restricted
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes
for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets
are available.

r. Escheat Property

The State accounts for its escheat property in the
Genera Fund, the fund to which the property
ultimately escheats. To the extent it is probable that
such property will be reclamed and pad to
claimants, the State records a liability and reduces
revenue in the General Fund.

NOTE 2: ACCOUNTING AND

REPORTING CHANGES

a. Presentation of Additional Account Details
and New Note Disclosures

The State angted portions of the Governmental
Accounti n% andards Board's (GASB)
Statement 38, Certain Financial Satement Note
Disclosures, effective July 1,2001, that were
required to be implemented then. Effective
July 1,2002, the State adopted the remaining
provisions of GASB 38.. As a result, the State now
presents additional detail regarding receivable and
Bg?/able accounts on its statements of net assets and

ance sheets, reports expanded disclosures
regarding receivables, and provides new disclosures
regarding transfers. Implementation of GASB 38
had no effect on the balances of State accounts.
~In addition, effective July 1, 2002, the State
implemented GASB Technica Bulletin No. 2003-1,
Disclosure Requirements for Derivatives Not
Reported_at Fair Value on the Statement of Net
Assets.  This implementation resulted in changes in
the State's disclosures about derivatives but no
changesin any account balances.

b. Change in Classification, South Carolina
Tuition Prepayment Program

The South Carolina  Tuition Prepa&/)ment
Program (SCTPP), previously known as the PACE
program, is a State program. An SCTPP tuition
prepayment contract allows a user to make fixed
payments over a fixed time to cover  future
undergraduate tuition expenses of a designated
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beneficiary. a. a South Carolina public higher
education” institution. Altanatlvd¥, the confract
may be used to cover expenses, up 10 the weighted
average tuition of South Carolina public institutions,
at another educationa institution to which the
designated beneficiary has been admitted. The State
previoudy classified this program as a private
gurpose trust fund. Effective Jduly 1, 2002, the State
egan classifying the SCTPP as”an enterprise fund
because the” program's predominant activity is
collecting user Tees under tuition prgg%/ment
contracts, As a result of this change, the e has
restated the beginning balances of its private purpose
trust funds, nonmajor enterprise funds, and business-
type activities to remove the SCTPP from private
purpose trust funds and to include the program in
nonmajor enterprise funds and busm&s—gl e
activities. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003,
the change in classification described above had the
following effects on the financial statements of
State’s nonmajor enter&rlse funds. decreased the
change in net assets by $5.843 million; decreased net
assets, beginning of the year, by $11.572 million;
and decreased net assets, end” of the year, by
$17.415 million. . The change also had the following
effects on the financia datements of the State's
private purpose trust funds: increased the change in
net assets by $5.843 million; increased net assets
b? nning of the year, by $11.572 million; increased
nef assetS, end of the yedr, by $17.415 million. Also
see Note 4a.

c. Discretely Presented Component Units:
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Public Service Authority and the State Ports
Authority, mgjor discretely presented component
units, have chosen to present their statements in
accordance with altqpllcable pronouncements of the
Financid Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued after Novembér 30, 1989. Accordingly, the
Public Service Authority, for its fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002, and the State Ports Authority
for its fiscad year ended June 30, 2003, adopted
FASB Statement No.144, Accounting for = the
Impairment or Disposal of Lon%ileed Assets, which
superseded FASB Statement No. 121, Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-
Lived Assets to be Disposéd Of. Under FASB 1
these Authorities evaluate their previously held/used
and newly acquired long-lived assets for impai rment
whenever events or “changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The “Authorities adoption of
FASB 144 had no material impact on their financial
positions or results of operations for their fiscal
years ended December 31, 2002, and June 30, 2003.

d. Discretely Presented Component Unit:
Change in Reporting Entity

Previoudy, the South Carolina Medical
Malpractice Liability Insurance Joint Underwriting

Association _(JUA)r_was excluded from the State of
South Carolina's financia reporting, entity because
State officials did not appoint a voting majority of
the JUA's board members. Howeéver, dué to
changes in State law, al of the JUA’s board
members now are Governor appointed and the State
has the ability to impose its will on the organization.
Accordingly, effective as of July 1, 2002, the State is
presentlergjg the JUA as a nhonmagjor discretely
presented component unit.

For the fisca year ended June 30, 2003, the
change in re1port|ng ent|t¥_ described above had the
following effects on the tinancial statements of the
State’s other (i.e., nonmajor) discretely presented
comgonent_ units: incr net expense b
$4.778 million; decreased net assets, beginning o
year, by $117.893 million; and decreased net assets,
end of year, by $122.671 million.

NOTE 3: EXCESSOF EXPENDI-

TURES OVER APPRO-
PRIATIONS

_ Educational expenditures in budgeted accounts
aside from the Genea Fund exceeded
aPproprlanons by $14.029 million at the legal level
of control. _ Appropriations associated with the
State's_technical col e%&_ are budgeted under the
State Board for Technica and “Comprehensive
Education (the State Board). However, the sixteen
colleges record the  corrésponding expenditures.
Each college had sufficient budgetary-basis revenue
and cash™ to_ provide for its budgetary-basis
expenditures. To prevent an excess of expenditures
over revenues in the future, the State Board plans to
obtain updated expenditure estimates from the
colleges during the fiscal %ear so that it can request
additional spending authority to cover those
expenditures.

NOTE 4. DEFICITSOF
INDIVIDUAL FUNDS
AND NEGATIVE
UNRESTRICTED NET

ASSETS

a. Deficits of Individual Funds

. The accompanying fund financial = statements
display deficit fund balances and deficit net asset
balances for individual major, funds, if applicable.
Other funds had the following deficit net asset
balances (expressed in thousands) at June 30, 2003:
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Nonmajor Enterprise Funds:

Patients' COMPENSALION. .........cuvviiiiiiiiiiiieiiieiie e $ 218,514
State Housing Corporation.............ocouueereeeieeeeeesesei e 16
Tuition Prepayment Program............cooeeveevvuiinnneeeieriiinnnneens 17,415
Pharmaceutical Education and Development Foundation

(PEDF) of the Medical University of South Carolina........... 7,490
Internal Service Funds:
Employee Insurance Programs.............ccoooeuvreeenioiieneeeennns 79,915

State Accident FUNG.............ccooiiiiiii . 64,194

b. Negative Unrestricted Net Assets

. The government-wide statement of net assets
displays a $1.140 billion deficit unrestricted _net
assets’ balance for governmental activities. This
deficit is due, in large part, to bonds that the State
has issued to finance projects of other governments
or to finance its own non-capitad Tepairs and
mai ntenance projects. _

_The State disburses the groceeds of its genera
abligation_school facilities. bonds to local “school
districts. These digtricts capitalize and report in their
own financia statements the school facilities that
they construct with these proceeds. Therefore, the
State reports these bonds in unrestricted net assets.

The State disburses some of the proceeds of its
(r:jeneral obligation capital improvement. bonds to
ocad  governments for ~ construction and
redevelopment projects. In addition, the State uses
some capital improvement bond proceeds for State
repairs and maintenance projects. Accordingly, the
State reports in unrestricted net assets the portion of
capital improvement bonds payable that is associated
with these non-capital projects, .

“The amount of the unrestricted net assets deficit
attributable to debt issued for non-capital purposesis
as follows (expressed in thousands):

State school facilities bonds...... $ 689,095
Capital improvement bonds,
non-capital purposes............... 139,748
Total m

A portion of the deficit unrestricted net assets
balance is due to bonds issued by the Tobacco
Settlement Revenue Management Authority Fund, a
blended component unit accounted for as a non-
major governmental fund. The Authority transferred
a portion of the bond proceeds to the State Tobacco
Settlement Fund, a major governmental fund. The
bonds will be retired using Tuture tobacco settlement
revenues. The net assats balances of the State
Tobacco Settlement Fund and the Tobacco
Settlement Revenue Management Authority Fund
nejf, tc_)t adeficit of $220.021million in goverhmental
activities.

_In addition, the $146.370 million General Fund
deficit _contributes to the unrestricted net assets
deficit for governmental activities.

NOTES5: DEPOSITSAND

INVESTMENTS

By law, all deposits and investments are under
the control of the State Treasurer except for those
that, by specific authority, are under the control of
other agencies or comporient units. _
~ The foI_Iowlngt;_ isplay reconciles the details
included within this note to the accompanying
financial statements at June 30, 2003 (expressed in
thousands):

State
Treasurer's
Deposits and
Investments Other Total

Primary Government

Deposits, carrying value................ $ 156,339 $ 216,877 $ 373,216
Investments, reported
AMOUNE...cciiiiie 24,603,307 9,874,147 34,477,454
Cashonhand.........cccceeeeiniicnnns — 1,398 1,398
Totals, primary
QOVEINMENt ... $ 24759646 $ 10,092,422 $ 34,852,068

Component Units
Deposits, carrying value................ $ 2,021 $ 45,316 $ 47,337
Investments, reported

amount........c.eeeeuueees - 324 940,492 940,816
Cash on hand.................. — 4 4
Totals, component units........... $ 2,345 $ 985,812 $ 988,157

Primary Government

Govern- Fiduciary

ment-wide Funds

Statement of ~Statement of Component
Net Assets Net Assets Total Units

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents....... $ 3,458,397 $ 4,433,712 $ 7,892,109 $ 142,681
Less: Unemployment Com-

pensation Fund deposits

with United States

TreASUNY..ccveeieieeeeieeeees (486,407) — (486,407) —
Investments..........c...cceeieenns 47,279 20,589,167 20,636,446 181,380
Securities held in lieu of

surety bonds...........cccccees — 334,693 334,693 —
Invested securities lending

collateral........c.ccoccevininiininnne 511,321 4,457,533 4,968,854 159
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents..... 317,130 — 317,130 67,305
Investments.............ccceeeeens 121,241 —_ 121,241 71,373
Long-term assets:
Investments.............ccceeieenn. 230,355 —_ 230,355 23,483
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..... 788,131 — 788,131 159,006
Investments.............cceeeeens 49,516 — 49,516 342,770
TotalS...coveieeieiicein $ 5,036,963 $ 29,815,105 $ 34,852,068 $ 988,157

Amounts on deposit with the United States
Treasury that relate to the Unemployment
Compensation Fund, a mgjor enterprise fund, are not
categorized hecause they are neither deposits with
financial institutions nor investments, The Lottery
Commission, ~ a. major discretely . presented
component unit, is required to maintain funds on
deposit with the Multi-State Lottery (MUSL). This
account serves as a source for Tp,nze payouts should

USL games not generate sufficient funds to pay
prize winners. ThoSe account deposits are recorded
as restricted cash and equivalents on the

overnment-wide statement of net assets and are
ble?dOSQd as deposits in subsection a (Deposits)
ow.
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a. Deposits deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements,
2\erta|ra _cor rgtte blonds, and 4((:)(3/rnrr1ferﬂal P(g)naper.
Deposits include cash and cash equivalents on Trust  FUhds i%t\(/aestar,r\\/éntég t(r)nay be itne IS,
deposit in banks and non-negotiable certificates of Substantialy al of the States investments are
depost. At June30, 2003, the State's deposits resented af fair value. Securities are valued a the
(expressed in thousands) were as follows: last reported sales price as provided by an
Total independent pricing service. Investment iricome
Category Bank  Carrying consists of realizéd and unrealized preciation
1 2 3 Balance _ Amount (depreciation) in the fair value of investments and
Primary interestincomeearned. =~ ]
government ... $ 562,308 $ 29554 $ 103,667 $ 695529 $ 373,216 The State has classified its investments into
Discretely presented three risk categories. Category 1  includes
component units...... $ 19815 $ 318 $ 28895 $ 49,028 $ 47,337 InV_estmentS thatwae InSUI‘ed or reg|$ere_d or f.or
which the securities were held by a State entity or its
Category 1 deposits are those covered by federal agent in the entity's name. Category 1 also includes
de{gostory insurance or by collateral held by a State investments for Wwhich a State entity has saf ekeeplgg
entity or by its agent in the entity'S name. responsibilities but no equity or ownership inter
Category 2 déposits are collateralized with securities or control. . Category 2 includes uninsured and

at ) . = .
held by the pledging financia institution's  trust unregistered investments for which the securities
department or agent in a State entity’'s name. were held by the counterparty's trust department or

d i ent in a State entity's namé. Category 3 includes
Category 3 deposits are uncollateralized. S%i nsured and unrgPYQQed investrﬁgentg for which
the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its

b. Investments trust dep_ia_rrt]meélttatorl agenteskt)ut n?t ina _skate en ity's
Legally authorized investments vary by fund name. e €S 1nvesiments rsK - caegory
but g%%ergtlly include obligations of the” United expressed in thousands) at June 30, 2003, were &s

StateS and certain agencies of the United Stat olfows:
obligations_ of the State of South Carglina an
certain of its politica subdivisions, certificates of

Category Reported Fair
Primary Government 1 2 3 Amount Value
U.S. government securities.................. $ 2,439,716 $ 391655 $ 5626 $ 2,836,997 $ 2,863,923
Corporate bonds..........ccoceeevienieiennens 8,434,251 25,845 51 8,460,147 8,461,915
Municipal bonds.........c.ccccvnieieniiiennens 504,354 — 19,061 523,415 523,415
BEquity Securities........cccevveeneeeeene 2,795,062 1,697 8,092 2,804,851 2,804,851
Repurchase agreements............c......... 4,444,848 4,205 1,149 4,450,202 4,450,202
Collateralized mortgage obligations...... 444 853 — — 444 853 444 853
Asset-backed securities...................... 339,093 — — 339,093 339,093
Commercial paper.........ccccevevverieeennnnnn 624,685 — — 624,685 624,685
Securities lending program:
Investments from cash collateral
Corporate bonds..........cccevvevevinnnne — — 4,198,693 4,198,693 4,198,693
Repurchase agreements.................. — — 711,256 711,256 711,256
Commercial paper.........cccvevveeerinnenn. — — 50,683 50,683 50,683
Othe .. 24,014 42,267 3,571 69,852 71,126
Subtotals.......coeiieii i 25,514,727 25,544,695
Not categorized:
Mutual funds.........cooeeeeeiriiieieece, 4,126,629 4,126,629
Securities lending program:
U.S. government securities.............. 3,251,606 3,251,606
Corporate bonds..........ccccevveeevieeenne 287,550 287,550
Equity securitieS........ccccevvveeeenieneenns 1,296,942 1,296,942
Totals—primary government......... $ 20,050,876 $ 465,669 $ 4,998,182 $ 34,477,454 $ 34,507,422
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Discretely Presented Category Reported Fair
Component Units 1 3 Amount Value
U.S. government securities.................. $ 603,403 — $ 98,832 $ 702,235 % 702,235
Corporate bonds..........cccccovieeiiieeenne — — 8,314 8,314 8,314
Repurchase agreements...................... 198,200 20,293 — 218,493 218,493
Securities lending program:
Investments from cash collateral
Corporate bonds.........ccceevieeinieenns — — 159 159 159
OtheF .. — — 5,939 5,939 5,939
Subtotals........coooiierie e 935,140 935,140
Not categorized:
Securities lending program:
U.S. government securities.............. 156 156
Investment in primary
government's investment pool.......... 3 3
Mutual funds.........ccoovririiriieie e 5,517 5,517

Totals—discretely presented
component UNitS.....occcveevveeennnnenn. $ 801,603

$ 20,293 $ 113244 $ 940,816 $ 940,816

The fiscal year for the Public Service Authority,
a major discretely presented component unit, ends
December 31. ncluded in the Public Service
Authority's investments, carried at fair value, are
nuclear decommissioning funds of $100.800 million
with related unrealized holding = gains of
$17.400 million.. All of the Authority’s investments,
with the exception of decommissioning funds, are
limited to a maturity of ten yearsor less.

c. Securities Lending Programs

By law, the State's primary government may
lend Securities from its investment portfolios on a
collateralized hasis to third parties, primarily
financial ingtitutions, with a simultaneous agreement
to return the collatera for the same securities in the
future. The State may lend United States
Government  securities, corporate bonds, other
securities and equities for collateral in the form of

or other securities. The contracts with the
State's custodians require them to indemnify _the
State if the borrowers fail to return the securities
(and if the collatera is inadequate to replace the
securities lent) or fail to pay the State for income
distributions by the securifies issuers while the
securities are on loan. ,

The weighted average maturity of the State's
collateral investments ~generaly” matched the
maturity of the securities |0ans durl ng the fiscal year
and at “June 30, 2003. At June 30, 2003, the State
had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the
amounts the State owed the borrowers exceeded the
amounts the borrowers owed the State. Either the
State or the borrower can terminate all securities
loans on demand. There are no restrictions on the
amount of the loans that can be made. For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2003, the State experienced no

losses on its securities lending transactions because
of borrower defaults. o

The State receives primarily cash as collateral
for its lopaned securities. A small portion of the
collateral received by the State at June 30, 2003, was
in the form of securities. The market value of the
required collateral must meet_or exceed 102.0% of
the market value of the securities loaned, providing a
margin against a decline in the market value of the
collateral. During the fiscal year ended
June 30,2003, the™ State met the 102.0%
requirement. The State cannot pledge or sdll
collateral securities unless the borrowér defaults.
The lending agent, on behalf of the State, invests
cash _ collater received. Accordi ngISY, at
June 30, 2003, the State recorded these investments
of cash collateral as assets in the accompanying
financial statements. Corresponding  liability
amounts also have been recorded because the State
must return the cash collateral to the borrower upon
expiration of the loan. At June 30, 2003, the fair
value of the State's securities on loan was
$4.836 hillion, and they are uncategorized as to
custodial credit risk in the table in~ subsection b
(Investments) above. For the State's cash collatera
Investments, the table includes the reported amount,
fair value, and custodia credit risk by investment

type.

NOTE6: RECEIVABLES

Receivable balances are disaggregated by type
accordlgg to their liquidity characteristics and “are
presented separately in the financial statements, net
of applicable allowances. Allowances for
uncollectible receivables (expressed in thousands) at
icJulrlle 30, 2003, for the primary government were as
ollows:
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Governmental Activities

Governmental Funds

Departmental Nonmajor Internal Total
General Governmental Service Governmental
Allowances for Uncollectibles General Operating Funds Funds Activities

Income taxes receivable........................ $ 30,590 $ — $ — $ — % 30,590
Sales and other taxes receivable............ 15,043 36 42,104 — 57,183
Patient accounts receivable................... 10,876 21,329 — — 32,205
Loans and notes receivable.................... 22 6 90 — 118
Other receivables..............cccooviiiinnen. 60 16,582 — 80 16,722
Total allowances for uncollectibles.... $ 56,591 $ 37,953 $ 42,194 $ 80 $ 136,818

Business-Type Activities (Enterprise Funds)

Total
Unemployment Nonmajor Business-

Higher  Compensation Enterprise Type
Allowance for Uncollectibles Education Benefits Funds Activities
Contributions receivable......................... $ 1284 % — $ — $ 1,284
Student accounts receivable.................. 5,760 — — 5,760
Patient accounts receivable................... — — 63,784 63,784
Loans and notes receivable.................... 381 — — 381
Loans and notes receivable—restricted... 234 — 347 581
Assessments receivable........................ — 5,042 — 5,042
Other receivables............ccocoviiiiiiiinnnnn, 206 2,064 — 2,270
Total allowances for uncollectibles.... $ 7,865 $ 7,106 $ 64,131 $ 79,102

The enterprise fund financid, statements
separately present long-term receivables (net
receivable balances not ‘expected to be collected
within one year). Net receivables not expected to be

collected within one 2/ear in governmental and
expr

internal service funds
June 30, 2003, were asfollows:

in thousands) at
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Governmental Activities

Governmental Funds

Department of

Departmental Local Transportation Nonmajor Internal Total
General Government Special Governmental Service Governmental
Net Long-Term Receivables General Operating Infrastructure  Revenue Funds Funds Activities
Accounts receivable..............coceeeviiinnnn. $ 396 $ 17,760 $ 38,587 $ — $ — $ 165 $ 56,908
Income taxes receivable...................... 33,575 — — — — 33,575
Sales and other taxes receivable........... 24,153 427 — — 11,237 — 35,817
Patient accounts receivable.................. 7,693 5,534 — — — — 13,227
Loans and notes receivable................... 6 539 298,394 8,733 16,202 — 323,874
Accounts receivable—restricted............ — — 437,069 — — — 437,069
Total noncurrent receivables, net..... $ 65427 $ 6,500 $ 735463 $ 8,733 $ 27,439 $ — $ 843,562
Govern- Business Com-
mental Type ponent
Asset/Restricted For Activities Activities Units
NOTE 7: DETAILSOF
Cash and Cash Equivalents
RESTR' CTED ASSETS Debt service $ 335030 $ 189,069 $ 19,318
Capital projects... 167,096 70,348 139,688
Student loan program — 7,635 —
Endowments... — 17,398 —
The purposes and amounts of the State's Other i _ 1555 _
restricted assets at  June 30, 2003 (expressed in Total Cash and Cash Equivalents..... § 502,126 § 286005 § 159,006
thousands) were asfollows:
Investments
. Debt service. $ - $ 15246 $ 71,757
Govetrnl- BL_lrsmess Com-t Capital projects... — 190 271,013
. mgr? ‘a ype pongn Student loan programs... — 486 —
Asset/Restricted For Activities Activities Units Endowments _ 33504 _
Current: Total Investments $ — $ 49516 $ 342,770
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Debt senice $ 45137 $ 132326 $ 66,883 Accounts Receivable
Capital projects..... — 54,512 — Debt Service.........ccovvrvvisicsiicncine, $ 437,069 $ — $  —
Student loan programs.. — 108 —
Donor/sponsor specified — 8,770 — Loans Receivable
Endowments.................. — 31 — Debt service $ — $ 537,145 $ —
— 74,933 — Student loan program — 50,082 —
— 1,313 422 Total Loans Receivable.. $ — $ 587,227 $ —
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents... $ 45137 $ 271,993 $ 67,305
Other
Investments Deb? servige $ 6,324 % 5229 $ —
Debt senice $ 115109 $ 316 $ 71373 Capital projects. ... - - 4
X Donor/sponsor specified — 1,079 —
Donor/sponsor specified — 5,752 — Endowments _ 360 _
Endowments — 64 — Other....... o 4 _
Total Investments.........coveeeeveeeeennns $ 115109 $ 6,132 $ 71,373 Total Other.... $ 6,324 $ 6672 $ 41
Loans Receivable
Student loan programs................... $ — $ 258 $ —
Other .
et e s aas s 20 s NOTE 8: CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital projects.. — 18 —
Donor/sponsor specified... — 636 —
- vz - Capital asset actmtg eO(expr&ssed in_thousands)
Tyl for the fiscal year en June 30, 2003, for the

primary government was as

follows:
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Beginning Ending
Balances Balances
July 1, 2002 Increases Decreases June 30, 2003
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and improvements...........cccooveviuveeneeesinennineens $ 629,576 $ 213,589 $ (2,731) $ 840,434
CONStruction iN Progress..........cuvveeveeireniieeeessieeeeens 3,202,996 718,564 (663,558) 3,258,002
Works of art and historical treasures........................ 966 2,694 —_ 3,660
Total capital assets not being depreciated........... 3,833,538 934,847 (666,289) 4,102,096
Capital assets being depreciated:
Depreciable land improvements...............cccccovecnene 49,939 2,083 — 52,022
Infrastructure (road and bridge network)................... 6,829,917 577,343 (3,231) 7,404,029
Buildings and improvements..........c.cocceevvvieeee i 1,297,049 78,295 (4,119) 1,371,225
VENICIES. ...t 514,487 46,992 (25,237) 536,242
Machinery and equipment 395,320 19,972 (20,392) 394,900
Depreciable works of art and historical
EFEASUIES ... ettt eee ettt ettt ettt sbe e ereeseeeneeas 8 — — 8
Intangibles..........ccooviii 14,082 25,648 (674) 39,056
Total capital assets being depreciated, at
hiStOriCal COSL......cciviiiiiiiiiiic e 9,100,802 750,333 (53,653) 9,797,482
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Depreciable land improvements.............ccccceeeiienne (30,745) (2,897) — (33,642)
Infrastructure (road and bridge network)................. (1,654,928) (104,143) 2,739 (1,756,332)
Buildings and improvements.............ccccoccieiineene (452,351) (30,640) 2,085 (480,906)
Vehicles........cocoiiiiiiiii (336,422) (40,896) 22,502 (354,816)
Machinery and equipment.............cccoeevereeeieseenne. (273,654) (27,146) 18,080 (282,720)
Depreciable works of art and historical
TFEASUIES. ...ttt e — 1) — (1)
Intangibles... (8,000) (10,331) 673 (17,658)
Total accumulated depreciation (2,756,100) (216,054) 46,079 (2,926,075)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, Net..........ccevvieiiiiiiiciieeeee e 6,344,702 534,279 (7,574) 6,871,407
Capital assets for governmental
aCliVItIeS, NeL.....ooiiiii $ 10,178,240 $ 1,469,126  $ (673,863) $ 10,973,503
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Beginning Ending
Balances Balances
July 1, 2002 Increases Decreases June 30, 2003
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and improvements...........cccccoveeeeiiieneiiiiienns $ 153,246 $ 12,531 $ 1,799) $ 163,978
Construction in progress..............c...... 331,024 206,951 (249,566) 288,409
Works of art and historical treasures..................... 16,699 110 — 16,809
Total capital assets not being depreciated.......... 500,969 219,592 (251,365) 469,196
Capital assets being depreciated:
Depreciable land improvements.............ccccoeveeennne 57,977 8,080 (68) 65,989
Buildings and improvements...........cc.ccccceeecueeenen. 2,419,303 305,312 (1,001) 2,723,614
VENICIES. ..t 34,647 3,950 (1,414) 37,183
Machinery and equipment...........ccccccveeriiienieennnn 507,244 66,422 (31,377) 542,289
Depreciable works of art and historical
ErEASUIES. ... 6,967 — — 6,967
Intangibles.........cccociiiiiiii 12,306 3,109 (548) 14,867
Total capital assets being depreciated, at
historical COSt........ccuviieiiiiiiiiie e 3,038,444 386,873 (34,408) 3,390,909
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Depreciable land improvements............ccccccoevene (26,424) (2,525) — (28,949)
Buildings and improvements..............ccccoovvvnnnne. (939,467) (74,915) 558 (1,013,824)
Vehicles........cccooiviiiiiniinnn, . (25,959) (3,519) 1,394 (28,084)
Machinery and equipment... (330,802) (40,533) 27,621 (343,714)
Depreciable works of art and historical
TrEASUIES......ooiiiieiciiie e (4,602) (145) — (4,747)
Intangibles. ..o (6,454) (3,437) 60 (9,831)
Total accumulated depreciation................c..c..... (1,333,708) (125,074) 29,633 (1,429,149)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, Net..........ccocveveviriniieiiiiee e 1,704,736 261,799 (4,775) 1,961,760
Capital assets for business-type
aCtiVities, Nel.........ocoiiii $ 2,205,705  $ 481,391 $ (256,140) $ 2,430,956

Capital asset activity (expressed in thousands) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, for the State’'s major
discretely presented component units was as follows:
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Beginning Ending
Balances Balances
July 1, 2002 Increases Decreases June 30, 2003
Public Service Authority:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and improvements. .........cccovevvereenesieeneene $ 87,770 $ 5,455 $ 220 $ 93,203
Construction iN Progress........covveeereeerieeeseeeseeens 410,712 231,518 (420,446) 221,784
Total capital assets not being depreciated....... 498,482 236,973 (420,468) 314,987
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements (utility plant)............. 3,395,111 411,802 (28,790) 3,778,123
VENICIES ..oviiveiectee et 29,424 97 (615) 28,906
Machinery and equipment...........cccocvevverieerieenene 18,387 1,421 (1,157) 18,651
INtangibles.......cooiiii 38,674 1,686 — 40,360
Total capital assets being depreciated, at
historical COSt.........coevrieiiiiie e 3,481,596 415,006 (30,562) 3,866,040
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (utility plant)........... (1,417,156) (126,930) 28,790 (1,515,296)
VENICIES ..o (15,161) (30) 615 (14,576)
Machinery and equipment...........ccoocvevevierienienne (7,938) (444) 1,157 (7,225)
INtaNGIbIeS........coveiieeeee e (27,057) (6,211) — (33,268)
Total accumulated depreciation.............ccceeeueee. (1,467,312) (133,615) 30,562 (1,570,365)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, Net........ccceeiiiiiiiiiiiicee e 2,014,284 281,391 — 2,295,675
Public Service Authority, net..............cceeveeen. $ 2,512,766  $ 518,364 $ (420,468) $ 2,610,662
Beginning Ending
Balances Balances
July 1, 2002 Increases Decreases June 30, 2003
State Ports Authority:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and improvements..........cccccoeveveeierieeeceenens $ 142929 % 3260 $ (6,827) % 139,362
Construction in Progress.........eevveeereeeeiieeenineenens 40,848 14,598 (1,857) 53,589
Total capital assets not being depreciated....... 183,777 17,858 (8,684) 192,951
Capital assets being depreciated:
Depreciable land improvements...........cccvceevenneene 146,944 3,308 — 150,252
Buildings and improvements...........cc.ccoovvrveieeeen. 246,335 1,480 (225) 247,590
Machinery and equipment............cccoeceeeieenieenne. 74,584 3,565 (1,648) 76,501
Total capital assets being depreciated, at
historical COSt.......oocieiiiiiiie e, 467,863 8,353 (1,873) 474,343
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Depreciable land improvements...........ccceceeeene (79,773) (6,306) — (86,079)
Buildings and improvements.............cccceoeeenieens (115,914) (9,820) 225 (125,509)
Machinery and equipment...........ccccoceeeieniiienennns (34,343) (6,062) 1,648 (38,757)
Total accumulated depreciation...............cco....... (230,030) (22,188) 1,873 (250,345)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net............ 237,833 (13,835) — 223,998
State Ports Authority, net $ 421,610 $ 4,023 $ (8,684) $ 416,949
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Beginning Ending
Balances Balances
July 1, 2002 Increases Decreases June 30, 2003
Connector 2000 Association, Inc.:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure (toll road).........cccceeveeeeceiiererenienn, $ 188,287 % 3472 % — $ 191,759
Machinery and equipment 440 — — 440
Total capital assets being depreciated, at
historical COSt.........ooiviiiiiiiiceeee e 188,727 3,472 — 192,199
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure (toll road)..........ccocvervvevirnieiiennnene (3,830) (5,142) — (8,972)
Machinery and equipment...........cccocevveereenienenne (88) (88) — (176)
Total accumulated depreciation.............cccceeeen. (3,918) (5,230) — (9,148)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, Net........ccceeiiiiiiiiiiiicee e 184,809 (1,758) — 183,051
Connector 2000 Association, Inc., net $ 184,809 $ (1,758) $ — $ 183,051
Beginning Ending
Balances Balances
July 1, 2002 Increases Decreases June 30, 2003
Lottery Commission:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements.........cc.cceoevvierieninenne $ 579 $ 45 $ — $ 624
Vehicles.......ocovviiinininicnne, 48 21 — 69
Machinery and equipment 17,686 1,585 — 19,271
Total capital assets being depreciated, at
historical COSt........ovvirieieicie e 18,313 1,651 — 19,964
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements.........c.cccoeeevvvnennenne (18) (124) — (142)
VENICIES ..o @) (19) — (26)
Machinery and equipment..........cccoocvevevienienienne (1,445) (3,179) — (4,624)
Total accumulated depreciation..............ccceeee.e (1,470) (3,322) — (4,792)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, Net........cccevviiiiiiiiiiicee e 16,843 (1,671) — 15,172
Lottery Commission, net.....cccccevveeeiienninennen. $ 16,843 $ (1,671) $ — $ 15,172
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, Presented component units as follows (expressed in
depreciation expense was charged to functions of the housands):

primary government and its maor discretely
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Internal Total
Governmental Service Governmental
Funds Funds Activities

General government................. $ 9289 $ 8486 $ 17,775
Education............ccc.... 18,659 1,249 19,908
Health and environme 16,532 1,073 17,605
Social services........... . 854 1,759 2,613
Administration of justice............ 27,952 1,290 29,242
Resources and economic

development.........c.ccceeeiceenns 8,761 236 8,997
Transportation.............cceeeeeees 119,914 — 119,914

Total depreciation expense,
governmental activities... $ 201,961 $ 14,093 $ 216,054

Business-
Type
Activities
Higher Education.............cccoeeueeneen. $ 103,396
Housing Authority..........c.cccevveenneen. 31
Education Assistance Authority...... 25
Other....oooieieceseneee s 21,622
Total depreciation expense,
business-type activities......... $ 125,074
Major
Component
Units
Public Service Authority.........c.ccoccveeene $ 133,615
State Ports AUthOrity.........cccceeervrvienens 22,188
Connector 2000 Association, Inc......... 5,230
South Carolina Lottery Commission...... 3,322

At June 30, 2003, the primary government had
outstanding. construction = commitments totaling
$824.358 million for capital projects in progress. In
addition, outstanding construction commitments at
that date totaled $56.795 million for significant
permanent improvement_ projects that  will not
increase State assets. Projects that will not be
capitalized as State assets upon completion include
projects for replacements, repairs, = and/or
renovations to existing facilities. ~ In addition, the

rimary government had outstanding commitments
totaling $6.662 million at June 30, 2003, related to
information technology projects. )

_Outstanding construction commitments for
m? or dlscretely resented component units were as
follows:  $377.905 million for the Public Service
Authority at December 31, 2002; $14.100 million
for_the State Ports Authority at June 30, 2003; and
$777 thousand for_the Connector 2000 Association,
Inc., at December 31, 2002.

Thetotal interest expense incurred by the State's
enterprise_and interna’ service funds during the
current fiscal year was $82.536 million™ and
$2.174 million,  respectively. Of the amount
incurred .~ by the State€'s enterprise  funds
$6.179 million was included as part of the cost of
capital assets under. construction, net of interest
earnings. The Public Service Authority, a major
discrefely presented component unit, incurred total
interest costs of $161.227 million during its fiscal

year ended December 31, 2002, none of which was
included . in the cost of capital assets under
construction. The State Ports Authority, a major
discretely presented component unit, incurred total
interest Costs of $6.604 million during its fiscal year
ended June 30, 2003, of which $802Z" thousand ‘was
included as part of the cost of capital assets under
construction, The Connector 2000 Association, Inc.,
a maor discretely presented component _unit,
incurred. total inter costs of $13.731 million
during its fiscal year ended December 31, 2002
none of which was included in the cost of capital
assets under construction. The L ottery Commission,
a major discretely presented component unit,
incurred total interest costs of $816 thousand durin

its fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, none of whic

was included in the cost of capital assets under
construction. o _

In Sﬁptember 2003, an institution reported in the
State’s Higher Education Fund, a major enterprise
fund, entéred into a_ $9.000 million contract to
%onstruct a new building to house its School of

usiness.

NOTE9: RETIREMENT PLANS

a. Plan Descriptions

The South Carolina Retirement Systems (the
System), a part of the State Budget and Control
Board, ‘administers four defined bénefit retirement

lans. the South Carolina Retirement /stem
SCRS), the South Carolina_Police Officers
etirement System (PORS), the Retirement System
for Members of the General Assembly of the State
of South Carolina (GARS[)_, ~and the Retirement

stem for Judges and Solicitors of the State of

uth Carolina™ (JSRS). The System issues a
ublicly available Comprehensive Annua Financia
Report™ that includes required supplementary
information for al four plans. The report may be
obtained by writing to:

The South Carolina Retirement System
Fontaine Business Center

202 Arbor Lake Drive

Columbia, South Carolina 29223

SCRS, established by Section 9-1-20 of the
South Carolina Code of” Laws, is a cost-sharin
mulgfple-employer defined benefit pension §)Ian th
benefits employees of public schodls, the State, and
its political subdivisions. For most employees
membership is required as a condition_ of
employment, unless exempted by State law. Both
emplcgers and employees must Contribute. Benefits
vest after five years of service. Vested members
who retire at age sixty-five or with twenty- e?’ht
years of service at any age receive an annual benefit,

ayable monthly, for life. The benefit is based on
ength of service and average fina compensation, an
annualized average of the employee's hlglbest twelve
consecutive quarters compensation. he annual
benefit amount is 1.82% of ,averaglg fina
compensation times years of service. “Reduced
benefits are payable as early as age fifty-five.

PORS, established by Section 9-11-20 of the
South Carolina Code of Laws, is a cost-sharing
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multiple-employer. defined benefit pension plan that
benefits police officers and fire fighters employed by
the State or its political subdivisions. For most
employees, membership is required as a condition of
employment, unless exempted by State law. Both
employers and employees must contribute. Benefits
vest after five years'of service. Vested members
who retire with ‘twenty-five years of service receive
an annua benefit, payable monthly for life. The
benefit is based on léngth of service and average
fina compensation, an annualized average of the
employee's highest twelve consecutive ™ quarters
compensation. “The annua benefit amount is 2.14%
of average fina co_r%en&an on times years of service.

GARS, established by Section” 9-9-20 of the
South Carolina Code of Laws, is a sg{gl e-employer
defined benefit pension plan that benefits members
of the South Carolina General Assembly.
Membership is required as a condition of taking
office as a member of the General Assembly, unless
exempted by State law. Both the members of the
Generd Assembly and the State must contribute,
Benefits vest after eight years of service. Vested
members who retire a age sixty or at any age with
thirty years of service receive an annua Denefit,
payable monthly, for life. Effective January 1, 2003
a member at_age seventy or with thirty” years of
serviceis digibleto retire’and draw an annuity while
continuing to serve in the Genera Assembly. The
annual benefit. amount is 4.82% of €arnable
compensation times years of service. Earnable
compensation is defined asfortx d@/s‘ pay at therate
currently paid to members of the General Assembly
plus $12 thousand. _

JSRS, established by Section 9-8-20 of the
South Carolina Code of Laws, is a single-emplayer
defined benefit pension plan that benefits the judges
of the State's Supreme Court, Court_of Appeals,
circuit courts, family courts, and the State's circuit
solicitors. . Membership is required as a condition of
taking office, unless exempted by State law. Both
judges and the State must contribute,  Benefits vest
after twelve Kﬂears of service in a position as a judge
or solicitor. Members may retire at age seventy with
fifteen years of service, at”age sixty-five with twenty
years of service, or at any age with twenty-five years
of service, Members recéive a retirement bénefit
equal to 71.3% of the current active sdary of the
position occupied at retirement.

Information  regardin the  number  of
PaIrItICI pating employers June 30, 2003, is as
ollows:

SCRS PORS GARS JSRS

State and school
Number of employers...........c.c....... 97 4 1 1
Annual covered payroll.... . $ 4,670,715 $ 309,767 $ 3,262 $ 14,241
Average number of
contributing members................. 144,604 10,418 170 128

Other participating employers
Number of employers..................... 545 261 — —
Annual covered payroll................... $ 1,368,703 $ 469,336 $ — $ —
Average number of
contributing members................. 49,420 14,266 — —

~ The glans_ provide retirement, death, and
disability benefits to State employees; public school
employees;, and employees 0O counties
municipalities, and certain” other State political
subdivisions. Each plan is independent. Assets of

each plan may be used only to benefit participants of
that plan.

b. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies—Basis of Accounting and
Valuation of Investments

The financia statements of the previoudly-
described plans are prepared using the accrual basis
of  accounting. mployee™ and employer
contributions are recognized in the period in which
the contributions are due. Retirement benefits and
refund expenses are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of each plan.

Note 5b specifies the method used to value
pension trust fund investments.

c. Funding Policies

Article X, Section16 of the South Carolina
Condtitution = requires that all State-operated
retirement plans be funded on a sound actuaria
basis. Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws

rescribes requirements relating to membership,
enefits, and_employee/employer contributions for
each plan, The following paragraphs summarize
those requirements. o ]

By law, employee contribution requirements for
thefiscal year ended June 30, 2003, were as follows:

Plan Rate
SCRS 6.0% of earnable compensation
PORS 6.5% of earnable compensation
GARS 10.0% of earnable compensation
JSRS 7.0% of earnable compensation

Actuarially determined employer contribution
rates for the four plans, expressed as percentages of
compensation, ftor the fiscd "year ended
June 30, 2003, were asfollows:

Plan Rate
SCRS 7.70%
PORS 10.70%
GARS 79.00%
JSRS 41.66%

Under certain conditions, new employers
entering the plans are alowed up to ten years to
remit matching employer contributions resulting
from their employees “purchase of prior service
credits. Interest is assessed annually on the unpaid
balance. The amounts outstanding at June 30, 2003,
\gglg S$1.550 million for SCRS and $17 thousand for

d. Annual Pension Cost

Annual pension cost (dollars expressed in
thousands) and related actuarial data for the State's
sin Iﬁ-employer defined benefit pension plans were
asfollows:
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GARS JSRS
Annual pension cost................ $2,577 $6,014
Employer contributions
MAE.....eevieiiie s $2,577 $6,014
Actuarial valuation date............ July 1, 2002 July 1, 2002
Actuarial cost method............. Entry age Entry age

Lewel percent, closed Lewel percent, open

Period.....ccvviviiiiiiei e 25 years 30 years
Asset valuation method........... 5 year smoothed 5 year smoothed
market market
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return........ 7.25% 7.25%
Projected salary increases..... 2.00% 5.25%
Assumed inflation rate........... 4.25% 4.25%

Assumed cost-of-living
adjustments....................... 2.00% 4.25%

e. Trend Information

. Trend information indicates the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due. ) ) )

For the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plans in'which the State participates,
the State's, required contributions 'in  dollars
(expressed in thousands) and the percentages of
those amounts contributed for the three™ latest
available years were as follows. Also see Note 9f
for funding status and progress.

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2003

June 30, 2002 June 30, 2001

%

% %

Required Contributed Required Contributed Required Contributed
SCRS-State:
Primary government..... $ 176,152 100% $ 181,217 100% $ 176,045 100%
Componentunits.......... 9,595 100% 9,089 100% 8,808 100%
PORS-State:
Primary government..... $ 34,566 100% $ 39,495 100% $ 40,079 100%
Component units.......... 30 100% 25 100% 21 100%
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. The following table presents (dollars expressed
in thousands) the'annual pension cost, percentage of
annual pension cost contributed, and the net pension
obligation for the three latest available years for the
State's single-employer defined benefit plans. Also

f. Funding Status and Progress (Unaudited)

The following schedule (dollars expressed in
thousands) describes the funding progress for the

. SCRS and the PORS, cost-sharing multiple-
see Note 9F for funding status and progress: employer defined benefit plans, for theg three IaFt)esI
Fiscal Annual avail Ieyears.
Year Pension Percentage Net
Ended Cost of APC Pension
Plan June 30 (APC) Contributed  Obligation
GARS 2001 $ 2,510 100% $ —
2002 2,627 100% —
2003 2,577 100% —
JSRS 2001 $ 5,875 100% $ —
2002 5,993 100% —
2003 6,014 100% —
Actuarial UAAL as a
Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded of
Valuation Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Plan July 1 @) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)lc)
SCRS 2000 $ 17,286,108 $ 19,414,972 $ 2,128,864 89.0% $ 5,881,847 36.2%
2001 18,486,773 21,162,147 2,675,374 87.4% 6,017,537 44.5%
2002 19,298,174 22,446,574 3,148,400 86.0% 6,147,712 51.2%
PORS 2000 $ 2,008,554 $ 2,095,991 $ 87,437 95.8% $ 716,749 12.2%
2001 2,197,982 2,324,257 126,275 94.6% 757,335 16.7%
2002 2,351,100 2,527,876 176,776 93.0% 757,393 23.3%

The following schedule (dollars expressed in thousands) describes the funding progress for the State's single-

employer defin

enefit plans for the three latest available years:

Actuarial UAAL as a
Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded of
Valuation Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Plan July 1 (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)lc)
GARS 2000 $ 40,730 $ 64,616 23,886 63.0% $ 4,858 491.7%
2001 42,788 68,291 25,503 62.7% 4,761 535.7%
2002 43,841 73,046 29,205 60.0% 4,515 646.8%
JSRS 2000 $ 87,536 $ 144,631 57,095 60.5% $ 13,214 432.1%
2001 94,795 159,246 64,451 59.5% 14,109 456.8%
2002 100,074 166,440 66,366 60.1% 14,211 467.0%
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Included among the measurements of long-term
funding progress for defined benefit pension plans
are whether a plan’s funding ratio is increasing and
whether a plan’s unfunded™liability (UAAL) as a
Percentage of covered payroll is decreasing. The
ables above present "the results of those
measurements. S
.. The State records the pension liability for cost of
living adjustments (COLAS) in the SCRS and PORS
only as COLAs are granted. Accordingly, because
COLA benefits are not automatically guaranteed, the
plans exclude from their actuarial “accrued liability
calculations and from their funding formulas the
costs of providing future COLA benefits. ]

While the State Budget and Control Board is
annually authorized undercertain conditions to defer

COLAs, even in years when those conditions
ermitted a deferral. “Plan actuaries have determined
hat the unfunded liabilities for SCRS and PORS
would be dgnificantly higher than amounts
presented in the table above if the estimated costs of
providing future COLA benefits were included in
each plan’ s actuarial accrued liability calculation.

g. Receivables and Investments

. The principal components of receivables and
investments expressed in thousands) at
June 30, 2003, for the four plans administered by the

granting COLAs, the Board historically has granted South Carolina Retirement Systems were as follows:

SCRS PORS GARS JSRS Totals

Receivables:

Contributions.......c.cccceeveueee. $ 107,547 $ 12,692 $ 52 $ 324 $ 120,615

Employer long-term............... 1,550 17 — — 1,567

Accrued interest.......cccoeeeeeennes 144,152 16,171 385 905 161,613

Unsettled investment sales. 18,013 2,055 44 98 20,210
Total receivables..................... $ 271,262 $ 30,935 $ 481 $ 1,327 $ 304,005
Due from other funds............. $ 2,936 $ 836 4 $ — $ 3,776

Investments and invested securities lending collateral:
United States government

SECUMMeS. ..o
United States government

agencies and government-

$ 1,994,697 $ 196,796 $ 4,016 $ 3,179 $ 2,198,688

insured securities................ 1,580,521 196,529 3,768 11,956 1,792,774
Corporate bonds.................... 4,611,780 525,793 11,908 29,470 5,178,951
Financial and other................ 2,336,091 254,640 4,225 9,646 2,604,602
EQUItIES ..o 7,034,108 833,168 16,130 36,023 7,919,429
Invested securities lending

collateral.......c.coovecvnnrrcrcenenn, 3,535,984 352,687 8,633 15,589 3,912,893

Total investments.................... $ 21,093,181 $ 2,359,613 $ 48,680 $ 105,863 $ 23,607,337
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h. Teacher and Employee Retention Incentive
Program

The Teacher and Emsﬂl(%/ee Retention Incentive
(TERI) program, establi by State law, became
effective January 1, 2001. The program is a deferred
retirement option available to RS members
eigible for service retirement. Upon entering the
TERI program, a member's status changes Trom
active to Tetired. A TERI participant agrees. to
continue employment with an empl oger partici pat(legg
in the system for a specified period, not to exc
five _}(ears.
ERI

employment rights they (
program but are’ not congdered active employees for
purposes of the group life insurance and disability
retirement programs. A TERI retiree's_ monthly
benefits are acCrued and remain in the SCRS trust
account during the TERI parti Cg)atl on period, but no
interest is accrued or paid thereon. Upon
termination of employment or at the end of the TERI
participation period {(whichever is earlier), a retiree
may roll over some or all of the accumulated TERI
balance into a_ qualified, tax-sheltered retirement
plan and/or receive alump-sum distribution. .

A total of 10,946 members were partici ?atl ng.in
the TERI program at June 30, 2003. The financial
activity of the program (expressed in thousands)
]gul?ng the fiscal year ended ‘June 30, 2003, was as
ollows:

participants retain the same status and
held upon entering the

Beginning balance of TERItrust accounts.. $ 229,590
AdAItIONS .ovveeiieeeeee e 240,667
TERI distributions at termination................... (45,351)
Ending balance of TERI trust accounts....... $ 424906

i. National Guard Pension System

Plan Description

The National Guard Pension esp/stem (l_\lGPS)I is
a single-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by'the State Adjutant General's Office.
The NGPS, established Dy Section 25-1-3210 of
the South Carolina Code of Laws, provides benefits
to Nationa Guard members who served in South
Carolina prior to_July 1,1993. Nationa Guard
members are consideréd to be federal government
employees. The federa government pays Guard
members drill pay and summer camp pay.  In
accordance with State law, the State's General Fund
/S Guard members' salaries only if the Governor
acfivates the National Guard for sefvice to the State.
The pension benefit that the State provides is
intended only to supplement the retirement benefit
that Guard “members receive from the federa
overnment. Members who retire at age sixty with
wenty years of military service, including al least
fifteen years of South Carolina National, Guard duty
ten of which immediately precede retirement, and

who have received an_honorable discharge, are
entitled to monthly pension benefits. The pension
amount is equa to $50 per month for twenty years
of creditable service with an additional $5 per month
for each additional year of service, provided that the
total pension shall riot exceed $100 per month.

he following table shows the number of
employees by 1type of membership as of
June 30, 2002," the date of the latest biennial
actuarial valuation:

NGPS

Retirees and beneficiaries

receiving benefits........cc.ccveeennne. 2,213
Terminated employees

entitled to benefits but not

yet receiving them...........cccceuee. 2,901
Active employees..........ccocueerveennne. 4,010
Total participants...........ccoveerverene 9,124

National Guard members who served in South
Carolina_prior to July 1, 1993, are covered by the
plan. NGPSis closed’to new entrants.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the NGPS are
repared using the accrual basis of = accounting.
Employer contributions are recognized in the period
in which the contributions aré due. Retirement
benefits are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the plan.

Receivables and Investments

The assets of the NGPS consist of cash and cash
equivalents,  accrued interest receivable, and
invested securities lending collateral.  Note5b
specifies the method used to value pension trust fund
investments.

Contributions and Reserves

Article X, Section16 of the South Carolina
Congtitution = requires that | State-operated
retirement plans be funded on a sound actuarial
basis. Title 25 of the South Carolina Code of Laws
Brescnb% requirements relating to membership,
enefits, and employer contributions for the NGPS.

In accordance with State law, the State Adjutant
Generad's . Office  administers the “plan.
Administrative _ charges are financed through
investment earnings. ~ The State funded the plan on
an actuaria basi's for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 1994, through June 30, 1996. From
July 1, 1996, through the present time, however, the
plan has not been Tully funded in accordance with
actuarial recommendations. Members do not
contribute. ] )

The net assets of the National Guard Pension
System are held in trust for the purpose of paying
the supplemental retirement benefits to digible
members.  The balance at June 30, 2003, "was
$11.466 million.
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Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost
provides

The fallowing table

The following represents the components of the
net pension obligation (NPO) for the NGPS, at

concerning funding policies and annual pension cost

(dollars expressed in thousands):

Annual pension Cost....................
Employer contributions made.......
Actuarial valuation date................
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method....................
Remaining amortization period......
Asset valuation method................
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return............
Projected salary increases........
Assumed inflation rate .............
Assumed cost-of-living

information June 30, 2003 (expressed in thousands):
NGPS
Actuarially required contribution (ARC)...... $ 2,870
NGPSs;z — Interest on the NPO........c.c.ccceeeeeeevereneenn, 473
$2.133 Adjustment to the ARC.......ccccoeeverirrnerenne (584)
. tJ“”e 30, 2002| Annual pension CoSt.........ccccvveveveiieiieinns 2,759
n age normai
Le\,gd,im open Contributions made.........c.cccceeviivvenceeeieennn 2,133
30 years Increase in NPO..........ccccooveveeieeeeieeereenenn, 626
Market L
NPO beginning of year...........ccccoeceevrerennne. 6,525
7.25% NPO end of year..........ccooeeeveeeeiesriienn, $ 7151
Not applicable
4.25%

The State recognized $2.133 million of

adjustments................c...c...... Not applicable expenditures |n the General Fund thﬁ)ay a porti on of
the current fiscal years actuarially determined
contribution. )
The following schedule (dollars expressed in
thousands) describes the funding progress for the
NGPS for each of the three most' recent actuarial
valuations:
Actuarial UAAL as a
Biennial Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded of
Valuation Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
June 30 @) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
1998 $ 8,640 $ 41478 $ 32,838 20.8% $ 40,333 81.4%
2000 11,089 43,427 32,338 25.5% 40,789 79.3%
2002 12,608 44,678 32,070 28.2% 45,711 70.2%
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Trend Information

. Trend information indicates the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to Fa¥ benefits
when due. The following table presents the annua
pension cost, percentagé of annua pension cost
contributed, and the nel pension obligation for the
latest three fiscal years for the plan (dollars
expressed in thousands):

Annual
Fiscal Year Pension Percentage Net
Ended Cost of APC Pension
June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation
2001 $ 2,947 71.7% $ 5,720
2002 3,060 73.7% 6,525
2003 2,759 77.3% 7,151

Financial Statements

The NGPS does not issue separate financial
statements._Accordingly, the financial statements
for the NGPS are presented below:

Statement of Plan Net Assets
National Guard Pension System
June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents............ccccccceveeeeene $ 11,332

Accrued interest receivable................cccooeeeeee. 134

Invested securities lending collateral................ 1,000
Total @SS etS ..o 12,466

LIABILITIES

Securities lending collateral..............ccccoovnininne 1,000
Total liabilities ........cocvveiciiiiis 1,000

NET ASSETS

Held in trust for pension benefits.... $ 11,466

Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets
National Guard Pension System
For the Fscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Additions:
Employer retirement contributions................ $ 2,133
INVestment INCOMe..........oceeiiiieiiieees 925
Total additionNS .....cceevevereiiiiiieies 3,058
Deductions:
Regular retirement benefits 2,231
Administrative expense....... 27
Total deductions.......cccceevevivicicninnens 2,258
Net increase in plan net
ASSELS ..ot 800
Net assets held in trust
for pension benefits:
Beginning of year.......cccceveeneneciicnnne 10,666
End of year.....cccooveiiiiiiiicce $ 11,466

j- Defined Contribution Plan

The State previously reported two defined
contribution plans, the Optional Retirement Plan
ORP) and the State Optional Retirement Plan (State

RP). Effective July 1, 2002, State law combined
tOhI% |t3WO plansinto oné. Werefer to that plan as Sate

As an alternative to membership in SCRS,
certain State and public school employees may elect
to participate in State ORP. Participants in State
ORP direct the investment of their funds into a plan
administered by one of four i r]vestmentsprowders.
The State assumes no liability for State ORP
benefits. Rather, the benefits arée the liability of the
investment providers and are governed by the terms
of the contracts that those providers issue.
Accordln_gl¥, balances of the State ORP are not
reported in the accompanying financial statements.

Under State law, contributions to the State ORP
are a the same rates as for the SCRS (see
Subsection ¢, Funding Policies). Covered payroll
amounts as well as the amounts of actual employer
and employee contributions to the State ORP are
summarized in the following schedule (expressed in
thousands) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003:

Covered payroll................... $ 324,900
Employee contributions....... 19,500
Employer contributions....... 16,200

NOTE 10: POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITSOTHER
THAN PENSIONS

In accordance with the South Carolina Code of
Laws and the annual Appropriation Act, the State
Prow des post-employment health and dental benefits
o certain former State employees and to certain of
their surviving dependents. Generally, retirees are
eigible for the benefits if they have established at
least ten years of retirement sérvice credit, whereas
other former employees are eligible only if they have
established at least twenty "years of retirement
service credit. Benefits become effective when the
former employee retires under a State retirement
stem. urrently, 25,113 retirees meet these
igibility requirements.
. Eligible "retirees choose among two health
insurance plans and (effective January 1, 20032_ two
Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) options,
al of which are underwritten by the State.” The two
health insurance plans are the Economy Plan and the
Standard Plan. * In accordance with contractual
provisions of these plans, participants must meet
ecified annual deductible reqguirements. . The
andard Plan pa%s 80.0% of alowable claims in
excess of deductibles, and the Economy PIan_Bays
75.0% of allowable claims in excess of deductiblés.
There are no annua deductible requirements for the
HMO options, and they pa;r/] 90.0% of allowable
clams. " Participants in”the health insurance plans
and the HMO options must pay co-payments for
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prescriptions. The State pays 100.0% of alowable
claims after the participant” has paid the specified
annual out-of-pocket limit prescribed by each
option. All options disallow claims in eXcess of

ecified annual and lifetime  maximums.
articipants entitled to receive Medicare benefits
may, in some cases, receive reduced State health
benefits, athough = tota benefits (State plus
Medicare) are guwalent_ to those received by
retirees not entitled to Medicare.

The State also underwrites a dental care plan.
Contractual provisions of the plan specify deductible
requirements as well as annual and lifetime
maximums. , _

The State finances all health plan options and

the dental plan on apa‘yg-as-z%ou- 0 basis. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the State recognized
expenses _Fnet of participant contributions) of
$99.745 million to provide health and dental benefits
to State participants in post-employment status.
Approxmatel%/ $3.000 million "of” the post-
employment benefit expense total was due to the
HMO "options becoming self-insured effective on
January 1, 2003.
. Effective January 1, 2004, the State hedlth
insurance ?Ians will “increase annual deductibles,
annual out-of-pocket maximums, per-qccurrence
deductibles for outpatient hospital services, per-
occurance deductibles for emergency room services,
and prescription drug copaymerits.

NOTE 11: INSURANCE
ACTIVITIES

a. Insurance Reserve Fund

The State generdly does not purchase
commercial insurance for the risks of losses for
preg{)ert / damage, including theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; automobile liabi |t|y; tort
liability; and medical professional liability. nstead,
State rmanagement believes it is more economical to
manage its risks internally and set aside assets for
clam™ settlement in its 'Insurance Reserve Fund
(IRF), within the interna service funds. The IRF
services claims for risk of loss to which the State is
exposed, including the followi n% . property
insurance on government owned buildings, the
contents. of Such buildings, . equipment, and
automobiles, automobile lidbility " insurance on

overnment owned vehicles and school buses; tort
1ability insurance for government premises and
operations; and medical” professiona liability for
hospitals.  Although the State is the predominant
participant in thé IRF, county and.  municipal
governments, school districts and specid ﬁurpose
political subdivisions aso participate. The IRF
allocates the cost of providing claims servicing and
clams payment by charging each participant an
actuari IP/ determined "premium."” o

The [RF reports liabilities when it is probable
that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss
can be reasonably estimated. Amounts for allocated
and unallocated "claims adjustment expenses have
been included in the calculation of the unpaid_claims
liability. The liability is reported net of receivables

for salvage, subrogation, and reinsurance, = The
unpaid palicy claims liability of $206.884 million at
June 30, 2003, includes a provision for claims in the
process of review and for claims incurred but not
reported. . The liability for claims incurred but not
reported is an actuaria estimate based on the most
current historical clams experience of previous
ayments, changes in number of members and
participants, inflation, and. award trends. This
process does not necessarily result in an exact
amaunt. The IRF continually reviews estimates of
liabilities for incurred claims and revises those
estimates as changes occur. The current year's
operating statement reflectstherevisions. 7~

.Changes in the balances of claims liahilities
during thé (5)83 two years were as follows (expressed
in thousands):

Fiscal Current-Year
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal

June 30 Liability Estimates Payments Year-End

2002 $ 168,243 $ 57,242 $ (40,481) $ 185,004
2003 185,004 51,752 (29,872) 206,884

. The IRF purchases aircraft and ocean marine
insurance, areas in which the IRF has limited
expertise. _ o _

The IRF purchases reinsurance to limit losses in
the areas of property, boiler and machinery
automobile liability, "and medical profonai
liability. The IRF purchases reinsurance for
catastrophic losses in the area of property insurance
for_losses above $2.000 million per location and
$10.000 million per occurrence. For medicd
professional liability insurance, the IRF acquires
reinsurance for catastrophic losses for losses
exceeding $250 thousand per_occurrence for claims
incurred prior to November 2002 and $550 thousand
thereafter. Reinsurance permits Igartlal recovery of
losses from reinsurers; but the IRF, as direct insurer
of the risks, remains primarily liable.

b. Employee Insurance Programs Fund

State law established the Employee Insurance
Programs Fund, part of the State's internal service
funds, to provide hedth and dental insurance
coverage for eligible employees and retirees of State
ac};enues and school districts and to provide group
life and long-term disability insurance coverage to
gigible active State and public school employees.
The State, the redomlnanéaPart_lupant, retains the
risk_of loss. Under the health insurance program,
participants elect coverage through either a”self-
insured health maintenance organization (HMO) or
another State self-insured plan. All dental, group
life, and long-term disability coverages are provided
through the State's self-inSured plans. State funds
and payroll deductions SPay heath and dentd
premiums for eligible State and public school
employees. Agencies and school districts '5)@/ the
employer share of premiums for retirees. irees
directly pay their own share of premiums. Agencies
and schoal” districts E)ay the premiums for group life

and long-term disability for their employees.
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The Employee Insurance Programs Fund
establishes claims liabilities when™ information
before the issuance of the financial statements
indicates that it is probable that the Fund has
incurred a reasonably estimable liability at the date
of the financial statéments. The calculation of the
unpaid clams liability includes amounts for
alocated and wunaloCated clams adjustment
exgenses. The unpad pollc% claims liability of
$188.153 million at June 30, 2003, includes a
provision for claims in the process of review and for
clams incurred but not reported. ~The Fund
actuarially estimates the liability for claims incurred
but not réported based on the most current historical
claims experience of previous payments, changes in
number of members and participants, inflation
award trends, and estimates of health care trend
changes (cogt, utilization, and intensity of services).
Thisprocess does not necessarily result in an exact
amount. The Fund continually reviews estimates of
liabilities for incurred claims and revises those
estimates as changes occur. The current year's
operating statement reflects the revisions.

Claim costs for long-term disability coverage are
a(:tuarlallepI calculated using the one-year term cost
method; the cost of coverage is the present value of
all benefit payments that will be made on expected
claims incurred during  the year followi n? the
valuation date. Claimliabilities are e(%ual o the
present value, as of the valuation date, of al future

ayments to be made for disabilities and deaths up to
hat date. Actuarial assumptions include an interest
rate of 6.25% for 2003, compounded annually. Of
the total claims liability reported for the Employee
Insurance . Programs ~ Fund at  June 30, 2003,
$26.780 million relates to group life and long-term
disability insurance coverage and $3.601 million
relates to the HMO sdlf-instred managed care plan
liability. The State does not discount its claims
liabilities for health and dental insurance coverage to
present value. . ) T

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities
during thé é)ast two years were as follows (expressed
in thousands):

Fiscal Current-Year

Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year  Changes in Claim Fiscal
June 30 Liability Estimates Payments Year-End

2002 $ 141,029 $ 916,728 $ (902,688) $ 155,069
2003 155,069 1,075,485 (1,042,401) 188,153

c. State Accident Fund

State |law established the State Accident
Fund (the Fund), an interna service fund, to provide
workers' compénsation insurance coverage to_State
entities. Although the State is the. Fund's
predominant  participant, counties, municipalities,
and other palitical subdivisions of the State may also
elect to participate. The State assumes the full risk
for workers compensation claims.

The Fund investigates, adjusts, and paxs
workers' compensation claims_as awarded by the
Workers Compensation Commission for job-rélated
accidental injury, disease, or death to _covered
individuals. ‘The Fund annually bills participating

entities for estimated premiums based on the entity's
estimated payroll. = After the policy period ends,
policyholders submit the details of the actual salaries
paid.” The Fund then adjusts the premium using the
actual payroll data and "a rating modifier based on
claims experience. ] o

- The Fund establishes claims liabilities based on
estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that have
been reported but not settled, and of claims that have
been incurred but not reported. The claims liabilities
include specific incremental claims adjustment
expenses but not administrative expenses. The Fund
deducts reasonably estimable amounts of salvage
and subrogation and reinsurance recoverable, if any,
on both “settled and unsettled clams from the
liability for unpaid claims, The Fund periodicall
recomputes claims liabilities using a variety ©
actuarial and statistical techniques to produce current
estimates. The Fund charges or credits expense in
the period when it adjusits claims liabilities. At
June 30, 2003, the Fund'’s policy claims liability was
$76.849 million.  Policy claims in the financial
statements include the liabilities for claims reported
but not yet paid and for claims incurred but not
reported.” Because actua claims costs depend on
such complex factors as inflation, changes'in Iegnal
doctrines, and damage awards, computation of the
claims liability doeS not necessarily result in an
exact amount. ) o

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities
during the past two years were as follows (expressed
in thousands):

Fiscal Current-Year
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal

June 30 Liability Estimates Payments Year-End

2002 % 57,152 $ 59,572 $ (48,403) $ 68,321
2003 68,321 58,808 (50,280) 76,849

The Fund has entered into a reinsurance
agreement to reduce its exposure to catastrophic
losses on insured events. Losses in excess of
$500 thousand are covered u? to limits of statutory
|Iabl|ltK; the Fund retains the risk for the first
$500 thousand of loss. Reinsurance permits partial
recovery of losses from reinsurers; but the Fund, as
direct insurer of the risks, remains primarily liable.
Effective November 15, 2002, reinsurance coverage
reduces the Fund's exposure to losses on insured
events related to State-owned aircraft in_excess of
$1 million per occurrence up to alimit of $9 million.

d. Patients' Compensation Fund and Medical
Malpractice Liability Insurance Joint
Underwriting Association

_The South Carolina Medical Malpractice
Patients Compensation Fund (PCF) and the South
Carolina Medica Malpractice Liability Insurance
Joint Underwriti nglg Association (JUA) were created

State law. The PCF is accounted for as a
nonmajor enterprise fund, and the JUA is a
nonmaj or discretely presented component unit of the
State. "The State accounts for the PCF and the JUA
as insurance enterprises because they primarily
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cover non-governmental entities. . Accordi nglg, the
PCF and JUA follow the guidance of " FASB
Statement 60,  Accounti ng and . Reporting by
Insurance Enterprises and collectively are referred
to below as “the insurance enterprises.”

The JUA is responsible for payment of that
portion of any covered entity’s medica malpractice
claim, settlement, or judgment up to $200 thousand
per incident_or $600 thousand in the aggregate for
one year. The PCF is responsible for paxments
exceeding these thresholds. " In the event that the
PCF incurs a liability exceeding $200 thousand to
any person under a single occurrence, the PCF may
ultimately pay the claim in full, but it generally mal
not pay morée than $200 thousand per year on suc
claim (although the PCF s Board of Governors may
authorize p?/ments in excess of $200 thousand per
year to avoid payment of interest). )

Licensed edth care. providers. include

hysicians and. surgeons, directors, officers and
rustees of hospitals, nurses, oral surgeons, dentists,
pharmacists, chiropractors, hospital's, hursing homes,
and any similar categor)(_ of licensed hedlth care
providers. All providéerslicensed in South Carolina
are eligible to participate upon remittance of the
annual assessment fees. ) )

. The State actuaridly establishes claims
liabilities for the insurance enterprises based on
estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that have
been reported. but not settled, and of claims that
have been incurred but not reported. At
June 30, 2003, the policy claims liabilities were
$210.312 million for the PCF and $142.576 million
for the JUA, and these amounts include a provision
for claims reported but not settled and for claims
incurred but not reported. Amounts for claims
adjustment expenses, when applicable, have been
included in the caculation of the unpaid claims
liabilities of the insurance enterprises. The
enterprises charge or credit expense, as appropriate,
in the period when they adjust claimsliabilities. The
length' of time for which claims costs must be
estimated varies depending. on the coverage
involved. Because actual claims costs depend on
such complex factors as medical technology,
changes in doctrines of legal liability, and damage
awards, the process for computing claims liabilities
does not necessarily result in an exact amount. The
insurance enterprises and their actuaries recompute
claims liabilities annualy, using a variety of
actuarial and dtatistical techniques, to produce
current estimates that reflect recent settlements
clams frequency, and other economic and Ssoci
factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation
of estimated future claims costs is implicit because
the insurance enterprises and their actuaries rely
both on actual historical data that reflect past
inflation and on other factors that are considered to
be appropriate modifiers of past experience.

e. Second Injury Fund

The State accounts for the South Carolina
Second Injury Fund, anonmajor enterprise fund, asa
public benefit program rather than an insurance
program primarily. because its participants—
workers compensation insurance carriers and self-
insured employers—do not transfer their risk to the
Fund. The Fund services claims in cases where an

individual with a preexisting permanent physical
impairment incurs a subsequent disability “from
injury or accident arising out of and in the course of
employment. Participants of the Fund, rather than
Ithz;et) _I_t_ate, are ultimately responsible for these
iabilities.

The Fund collects and invests assessments
received from its participants and pays claims on
behalf of its participants to the extent that Fund
resources are available to pay. such claims. The
Fund reports these activities in its statement of cash
flows. ' In accordance with accounting Prlnc'g)les
used by claims processors, however, the Fund
reports as revenue only that portion of assessments
and interest earnings intended to cover the Fund's
administrative_ costs, including capital costs.
Likewise, the Fund records no claims expense, and it
records claims liabilities only to the extent that Fund
assets are available to pay such claims.

f. Discretely Presented Component Unit—Public
Service Authority (Santee Cooper)

_The Public Service Authority (Santee Cooper), a
major discretely presented component unit with a
fisCal year enided December 31, is exposed to
various risks of |oss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; business interruption;
and errors and omissions. The Authority purchases
commercial insurance to cover these risks. tled
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercia insurance coverage in any of the_Bast
three years. Policies are subject t0 deductibles
ranging from $5 thousand to $1 million with the
exception of Rainey Generating Station, which
carries an approximate $2.5 million deductible, and
named storm losses, which_carry deductibles from

1 million up to $15 million. . In addition, a
1.4 million self-insured layer exists between the
Authority's primary and excess liability policies.

The Authority self-insures its risks related to
auto, dental, and énvironmental incidents that do not
arise out of an insured event. Automotive exposure
is up to $2 million per incident. Risk exposure for
the dental plan is limited by plan provisions. There
have not been any third-paty clams for
environmental damages for calendar year 2002.

The State reports al. of the Autharity's risk
management activities within the Public "Service
Authority's accounts. The State reports the
Autharity’ s claims expenses and liabilitieswhen it is

robable that a loss has occurred and the amount of
he lossis reasonably estimable.

~ At December 31, 2002, the amount of these
liabilities, reported in the accompanying financia
statements as part of the other curient ligbilities
account, was $1.566 million. Changes in the
reported liability in each of the past two years were
as follows (expressed in thousands):

Fiscal Current-Year
Year Beginning-of  Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year = Changes in Claim Fiscal
December 31 Liability Estimates = Payments Year-End

2001 $ 1,907 $ 1,175 $ (1.656) $ 1,426
2002 1,426 1,574 (1,434) 1,566
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NOTE 12: LEASES

a. Lease Commitments

The State leases land, office facilities
equipment, and other assets under both caPltaI and
operating leases. The present vaue future
minimum capital IeaseP ayments and total minimum
annua lease payments for capital Ieas& recorded in
the %ovanmm -wide statement of net assets at
June30, 2003 (expressed in thousqand%t follow for
the primary government and for the State’s major
discretely presented component units, respectlvely

Business-
Governmental type
Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Activities Activities Totals

2004 $ 1,268 $ 13,773 $ 15,041

2005 1,250 12,171 13,421

2006 1,218 11,605 12,823

2007 1,161 10,319 11,480

2008 510 6,443 6,953

2009 - 2013 191 14,715 14,906

2014 - 2018 — 13,096 13,096

2019 - 2023 — 2,622 2,622

Total minimum payments............... 5,598 84,744 90,342

Less: interest and executory costs...... (1,492) (19,299) (20,791)
Present value of net minimum

PAYMENTS ..o $ 4,106 $ 65,445 $ 69,551

Public
Service
Fiscal Year Ending December 31 Authority
2003 $ 3,819
2004 3,708
2005 3,604
2006 3,388
2007 3,335
2008 - 2012 10,663
2013 - 2017 1,314
Total minimum payments................. 29,831
Less: interest and executory costs...... (5,553)
Present value of net minimum
PaAYMENES ..o $ 24,278
State
Ports
Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Authority
2004 $ 43
2005 43
2006 6
Total minimum payments................. 92
Less: interest and executory costs...... (8)
Present value of net minimum
payments $ 84

Assets under
accompanying
assets at Juné 3
in thousands):

capital leases recorded in the
overnment-wide statement of net
, 2003, were as follows (expressed

Primary Government

Component Units

Business- Public State
Governmental type Service Ports
Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases Activities Activities Totals Authority Authority
Land and non-depreciable improvements................. $ — $ 50911 $ 5911 $ — $ —
Buildings and improvements............ccccvevecvveeviveeennne 6,540 53,587 60,127 93,000 —
Machinery and equipment..........cccceeveviveeiieeesineeeenns 2,482 9,998 12,480 — 163
Works of art and historical treasures..............c.c...... — 1,130 1,130 — —
Assets acquired under capital leases before
accumulated amortization.........cccceeeeeiiienniens 9,022 70,626 79,648 93,000 163
Less: accumulated amortization............c..cceevveernee. (3,027) (19,848) (22,875) (75,100) (85)
Assets acquired under capital leases, net...... $ 5,995 $ 50,778 $ 56,773 $ 17,900 $ 78
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For the primary government’s fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003, minimum rental Bgym,ents under
operating leases were $64.505 million = and
contingent rental  payments were $8.640 million.
The State’'s contingént rental payments are for
copiers, with expense being determined on a cost-
per-copy basis. : : :

~ For” the Public Service Authority, a major
discretely presented component unit, minimum
rental payments under operating leases for the fiscal
year totaled $6.000 million. “For the State Ports
Authority, a magjor discretely presented component
unit, minimum rental payments under operating
leases for the fiscal year totaled $884 thousand. For
the Lottery Commission, a major discretely
presented “component unit, minimum renta
ayments under operating leases for the fiscal year
otaled $772 thousand. o

At June 30, 2003, future minimum payments
under noncancel able operating leases with remainin
terms in excess of one year (expressed in thousands
were as follows:

Component

Unit—
Fiscal Year Ending Primary Lottery
June 30 Government Commission
2004 $ 31,097 $ 619
2005 24,610 578
2006 15,766 269
2007 11,506 48
2008 5,975 4
2009 - 2013 14,254 —
2014 - 2018 4,821 —
2019 - 2023 3,256 —
2024 - 2028 856 —
2029 - 2033 13 —
Total minimum payments....... $ 112,154  $ 1,518

At December 31,2002, future minimum
ayments under noncancelable operating leases with
remaining terms in excess of one year (expressed,in
thousands) for the Public Service Authority, a major
]glﬁcretely presented component unit, “were “as
ollows:

Component

Unit—Public
Fiscal Year Ending Service
December 31 Authority

2003 $ 4,700

2004 2,400

2005 1,300

Total minimum payments........... $ 8,400

b. Facilities Leased to Others

_At June 30, 2003, the State Ports Authority, a
maj or dlscretglel presented component unit, “had
leased to non-Sfate parties certain land and facilities
hawgg acost of approximately $425.470 million and
relat _accumulated ~. depreciation of
$127.862 million. Future minimum rental payments
to be receved a June30, 2003, under” these

operating leases (expressed in thousands) were as
follows:

Component
Fiscal Year Unit—State
Ending Ports
June 30 Authority

2004 $ 22,915
2005 14,178
2006 877
2007 471
2008 471
2009-2013 2,994

Total.......cccveeee $ 41,906

NOTE 13: BONDS, NOTES, AND
CERTIFICATESOF
PARTICIPATION
PAYABLE

a. General Obligation Bonds

_ Generd obligation bonds are backed by the full
faith, credit, and taxing power of the State.” General
obligation = bonds ex8r in  thousands)
outstanding at June 30, 2003, were:

Governmental Activities
Capital improvement bonds, 1.375% to 5.90%........... $ 919,382

State highway bonds, 2.00% to 6.50%................ 630,730
State school facilities bonds, 3.00% to 5.75%.. 689,095
Subtotal—governmental activities.......c..ccocevriceeee. 2,239,207

Business-type Activities, Higher Education Fund
State institution bonds, 2.50% to 7.00%............. 208,968
Total—general obligation bonds payable $ 2,448,175

~ At June 30, 2003, $94.522 million of capital
improvement bonds were authorized but unissued..
At June 30,2003, future debt service
requirements (expressed in thousands) for general
obligation bonds were:
Business-type Activities

Governmental Activities (Higher Education Fund)

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2004 $ 164,530 $ 102,252 $ 10,120 $ 9,478
2005 178,343 95,053 10,680 8,936
2006 172,119 86,984 11,280 8,398
2007 160,270 79,017 11,790 7,856
2008 166,955 71,576 11,645 7,315
2009-2013 748,754 244,661 60,625 28,884
2014-2018 538,610 86,454 62,665 14,677
2019-2023 107,560 9,769 30,160 3,221
Total debt service
rEQUIreMents ......ccerrrrveeessnnnnns 2,237,141 $ 775,766 208,965 $ 88,765
Unamortized premiums......... 10,068 3
Deferred amount on refunding........... (8,002) —
Total principal
outstanding........cccoceeicniiicinnnns $ 2,239,207 $ 208,968

The Department of Transportation Special
Revenue Fund, a major governmental fund, pays the
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debt service for the State highway bonds. The
General Fund pays the debt service for the other
general obligation bonds recorded for governmental
activities. The Higher Education Fund, a major
enterprise fund, pays the debt service for genera
obligation bonds recorded in that fund.

ather than dlrectI[\)/_ limiting the amount of
outstanding general obligation “debt, State law
imposes a [limitation on annual debt service
expenditures. The legal annual debt service margin
at June 30, 2003, was $11.131 million in total forall
institution’ bonds, $22.012 million for highway
bonds, and $24.978 miliion for general obligation
bonds excluding institution and highway bonds.

b. Limited Obligation Bonds

Limited obligation bonds are not backed by the
full faith, credit, and taxing power of the State.
Limited obligation bonds outstanding at
June 30, 2003, which are reported in the internal
service funds, totaled $27.040 million, Interest rates
on these bonds ranged from 4.00% to 6.10%.

At June 30, 2003, there were no limited
obligation bonds authorized but unissued.

he State issued limited obligation |ease revenue
bonds to finance the cost of capitd facilities for use
y certain State agencies.. Pledges of lease rentd
ayments that thé agencies will pay from their
governmental funds secure the bonds. _

At June 30,2003, future debt service
requirements (expressed in thousands) for limited
obligation bonds were:

Governmental Activities
(Internal Service Funds)

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest
2004 $ 3755 $ 1,285
2005 3,930 1,111
2006 4,120 924
2007 4,320 725
2008 1,640 542
2009-2013 6,975 1,612
2014-2018 2,415 151
Total debt service
requirements......c..ccce.e.. 27155 $ 6,350
Unamortized discounts.......... (115)
Total principal
outstanding......cccoeevereenne $ 27,040

The internal service funds pay all debt service
for the lease revenue bonds.

c. Revenue, Tobacco Authority, Infrastructure
Bank, and Other Bonds, Notes, and
Certificates of Participation

_Revenue debt is associated with business-type
activities. Revenue, Tobacco Settlement Revenue
Management Authority  (Tobacco  Authority)
Infrasfructure Bank, and other bonds, notes, an
certificates of participation are not backed by the full
faith, credit, and taxing power of the State. Balances

of these types of debt outstanding (expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 2003, were:

Certificates
of
Bonds Notes Participation

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
Infrastructure Bank bonds, 4.45%
10 6.00%0.....c.ueiiiiiiic s $ 1463582 $ — $ —
Tobacco Authority bonds, 6.00% to
T.666%0......cuecviiiiiiie e 869,870 — —

— 3,565 —

4.59% ..o . — 367 —
Judicial Department note, 3.98%.............. — 270 —
Jobs—Economic Development

Authority notes, 8.75% to 9.00%............. — 25 —
Budget and Control Board internal

service fund bond and notes 3.00%

0 5.00%.....veeceeeeceeeeereeeenee e eeennnenen 26,034 3,168 —

Totals—governmental activities............ 2,359,486 7,395 —

Business-type Activities:
Higher Education Fund bonds and

notes, 3.00% t0 8.50%...........cccceruirninne 304,008 16,556 —
Housing Authority Fund bonds, 1.57% to

8.30%0....eveeeeeeeeee e 555,733 — —
Education Assistance Authorif

bonds, 3.50% t0 6.63%............cccceeevennnnns
Nonmajor enterprise funds:

Nonmajor enterprise fund bonds and

notes, 3.00% t0 8.00%..........ccccevvurrrrerenn 117,542 49,578 —

Direct note obligations, 5.82% to 6.82%. — 97,000 —

Certificates of participation, 7.45%

FC =10 T — — 13,525

Totals—business-type activities........... 1,480,054 163,134 13,525
Totals—primary government............... $ 3,839,540 $ 170,529 $ 13,525

502,771 — —

Major Discretely Presented Com-
ponent Units:
Public Service Authority bonds,
2.50% t0 7.42%0...cccueeeeeeeeeieeiieeeee s $ 2,285448 $ — $ —

State Ports Authority bonds and notes,
1.35% 10 6.20%0.....cccvuvveinriiiiciia $ 146,251 $ 537 $ —

Connector 2000 Association, Inc.
bonds, 5.25% t0 6.30%...........ccceeurenene $ 242177 $ — $ —

Lottery Commission notes, 8.00%............ $ — $ 9725 $ —

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the
Trangportation Infrastructure Bank, reported in the
Local Government Infrastructure  Fund, a major
governmental fund, entered into an interest rate swap
agreement_on its revenue bonds, to maximize
income. The agreement terminates in 2013. Under
this fixed-to-variable interest-rate swap, the Bank
receives a fixed rate of 3.595% semi-annually while
R/layl ng a variable rate monthly based on the TBMA

unicipal SWAP Index. The notional amount for
this agreement is_ $49.440 million. = Through
June 30, 2003, the Bank had interest income of
746thousand  and  interest  expense  of
232 thousand attributabl e to the agreement. i
_Unl\_/erstty Medical Associates of the Medical
University of South Carolina (UMA) is a blended
component unit and nonmajor enterprise fund. UMA
has .issued. severa direct” note obligations, select
auction variable rate securities. In prior ¥ears, UMA
entered into interest-rate swap agreements to modify
interest rates on a 8ort| on its Series 1994, and all of
the 1999A and 1999B direct note obligations in an
effort to convert its variable-rate debt t0 a fixed rate
of 6.82% on the 1994 and 1999A obligations, and
5.82% on the 1999B obligations. These agreements
were required by the municipa bond ‘Insurance
company MBIA] at a time_when UMA was
experiencing operating losses. The note obligations
and related  swap agreements mature on
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May 15, 2024, for the 1994 and 1999A portions and
May 15, 2027, for the 1999B portion. The notiona
amounts as of June 30, 2003, are as follows. Series
1994 obligations—$9.400 million; Series 1999A
obligations—$37.550 million; and_ Series 1999B
obligations—$43.350 million. .= These amounts
agree to the PI‘I ncipal outstanding under the various
issues except Series 1994, which has outstanding
principal of $10.850 million.  Under the swap
agreements, UMA gag/s the counterparty a fixed
interest payment of 6.82% on the 1994 and 1999A
obligations, and 5.82% on the 1999 obligations, and
receives a variable payment based upon the auction
rate every thirty-five days. The variable rates in
effect at "June 30, 2003, were 1.31% for the 1994
obligations, 0.995% for the 1999A obligations, and
0.95% for the 1999B obligations. On May 1,_2000,
these swap agreements were amended to mitigate
adverse income tax consequences to the counterparty
should certain triggering events occur in the future,
resulting in a payment to UMA of $1.850 million for
the remaining lfe of the agreements. UMA has
recorded this amount in deferred revenue and is
amortizing it as a reduction of interest expense over
the terms of the related obligations on the straight-
line method. For the year ended June 30, 2003
interest expense was reduced by amortization of
approximately $77 thousand.  Interest rates have
declined sinCe execution of the swap agreements
resulting in the Mﬁos havi _n? negative fair values of
ag yroximately 433 million™ on  the 1994
obligations, ~ $13.040 million . on_ the 1999A
obligations, and $11.221 million for the 1999B
obligations as of June 30, 2003. The fair value was
estimated using the zero-coupon method. UMA will
be exposed to the risk of fluctuating interest rates of
the variable-rate debt agreements if the swap
agreements are terminated.

In connection with a new loan of
$13.500 million, the Medical University Facilities
Corporation, a _blended component * unit and
nonmajor enterprise fund, entered into an interest-
rate swap agreement to hedge its interest-rate
exposure and establish a fixed-rate_payment. The
swap agreement provides that the Corporation will
pay the swap provider interest on a notional amount
equal to the aggre??ate rincipal amount of the loan
at afixed rate of 3.37% and the swap provider will

the Corporation a variable rate of interest on
such notional amount in an amount sufficient to pay
the variable rate of interest on the loan. The notional
amount, at June 30, 2003, was $13.500 million_and
the variable rate in effect at that date was 1.07%.
The swap agreement provides that the notiona
amount will be reduced in the same amount and at
the same time the principal of the note is scheduled
to be paid upon redemption or maturity. The loan
and the reated S\NaEJ reement ~mature on
January 1, 2013. As of June 30, 2003, the swap had
anegative fair value of $126 thousand. Termination
of the agreement would subject the Corporation to
the risk of fluctuating interest rates. )

As of June 30, 2003, debt_service requirements
of the UMA and the Corporation variable rate debt
and net swap payments (expressed. in thousands),
assuming current interest rates remain the same for
their term, were as follows;

Year Ending Variable Rate Notes Interest Rate
June 30 Principal Interest Swaps, Net Totals

2004 $ 335 $ 995 $ 4,995 $ 9,340
2005 2,750 1,017 4,970 8,737
2006 3,350 988 4,849 9,187
2007 3,445 954 4,701 9,100
2008 3,595 919 4,549 9,063
2009 - 2013 23,760 3,973 20,060 47,793
2014 - 2018 18,500 2,784 14,696 35,980
2019 - 2023 28,900 1,688 8,889 39,477
2024 - 2028 16,200 313 1,616 18,129
Totals.......... $ 103,850 $ 13,631 $ 69,325 $ 186,806

Certain revenue bonds require the individua
business-type activities to provide sufficient revenue
to pay t service, and to fund all necessary
expenses of the activities. The funds that receive the

roceeds of revenue, Tobacco Aduthority
nfrastructure Bank, and other bonds, notes, and
certificates of participation have pledged revenues
for payment of debt service asfollows:

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

Infrastructure Bank bonds: Infrastructure Bank revenues
recorded in the Local Government Infrastructure Fund, a
major governmental fund

Tobacco Authority bonds: tobacco settlement revenues
recorded in the nonmajor governmental funds

Budget and Control Board bonds: loan repayments

Jobs-Economic Development Authority notes: loan
repayments

Business-type Activities:

Higher education bonds, notes, and certificates of
participation: various specific higher education revenues

State Housing Authority bonds: revenues of the Housing
Authority Fund, a major enterprise fund

Education Assistance Authority bonds: loan repayments
and United States Commissioner of Education funds in
the Education Assistance Authority Fund, a major
enterprise fund

Major Discretely Presented Component Units:

Public Service Authority bonds: Public Service Authority
revenues

State Ports Authority bonds: State Ports Authority
revenues

Connector 2000 Association, Inc., bonds: toll revenues

Lottery Commission notes: lottery revenues

For its businesstype activities, the State
separately identifies amounts of pledged revenues
available at June 30, 2003, in the Statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net assets
for proprietary funds. ,

At June 30,2003, future debt service
recll)urements (expressed in thousands) for revenue,
Tobacco Authority, Infrastructure Bank, and other
bonds, notes, and certificates of participation of the
primary government were as follows:
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Primary Government
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2004 $ 28,370 $ 132,773 $ 124,187 $ 73,139

2005 29,185 131,346 52,307 72,793

2006 34,716 129,743 77,737 69,500

2007 37,087 127,927 36,626 67,260

2008 45,847 125,892 70,985 64,582

2009 - 2013 313,455 584,706 335,740 275,114

2014 - 2018 359,605 483,346 271,444 211,629

2019 - 2023 399,575 382,182 344,633 145,987

2024 - 2028 577,015 245,402 180,130 76,141

2029 - 2033 487,625 66,027 148,550 27,545

2034 - 2038 46,975 1,174 26,900 1,947

Total debt service

requirements........ccoccecccniennns 2,359,455 $ 2,410,518 1,669,239 $ 1,085,637
Unamortized premiums(discounts)... 7,426 (3,345)
Deferred amount on refunding......... — (9,181)
Total principal outstanding......... $ 2,366,881 $ 1,656,713

The fiscal year for the Public Service Authority
ends December 31 while the fiscal year for the State
Ports Authority ends June 30. oth entities are
major discret 2% Bresented component units. At
December 31, 2002, the carrying value of the Public
Service Authority's debt was $2.544 billion while
the fair value was approximately $3.000 billion. At
June 30, 2003, the carrying_value of the State Ports
Authority debt was $148.375 million while the fair
value was approximately $148.513 million. The fair
values were estimated using current rates available
to the entities for similar borrowin arrangements
and on the market rate of comparabletraded debt. .

At June 30,2003, future debt service
re(%uwements (expressed in thousands) for bonds and
notes of the State's major discretely presented
component units were asfollows:

Major Component Units
Public Service Authority Connector 2000 Assoc.

Year Ending December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2003 $ 81,740 $ 127,089 $ — $ 3,532
2004 71,270 128,620 —_ 3,532
2005 76,825 124,604 —_ 3,532
2006 74,925 120,750 —_ 3,532
2007 70,990 116,802 —_ 3,532
2008 - 2012 393,505 525,385 38,200 17,040
2013 - 2017 518,125 396,509 61,300 15,557
2018 - 2022 654,715 241,981 93,700 13,651
2023 - 2027 197,300 119,129 128,800 11,190
2028 - 2032 204,070 73,722 169,400 7,914
2033 - 2037 176,550 23,683 197,000 3,655
2038 - 2042 — — 57,700 113
Total debt service
requirements.......cceeeececiciccns 2,520,015 $ 1,998,274 746,100 $ 86,780
Unamortized premiums (discounts)... 15,958 (503,923)
Deferred amount on refunding.......... (250,525) —
Total principal outstanding.......... $ 2,285,448 $ 242,177
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Major Component Units
State Ports Authority Lottery Commission

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2004 $ 2,842 3 6,570 $ 6,275 $ 603
2005 3,385 6,464 1,233 231
2006 3,025 6,330 1,335 129
2007 3,155 6,199 882 25
2008 18,585 27,095 — —
2009 - 2013 24,235 22,546 — —
2014 - 2018 11,550 15,589 — —
2019 - 2023 54,135 6,462 — —
2024 - 2028 — 1,375 — —
2029 - 2033 25,000 275 — —
Total debt service
requirements.......ccoocceveeeneens 145912 $ 98,905 9725 $ 988
Unamortized premium................. 876 —
Total principal outstanding... $ 146,788 $ 9,725

Borrowing is essential to the continuation of
programs associated with certain entities reported
within the primary government’s governmental
activities. The primary government reported interest
expense during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003,
in governmental functions for these entities as
follows (expressed in thousands):

Amount
General government............c.eveeeeens $ 58,571
Transportation...........coceeevueeeeeennnees 106,648

Total allocated interest expense.. $ 165,219

The amount. shown above in the genera
government function relates to bonds that a blended
component unit issued.

d. Bond Anticipation Notes

At June 30, 2003, $28.025 million in short-term
revenue bond anticipation notes were outstanding in
the Higher Education Fund, a mzi\ior enterprise fund.
These hotes are due on or before June 30, 2004.

e. Defeased Bonds

During . August 2002, the = State issued
$27.895 million in genera obligation State capital
improvement refunding bonds with an average
interest rate of 2.07% fo refund $26.900 million of
general obligation. State capital, improvement
refunding bonds with an average interest rate of
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5.80%. The net proceeds of $27.828 million,
including $23 thousand in premiums (after payment
of $90 thousand in issuance costs), were used to
purchase United States government securities. The
advance refunding resulied in a difference between
the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount
of the old debt of $928 thousand. This difference,
reported in the accompanying financia statements as
a deduction from bonds payable, is being charged to
operations through the year 2005 on a straight-line
basis. The bonds were refunded to reduce total debt
service payments over the next three years by
approximately $1.004 million and to obtain an
economic gain (difference between the present
values of the old and new debt service payments) of
approximately $981 thousand. _
During ~ June2003, the _ State issued
$31.440 million in g_eneral obligation State capital
improvement refunding bonds with an average
interest rate of 2.58% to refund $30.250 million of
general obligation, State capital improvement bonds
with an average interest rate of 4.72%. = The net
roceeds of $32.099 million includin
%7339 thousand _ in _ premiums éafter payment O
0 thousand in _issuance costs) were used to
purchase United States government securities, The
advance refunding resulied in a difference between
the reacquisition price and the net carr_ylr&gf amount
of the old debt of $1.849 million. This difference,
reported in the accompanying financia statements as
a deduction from bonds payable, is being charged to
operations through the year 2009 on a straight-line
basis. The bonds were refunded to reduce total debt
service payments over the next six years by
approximately $1.659 million and to obtain an
economic gain of approximately $1.582 million.
During. June2003, the Depatment of
Transportation Specia. Revenue Fund, .a major
governmental _ fund, issued $46.080 million “in
general obligation State hlfghway refunding bonds to
refund $39.675 million of geneéral obligation State
highw _bonds. Thé net proceeds of
340 million  including  $669 thousand = in
premiums (after payment of $409thousand in
Issuance costs) were Used to purchase United States
government Securities.  The advance refunding
resulted in a difference between the reacquisition
ggce and the net carryi ndq amount of the old debt of
709 millijon.  This difference, reported in the
accompanying financia statements as a deduction
from bonds payable, is being charged to operations
through the year 2005 on a Straight line basis. The
bonds were refunded to reduce total debt service
payments over the next eighteen years by
approximately $2.550 million and to Obtain an
economic gain of approximately $2.230 million.
. During July 2002, the College of Charleston,
included in the Higher Education’ major enterprise
fund, .issued $12.840 million in higher education
facilities revenue refunding bonds with an average
interest rate of 4.87% to refund $12.600 million of
housing and auxiliary facilities revenue refunding
bonds with an average interest rate of 5.60%. The
net proceeds of $12.736 million (after payment of
% thousand in issuance costs) plus an additiona
83 thousand from College funds were used to
purchase United States government securities, The
advance refunding resulted in a difference between
the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount

of the old debt of $109 thousand. This difference,
reported in the accompanying financia statements as
a deduction from bonds payable, is being charged to
operations through the year 2012, Thebonds were
refunded to reduce total debt service gayments_ over
the next ten years by approximately $1.950 million
and to obtain an economic gain of approximately
$1.750 million. _ _ _

During February 2003, The Citadel, included in
the Higher Education major enterprise fund, issued
$3.150million in athletic. facilities revenue
refunding bonds with a fixed interest rate of 4.19%
to refund $3.000 million of athletic facilities revenue
bonds with a fixed interest rate of 4.07%. While the
current refundi n? resulted in an increase in total debt
service payments over the next fifteen years of

1.186 million _and . an economic loss of
$138 thousand, The Citadel converted a short-term,
interest-only  credit instrument into a fuII%
amor_tlzmgi_flfteen ear ingtrument. This approac
Proylded he Citadel maximum ongoing flexibility
or its evolving athletic facilities finance plan.

During itsfiscal year ended December 31, 2002,
the PubliC Service ‘Authority, a major discretely
presented component unit, issued $108.035 million
in refunding revenue bonds with an average interest
rale of 5.:396% to refund $113.380 million in
revenue bonds with an average interest rate of
6.323%. The current refunding resulted in a
difference between the reacquisition price and the
net carrying amount of the old debt of
$23.378 million,. This difference, reported in the
accompanying financial statements as a deduction
from bonds payable, is being charged to operations
through the yéar 2021 using the effective-interest
method.  Thé bonds were refunded to reduce tota
debt service payments over the next twenty years by
approximately “$15.100 million and to obtain an
economic gain of approximately $8.600 million.

Also ~ durin its _ fiscad  year ended
December 31, 2002, the Public Service Authorit
issued $440.760 million in refunding revenue bonds
with an average interest rate of 4.985% to refund
$477.145 million in revenue bonds with an average
interest rate of 5.353%. The net proceeds were used
to purchase United States government securities.
The advance refunding restlted in a difference
between the reacquisition price and the net carr¥| ng
amount of the old debt of $73.613 million. This
difference, reported in the accompanying financial
statements as a deduction from bonds payable, is
being charged to operations through the year 2021
using the effective-interest method.” The bonds were
refunded to reduce total debt service payments over
the next _twenté/ years by approximately
$82.000 million and to obtain an”economic gain of
approximately $34.800 million.

In addition, during prior years the State defeased
certain_general obligalion and other bonds. For
those defeasances involving advance refundings, the
State placed the proceeds of the new bonds in
irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt
service payments on the old bonds. Accord!ngtly,
the State has not recorded the defeased bonds inthe
accom an%ln financial  statements. A
June 30, 2003, the following outstanding bonds of
the primary government (expressed in thousands)
were considered defeased:
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Business- Totals—

Governmental type Primary
Activities Activities Government
Capital improvement bonds...... $ 30,250 $ — $ 30,250
State highway bonds................ 39,675 — 39,675
Higher Education Fund bonds.. — 89,262 89,262
TOtalS v $ 69,925 $ 89,262 $ 159,187

In addition, at December 31, 2002,
$489.490 million of bonds associated with the
Public Service Authority, a maor discretely
&r;f%eneaste%d component Unit, were considered

f. Arbitrage Rebate Payable

The Internal Revenue Code and arbitrage
regulations issued by the Interna Revenue Service
require rebate to thé federal government of excess
investment_ earnings on bond proceedsiif the yield on
those earnings exceeds the effective yield on the
related tax-exempt bonds issued. ~ The Local
Government  Infrastructure _ Fund (a2 _ maor

overnmental fund), the Education Assistance

uthority Fund (a 'major enterprise fund), and a
unlyerst¥ reported in the Higher Education Fund (a
major enterprise fund) have incurred arbitrage rebate
ligbilities in connection with student [oan and
revenue bonds sold in previous years. Arbitrage
rebates l0 able a June 30, 2003, are reported as
other  liabilities of $611 thousand in the Local
Government Infrastructure Fund, as other liabilities
payable from restricted assets of $16.319 million and
other liabilities of $1.691 million in the Education
Assistance Authority Fund, and as other liabilities of
$29 thousand in the'Higher Education Fund.

g. Conduit Debt

State law authorizes issuance of certain bonds
for which the State assumes no responsibility for
repayment. These bonds, therefore, do not appéar as
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

The Educational FacilitieS Authority, reported in
the Genera Fund, issues bonds to asSist nonprofit
educational ingtitutions that do not recelve State
appropriations in the acquisition, construction, and
financing of facilities for educational programs. The
bonds are payable soldy from, and seCured by, a
lease agreement on_ the facilities between "the
AU'[hOl‘I'[P/ and the ingtitution. When the bonds have
been fully paid, the Authority conveys the title for
the facility to the indtitution. ~ At June 30, 2003, the
outstanding. balance of bonds issued was
$172.399 million. , _

The Jobs-Economic Development Authority, a
nonmajor governmental fund, issues indugtria
revenue bonds to develop and benefit business
enterprises.  The bonds are payable solely by
revenues of the business enterprise and generally are
secur an irrevocable letter of credit. © At
June 30, 2003, the outstanding balance of bonds
issued after June 30, 1995, was $2.714 hillion. The
original amount of bonds issued prior to that date is
not available.

The Housing Authority Fund, a mgjor enterprise
fund, issues certain mortgage loan notes and housing
revenue bonds for developers to construct moderate
to low income housing projects. The bonds are

able solely from ~housing rental payments
received by thé developer and generally are Secured
by an irrevocable letter of credit or bond insurance.
At June 30, 2003, the outstanding balance of bonds
issued was $246.698 million.

h. Resources Authority Debt

~Inprior years, the Resources Authori'gl, reported
in the Genéral Fund, issued bonds and ‘used the
proceeds to purchase _obligations of loca
governmental entities. The [oca governmental
entities used the proceeds received from_ the
Authority to fund water and sewer projects. Periodic
rincipal and interest _Payments received from the
ocal governmental entities are used by the Authority
to refire its own debt. The debt “issued hy the
Authority is not a debt of the State and is not
recorded in the accompanying financial statements.
The Authority's outstanding debt at June 30, 2003,
was $8.005 million. Effective October 1994, the
General Assembly enacted legidation that prohibits
the Authority from issuing bonds except to refund
bonds previcudly issued.

Beglnmglg in fiscal year 1993-1994, one loca
overnmental” entity has been unable to meet its
Inancial  obligation under the terms of a
$5.025 million “revenue bond that the Authority
purchased. In June 1990, when the loca
overnmental entity issued its debt, it estimated that
e related sewer project would be completed and
operational by calendar year 1992. = Revenue
generated by fhe sewer sysiem is pledged for_ debt
retirement. "The State paid a total of $3.407 million
in the 1993-1994 through 2001-2002 fiscal years,
and $420 thousand in the 2002-2003 fiscal year to
the Authority to offset the loss of revenues from the
delln%uent local entity. The State has appropriated
$400 thousand in the’2003-2004 fisca year for use,
if needed, to offset the loss of revenues from the
delinquent local entity.

i. Commercial Paper Notes and Letters of Credit

_Note14 Changes in Liabilities, dicsjplays the
activity of commercial paper notes and lines of
credit “during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003,
including beginning and énding balances ?]f any%)as
well as”al "draws and repayments. The Public
Service Authority presents its outstanding amounts
as commercial paper notes, but al other amounts
outstanding on lines of credit at June 30, 2003, are
reported. as notes payable. Other relevant
lbr(]el ormation regarding these accounts is provided
ow.

The Medical University Hospital, Authority, a
blended component unit and nonmaor enterprise
fund, has an agreement with a commercial bank for
working capitad lines. of credit totaling
ﬁﬁ)proxmately $24.500 million. . The Universit

edical Associates of the Medical University g
South Carolina (UMA), a blended component”unit
and nonmajor enterprise fund, has a line of credit
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shared by two financial ingtitutions with a maximum
borrowi ngFllljml_t of $15,500 million, ,

The blic Service Authority, a discretely
presented component unit, has a $400.000 million
revolving credit agreement to support its issuance of
commerCia papel notes, with terms not to exceed
270 days, for valid corporate purposes.

The Ports Authority, a discretely presented
component unit, has a $10.000 million révolving line
of credit from acommercia bank.

j- Connector 2000 Association's Bonds

The Connector 2000 Association (the
Association) is one of the State's major discretel
%{esented component units. In early January 2003,

andard & Poor’'s downgraded the Association's
toll road revenue bonds_ to {unk status _gB-mlr]us
ratmg??after the Association tapped into its Senior
Debt Reserve fund in order to pay the interest due
January 1, 2003, on one_ of the bond issues.
According to the Association’s bond attorney, the
Association’s use of reserve funds to meet itS debt
service obligation does not constitute a default under

the bond indenture.

k. Subsequent Events

Since June 30, 2003, the State has issued bonds
and notes as indicated in the table below (expressed
in thousands).

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Description Activities Activities
Revenue bonds........c.cocevevenne $ 368,300 $ 182,940
General obligation bonds...... 158,760 30,000

Revenue bond anticipation

— 32,700

Revenue notes 1,800 9,500

Totals $ 528,860 $ 255,140
Component Units

Revenue Commerical

Description Bonds Paper Notes

Public Service Authority.......... $ 335,030 $ 48,879

_ Of the total general obli%ation bonds that the
primary government issued, $156.560 million of the
governmental activities bonds were to refund_prior
issues. Of the total revenue bonds that the primary

overnment issued, all of the governmental activities

onds and $8.150 million of the business-type
activities bonds were to refund prior issues. All of
the revenue bonds issued by the Public Service
Authority, a magjor discretely” presented component
unit, wereto refund prior issues.

NOTE 14: CHANGESIN
LIABILITIES

a. Long-Term Liabilities

Changes in mgjor classes of long-term liabilities
expr in thousands) for the fiscal year ended
une 30, 2003, were:
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Amounts
Balances at Balances at Due Within
July 1, 2002 Increases Decreases June 30, 2003 One Year
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities
Policy Claims.........ccoverrrirciceccrcccne $ 417,127 $ 1,187,250 $ (1,125,821) $ 478,556 $ 436,936
Notes payable..........ccooviciiiiiciciiiin, $ 4398 $ 7,700 $ (4,703) $ 739 $ 1,035
General obligation bonds payable.............. $ 2,199,898 $ 305,415 $ (268,172) $ 2,237,141 % 164,530
Unamortized discounts and premiums........ 4,231 5,642 295 10,068 —
Deferred amount on refunding................... — (8,486) 484 (8,002) —
Total general obligation bonds payable.... $ 2,204,129 $ 302,471 $ (267,393) $ 2,239,207 $ 164,530
Tobacco Authority bonds payable............. $ 902,920 $ — $ (33,050) $ 869,870 $ —
Revenue bonds payable............ccccceeeenen. $ — $ 24,705 $ — $ 24,705 $ 1,140
Unamortized discounts and premiums........ — 1,375 (46) 1,329 —
Total revenue bonds payable................... $ — $ 26,080 $ (46) $ 26,034 $ 1,140
Infrastructure Bank bonds payable............ $ 1,192,730 $ 285,195 $ (20,440) $ 1,457,485 $ 26,195
Unamortized discounts and premiums........ 316 5,781 — 6,097 —
Total Infrastructure Bank bonds payable. $ 1,193,046 $ 290,976 $ (20,440) $ 1,463,582 $ 26,195
Limited obligation bonds payable................ $ 30,730 $ — $ (3575) $ 27,155 $ 3,755
Unamortized discounts and premiums........ (133) — 18 (115) —
Total limited obligation bonds payable....... $ 30597 $ — $ (3,557) $ 27,040 $ 3,755
Capital leases payable.........c.cccccoenerrenennn. $ 8,185 $ 1,374 $ (5,453) $ 4,106 $ 850
Compensated absences payable............... $ 192,224 $ 116,234 $ (118,877) $ 189,581 $ 132,141
National Guard Pension System net
pension obligation payable........................ $ 6,525 $ 626 $ — $ 7151 $ —
Judgments and contingencies payable...... $ 14516 $ 37813 $ (16,891) $ 35438 $ 34,330
Arbitrage payable..........ccccoeeeinennnenens $ — $ 874 $ (263) $ 611 $ 611

_The National Guard Pension System net pension
obligation payable, judgments and contingencies
Io% le, and arbitrage payable are included in other
iabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

The ag%|over_nmental fund that pays an_employee's
sdary dso is responsible for” liquidating’. the
employee’'s related compensated absence liability.
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Amounts
Balances at Balances at Due Within
July 1, 2002 Increases Decreases June 30, 2003 One Year
Primary Government:
Business-type Activities
Policy ClaimS........cccevviriiieiccceeeceeece $ 202,652 $ 49,367 $ (41,707) $ 210,312 $ 35,000
Notes payable........cccceieriiniiieie e $ 143,688 $ 21,191 % (16,198) $ 148,681 $ 14,694
Deferred amount on refunding................... (1,097) — 50 (1,047) —
Total notes payable...........ccceevrneciennns $ 142591 $ 21,191 $ (16,148) $ 147,634 $ 14,694
General obligation bonds payable.............. $ 134,235 $ 84,000 $ (9,360) $ 208,965 $ 10,120
Unamortized discounts and premiums........ — 3 — 3 —
Total general obligation bonds payable.... $ 134235 $ 84,093 $ (9,360) $ 208,968 $ 10,120
Revenue bonds payable...........cccccccevrreeneene $ 1,430,583 $ 139,920 $ (78,970) $ 1,491,533 % 81,990
Deferred amount on refunding................... (9,042) — 908 (8,134) —
Unamortized discounts and premiums........ (4,159) 145 669 (3,345) —
Total revenue bonds payable................... $ 1,417,382 $ 140,065 $ (77,393) $ 1,480,054 $ 81,990
Certificates of participation payable........... $ 18,036 $ — $ (4511) $ 13525 $ 13,525
Capital leases payable.........c..cccccerrurrnnnee $ 46,633 $ 26,317 $ (7,505) $ 65,445 $ 10,496
Compensated absences payable............... $ 98,019 $ 54,713 $ (53,343) $ 99,389 $ 55,437
Judgments and contingencies payable...... $ — $ 1,266 $ (316) $ 950 $ 950
Arbitrage payable...........cccoooiiiini $ 29,669 $ 6 $ (11,646) $ 18,039 $ 540
Major Component Units:
Public Service Authority
Revenue bonds payable.............c....ccoc.e. $ 2,257,990 $ 921,710 $ (659,685) $ 2,520,015 $ 81,740
Deferred amount on refunding................... (233,602) (96,990) 80,067 (250,525) —
Unamortized discounts and premiums....... (35,101) 41,362 9,697 15,958 —
Total revenue bonds payable................... $ 1,089,287 $ 866,082 $ (569,921) $ 2,285,448 $ 81,740
Capital leases payable..............cccccocveninne. $ 26,932 $ — $ (2,654) $ 24,278 $ 2,762
Compensated absences payable............... $ 12,193 $ 1,948 $ (1,212) $ 12,929 $ —
Other liabilities (ClAIMS)........ccoveveereeceiirines $ 1426 $ 1574 $ (1,434) $ 1,566 $ 1,566
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Amounts
Balances at Balances at Due Within
July 1, 2002 Increases Decreases June 30, 2003 One Year
Major Component Units:
State Ports Authority
Notes payable............cccoooviiiiinis $ 316 $ 422 $ (201) $ 537 $ 57
Revenue bonds payable..............cocoeenenne $ 148,050 $ — $ (2,675) $ 145375  $ 2,785
Unamortized discounts and premiums....... 922 — (46) 876 —

Total revenue bonds payable................... $ 148,972 $ — $ (2,721) $ 146,251 $ 2,785
Capital leases payable.................coeeenins $ 117 $ — $ (33 $ 84 $ 38
Compensated absences payable............... $ 2,051 $ 1,987 $ (1,914) $ 2124 $ 2,124

Connector 2000 Association, Inc.
Revenue bonds payable...........c.cccoceeiiennne. $ 746,100 $ — $ — $ 746,100 $ —
Unamortized discounts and premiums........ (514,122) — 10,199 (503,923) —
Total revenue bonds payable................... $ 231,978 $ — $ 10,199 $ 242,177  $ —
Lottery Commission
Notes payable.........ccccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiicie $ 10,589 $ — $ (864) $ 9,725 $ 6,275
Compensated absences payable............... $ 334 $ 830 $ (380) $ 784 $ 270
b. Short-Term Debt Education Fund, a mgor enterprise fund;
g\orpﬁertual paper antegt ell n the I?gdllc Servi C(te
) : : . utnori a maor discre presented componen
: Thg StgteAst.HJther Eﬂuﬁtfﬂ‘“ on A:,l\llréd _sor;detl mes unit; and letters of credit in _%/he nonmajor enterprise
ISsues bond Antcipation Notes ) in advance funds. Short-term debt activity during the fiscal 'year
of issuing bonds. Short-term debt for the fiscal year (expressed in thousands) was as follows:

ended June 30, 2003, included: BANS in the Higher
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Balances at Balances at
July 1, 2002 Increases Decreases June 30, 2003
Primary Government:
Business-type Activities
General obligation bond anticipation notes payable....... $ 8,400 $ 8,400 $ (16,800) $ _
Revenue bond anticipation notes payable..................... $ 16,400 $ 37,425 $ (25,800) $ 28,025
Notes payable (letters of credit)..........ccccevvviiveeeeininnnenn. $ 14625 $ 66,734 $ (65,859) $ 15,500
Major Component Unit:
Public Service Authority
Commercial paper NOLES. .........covreeirrieeeeee e seaneas $ 308,965 $ 303,177 % (308,965) $ 303,177

NOTE 15 RESERVATIONSAND
DESIGNATIONS OF
FUND BALANCESIN
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS

Reserved components of fund balances represent
amounts in governmental funds that are legally

segregated or that the State cannot appropriate.
Designated portions of unreserved fund balances
reflect tentative plans for future use of available
financial resources.

The unreserved component of fund balance
equals the total fund balance |ess reserved amounts.

At June 30, 2003, the following amounts of fund
balance in governmental funds (expressed in
thousands) were reserved:
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Depart-
Depart- Local ment of Nonmajor Total
mental Govern- Transporta- State Govern- Govern-
General ment Infra- tion Special Tobacco mental mental
General Operating structure Revenue Settlement Funds Funds
Fund balances reserved for:
Interfund receivables.........ccoccvuen... $ 5,146 $ 400 $ 226,523 $ — $ 2,250 $ 419 $ 234,738
Appropriations to be carried
forward .......ccoveevveeeeeecieceeee e 45,689 — — — — — 45,689
Endowment and similar funds ....... — — — — — 1,834 1,834
Long-term loans and notes
receivable ..., 6 536 298,394 8,733 — 15,130 322,799
Debt requirements — — 969,207 82 — 117,521 1,086,810
School building aid 7,141 — — — — 3,841 10,982
Total reserved fund
balances......ceieiiinirssieeinns $ 57,982 $ 936 $ 1,494,124 $ 8,815 $ 2,250 $ 138,745 $ 1,702,852

The fallowing  subsections contain further
descriptive information refgardm the reserved and
designated components of fund ba ance.

a. Reserved

Reserved for Interfund Receivables and
Reserved for Long-Term Loans and Notes
Receivable

Long-term loans and notes receivable and long-
term inferfund recelvables are assets that do not
represent  expendable  available  resources.
Governmental ~ funds, therefore, reserve a
corresponding portion of fund balance.

Reserved for Appropriations to be Carried
Forward

The General Fund does not use encumbrance
accounting. It uses the reserve for appropriations to
be carried forward, however, if the Generd
Assembllg has authorized the carry-forward of

u

Genera Fund appropriations to the next fiscal year.
Reserved for Endowment and Similar Funds

This reserve recognizes restrictions on donated
resources.

Reserved for Debt Requirements

When financing agreements or bond indentures
require a reservation, the State records an amount as
reserved for debt requirements.

Reserved for School Building Aid

_If the State promises to pay a schoal district to
build. school buildings or to Tretire debt on such
buildings, it records” an amount as reserved for
school building aid. The State has recorded such
amounts, which are not available for appropriation
:c n |és General Fund and its nonmajor governmental
unds.

b. Designated, Reported in Special Revenue
Funds

The total designated amount reported on the
governmental funds balance sheet for nonmagjor
ecia revenue funds is designated for scholarships.
he amount is for the Téacher Loan Program,
reported within the nonmgor governmental funds.
This program makes loans to Students. The State
cancels 20.0% to 33.0% of the loan for each year
that the borrower teaches in a critica-need area.
Borrowers who do not teach in such an area,
however, must repay their loans.

c. Designated, Reported in the Capital Projects
Fund

The total designated amount reported on the
overnmental funds balance sheet for the State's
apital Projects Fund, a nonmgjor governmental

fund, is designated for capital expenditures.
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NOTE 16: INTERFUND
BALANCESAND
TRANSFERS

The following tables summarize

interfund

balances at June 30, 2003 (expressed in thousands):

Due
Description From/To
Receivable fund: General
Payable funds:
Departmental General Operating...........ccccvevevvernnnnns 32,483
Higher Education 362
Unemployment Compensation.. 12,028
Internal service 10
Other.... 5,870
Receivable fund: Departmental General Operating
Payable funds:
GENEIAL ...eviiiiii e 13,854
Department of Transportation Special Revenue. 53
State Tobacco Settlement 9
105
1,068
Receivable fund: Local Government Infrastructure
Payable funds:
GENEIAL ...eviiiiieie e 5,374
Department of Transportation Special Revenue....... 2,954
Receivable fund: Department of Transportation
Special Revenue Fund
Payable funds:
General 879
2,325
151
Receivable fund: Higher Education
Payable funds:
General 5,068
Departmental General Operating 6,362
Department of Transportation Special Revenue. 55
Housing Authority 2
Internal service 2
20,199
Receivable fund: Unemployment Compensation
Payable funds:
General 9
Departmental General Operating.. 2
3
Receivable funds: Internal Service
Payable funds:
General 8,504
Departmental General Operating 3,845
Local Government Infrastructure 1
Department of Transportation Special Revenue. 2
State Tobacco Settlement... 1
Higher Education. 1,753
Housing Authority... 25
Internal service 275
28,166
1,132

Due
Description From/To
Receivable funds: Fiduciary
Payable funds:
GENEIAL ..eviii et $ 30,928
Departmental General Operating 14,604
Local Government Infrastructure 12
Department of Transportation Special Revenue. 10,272
State Tobacco Settlement 4
Higher Education 2,841
Fiduciary. 599
Internal service 1,277
Other ..o 941
Receivable funds: Other
Payable Funds:

GENEIAL ...evii et 4,828
Departmental General Operating............cccccveeeveenneen. 1,411
Department of Transportation Special Revenue....... 4
Higher Education 14,727
Internal service. 429
2,149

TotalS ... $ 237,957

. Amounts due from/to funds resulted from
interfund goods and services _provided or
reimbursable expenditures/expenses incurred on or
before June 30 for which payment was

received/made after June 30.
Interfund
Receivables Long-term
Description Payables Portion
Receivable fund: General
Payable funds:
Departmental General Operating.. $ 3,889 $ —
Higher Education 931 830
5,734 4,316
230 —
Receivable fund: Departmental General Operating
Payable funds:
9,466 —
400 400
150 —
Receivable fund: Local Government Infrastructure
Payable funds:
GeNETAL....iiiiiiiiiiiiiicc 72 72
Department of Transportation Special Revenue....... 235,451 226,451
Receivable fund: State Tobacco Settlement
Payable funds: Local Govt Infrastructure.................. 3,000 2,250
Receivable fund: Housing Authority
Payable funds: Other...........ccccoooiiiiiiiciinis 4,950 200
Receivable funds: Internal Service
Payable funds:
Departmental General Operating.. 2,000 2,000
Local Government Infrastructur 3,500 —
Internal service.. 1,334 978
38,458 37,132
Receivable funds: Other
Payable Funds:
Departmental General Operating............c.coceeveeerenas 296 256
Higher Education... 20,954 20,954
Internal servic 163 163
Other...... 1,000 —

$ 331,978 $ 296,002
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The preceding _interfund receivables and
ayables generdly include loans for building
improvements, economic development initiatives,
and initial funding for new programs. Additional
balances include the following:

e $235.451 million owed by the Department of
Transportation Specia Revenue Fund, a major
overnmental fund, to the Local Government
nfrastructure Fund, a major governmental fund.
The Department of Transportation has entered
into various agreements to provide assistance for
highway and™ transportation facilities projects
being constructed by the Local Government
Infrastructure Fund.

e $15494 million owed = by the nonmajor
enterprise funds to the internal service funds.
The nonmajor enterprise funds lent the money
received to a county for infrastructure within a
residential devel opment.

e $22.357 million owed by the nonmajor
overnmental funds to the internal service funds.
he nonmajor governmental funds borrowed the

money to purchase and _renovate new
headqbu_arters facilities for the State Department
of Public Safety.

e $20.954 million owed by the Medical University
of South Carolina reported within the Higher
Education Fund, a ma*or enterprise fund, to the
nonmajor enterprise funds, in relation to an
internal leasing arrangement.

The following table summarizes interfund
transfers during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003
(expressed in thousands):

Transfers
Description/Fund(s) From/To
Transfers from the General Fund
Transfers to:
Departmental General Operating............c.ccooveveeinnns $ 62,288
Local Government Infrastructure...........cccveveveernens 3,554
Department of Transportation Special Revenue....... 444
State Tobacco Settlement.................ccccooeee 6,757
Higher Education................. 731,386
Unemployment Compensation. 40
Internal service.........cccceeveeeennnnns 2,865
Fiduciary............... 2,770
[ 1 =T SRS 68,595
Transfers from Departmental General Operating
Transfers to:
General.......ccocciiiiiii s 15,323
Higher EdUCALION. ........cccoveiiiiiiicieciccccceis 730
Internal service...... 1,132
[ 1 =T SRS 3,928
Transfers from Local Government Infrastructure
Transfers to:
GENETAL...eiiiiiiiice e 827
Departmental General Operating.. 460
State Tobacco Settlement............cccceveiiiiiiniicicnnn. 1
Transfer from Department of Transportation
Special Revenue
Transfer to:
GeNeral.......ccocuiiiiiii s 10,320

Transfers
Description/Fund(s) From/To
Transfers from State Tobacco Settlement
Transfers to:
GENEIAL ...t $ 4,002
Departmental General Operating 50
INternal SErVICE. ......coceeeiiiiiieeeee e 197
Transfers from Higher Education
Transfers to:
GeNeral.......cocviiiiiiii s 7,039
10,212
2,832
Transfer from Unemployment Compensation
Transfer to General..........ccccovveeviiiceeiiinieececee 979
Transfer from Housing Authority
Transfer to General...........coccoeeieiiieeeniee e 1,635
Transfers from Internal Service
Transfers to:
GeNeral.......ccocviiiiiiii s 32,071
Departmental General Operating 7,707
Internal service...........cc.ccocviiivnnnne 355
Other. ..o 1,090
Transfers from Fiduciary
Transfers to:
GENETAL ... 597
FiduCiary.........ccooooiiiiiiiiiiii s 1,580
Transfers from Other
Transfers to:
GeNeral.....c.cocviiiiiiii s 132,087
Departmental General Operating..............ccooveveeinns 25,411
Higher EduCation.............c.cooevviiiiiniiii s 97,957
INternal SErVICE. .......occeeeiiiriieiee e 3,005
FIAUCTANY ..o 597
Other. .o, 10,454
TOMAIS .o $ 1,251,277

The State uses transfers to E)l) move revenues
from the fund that statute or budget requires to
collect them to the fund that staiute or budget
requires to expend them, (2) move State grant
monies from grantor funds to” grantee funds,” and
§3) transfer bond proceeds from the capita projects
und to other funds authorized to execute the
yrojects.  The following is_a listing of significant
i.e,, $5.000 million or more) transfers that occurred
during the fisca year ended June 30, 2003, that
either” (@) were non-routine or ﬁ) were inconsistent
¥Vlthsfthe normal activities of thé fund making the
ransfer:

 An amount of $6.758 million was transferred
from the Genera Fund to the Tobacco
Settlement Fund, a major governmental fund, as
required by Proviso 60.7 of the 2002-2003
Appropriations Act to supplement funding of
health-related programs.

* Provisos 72.97 and 72.98 of the 2002-2003
Appropriations Act redirected funds to the
Genera Fund for operating expenditures of that
fund.  The following table summarizes these
transfers during the fisca year ended
June 30, 2003 (expressed in thousands):
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Fund Amount

Departmental General Operating.......... $ 4,767
Local Government Infrastructure.......... 827
Department of Transportation

Special Revenue............ccccceevvnnnne 5,381
State Tobacco Settlement.................... 2
Higher Education..............cccccccieiiinnn. 6,966
Housing AUthOrity.........cccovveeviiireeniinnns 18
Internal Service...........cccvvvveiviiiinecinnn. 30,004
FidUuCiary........coooveeieniiiecee e 597
Other. ..o 67,331

TOLAIS et $ 115,893

NOTE 17: REVENUESAND
EXPENDITURESOR
EXPENSES

a. Proprietary Fund Revenues—Allowances and
Discounts

In the financial statements, the State presents its
revenues net of allowances for uncollectible
accounts receivable and contractua adjustments.
Note 6 reports these allowances. ] )

Scholarship allowances in the Higher Education
Fund represent the sum of differénces between
stated charges for goods and services provided to
students and amounts hilled to students and/or third
Partle_s making payments on behalf of students. For
he fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, scholarship
allowances "reduced the revenues of the Higher
Education . Fund by the following amounts
(expressed in thousands):

Scholarship

Allowances

Charges for senices..................... $ 201,739
Operating revenues pledged for

revenue bonds...........ccoeeeeininnnnn. 16,283

Other operating revenues.............. 15,267

Total oo $ 233,289

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the
State’'s  nonmajor ° enterprise  funds  presented
$172.294 million included in net charges for services
and $535.211 million included in “net operating
revenues pledged for revenue bonds after reductions
for the following _applicable discounts and
allowances (expressed in thousands):

Provision for

Contractual Provision for
and Other Uncollectible
Adjustments Accounts
Charges for senices.................... $ 177,597 $ —
Operating revenues pledged for
revenue bonds............coeeevevennnnn. 305,555 37,468
TotalS....uuueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiereeeees $ 483,152 $ 37,468

b. Extraordinary and Special Items

Extraordi nag items generally are transactions or
other events that are both unusua in nature and
infrequent in occurrence.  However, gt;enerally
accepted accounting principles require that the State
report any gans or losses on the ealy
extinguishrnent of debt, other than refundings, in ifs
proprietary funds as extraordinary. even if hegt do
not meet” the preceding  description. The State
reports significant transactions or other events within
the contrdl of management that are either unusual in
nature or infrequent in occurrence as special items.
The State recorded the extraordinary item and
special item described below in both its government-
wide and fund financia statements for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2003.

Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment of
Debt

_The $538 thousand extraordinary loss on early
extinguishment of debt in the Housing Authority
Fund, a mgor enterprise fund, condsted of a
$187 thousand loss from mortgage foreclosures and
a $351 thousand loss from the early redemption of
bonds ($87 thousand from writing off unamortized
discounts and $264 thousand from writing off
unamortized bond issuance costs).

Special Item

The $458 thousand specia item ﬁi.e. aloss) in
the nonmajor enterprise funds resu ted from 'the
University  Medical Associates for the Medical
University of South Carolina's (UMA'’Ss) sale of one
of its primary care practices. This sale was part of a
larger plan of UMA’s management to dispose of
certain primary care practices in an effort to make its
prrlmary care” network financially self-sustalnl_n?.

he special item included the write-off of intangible
assets, payments to physicians relative to™ the
termination of their employment contracts, and
payments of related legal expénses.
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NOTE 18: DONOR-RESTRICTED
ENDOWMENTSAND
PLEDGES

a. Donor-Restricted Endowments

The Stat€’'s permanent funds (nonmgor

Eovernmental_ funds) and the Higher Education
und, a major enterprise fund, maintain donor-
restricted endowments. Net appreciation consists of
realized and unrealized increases in the fair value of
an endowment's assets over the historic dollar value
of the assets. o

At June 30, 2003, $5.349 million of the amount
reported as restricted net assets, expendable for
education, represented net_ appreciation on
investments of donor-restricted  endowments
available for authorization for = expenditure by
governing boards of the higher education
ingtitutions.  In addition, $176 thousand of the
amount reported as restricted net assets, expendable
for other, represented net appreciation on
investments of donor-restricted endowments of
permanent funds. ] ]

The South Carolina_Uniform Management of
Institutional Funds Act (Title 34, Chapter 6, of the
South Carolina Code of Laws, which is referred to
below as "the Act") permits an agency’ g/institution’s
governing board to authorize for expenditure al of
an endowment's net appreciation, unless the
applicable gift instrument indicates the donor's
intention that net appreciation not be expended. The
Act requires, however, that the authorized
expenditure be limited to the uses and purposes for
which the endowment was established and that the
ingtitution's governing board _exercise . ordinary
business care and prudence in authorizing the
expenditure of net appreciation. _ i

Specific policies for authorizing and spending
endowment Investment income vary among the

encies and institutions that hold™ endowments.

eneraly, the governing boards establish these
policies.”  Among those™ agencies/ingtitutions  that
recorded investment income in donor-restricted
endowments  during the  fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003, the “predominant é)OHC was to
authorize the spending of 4.75% to 6.00% of the fair
value of total endowment assets annually.

b. Pledges

The State's Higher Education Fund, a major
enterprise fund, andrelated blended component units
reported as nonmajor enterprise funds, recognize
receivables and revenues for pledges or promises, of
cash or other assets from nongovernmental entities
when all eligibility requirements are met, provided
that the promise is verifiable and the resources are
measurable and probable of collection. The
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financial statements report these amounts as
accounts receivable. However, various benefactors
have established split interest agreements with The
Citadel Trust, InC., a nonmgor enterprise fund.
Among these agreements are a charitable remainder
uni-trust and a charitable remainder trust.  The
Citadel, a higher education institution reported in the
ngther Education Fund, will receive a specified
portion of the assets remaining under these

reements at the benefactors’ deaths, The parties
who manage the assets associated with these

reements are not included within the State of

uth Carolina's financid reporting entity. The
State’s financial statements do not report these trust
assets because the ultimate amounts that the State
will receive were not deemed to be measurable at
June 30, 2003, and the eligibility requirements for
the gifts have not been met.

NOTE 19: SEGMENT INFORMA-
TION

The Housing Authority provides |ow-cost
housing to the State's citizens by Issuing bonds/notes
and by administering federal contracts and grants.
The State issues various separate revenue bonds to
finance activities within the Single Family Finance
program of its Housing Authority Fund, a mgjor
enterprise fund. Covenants of the following revenue
bonds within the Single Family Finance™ program
reguire separate accounting and financial reporting:
a) Single Family, (b) Home  Ownership, and
c) Mortgage Revenue. Investorsin these bonds rely
solely on the revenue ?enerated by the individua
activities for repayment. Accordingly, condensed
financial statements (expr | in thousands) for
these ments for the fisca year ended
June 30, 2003, are presented below:

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Single Home Mortgage
Family Ownership Revenue
Assets
Current restricted assets............. $ 8949 $ 2420 $ 61,345
Noncurrent restricted assets....... 222,589 25,222 412,424
Other assets.........ccoovveicriinnne, 964 16 3,261
Total assets........ccovvivvniiiins 232,502 27,658 477,030
Liabilities
Current liabilities payable from
restricted assets.........c.cocuerinnne 8,949 2,420 61,345
Noncurrent liabilities 108,207 8,169 370,847
Total liabilities. ...........ccoveeevrinneee 117,156 10,589 432,192
Net assets
Restricted and expendable for:
Debt service.........cccoccveeiinnenene 106,576 15,771 41,429
Bond reserves 8,770 1,298 3,409
Total net assetS.....coeevverecninnnn. $ 115,346 $ 17,069 $ 44,838
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Single Home Mortgage
Family Ownership Revenue
Operating revenues:
Pledged revenues:
Interest on loans..........cccceeeevvveeiiineenns $ 9,588 $ 1,939 $ 22,620
Income on deposit...........cccceeveieneinne 786 415 4,312
Other revenues:
Bond premium amortization............... 39 — —
Total operating revenues.................. 10,413 2,354 26,932
Operating expenses:
Bond issuance cost amortization......... 41 1 199
Other operating expenses................... 5,910 735 23,866
Total operating expenses................. 5,951 736 24,065
Operating iNCoOMe.........ccccovvreiennnnns 4,462 1,618 2,867
Loss on early extinguishment
of debt (extraordinary item)................. — (16) (335)
Transfers:
Transfers in.........cccooveeiiiciciiccin, 29 — 14,840
Transfers out..........cccveiiiiiiciiicecns (3,573) (14,869) —
Increase (decrease) in
netassets........ccoccvvevviieeieniiins 918 (13,267) 17,372
Beginning net assets 114,428 30,336 27,466
Ending net assets.........cccceviiiiinnnne $ 115,346 $ 17,069 $ 44,838

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Single Home Mortgage
Family Ownership Revenue

Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities...........ccccvoeeviivecennenns $ 28,387 $ 7,564 $ 26,122
Noncapital financing activities..................... (9.134) (17,912) 23,866
Investing activities. ...........ocevvevereiencieenns 820 252 4,097
Net increase (decrease)........ 20,073 (10,096) 54,085
Beginning cash and cash equival 68,642 14,174 81,808
Ending cash and cash equivalents............ $ 88,715 $ 4,078 $ 135,893

_Because the above separately identifiable
activities provide essentially similar services to the
Authority’s customers, they are not considered to be
different” activities for financia reporting purposes.
Accardingly, al of the Housing Authority’s
activitiesare reported asa single fundand as asingle
business-type activity in the accompanying financia
statements.

NOTE 20: JOINT VENTURE AND
JOINT OPERATION

a. Joint Venture

In May 1997, the Public Service Authority (the
Authority), a major discretely presented component
unit, along. with two unrelated publicly owned
electric utilities formed a wholesalé power
marketing éﬁl nt venture called The Energy Authority
TEA). . b%%lfb\ently three additional unrelated
entitiés joined TEA. ~The Authority enga%eﬁ in gas
hedging activities through TEA to réduce the cost of
fuel“inventagries. The Authority now has a 21.0%
ownership interest, which it récords as an equity
investment. provides services to its member
organizations, as well as to certain non-member

organizations, and allocates transaction savings .and
operating expenses to its member organizations
pursuant to a settlement agreement.

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 2002
the  Authority Teceived  distributions  of

26.632 million” from TEA and recognized
$28.720 million in reductions to power costs and
increases in electric revenues. ,

The Authority has provided certain guarantees
and has pledged Certain collateral to sulgport TEA’s
transactions. “The Authority's Board of Directors has
%olg&oved the use of up to $63,800 million to support

's activities. uring its fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002, the™ Authority ~ advanced
$3.565 million to TEA in support of its future gas
marketing activities and recorded $4.632 million’in
realized gains from natura ashe_dlglng_transactlpns.
The Authority deferred $8.094 million in unrealized
gains at Decémber 31, 2002, as regulatory assets; it
will recognize and recover these unredized gains
through itS rates as the hedged power delivery occurs
and it records fuel expense. ]

. Interested parties may obtain a copy of TEA's
financial statements by writing to:

The Energy Authority
76 South Caura Street, Suite 1500
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

b. Joint Operation

The Summer Nuclear Station is e}_{m nt operation
owned hy the Public Service Authority (the
Authority), a major discretely presented component
unit and ‘regulated eectric ‘utility, and the South
Carolina Electric and Gas Cqmpan¥ (SCE&G), a
non-governmental electric utility. The Authority
owns an undivided one-third interest in the Station
while SCE&G owns an undivided two-thirds
interest. SCE&G is solely responsible for the
Station's  design, _congruction,  management
budgeting, . . operation, maintenance, and
decOmmissioning; and the Authority is obligated to
pray its ownership share of all costs relating thereto.
he Authority receives onethird of "the net
electricity generated. _

In accordance with re?ulatory_ accountin
gaactlceﬁ the. Authority reporied capital assets o

88.000 million and éxpenses of $49.900 million,
which represent its interest in this joint operation.
The Summer Nuclear Station is not a separate legal
entity and does not prepare separate financia
statements. _ ,

Nuclear fud costs are bel ng amortized based on
energy expended, which includes a component for
estimated disposal costs of spent nuclear fuel. This
amortization 'is included in fuel expense and is
recovered througrétheAuthorlty‘s rates. _

In 2002, E&G commenced a rerackin
project of the on-site spent fuel pool. The new pool
storage ¢ abllllt:y will permit’ full core off-load
through 2016. Further on-site storage, if required,
will be accomplished through dry cask storage or
other technology as it becomes available. .

The Nuclear Refgulator)( Commission (NRC)
requires a licensee of a nuclear reactor to provide
minimum financial assurance of its ability = to
decommission its nuclear facilities. A site-spécific
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decommissioni ngnstudy completed in 2000 estimated
the Authority's share of decommissioning costs for
the Summer "Nuclear Station as $143.400 million in
1999 dollars. The Authority accrues its share of the
estimated decommissioning costs over the remainin
life of the facility. These costs are being recover
through the Authority's rates. )

0. comply. with the NRC regulations, the
Authority established an external trust fund and_has
been making deposits into this fund since
September 1990, In addition, the Authorit
established an internal decommissioning account.
The Authority makes deposits into this fund in the
amount_necessary to fund the difference between the
2000 site-specific study and the NRC's imposed
minimum _requirement. ~ Based on current
decommissioning cost estimates developed by
SCE&G, . these funds, which totaled
$100.800 million  (adjusted  to markef_tz Cat
December 31, 2002, aong with future deposits into
both the external and internal decommissioning
accounts and investment earnings, are expected t0
Prow de sufficient funds for the Authority's share of
he estimated decommissioning costs.

The Energy Policy Acl of 1992 gave the
Department of Energy (DOE), the autharity to assess
utilities for the decommissioning_of its facilities used
for the enrichment of uranium included in nuclear
fuel costs. In order to decommission these facilities,
the. DOE estimates that it would need to charge
utilities $150.000 million, indexed for inflation,
annually for 15 years based on enrichment services
used by utilities in past periods. Based on an
estimate provided by SCE&G, the Authority's one-
third share of this liability at December 31, 2002
totaled $983 thousand. The Authority has deferred
this amount and will recover it through rates as paid.
These costs are included in deferred charges, and
deferred revenues and deferred credits on the face of
the accomlg)anyl ng financia statements.

The Price-Anderson Indemnification Act has
established the maximum liability for public claims
arising from any nuclear incident as $9.500 billion.
Nuclear lighility insurance  of apR_rommaIeI
$200.000 million"per site would cover this amount,
with potential retrospective assessments of up to
$88.100 million per licensee for each nuclear
incident occurring at any reactor in the United States

able at arat€ nat to exceed $10.000 million per
Incident per ear? Based on its one-third interest in
the Summer Nuclear Station, the Authority would be
responsible for a maximum assessment of
% 400 million, not to exceed proximately

.300 million per incident per year. Thisamount is
subject to further increases to reflect (i) inflation
gé) Increases in the licensing for operation o

ditional nuclear reactors, and (iii) any increase in
the amount of commercial liability insufance that the
Authorléy must maintain to comply with the NRC..

SCE&G_ and the Authority maintain, with
Nuclear  Electric . Insurance ~_ Limited (NEIL),
$500.000 million primary and $1.500 hillion excess
property and decontaminiation insurance to cover the
costs of facility cleanup in the event of an accident.
In addition _to_the premiums paid on the excess
policy, SCE&G and the Authority also could be
assessed a retroactive premium,’ not to exceed
fivetimes the annual premium, in the event of
property damage to any nuclear generating facility

covered by NEIL. Based on the current annua

premium and the Authority's one-third interest, the

Authority's maximum retroactive premium would be
.000 million for the primary policy and
.300 million for the excess policy: o

SCE&G and the Authority also maintain
accidental outage insurance to cover replacement
power costs (within policy limits) associated with an
insured property loss. This policy carries a potential
retrospective assessment of $1.400 million.

The Autharity does not purchase insurance for
any retrospective premium assessments, claims in
excess of stated coverage, or cost increases due to
the purchase of replacement power.

NOTE 21: RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

These financia satements exclude certain
related foundations and other  organizations,
including those discussed below. (See also Note 1a,
Scope of Ref)ortl ng Entity.)

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the
Educational Television Endowment of South
Caralina, Inc., disbursed $6.607 million on behalf of
the Departmental General Operating Fund, a major
governmental fund, for programs, development,
advertising, and other costs. |

" The following organizations are related to the
Higher Education Fund, a mgjor enterprise fund: the
University of South Carolina_ Development
Foundation; the University of South Carolina
Educational Foundation; the University of South
Carolina Business Partnership Foundation; the South
Carolina Research Institute; the Greater University
of South Carolina Alumni Association; the Carolina
Piedmont Foundation, Inc.; the Lancaster County
Educational ~ Foundation, Inc.; the Clemson
University Foundation; the Clemson University
Research” Foundation; the Heath Sciences
Foundation of the Medical University of South
Caraling; the Medical University of South Carolina
Foundation for Research Develor.])ment; the Coastal
Educational Foundation, Inc.; the Horry County
Higher Education Commission; the College of
Charleston Foundation; the Winthrop University
Foundation; the Francis Marion University
Foundation; the Citadel Foundation; the Citadd
Alumni  Association; the Citadel's  Brigadier
Foundation; South Carolina State = Educaional
Foundation; the Lander Foundation; Aiken
Technical Coll?_qe ~ Foundation Inc.;
Horry-Georgetown Technical College Foundation:
Greenville ~ Tech Foundation, InC.;  Midlands
Technical College Foundation; Oran eburg-Ca houn
Technical College Foundation; Piedmont Technical
College Foundation; Tri-County Technical College
Foundation; Trident Technical College Foundation;
and Y ork Technical College Foundation. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the State entered
into various transactions with these organizations.
Approximate amounts within the Stale's Higher
Education Fund that represented transactions with
these related parties include:  receivable from
foundations—-$77.254 million;_donations of cash and
other assets from foundations-$102.139 million;
expenditures paid to foundations-$2.911 million;
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and reimbursements to the State for
expenses/expenditures the State incurred on behalf
of foundations-$4.289 million. )

_The Education Assistance Authority Fund, a
major. enterprise fund, has designated “the South
Carolina Student Loan Corporation (SLC) as the
entity to administer. the enterprise fund's student loan
program. During the fisca year ended
June 30, 2003, the ‘enterprise fund entered into
various transactions with SLC. Approximate
amounts within the enterprise fund that represent
these transactions include: - accounts receivable from
SLC-$6.283 million; notes receivable from SLC-
%261.073 million; program revenue from SLC-

27.336 million; and reimbursements to SLC for
administrative costs—$5.615 million. )

In tember 2002, the State entered into an
agreement  with  Wachovia Bank, Nationa
Association, as. trustee, under which its

overnmental activities issued $20.320 million of
onds to purchase red estate and build a student
housing facility near Coastal Carolina University on
behalf "of the 'Coastal Carolina University Student
Housing Foundation. At the same time, the State
agreed "to transfer al ownership interest in the
property and improvements_and any unspent bond

roceeds to the Foundation as” soon as the

oundation was notified of its tax exempt status. In
return, the Foundation agreed to assume the debt.
All bond proceeds were deposited into various trust
accounts held by the Trustee. All costs during the
year, including the land purchase, construction costs
and interest payments on the bonds, were paid out of
the various bond accounts. The property was deeded
to the Foundation in September 2003.” The State's
nonmajor _governmental funds received
$40 thousand in fees during the year as provided in
the agreement.

NOTE 22: MAJOR DISCRETELY
PRESENTED COM -
PONENT UNITS

a. Significant Transactions of Major Component
Units with the Primary Government

The Public_Service Authority makes payments
to the General Fund in lieu of taxes each year based
on requirements under bond indentures.. These
ayments totaled $10.315 million during the
Authority’ sfiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the
State PortS Authority resolved to contribute atotal of
$45.000 million over twenty-six years to the Local
Government  Infrastructure und, a maor
governmental fund, for the Cooper River Bri %e
project in Charleston. The Authority made the
second é)e%/ment of $8.000 million durihg the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2003. )

The South Carolina Lottery for Education Act
requires the Lottery Commission to transfer all
proceeds from lottery ticket sales and other revenues
net of expenses to ‘the Education Lottery Fund, a
nonmagjor governmental fund. The CoOmmission

transferred $213.133 million_during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2003; the Commission owed an
additional $17.818 million to the Fund at
June 30, 2003.

b. Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Public Service Authorit¥ and State Ports
Authority have chosen to present their statements in
accordance with applicable pronouncements of the
Financid Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued after November 30, 1989. Accordingly, these
component units present disclosures regarding
concentrations of credit risk.

Public Service Authority

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to the
Public Service Authority’s receivables are limited
due to its large numbér of customers and their
dispersion across different industries. The Authority
maintains an allowance for uncollectible accounts
based on the expected collectibility of al accounts
receivable. The Authority's salesto its two mgjor
customers  for  its  fisca year  ended
December 31, 2002, were as follows™ (expressed in
thousands):

% of Total

Operating
Customer Revenue Revenue
Central Electric Power
Cooperative, Inc........... $ 514,000 50.5%
Alumax of South
Carolina, Inc................ 101,000 9.9%

No other customer accounted for more than
10.0% of the Authority’s sales.

State Ports Authority

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, two
customers accounted for approximately 17.0% and
11.0% of the State Ports Authority's révenues. The
Authority performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and generally operates under international
laws, which may provide for a maritime lien_on
vessels in the event of default on credit terms. The
iAuthorlty maintains reserves for potential credit
0SSeS.

NOTE 23: CONTINGENCIESAND
COMMITMENTS

a. Litigation

Primary Government

Among the unresolved legal actionsin which the
State was involved at June 30, 2003, are severa that
challenge the legality of certain taxes. ~ The
challenged revenués include the sales tax on diabetic
supplies and the use of certain income tax credits. In
the event of unfavorable outcomes for these cases,
the State does not expect the ultimate liability to
exceed $37.500 million. Although State losses in
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these cases aso could reduce future revenues, the
receding estimates do not include any impact on
uture revenues. _ _
. The South Carolina Retirement Systems are
involved in two_related lawsuits invalving the
calculation of retirement benefits. In 2001, two
employees and an employer filed a putative class
action’lawsuit against the South Carolina Retirement
Systems and the South Carolina Budget and Control
Board. The suit alleged that the Retifement Systems
wrongfully denied benefits to members of the South
Carolina Retirement System (SCR%and the Police
Officers Retirement stem. (PORS) due . to
misinterpretation of the definition of average final
COFTE?%S&HOI’]. The plaintiffs alege that SCRS and
PORS collected over $2.0 billion and
$500.000 million, . . respectively, in excess
contributions, Plaintiffs seek a déclaratory judgment
that a benefit was wrongfully denied and/or that
excess contributions were collécted and request that
contributions be reduced in the future. Plaintiffs
further seek a refund of over $2.000 hillion to
members and employers. Finaly, plaintiffs seek to
impose a constructive trust on monies overgald by
lantiffs and/or wrongfully withheld by the
Systems. The case is pending under the origina
jurisdiction of the Supreme Court of South Carolina,
A trial was held in March 2003 before a special
referee, and parties are submitting post-trial briefsto
the Court. In the second suit, in"October 2002, four
members of the Retirement Systems filed an action
against the parties of the firstsuit aleging fraud on
the court in an earlier case in whichthé Supreme
Court._ of South Carolina had ruled against those
plaintiffs.  If the plaintiffs successfully reopen the
earlier litigation, they will seek damages _of
approximately $2.000 hillion. Both of the preceding
cases are based generaly on the same facts. In the
event the plaintiffs in éther case were to prevalil,
there would be no additional liability in the other
case

On June 27, 2003, another suit was filed against
the State’s four largest retirement systems and the
director of those systems. The plaintiff asserts that
1989 Act 189 violates the equal protection clause of
the United States and the South Carolina
Constitutions and violates uniformity and equality.
The State defendants have filed a motion to dismiss
the complaint. It appears that if a class is certified
and the plaintiffs prevail, they will be entitled to a
recovery in the hundreds of millions of dollars,

_ Two other lawsuits relating to the taxation of
retirement benefits are pending against the State.
One class action case challenges the taxation of
federa retirees income, and the other case
challenges the State's law imposing income taxes
upon bénefits 8ad to retired government employees
by the South Carolina Retirement Systems. In both
actions, the State Circuit Court granted the State's
motion to dismiss. In the case brought by the federa
retirees, the State Supreme Court reversed the
dismissal of the suit by the Circuit Court but did not
comment on the merits of the case. The State
Circuit Court then denied the relief sought by the

laintiff class and ?ranted udgment in favor of the
ate. The P|alntlf s appededto the State Supreme
Court, and the Court ruled in favor of the State on
December 8,2003. It currently is not known
whether the plaintiffs plan to continue to prosecute

the case. The State Supreme Court dismissed the
other case and required the plaintiff to pursue the
clam administratively.. A 'hearing. is scheduled
before the Administrative Law Division. In the
event of an unfavorable outcome in both cases, the
State's liability for_retroactive relief could exceed
$751.000 million. The estimated unfavorable impact
on future,P/ear revenues could be approximately
$22.500 million per year in the federa retirees' case,
and approximately ~ $30.000 million to
$40.000 million per year in the State retirees case.

The State isinvolved in other legal proceedings
pertaining to matters incidental to the performance
of routiné governmental operations. Such litigation
includes cases involving claims asserted against the
State arising from alleged torts, breach of contract
and possiblé violations of State [aws. In the event of
unfavorable outcomesin al of the above matters, the
State's estimated liability would be approximately
$9.559 million. _ , ,

While the State is uncertain as to the ultimate
outcome of any of the above-described lawsuits, it
believes its postions are meritorious and it is
wgorouslgtd ending its position in each case. ,

_The State is involved in a number of cases in
which the amounts of potential losses, if any, are not
presently determinable. These cases include one
contending that the fundi nq of public education in
South Carolina is inequitable and inadequate.  The
State moved to dismiss the case, and the Circuit
Court granted that motion. The plaintiffs appealed,
and the State Supreme Court affirmed part of the
Circuit Court's order but remanded the case to the
Circuit Court for further proceedings as to the issue
of alleged_ inadequate educational oPportunlty. The
Court denied the plaintiffs request to add a damage
clam. The trial has now begun and will not
conclude before sometime in 2004. In a second
unrelated case involving an Indian tribe and a school
digtrict, the State is a party added as an intervener or
defendant. Although the Circuit Court has entered
an order favorable to the State on the Constitutional
challenge, the Court may issue a supplemental order
on the iSsue of credit for certain taxes paid. Whether
the tribe would attempt to pursue the case further is
not known now. Unfavorable rulings in this case
potentially could have a considerable financia
impact on the State. In a third unrelated case, the
plantifis alege that a State board's actions
interfered with'their businesses. The State has filed
a motion for summary judgment. In the event the
State loses this case,” the Ioss amount may not be
limited by the State Tort Claims Act and it may
exceed the allowabl e reimbursement from the State’s
self-insurance fund. ] ] ] ]

Due to the uncertaln'a/ involving the ultimate
outcome of the severd previoudy discussed
unresolved lawsuits, no provision for potential
ligbility has been made for them in the
accompang{ng financial statements. ) )

~The State also is involved in a direct action
againgt the United States to enjoin the collection of
penalties for the State's %ldrported failure__to
implement a statewide Child Support System. The
State lost_in the United States District Court on
summary ]Judgiment and on_appeal in the Court of
Appeals for the Fourth Circuit. The State has

etitioned _for certiorari to the United States
preme Court. In the event of an unfavorable
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outcome in this case, the United States would
continue to recover pendties from the State by
withholding from the State portions of certain
federal grant revenues until_an approved systemisin
place. aties for_the State's fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003, were $7.419 million.

Generally, liabilities recorded by the State's
Insurance Réserve Fund (see Note 11a?, an interna
service fund, are sufficient to cover claims arising
from ,alle%qed torts, up _to the_liability limits
established by the South Cardlina Tort Clams Act.
Currently, except as described above, no tort claims
are _Pendln? that are expected to result in any
significant_Tiability in excess of the provision for

olicy claims recorded by the Insurance Reserve
und.

Major Discretely Presented Component Unit—
Public Service Authority

A gt;roup of customers of the Public Service
Authority, a mgjor discretely presented component
unit and electric utility company, has filed suit
against the Authority Seeking mionetary damages
arising out of a change in the Authority’s “Good
Cents” rate. The Authority denied the material
alle%atlons and opPosed the request for class
certification, but the  court granted a class
certification to the plaintiffs. DisCovery is ongoing.
The Authority’s management and counsel believe it
is reasonably possiblé, but not probable, that the
ultimate liabilities arising from this claim may total
$20.000 million to $30.000 million if the plaintiffs
are successful on all claims. o
. The Authority is a party to, or has an indirect
interest in, severa lawsuits in which the amounts of
potential losses, if any, ae not presently
determinable. The following paragraphs discuss the
most significant of these cases. )

Landowners located aong the Santee River

contend that the Authority is Tiable for damage to
their real estate because of flooding that™ has
occurred since the U. S, Army Corps of Engineers
comgleted its Cooper River Rediversion Project in
1985. A 1997 tria returned a jury verdict against
the Authority on certain causés of action. ~ The
District Court has not set a separate trial on the
case’sdama%es phase.
The Authority offered land for sale to a number
glfl its Iess;e%that S The Itessees |_rg||tuted an action
in e proper raisals were improper
angg thg price thatpthg Agtﬁgﬁt offered was angw.
The Court granted summary judgment in favor of the
Authority. "The plaintiffs have appealed. _
Due to the uncertainty involving the ultimate
outcome of the previoudy discussed unresolved
lawsuits, the Authority has not recorded any liability
for them in the accompanying financial statements.

b. Tobacco Settlement Revenue Management
Authority

The Tobacco Settlement Revenue Management
Authority (the Authority), a blended component unit
and nonmaor  governmental fund established in
2001, is a public’body and an instrumentality of the
State. State law transferred to the Authority al of
the State's rights and interests under the Master

Settlement Agreement (the MSA) and the Consent
Decree and Fina Judgment between all participating
states and the participating tobacco manufacturers.
These rights include the State of South Carolina's
share of all tobacco settlement revenues (TSRS)
actually received after June 30, 2001, or to be
received in the future under the MSA. )

The Authority issued asset-backed term bondsin
2001. The payment of such bonds is dependent on
the receipt of TSRs. The amount of TSRs actually
collected is dependent on many factors, includin
cigarette consumption and the “continued financi
capabilit of the  origina partici patmg
manufacturers.  Such bonds are secured by, an
payable solely from, TSRs and investment earnings
plédged under the bond indenture and amounts
established and held in accordance with the bond
indenture. The term bonds are payable only from
the Authority’s assets. If. the Authority has no
assets, it will'not pay any principa or interest on the
bonds. The TSRs represent the Authority’s only
source of funds for payments on the bonds; the
Authority has no taxing power. . o

Various parties ~ have indtituted litigation
alleging, among other things, that the MSA violates
certain provisions of federd and State laws. Certain
of these actions, if ultimately successful, could result
in a determination that the MSA 'is void or
unenforceable, In the event of an adverse court
ruling, the Authority may not have adequate
financial resources to make payment on the bonas.

Due to the significant uncertainties discussed
above, the State considers TSRs measurable only
when received in cash. Accordingly, the State’s
financial statements do not record a receivable for
any TSRs that the Authority may receive in future
years.

c. Federal Grants

_The State receives significant federal grant and
entitlement revenues.  Compliance audits of federal
Br_ograms may identify disalowed expenditures.

isalowances by federal program_officids as a
result of these audits may become liabilities of the
State. The State records a liability for pending
disalowances if settlement is probable and the
settlement  amount . is  reasonably  estimable.
Otherwise, the liability is recorded only when the
State and the federal government * agree on
reimbursement terms. Based on an andysis of
historica data, however, the State believes that any
such disallowance reimbursements relating to the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, or earlier years will
not have a material impact on the State's financial
statements.

d. Federal Housing and Urban Development
Loan Guarantee Program

During 1994, Lexington County entered into a
contract for Partl cipation in the Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) Section 108 loan guarantee
program. Under this program, HUD arran?es a
public offering of notes guaranteed by federal Tunds
and lends the note proceeds to” the program
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E'arti cipant. The parti CBJant guarantees the loan with
UD ~Community Development Block Grant
CDBG? funds. Because the County did not receive

DBG funds directly from HUD, the State cosigned
the HUD contract and pledged its future federal
CDBG funds on behalf of the County. The County
lent its loan proceeds to fund "an economic
devel opment project. )

During 19 the funded project declared
bankruptcy. Because the pr%ect will ‘not make ar_lP/
further 1oan payments to the County, the County will
not receive the funds it would have used to make the
corresponding loan payments to HUD. Under the

reement, therefore, the State must use its federal

BG funds to make the loan rt1)aa%/ments on behalf

of 'tlhaeb ICounty to the extent thaf such funds are
available.
At June 30, 2003, $1.660 million remained
outsanding on the L@(lnggon Coun’gl loan.
Accordingly, the State as recorded an
intergovernmental . payables liability in the
governmental activities on the government-wide
Statement of net assets for the amount it owes HUD
on this loan to be paid from federal CDBG funds.
The State paid the remaining principal _balance of
$1.660 million plus 8.0% interest during July 2003.

e. Other Loan Guarantees

The South Carolina Education Assistance
Authority, a major enterprise fund, guarantees
student loans. At June 30, 2003, these loans totaled
$1.707 billion. The United States Department of
Education reinsures 100.0% of losses under these
8uarantees for loans made prior to October 1, 1993;
8.0% of losses for loans made on or after
October 1, 1993, but before October 1, 1998; and
95.0% for loans made on or after October 1, 1998.
If the loan default rate exceeds 5.0% of the loans in
repayment status, however, the United States
Department of Education decreases the reinsurance
rate. The State's default rate during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2003, was less than 1.0%.
The nonmagor enterprise funds guarantee a
gortlon of a mortgage debt up to a maximum of
1.503 million.

f. Purchase Commitments

Major Discretely Presented Component Unit—
Public Service Authority

At December 31, 2002, the Public Service
Authorl(tjy, a major discretely presented component
unit. and eectric utility company, had outstanding
minimum obligations under ‘existing purchase
contracts totaling $640.710 million for cod. In
addition, minimum obligations under purchased
ower — contracts  were (a%aggrom mately

3.250 million at December 31, 2002, with a
remaining, term _of thirty-two _years, and
(b) approximately $10.000 million with a term of
one year or less beginning in 2003. Also, the
Authority has commitments for nuclear fuel
enrichmént and fabrication contracts that are
contingent upon the operating life of its nuclear unit.
As of December 31, 2002, these commitments

totaled approximately $68.600 million over the next

nlne_lyears. _ _ ,
he Authority has entered into a service
agreement with aterm extendi rég through 2009 in the
approximate amount of $76.000 million.  The
agreement covers initia spare parts, parts and
services for  specified maintenance outages, and
remote monitoring_and diagnostics of the two
turbine generators.” The agreement can be cancelled
after the Authority pays $4.300 million for initial
inspections for the'generating units.

Major Discretely Presented Component Unit—
Lottery Commission

At June 30, 2003, the Lottery Commission had a
remaining commitment of $22.950 million under a
service contract with a term that extends through

tember 2007. . The contract provides, among
other things, services and equipment to operate the
on-line lottery.

g. Commitments to Provide Grants and Other
Financial Assistance

The South Carolina . Transportation
Infrastructure Bank, reported within the Local
Government  Infrastructure  Fund (a mgor
governmental fund), has agreements with varidus
counties to provide financial assistance totaling
$1.701 billion for certain h|ghwe§/ and transportation
facilities progects. At June 30, 2003, the remainin
commitments for these agreements tota
$1.078 hillion,

At June 30, 2003, the Department of Commerce
had outstanding commitments of $90.762 million to
provide fundsto loca governmental entities from
various State governmental funds. These
commitments inCluded grants for water and
wastewater  infrastructure  projects,  airport
con_striJcUon projects, and rural infrastructure
rojects.

P JAt June 30, 2003, the Budget and Control Board
had outstanding commitments of $96.859 million to
provide loans and grants for water and wastewater
prOJec'{s and energy efficiency improvement
rojects.

P JTh_e Housing Trust Fund, reported within the
nonmgjor governmental funds, had financial award
commitments outstanding of $5.035 million at
June 30, 2003, for affordable housing projects and
devel opments.

h. Major Discretely Presented Component Unit—
Regulatory Matters

_The Public Service Authority (the Authority), a
major. discretely presented component unit ~and
electric utility company, endeavors to ensure that its
facilities comply "with applicable environmental
regulations and sandards. Congress has
%romul ated comprehensive amendments to the

lean Air Act (the Act), including provisions that
relate to acid precipitation as well as to sulfur
dioxide and nitrogen oxide emissions. The
Authority believes that its cost of complying with
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the related United States Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) regulations relating to ozone
transpart, mcludmg ital costs, could roach
approximately $280.000 million by 2005 and that its
annual, opefating costs associated = with such
compliance coul proach $10.000 million.

n July 2000, the Authority received a request
for information from _the "EPA pursuant to
Section 114 of the Act.. The request is part of the
EPA’s enforcement initiative involving the power-

enerating sector, with particular emphasis on coal-
ired units, The Authority has responded to the
request, including an " updated request in
December 2002. ]

_In 2001, the Authority executed an agreement
with other public eectric utilities to investigate the
development of a Regional Transmission
Or%]amzatl,on (RTO), currentli/J referred to as
SeTrans, in the Southeastern United States.  In
February 2003, the Authority provided, written
notice fo the SeTrans nsors of its withdrawal
from the SeTrans development process. However,
the Authority maintains the option to participate in
tshg_:l_ development process or to become a member of

rans.

No accurate prediction of the outcome or impact
on the Authority of either the EPA inguiry or the
development of an RTO. within the Southeastern
states can be made at thistime.

i. Major Discretely Presented Component Unit—
Deregulation of Electric Utilities

The Public Service Authority, a mgjor discretely
presented component unit, currently iS a regulated

electric_utility. The electric industry is increas ngly
competitive due to regful_amory changes and markét
developments.  As utilities move to a deregulated
environment where rates are based on market Torces,
there may be costs that cannot be recovered b
charging” the market rate. Some proposed
deregulation measures allow for recovery of some
ortion of these costs, but the ultimate regulatory
reatment of such costs cannot be predicted. ]
. The Authority has developed and is
implementing a long-term strategic plan designed to
position it t0 compete effectively In the changing
competitive environment. Although the Authority is
Preparln for a deregulated market, it cannot predict
he effects of increased competition on its operations
and financia condition.

j- Major Discretely Presented Component Unit—
Connector 2000 Association, Inc.

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 2001,
the Connector 2000 Association, Inc., a major
discretely Cpresented component unit, otpened he
Southern Connector toll road to public fraffic and
egan_ toll collections. Since commencin
operations, the Southern Connector has experienc
sgnlflcantl _lower traffic counts than those
BI’OjeCted uring the planning phase of the project.
ecause the ~Association ed these “toll
collections for debt service payments on its toll road
revenue bonds, the Association’s future debt service
capability also is affected.

125






REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION—

Other than Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(UNAUDITED)




State of South Carolina

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND

For theFi

scal Year Ended June 30, 2003

(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:

Regular sources
Retail Sales taX........cccuuuuuuiiiiiiiiiieeane
Income tax, individual.............cccocvveieeiiiiiiiiier s
Income tax, COrPOration.........cccevevrueeeesuieeeeiieeesiieeens
Total income and sales taX..........occvvvevveeeeeiccinnenennn.
AdMISSIONS tAX...ccceeieeeieeeee e,
YN[ (o -\ 1 - VOO UPRR P

Alcoholic |
Bank tax..

[0 U To] g = PSSR

Beer and WiNe taX......c.cooiioiueiieeeeeieiiiieee e eiiieeee e
BUSINESS lICENSE taX.......oiivieiiiiiiieiec e
Coin-operated deviCe taX..........ccceeeriiiieeeeeeeereiiiiieennn.
Corporation liCeNSEe taX.......ueeeeeeiiiiviiieieeeiesiiiieiree e
Departmental revenue (primarily fees

fOF SEIVICES). . uuiiiiiii ettt
Documentary taX.......coooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e
Earned on investments...........cccvevveeninieiiin e
EleCtric POWET t8X....ciiieiiiiiiiiee e

Estate tax
Insurance

BAX. i

MOtOr tranSPOrt fEES........cvcvivevierecreiieece et

Motor veh

iCle lICENSES......coeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e

Petroleum inSPection taX.......ccccceeveevvvieeeeeeeessiivineeennn

Private ca

FHINES tAX.cuueiiieiiiieieee e

Public Service AUthOrity.........coooviiiiieeee e
Retailers' licenSe taX........ceueeeiiiiiiieeiieeieiiieeeee e
Savings and loan association taX..........cccccveeeeeeiinnnnen,
Workers' compensation insurance tax............ccccee......
Total regular SOUrCES........cceevveeeeiiiiiiiieee e
Miscellaneous sources
Circuit and family court fines...........ccccvvvvveeeeeiiiciinnenen,

Debt servi

ce reimbursement..........ccceeeeeeeeevevviieeeeeeeenns

INdirect COSt rECOVENIES.......cevviiiiiiiiiie e
Mental health fees..........ooooiiiiiiii e
Parole and probation supervision fees........................
Unclaimed property fund transfer............c.cccoociieee.n.

Nonrecurr

NG FEVENUE......uvviiiii et

Total miscellaneous SOUrCES..........ccceeeeeeeevvvneeeeenennns

Other unbudgeted revenues.........cccccceeeeeiiiiiiieeeeen,

Total r

EVENUES soo000000000000000000005000000000000006000000000600000

Variance

Actual from Final

Amounts Budget—

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) (Negative)
$ 2,168,330 $ 2,106,974 $ 2,060,660 $ (46,314)
2,307,231 1,916,316 1,859,125 (57,191)
167,730 107,653 101,385 (6,268)
4,643,291 4,130,943 4,021,170 (109,773)
35,762 33,952 31,813 (2,139)
3,118 2,549 3,183 634
51,265 46,226 51,062 4,836
9,793 28,888 21,320 (7,568)
91,786 91,829 91,086 (743)
28,619 28,863 29,192 329
2,500 2,500 2,379 (121)
68,036 70,651 64,380 (6,271)
55,863 60,863 55,096 (5,767)
37,473 38,785 37,844 (941)
38,400 21,200 21,635 435
25,119 23,817 24,012 195
38,439 50,417 43,636 (6,781)
117,710 136,948 134,082 (2,866)
3 15 5 (10)

51,716 48,631 52,636 4,005
8,579 8,049 8,007 (42)
3,827 3,477 2,614 (863)
10,473 11,284 10,484 (800)
822 883 909 26
2,439 4,395 3,426 (969)
9,209 11,207 12,296 1,089
5,334,242 4,856,372 4,722,267 (134,105)
10,288 9,667 9,689 22
3,751 3,751 3,286 (465)
22,893 22,893 22,112 (781)
3,800 3,800 3,800 —
3,392 3,392 3,393 1
6,600 6,600 6,600 —

143,479 143,479 196,479 53,000
194,203 193,582 245,359 51,777
— — 175 175
5,528,445 5,049,954 4,967,801 (82,153)
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Variance
Actual from Final
Amounts Budget—
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) (Negative)
Expenditures:
LeQiSIatiVe. ... .eei et $ 28,985 $ 26,616 $ 25,205 $ 1,411
JUAICIAL oo 39,117 35,890 35,841 49
Executive and administrative...............coeevveeeeeeeeeevnnnnnnn. 254,212 135,917 124,843 11,074
Educational...........ccccuiiieiiiiiiiiiccce e 2,918,824 2,685,036 2,657,777 27,259
Health.......ccooo 1,027,739 941,971 941,443 528
Social rehabilitation Services........cccooeeveeviiiviiiieeeeeeiinnnn, 118,120 108,930 108,920 10
Correctional and public safety........cccccooiiiiiiiiiinniins 481,033 469,350 469,350 —
Conservation, natural resources, and
development.. ... ... 154,434 142,150 138,256 3,894
REQUIALONY.....ccoiiiiiiiiee e 51,968 47,697 47,305 392
TransSPOrtation...........ueeeiiiiiiiiieieiee e 486 444 444 —
(D] o) A< Y (o1 ST 226,993 226,993 212,059 14,934
Miscellaneous..........cccceeeeeeevevvineeeenns 238,470 233,148 233,138 10
Total expenditures 5,540,381 5,054,142 4,994,581 59,561
Net decrease in fund balance—
budgetary basis........oocueiiiiiiii e (11,936) (4,188) (26,780) (22,592)
Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year—
budgetary DasiS.......ccccvreeiiiiiiei e 26,213 (104,447) (104,447) —
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year—budgetary
DASIS. it $ 14,277 $  (108,635) $  (131,227) $ (22,592)
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Variance
Actual from Final
Amounts Budget—
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) (Negative)
Revenues:
Federal......coo i $ 4,622,626 $ 5599917 $ 5,226,040 $ (373,877)
Earmarked.........c.ooevieiieiiiee e 2,863,437 4,046,973 3,266,271 (780,702)
(RIS 1 o1 =1 [ RRRRRRRRRRT 2,053,471 2,317,057 2,063,597 (253,460)
Total FEVENUES.....oeiiiiii e 9,539,534 11,963,947 10,555,908 (1,408,039)
Expenditures:
LegislatiVe........ccuvviiieieecccieee e 1,513 6,039 4,937 1,102
O [ o [o3 - | S 150 13,373 9,574 3,799
Executive and administrative.................ceeeeeeeereennnn. 311,910 397,224 298,927 98,297
Educational..........ccccveiiiiireiniee e 3,039,633 3,569,230 3,073,939 495,291
Health.......ooeeee e 3,738,002 4,616,247 4,283,472 332,775
Social rehabilitation Services..........ccooeeeeveviveeeeeennns 843,160 981,893 882,565 99,328
Correctional and public safety........cccccccovvviiiiennnenn. 210,213 312,324 231,821 80,503
Conservation, natural resources, and
development.. ... 208,596 262,778 191,328 71,450
ReQUIALONY ... 172,244 307,155 258,728 48,427
TransSportation...........ueeereeeiiiiiiiiei e eeciieee e e 1,082,350 1,619,141 1,384,020 235,121
ENrPriSe. ..coii i — 2,651 2,651 —
Total expendituresS.......cccceeeviieeeeiieee e 9,607,771 12,088,055 10,621,962 1,466,093
Net increase (decrease) in fund balance—
budgetary basiS.......ccccoovieiiiiiii e (68,237) (124,108) (66,054) 58,054
Fund balance at beginning of year—
budgetary basis........cccueeiiiiiiiii s 999,548 1,224,119 1,224,119 —
Fund balance at end of year—budgetary
DASIS. ... $ 931,311 $ 1,100,011 $ 1,158,065 $ 58,054
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NOTE 1: BUDGETARY FUNDS
AND PERSPECTIVE
DIFFERENCES

a. Budgetary Funds

South Carolina's Annual Appropriation Act, the
State’'s legally adopted budget, does not present
budgets by GAAP fund. ~ Instead, it presents
program-level budgets for the following two funds.

General Funds. These funds™ are genera
operating funds. _ The resources in_these funds are
primarily taxes. The State expends General Funds to
%rowde traditional State government services. The

seneral Funds column Tn_the Appropriation Act
differs somewhat from the GAAP General Fund and
is referred to within these notes and in the
Iz%ccodmpanyl ng schedule as the Budgetary General
un

Total Funds. The Total Funds column in the
Appropriation Act includes all budgeted resources.
Amounts in this column include General Funds as
well as most, but not al, federa and department-
generated resources. Total funds include portions of
Certain proprietary and capital project fund activities
aswell asmost specia revenue activities but exclude
the sion trust funds and some other fiduciary
fund activities. ]

Amounts obtained by subtracting the General
Funds column in the A?pro riation "Act from the
Total Funds column in the Appropriation Act are
referred to within these notes and in the
accompanying schedules as Other Budgeted Funds.

b. Perspective Differences

Perspective differences exist when the structure
of financid information for budgetary purposes
differs from the fund structure that is defined by
GAAP. Although there are some perspective
differences between the Budgetary General Fund
and the GAAP General Fund, those differences are
not significant enough to prevent the State from
Breparlng a budgetary comparison schedule for the

udgetary General Fund. o

n contrast, however, there are significant

Eerspectlve differences between the Other Budgeted

unds and the State’'s GAAP funds, including its
major specia revenue funds. These perspective
differences are so significant that the State is unable
to present separate budgetary comparison schedules
for its major sPec_laI révenue funds. Accordm(%g,
effective with its fiscal year beginning Jul% 1, 2002,
the State instead has presented a budgetar
comparison schedule for its Other Budgeted Funds
in ‘accordance with Statement No. 41,
Budgetary Comparison  Schedules—Perspective
Differences.

NOTE 2: ORIGINAL AND FINAL
BUDGETED AMOUNTS;
BASIS OF PRESENTA-
TION

a. Budgetary General Fund

Each year, the General Assembly enacts an
Appropriation Act that includes initial estimated
revenue and appropriation figures for the Budgetary
General  Fund. The original appropriations

resented in_the accompanying schedule for the

_udPetgrdy_ General Fund ’include the amounts
displayed in the Appropriation Act as well as any
appropriations authorized to_carry forward from the
preceding fiscal year. Original estimated revenues
in the accompanying schedule for the Budgetary
Genera _ Fund 1nclude amounts displayed in
Section 71 (Revenue) of the Appropriation Act and
nonrecurring transfers from other funds that were
legidlatively required by various provisos within the
Appropriation Act.

The accompanying schedule for the Budgetary
Genera Fund presents a fund balance section
whereas the budget document does not present fund
balances; in othér respects, however, the format of
the accompanying schedule is substantively the same
asfor thel ly enacted budget. ]

After the” beginning of the fiscal vyear
departments and agencies may rechjest transfers of
appropriations among programs. No such transfer
request, however, may exceed twenty percent of the
%rogram budget. I'n addition, the Budget and

ontrol, Board, composed of five key execufive and
legidative officids, has the authority to restrict
transfers of appropriations between personal service
and other operating accounts. )

The Appropriation Act for the 2002-2003 fiscal
%/ear directs'the Budget and Control Board to reduce
he Budgetary General Fund's appropriations during
the year'If nécessary to prevent a deficit. Likewise,
the State Board of Economic Advisors mag approve
revisions of estimated revenues for the Budgetary
Genera Fund during the year.

b. Other Budgeted Funds

The original appropriations presented in the
accompanying schedule for Other Budgeted Funds
include the amounts displayed in the Appropriation
Act _as wel as any appropriation reductions
specifically authorized by law to prevent duplicate
appropriations.  The teérminology, classifications,
and format of the appropriations section of the
accompanying schedule for Other Budgeted Funds is
gjtésigtntwely the same as for the legally enacted

udget.

_The State's General Assembly does not approve
estimated revenue or fund balance amounts for
Other Budgeted Funds (or for Total Funds).
However, tion 70 (Recapitulation) of the
Appropriation Act includes net source of funds
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amounts (i.e., estimated cash brought forward from
the previous fiscal year plus estimated revenue for
the current fiscal year minus estimated cash to be
carried forward to the following fiscal year) for three
categories of Other Budgetéd Funds: ~ Federal
Earmarked, and Restricted.” The original estimat
revenue amounts in the accompanyi ng? schedule for
Other Bud(T]_eted Funds were obtained from the State
Budgett Office' s breakdown of the source of funds
amounts.

As operating conditions change, departments
and agencies may request revisions of budgeted
amounts in Other” Budgeted Funds. Such changes
require the Budget and Control Board's approval.
Departments and encies also may request
revisions of estimated revenues and ap;lgroprlanons
for permanent_improvement projects.  The Budget
and Control Board and the Joint Bond Review
Committee must approve and review those changes.

NOTE 3: LEGAL LEVEL OF
BUDGETARY CONTROL

The State maintains budgetary control at the
level of summary object category of expenditure
within each program of each department or agency.
The States ~ Appropriation  Act for™_ the
2002-2003 fiscal year has approximately 2,600
appropriated line ifems. These line items congtitute
the level of legal control over expenditures. The
level of legal control for al agenciesisreportedin a
yublication of the State Compiroller General's Office
itlted "A Detailed Report of Appropriations and
Expenditures,” not included herein.

NOTE 4: BASISOF BUDGETING

Current. legidation sates. that the Generd
Assemblé/t intends to apPro riagte al monies to
operate State government for the current fiscal year.

nexpended apE)roprl ations lapse on July 31 unless
the department or agency is given ecific
authorization to carry them forward to the next fiscal
year. = Cash-basis accounting for payroll
expendituresis required. _ _

State law does not precisely define the State's
basis of budgeting. In practice, however, it is the
cash basis with thé following exceptions.

(i) Departments. and agencies charge _ certain
vendor and interfund payments against the

recedin fiscal ears ropriations
Phrough ?uly 20. Y approp

(ii) Certain revenues collected in advance are
recorded as liabilities (deferred revenues)
rather than as revenues.

(iii) The following taxes are recorded on the
modified accrual basis in accordance with
State law: admissions tax, alcohalic liquors
tax, beer and wine tax, business license tax
documentary tax, electric power tax, and
retail sales taxes.

(iv) Certain non-cash activity, such as food
stamp benefits, is recorded as revenue and
expenditure in the fiscal year in which the
resources are distributed to the beneficiaries.

(v) All other revenues are recorded only when
the State receives the related cash.

NOTE 5: EXCESSOF
EXPENDITURES OVER
APPROPRIATIONS

_ Educational expenditures in budgeted accounts
aside from the Genera Fund exceeded
a?proprlatlons by $14.029 million at the legal level
of control. _ Appropriations associated with the
State’s_technical colleges are budgeted under the
State Board for Technical and “Comprehensive
Education (the State Board). However, the sixteen
colleges record the corresponding expenditures.
Each college had sufficient budgetary-basis revenue
and cash™ to_ provide for its budgetary-basis
expenditures. To prevent an excess of expenditures
over revenues in the future, the State Board plans to
obtain updated expenditure estimates from the
colleges during the fiscal year so that it can request
additional spending authority to cover those
expenditures.

NOTE 6: RECONCILIATION OF
BUDGET TO GAAP
REPORTING
DIFFERENCES

The accompanying budgetary comparison
schedules compare the State's legally adopted budget
with actual data in accordance with'the State’s basis
of budgetl_n?. _Budgetary accounti n% principles,
however, differ significantly from GAAP accounting
principles. These different accounting principles
result in basis, perspective, and entity ditferences in
the net decrease in fund balance—budgetary basis.
Basis differences arise because the basis of
budgeting differs from the GAAP basis used to
prepare the statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances—governmental funds.
Perspective  differences result . because the
A_PPropnatlon Act's program-oriented structure
differs from the fund structure required for GAAP.
Entity differences arise because certain activity
reported within the State’s financia gﬁaortl ng entity
for GAAP purposes is  exclud from the
Appropriation Act. These differences (expressed in
thousands% for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003,
were as follows:
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Budgetary Other
General Budgeted
Budgetary fUNAS ..o Fund Funds
Major Special Revenue Funds
Department of
Departmental Local Transportation State
General Not General Government Special Tobacco
GAAP FUNAS o e Fund Applicable Operating Infrastructure Revenue Settlement
Net decrease in fund balance—budgetary basis ............cccccoiiiiniiiiicin s $ (26,780) $ (66,054) $ — $ — $ — $ —
Perspective differences:
Other Budgeted Funds attributable to nonmajor governmental and other GAAP funds ........ 17,056
Other Budgeted Funds attributable to major governmental GAAP funds .............ccccceee. (48,998)

Other Budgeted Funds reclassified among the State's major governmental GAAP funds ... (1,630) 48,998 54,985 (157,216) 57,307 (2,444)
Basis of accounting differences (45,292) (2,671) (194,012) (244,988) (254)
Entity diffErenCeSs ....ccciiiiiii 67,283 342 428,949 — (126,887)
Net increase (decrease) in fund balance—GAAP basis $ (6419 $ $ 52,656 $ 77,721 $ (187,681) $ (129,585)
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National Guard Pension System

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
(Dallarsin Thousands)

Actuarial UAAL
Biennial Accrued As a
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded Annual Percentage
Valuation Valuation (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
June 30 (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
1998 $ 8640 $ 41478 $ 32,838 20.8% $ 40,333 81.4%
2000 11,089 43,427 32,338 25.5% 40,789 79.3%
2002 12,608 44,678 32,070 28.2% 45,711 70.2%
The unfunded actuarial accrued liability information about whether the financia strength of

expressed

actuarial liabilit

pay it.
expr
liability.
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as a percent

The funded

age of covered payroll is a
measure of the significance of the ‘unfunded
relative to the State’'s capacity to
ratio represents the assets
as a percentage of the actuarial accrued
The trend in"those two ratios provides

the plan isimproving or deteriorating over time. An
improvement is indicated when the funded ratio is
increasing and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial

liability to active covered p:
State Adjutant General’s

plan.

roll isdecreasing. The
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State of South Carolina

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

National Guard Pension System
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

(Dallarsin Thousands)

Employer Contributions

Fiscal Year Annual
Ended Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contributed
1998 $ 3,085 81.0%
1999 3,200 78.1%
2000 3,200 78.1%
2001 2,996 82.6%
2002 2,996 75.3%
2003 2,870 74.3%
The schedule ~of employer contributions due. . The State Adjutant Genera’s Office
Ponitibutions of the Stte S the eqent 1o whan e repen
gﬁgg c%ntri_blétion_s are t%)ei nrg]] made. The scar&edu_le deterTrH?nedmz];grngtrltonof ﬁ%ﬁmdab%%an%f
i n T G o Pro B TS Aditiona informetion s of the Iatest actuana
Actuarial valuation date............cooveviviviiinnnns June 30, 2002
Actuarial cost method..............coooviiiiiininnnn. Entry age normal
Amortization method..............cccooeiviiiiiiinnnnns Level dollar, open
Remaining amortization period....................... 30 years
Asset valuation method.....................oon Market
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return............................ 7.25%
Projected salary increases................cc........ Not applicable
Assumed inflation rate ................ccoeeeiennns 4.25%
Assumed cost-of-living adjustments............ Not applicable
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State of South Carolina

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds include the General Fund,
several specia revenue funds, a Capital Projects
Fund, and two permanent funds. The State does not
use debt service funds because it does not
accumulate resources to pay future years genera
long-term debt principal and interest; instead, the
Stafe finances such payments directly from the
current year's resources.

~ This subsection of the Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report provides the following
supplementary ~ information for the State’s
governmental funds:

= Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor
Governmental Funds

= Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changesin Fund
Balances—Nonmagjor Governmental
Funds

»  General Reserve Fund Activity—
Budgetary General Fund

Generaly accepted accounting principles
GAAP) for governments _require that a
Comprehensive Annual Financial ort (CAFR)
include budgetary comparison schedules for
“individual nonmajor special revenue funds and
other governmental funds of the primary
government (including its blended = componerit
unltsP.” Such schedules would be included as
SUXE ementary information in this subsection of the
CAFR if they were applicable. The State of South
Carolina, however, does not prepare separate
budgets for its individual specia revenue funds or
for its other governmental funds. Accordingly, this
subsection includes no budgetary comparison
schedules. (Also see the budgetary comparison
schedules within the = Required pplementary
Information section of this report.)

Note 1b in the notes to the financial statements
describes the State€’'s major governmental funds.
The paragraphs below describe all other individual
governmental funds that the State uses.

a. Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Specia revenue funds account for the proceeds
of specific revenue sources (other than trusts for
individuals, private  organizations, or other
(rzjovernments or for major Capital pro#ects) that are
egally restricted to “expenditure Tor, "specified
purposes. The State uses the nonmagor specia
revenue funds described bel ow:

Education Improvement Act Fund. This fund
accounts for the special additional 1% sales tax
levied to be used exclusively for improvements in
element_arY and secondary” education, including
academic loans for future teachers.

Children's Education Endowment Fund. This
fund accounts for low-level radioactive waste fees
collected from the Barnwell waste facility that are
not required to be deposited to the General Fund or
remitted to Barnwell County. These funds are to be

used for public school facilities assistance and
higher education scholarship grants.

Waste Management Fund. This fund accounts
for fees collected from consumers, generators of
solid and hazardous wastes, and owners and
operators of solid waste and hazardous waste

orage facilities. These fees must be used for the
pucrf)oses set forth in the State's Solid Waste Policy
and Management Act of 1991 and to cover the
State's costs in governmental actions involving
uncontrolled hazardous waste sites.

Accommodations and Local Option Sales Tax
Fund. This fund accounts for: (1) a specia
additional 2% sales tax on the gross proceeds on the
rental of transient accommodations and (2) a special
1% sales tax applicable in some localities within the
State. The State allocates these revenues to counties
and municipalitiesin accordance with State law.

Medicaid Expansion Fund. Resources of this
fund include county assessments for indigent
medical care and a tax on licensed hospitals. The
fund was established to provide Medicaid coverage
to persons formerly ineligible for such coverage and
}\C/I) egrov:jde additional State matching funds for

icaid.

Tobacco Settlement Revenue Management
Authority Fund. The Tobacco Settlement Revenue
Management Authority was created to issue bonds
that securitized future payments received under the
multi-state _legal settlement with the tobacco
industry. The State transferred to the Authority,
from its General Fund, al of its rights to the future
tobacco settlement revenues, In return, the
Authority transferred |part of the bond proceeds to
the State Tobacco Settlement Fund.

Education Lottery Fund. State law requires the
Lottery Commission, a major dlscretel¥ presented
component unit, to transfer al proceeds from lottery
ticket sales and other revenues net of expensesto the
Education Lottery Fund. The Fund distributes these
monies for eduCation purposes and programs as
dtipulated in State law. These programs include
tuition assistance, needs-based “grants, and
scholarships for the State€’'s universities and
technical colleges.

Jobs—Economic Development Authority Fund.
The Jobs—Economic Development Authority acts in
conjunction with other “organizations “in the
promotion and advancement of industria
commercial, . agricultura and  recreatjonal
development in the State. The Authority's emphasis
is on those areas of the State with the greatest
economic need_and those projects providing the
greatest economic benefit.

Public Telecommunications Fund. The Public
Telecommunications Fund of the State's Public
Service Commission accounts for revenues collected
from telephone companies within the State and
redistributed to certain telephone companies in an
effort to align prices and cost recovery with costs.
This program_also is intended to énsure basic
telephone service at affordable rates is available to
al citizens. Other revenues of the Fund include
telephone customer surcharges for the 911
emergency system mandated by the FCC. These
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Governmental Funds

monies are collected from the telephone companies
and distributed to local governments for their 911
emergency telephone systems.

Other Special Revenue Funds. These funds,
aggregated for reportmg purposes, account for
various other revenues that must be used for specific
purposes. These include operations of various
employment services, water recreation, agricultural
boards, forest renewa programs, certain housing
programs, medical and dental scholarships, energy-
related I;_%rograms, and certain programs administered
by the Department of Probation, Parole, and Pardon

vices.

b. Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for financial
resources to be ‘used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than
those financed by proprietary funds or in trust funds
for individuals,” private organizations, or other
governments). apital outlays financed from

eneral obli 861“0” bond proceeds are accounted for
rough the Capital Projects Fund.

c. Permanent Funds

Permanent funds are used to report resources
that are legaly restricted to the extent that only
earnings, and" not prlncgt)al, may be used for
Purposes that wfo{)ort the State’s programs—that is,
or the benefit of the State or its citizenry.

Bequests Fund.  Sometimes, private citizens
make bequests of specific assets within their wills to
the State. Typicaly, these gifts provide that the
State may expend thé earnings, but not the principal,
to support certain State agencies or certain programs
within a specific State agency. The Bequests Fund
accounts for these funds.

Wildlife Endowment Fund. The Wildlife
Endowment Fund accounts for funds received from
rivate citizens as gifts and contributions, as well as
ees for certain lifefime hunting and fishing licenses.
The State may expend the éarnings, but not the
principal, in furthering the conservation of wildlife
resources and the efficient operation of the State’s
Department of Natural Resources.
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

SPECIAL
Tobacco
Accommodations Settlement
Education Children's and Revenue
Improvement Education Waste Local Option Medicaid Management
Act Endowment Management Sales Tax Expansion Authority
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents.............ccccocoueenne $ 60,994 $ 36,652 $ 93,485 $ 44,411 10,157 $ 131
INVESIMENTS.....cooviiiiiiiiii — — — — — —
Invested securities lending collateral............. 1,634 7,533 18,414 80 1,196 —
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNTS. ...uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 365 — 307 1 — —
Accrued iNtereSt........cccvvveeiiiiiiieeeeeiiieeee e 1,621 612 827 — 95 —
Sales and other taxes. 57,902 26,830 — 28,491 — —
Loans and NOteS..........cceeevvvviiieeeiiiiieee e 12,872 — — — — —
Due from Federal government
and other grantors...........ceeevveeiieeerneeenne — — — — — —
Due from other funds...........occvveeeiiiiiireennns 3,451 — — 57 — —
Due from component UNits.............cceeeveerneen. — — — — — —
Interfund receivables — — — — — —
INVENTOMIES....coiiiiiiiii e — — 32 — — —
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.............c.ccccee..e. — — — — — 8
INVESTMENTS.....ovviiiiiiiii i — — — — — 115,109
Other.........coc — — — — — 2,404
TefiE] E8SE8 c00000000a0000000000000000000000000000000000 $ 138,839 $ 71,627 $ 113,065 $ 73,040 11,448 $ 117,652
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable..........ccccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiis $ 4,597 $ 1 $ 4,338 $ — 17 $ —
Accrued salaries and related
EXPENAITUIES. ....cevviiiiiiieeeiiiiieee i 694 — 216 — — —
Retainages payable.... — — — — — —
Tax refunds payable.......... 129 — — 60 — —
Intergovernmental payables. 39,276 3,421 761 69,894 — —
Due to other funds............. 1,507 — 168 123 15 —
Interfund payables... 350 — — — — —
Deferred revenues............ 5,166 — — 2,883 3,036 —
Securities lending collateral.. 1,634 7,533 18,414 80 1,196 —
Other liabilities ..... 48 — — — — —
Total liabilities.......cccceeviiiiiiice, 53,401 10,955 23,897 73,040 4,264 —
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Interfund receivables......................... — — — — — —
Long-term loans and notes receivable 6,052 — — — — —
Debt requirements.........cccccvvveiiiiineeeininnns — — — — — 117,521
School building aid............cccoceviiiiiiieenninns 3,841 — — — — —
ENdOWMENtS.....ccuviiiieiiiiiiicc e — — — — — —
Unreserved:
Designated for capital expenditures........... — — — — — —
Designated for scholarships 16,315 — — — — —
Undesignated...........oocuvveeeiniiiiiieiiiiiieeeens 59,230 60,672 89,168 — 7,184 131
Total fund balances..........ccccveeeeeeeinn. 85,438 60,672 89,168 — 7,184 117,652
Total liabilities and fund balances........ $ 138,839 $ 71,627 $ 113,065 $ 73,040 11,448 $ 117,652
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REVENUE PERMANENT
Jobs—
Economic Public Tele- Other
Education Development commun- Special CAPITAL Wildlife
Lottery Authority ications Revenue Totals PROJECTS Bequests Endowment Totals TOTALS
$ 109,380 $ 4,171 $ 20,348 $ 71,197 $ 450,926 $ 130,947 $ 1,264 $ 1,384 $ 2,648 $ 584,521
— 501 — — 501 — — — — 501
22,998 — 2,670 5,677 60,202 8,150 1,180 289 1,469 69,821
— 16 2,034 1,519 4,242 — — — — 4,242
1,271 22 153 308 4,909 123 12 14 26 5,058
— — — 5,480 118,703 374 — — — 119,077
— 1,047 — 9,584 23,503 — — — — 23,503
— — — — — 2,627 — — — 2,627
— — 1,006 1,276 5,790 2,097 — — — 7,887
17,819 — — — 17,819 — — — — 17,819
— — — 459 459 — — — — 459
— — — — 32 — — — — 32
— — — — 8 — — — — 8
— — — — 115,109 — — — — 115,109
— — — — 2,404 — — — — 2,404

$ 151,468 $ 5757 $ 26211 $ 95500 $ 804,607 $ 144318 $ 2,456 $ 1687 $ 4,143 $ 953,068

$ 3146 S 3 % 266 $ 1418 $ 13786 $ 3469 $  — $ — $  — $ 17,255
3 1 — 682 1,596 118 — — — 1,714

— — — — — 1,935 — — — 1,935
— — — 4 193 — — — — 193
3,811 780 8,725 10,629 137,297 — — — — 137,297
15,313 — 100 1,926 19,152 2,612 — — — 21,764
— — — 637 987 22,357 — — — 23,344
— 23 — 3,188 14,296 1,388 — 1 1 15,685
22,998 — 2,670 5,677 60,202 8,150 1,180 289 1,469 69,821
— — — 5 53 — — — — 53
45,271 807 11,761 24,166 247,562 40,029 1,180 290 1,470 289,061
— — — 419 419 — — — — 419
— — — 9,078 15,130 — — — — 15,130
— — — — 117,521 — — — — 117,521
— — — — 3,841 — — — — 3,841
— — — — — — 663 1,171 1,834 1,834
— — — — — 104,289 — — — 104,289
— — — — 16,315 — — — — 16,315
106,197 4,950 14,450 61,837 403,819 — 613 226 839 404,658
106,197 4,950 14,450 71,334 557,045 104,289 1,276 1,397 2,673 664,007

$ 151,468 $ 5757 $ 26211 $ 95500 $ 804,607 $ 144,318  $ 2456 $ 1,687 $ 4,143 $ 953,068
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changesin Fund Balances

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

SPECIAL

Tobacco

Accommodations Settlement

Education Children's and Revenue

Improvement Education Waste Local Option Medicaid Management
Act Endowment Management Sales Tax Expansion Authority
Revenues:
Taxes:

Retail sales and USE............eeveeeeeeiieiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee, $ 512,987 $ — $ 1,486 $ 233,235 — $ —

[© 1= S PP PP P TTOPPPPPROPNY — 26,831 — — 49,500 —
Licenses, fees, and permits..........cccoevvueeeiieciiieeiinneens 57 — 23,951 — — —
Interest and other investment income............cccceeeee... 2,333 3,535 4,838 2) 562 5,375
Federal........oooiiiiiiiii e — — — — — —
Local and private grants..........ccccovvvveeeeeniiieeee e — — — — — —
Departmental SErviCes. .........oovveeiiieeniieeiiiee e — — 3,515 — — —
CoNtribULIONS......oiviiiiee e — — 9 — 7,502 —
Fines and penalties...........ccooveeiiiiiiiiiiiic e — — 1,471 — — —
Tobacco legal settlement...........ccoovvvveeiiiiiiieeeiiieen, — — — — — 86,313
(@1 1= SRR RRR 283 19 201 — — —

TOtal FEVENUES....ceiiiiiee et 515,660 30,385 35,471 233,233 57,564 91,688
Expenditures:
Current:

General gOVEIMMENT..........coouiiiiiieaiieenie e 1,568 — — 37 — 159

=0 [ or= Y i o] o AU 37,308 13,382 — — — —

Health and environment...........cccooooeiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeieennee, 742 — 23,398 — 56,449 —

Social services................ 347 — — — — —

Administration of justice...................... 1,499 — — — — —

Resources and economic development. — — — — — —
Capital OUtIaY.........ceiiiiiiiiiie — — — — — —
Debt service:

Principal retirement..............ccocoviiiiiiiiici e — — — — — 33,050

Interest and fiscal charges..........cccccveevviveeiiiiiineee, — — — — — 58,888
Intergovernmental............cooveeiieinieiiiie e 481,238 26,067 4,195 231,608 — —

Total eXpenditures........ccovveieeeniieiiieesee e 522,702 39,449 27,593 231,645 56,449 92,097
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expendituresS........ccccovvvveeerivnneennns (7,042) (9,064) 7,878 1,588 1,115 (409)
Other financing sources (uses):
BONAS ISSUET. .....cceeiiiiiiiiieeiiiiiiie e — — — — — —
Premiums on bonds issued...........cccoevviiieiiiiiieeeiiiinns — — — — — —
TraNSTEIS INuueeeiiiiiiee e 2,302 2,805 12 — — —
Transfers OUL.........cuveeveiiiiiiieee e (4,476) — (54,326) (1,588) — (2)
Total other financing sources (US€S).......c.cccuvveenne (2,174) 2,805 (54,314) (1,588) — (2)
Net change in fund balances...........ccccocceeviineenne (9,216) (6,259) (46,436) — 1,115 (411)
Fund balances at beginning of year ...........cccccoeeviene 94,654 66,931 135,604 — 6,069 118,063
Fund balances at end of year..........cccoceviriieiieniencnns $ 85,438 $ 60,672 $ 89,168 $ — 7,184 $ 117,652
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REVENUE PERMANENT
Jobs—
Economic Public Tele- Other
Education Development  commun- Special CAPITAL Wwildlife
Lottery Authority ications Revenue Totals PROJECTS Bequests Endowment Totals TOTALS
$ = $ = $ = $ = $ 747,708 $ = $ = $ = $ = $ 747,708
— — — 28,516 104,847 3,784 — — — 108,631
— — 79,060 2,782 105,850 — — 99 99 105,949
7,154 138 1,082 1,895 26,910 852 167 99 266 28,028
— — — 223 223 13,399 — — — 13,622
— — — 188 188 823 — — — 1,011
— 1,099 7,262 97 11,973 4,666 — — — 16,639
221,635 — — 596 229,742 8,154 — — — 237,896
— — — 21,649 23,120 — — — — 23,120
— — — — 86,313 — — — — 86,313
— — — 384 887 615 — — — 1,502
228,789 1,237 87,404 56,330 1,337,761 32,293 167 198 365 1,370,419
— — 79,360 10,785 91,909 — — — — 91,909
117,450 — — — 168,140 — 2 — 2 168,142
— — — 202 80,791 — — — — 80,791
68 — — 3,777 4,192 — — — — 4,192
9 — — 13,688 15,196 — — — — 15,196
—_ 1,559 — 2,982 4,541 — — 4 4 4,545
— — — — — 81,941 — — — 81,941
— 16 — 33,066 — — — — 33,066
— 3 — 69 58,960 — — — — 58,960
53,964 — 5,204 24,420 826,696 — — — — 826,696
171,491 1,578 84,564 55,923 1,283,491 81,941 2 4 6 1,365,438
57,298 (341) 2,840 407 54,270 (49,648) 165 194 359 4,981
— — — — — 100,000 — — — 100,000
— — — — — 4,110 — — — 4,110
102 88 — 4,331 9,640 77,259 — — — 86,899
(33,904) _ (5,562) (5,246) (105,104) (139,957) _ _ _ (245,061)
(33,802) 88 (5,562) (915) (95,464) 41,412 — _ _ (54,052)
23,496 (253) (2,722) (508) (41,194) (8,236) 165 194 359 (49,071)
82,701 5,203 17,172 71,842 598,239 112,525 1,111 1,203 2,314 713,078

$ 106,197 $ 4950 $ 14450 $ 71334 $ 557,045 $ 104289 $ 1,276 $ 1,397 $ 2,673 $ 664,007
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General Reserve Fund Activity

BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Article 111, Section 36, of the South Carolina
Constitution establishes requirements relating to the
General Reserve Fund. The reserve primarily is
designed to prevent Budgetary General Fund
deficits.  On November 4, 1988, a Constitutional
amendment was passed, which permanently changed

percent of the Budgetary General Fund revenue of
the latest completed fiscal year.

If amounts are withdrawn from the Reserve, the
State Congtitution requires restoration of the
Reserve to full funding within three years.

Ka/ amounts (dollars in thousands) for the
Gener

the funding requirement for the Reserve to three Reserve Fund for the last ten fiscal years

are:

Actual

Start-of- End-of-

Fiscal Year Ended Year End-of-Year Full-Funding Year %

June 30 Balance Deposits Withdraw als Balance Amount? Funded®

1994 $ 66,832 $ 43,346 $ — $ 110,178 $ 110,178 100%
1995 110,178 10,557 — 120,735 120,735 100%
1996 120,735 6,271 — 127,006 127,006 100%
1997 127,006 3,374 — 130,380 130,380 100%
1998 130,380 — — 130,380 137,650 95%
1999 130,380 7,270 — 137,650 145,371 95%
2000 137,650 7,721 — 145,371 147,916 98%
2001 145,371 2,545 (87,393) 60,523 150,202 40%
2002 60,523 2,286 (62,809) — 152,410 0%
2003 — 38,797 (38,797) — 147,708 0%

aEquals 3% of the Budgetary General Fund revenues for the latest completed fiscal year.
bEquals (End-of-Y ear Balance/Full-Funding Amount) x 100.
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Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds include enterprise and internal
service  funds. This subsection of _the
Comprehensive Annual Financia Report provides
the following supplementary information for the
State’ s proprietary tunds:

= Combining Statement of Net Assets—
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

= Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net
Assets—Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

= Combining Statement of Cash Flows—
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

= Combining Statement of Net Assets—
Internal Service Funds

= Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net
Assets—Internal Service Funds

= Combining Statement of Cash Flows—
Internal Service Funds
Note 1b in the notes to the financial statements
describes the State€’'s mgjor enterprise funds. The
aragraphs below describe all nonmajor enterprise

unds and the interna service funds that the State
uses.

a. Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

_The State uses enterprise funds to report
activities for which it charges fees to external users
for goods or. services if  any of the following
situations applies:

» Theactivity is financed with debt that is
secured solely by a pledge of the net
revenues from fees and charges of the
activity.

= Lawsor regulations require that the
activity’s costs of providing services,
including capital costs, be recovered with
fees and charges rather than with taxes or
similar revenues.

» The pricing policies of the activity
establish fees and charges designed to
recover its costs, including capital costs.

The State uses the nonmajor enterprise funds
described below.
This fund

Patients’ Compensation Fund.
provides medical malpractice insurance to any
%lt.lbhc or_private health care provider within the

ate. ~ This fund is reported as an insurance
enterprise.

Patriots Point Development Authority Fund. The
Patriots Point Development Authority iS responsible
for developing and o,oer_atl ng the Patriots Point area
near Charleston, including a naval museum. The
Authority is supported by User fees.

“Second Injury Fund. This fund serves as a
claims processor for insurance carriers, self-
insurers, and the State Accident Fund. The fund
processes clams of employees with existing
permanent ph%/scal impairment who are further
injured in the course of their subsequent
employment.

The State Housing Corporation Fund. The State
Housing Corporation was organized to |ease
operate, manage, and contract for the construction of
office facilities for the South Carolina State Housing
Finance and Development Authority and for
affordable housing facilities for the members of the
beneficiary classes of the Authority.

The Tuition Prepayment Program Fund. This
fund, previousy known as the PACE program,
allows contributors to make payments, under the
terms of a tuition prepayment contract, to cover
future undergraduate = tuition expenses of a
designated beneficiary at a South Carolina public
higher education institution.  Alternatively, the
benefits of this contract can be applied toward the
cost of tuition, up to the weighted average tuition at
South Carolina public institutions, at any accredited
collgPe_ or university to which the” designated
beneficiary has been admitted.

The Citadel Trust, Inc., Fund. The Citadel Trust
was formed for the r[1)urposx_e of investing funds in
order to provide scholarship and other financia
assistance qr support to The Citadel, a higher
education _institution reported in the Higher
Education Fund, amajor enterprise fund.

Pharmaceutical Education and Development
Foundation Fund (PEDF). PEDF promotes
educational, research, clinical, and other facilities
and ‘o_rograms of the Medical University of South
Carolind's College of Pharmacy. . The Medica
University of South Carolina is & higher education
institution reported in the Higher Education Fund, a
major enterprise fund.

Medical UniversitK Hospital Authogéy Fund (the
Authority). The Authority was created to manage
and operate the Medica University of South
Carolina s hospitals and clinics.

Medical University Facilities Corporation Fund
%MUFC). MUFC was established to obtain financing
or the Medical University of South Carolina to
purchase land, an office building, and a parking
garage.

University of South Carolina Trust Fund (the
Trust). The Trust operates exclusively for the
benefit of the University of South Carolina s School
of Medicine to augment and aid education, research,
and service in the field of heath sciences. The
University of South Carolina is a higher education
institution reported in the Higher Education Fund, a
major enterprise fund. The Trust’s fiscal P/ear ends
December 31, and the accompanyll_ng supplementar
information  includes the rast's = financi
information  for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002.
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University Medical Associates Fund (UMA).
UMA was ‘established to promote and support
educational, medical, scientific, and research
urposes of the Medica University of South
arolina (MUSC), a higher education institution
reported in the H|\|/(|;her ducation Fund, a mgjor
enterprise fund. UMA promotes the recruitment and
retention of superior faculty at MUSC.

_Other Enterprise . Funds.  Other enterprise
activities of the State include: the Savannah Valley
Development and the Public Railways Divisions of
the South_Carolina Department of Commerce, the
Canteens Fund, operation of the Columbia Farmers
Market, and enterprise operations of the Adjutant
General’s Office.

b. Internal Service Funds

The State uses the internal service funds
described below to report activities that provide
goods or services to other State funds, departments,
agencies, component units, and/or to other
overnments, on a cost-reimbursement basis if the
ate is the predominant participant in the activity.
If the State is not the predominant participant, it
reports the activity as an enterprise fund.

Insurance Reserve Fund, This is a risk
management/reinsurance  fund. . It underwrites
insurance risks on _public buildings and their
contents and tort liahility, medical malpractice, and
automobile liability for public employees. State law
limits the Fund's customers to certain governmental
persongentities within the State "and certain
associated parties.

_ Employee Insurance Programs Fund. Thisis a
risk management fund that underwrites the group
health, ental, life, accidental death ™ and
dismemberment, disability, and long-term care
benefits provided to State and public school
employees and retirees.

State Accident Fund. Thisis arisk management
fund that provides workers compensation, benefits
predominantly to State employees. Premiums are
collected from State agencies.

_General Services Fund. This fund accounts for
various services provided to State and loca
overnmental units for which user fees are charged.
hese services include telecommunication “and
computer services, rental of office buildings
janitorial  services, building maintenance, and
procurement services.

Central Supplies and Equipment Fund. This
fund sells office supplies and equipment, food, and
paper products to other governmental units. |t aso
stores food and paper products for State agencies.

Motor Pool Fund, This fund provides daily and
permanent lease assignments of vehicles to "State
agencies. It also ‘maintains _ an |nventor¥ of
aue'horrlmtlve parts to provide maintenance of these
vehicles.

Pension Administration Fund. This fund
administers the public employee retirement systems.
Revenues of ‘the fund Pprimarily consst of
assessments charged to the pension trust funds.

Prison Industries Fund. This fund accounts for
goods produced by inmate labor. These goods are
Sold primarily to State agencies.

Governor’s School for the Arts Foundation, Inc.,
Fund. Thisfund collects and disburses funds for the
support of programs, services, scholarships,
gperations, and capital needs of the South Carolina

overnor's School for the Arts and Humanities.
Tr][et Foundation is a blended component unit of that
entity.

Other Internal Service Funds. These funds,
aggregated for reporting Pu&poses, account for other
miscellaneous activitieS thal meet the definition of
internal service funds. Such activities include
provision of training programs for State emplayees
and work activity centers of the Vocationa
Rehabilitation Department.
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Net Assets

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Patriots Point State Tuition
Patients’ Development Second Housing Prepayment
Compensation Authority Injury Corporation Program
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...........ccccoeveeeiiieeeniee e $ 3,821 $ 6,156 $ 208 $ 4,890 $ 71,804
Investments . — — — — —
Invested securities lending collateral...............ccoccveviieenns 757 — 31,647 — 26,800
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES.....ceiiiiiii ettt — 215 — — —
CONtDULIONS. ... — — — — —
Participants........ . — — — — 5,987
ACCIUE INEIESE......uviiiieiicriii et 66 21 — — 479
Patient aCCOUNLS.........ccoeeivierierieie e . — — — — —
Due from Federal government and other grantors.............. — — — — —
Due from other funds...........cccooeiiiiiiiiiie — — — — —
INVENTOTIES. . ..ottt — 318 — — —
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.........c.cccceeveeeiiieeeniie e — — 74,933 — —
INVESTMENTS....coiiiiiiiiie s — — — — —
— — 1,120 — —
60 66 — — —
4,704 6,776 107,908 4,890 105,070
Long-term assets:
INVESTMENTS.....oiiiiiiiiii e — — — — —
Receivables, net:
CONtDULIONS. ..o — — — — —
Participants.............. — — — — 18,320
Interfund receivables.. — — — — —
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.........c.ccceevueeeiiieeeiiieesiee s — — — — —
INVESIMENTS.....ooiiiiiiiiii e — — — — —
Loans receivable... — — — — —
Other......ccoocvvniennne . — — — — —
Other loNg-term aSSetS......cuveiiiieiiiiieiiiie e — — — 68 —
Capital assets:
Land and improvements..........ccccovvveeeeiieeeenieeesiiee e — 5,744 — — —
Buildings and improvements. ..........ccoccuveeviieeeniieeenieeenens — 1,460 — — —
CONSErUCHON N PrOGIESS......vveeiieeeeeiiieeeiieesieeesieeesniieeanens — 443 — — —
Vehicles . — — — — —
Machinery and equUIPMENt...........oeovvieriiieeeiiee e — 539 59 — —
Works of art and historical treasures.............cccocveveennenne — 6,967 — — —
INtangible aSSets.......ccovviiiiiieiiie e — — — — —
Less: accumulated depreciation............ccoceeevriveeniieennnnns — (7,457) (46) — —
Total capital assets, net... — 7,696 13 — —
Total Iong-term assets........ccccveeriieeriieeeiiee e — 7,696 13 68 18,320
Total @SSELS..cciuiiiiiiieeeiiiiee e 4,704 14,472 107,921 4,958 123,390
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State of South Carolina

Pharmaceutical Medical Medical University
Education and University University of South University
The Citadel Development Hospital Facilities Carolina Medical Other
Trust, Inc. Foundation Authority Corporation Trust Associates Enterprise Totals
$ 266 327 $ 26,475 $ = 2,582 $ 38,261 $ 11,741 $ 166,531
2,755 — — 3,882 1,050 117 7,804
— — — — — 797 60,001
16 3,254 — 2,439 23 1,543 7,490
119 — — — — — 119
— — — — — — 5,987
187 — 7 — — 45 805
— 76,545 — 2,378 18,485 — 97,408
6 — — — — — 6
— 835 2,278 — 12,401 147 15,661
— 10,820 — — — 3,650 14,788
306 832 14,381 — — 3,190 93,642
5,752 — 316 — — — 6,068
65 — — — — — 65
509 — — — — 259 1,888
41 2,614 62 — 1,380 32 4,255
10,022 327 121,375 17,044 11,281 71,600 21,521 482,518
— — — — — 157 157
250 — — — — — 250
— — — — — — 18,320
— — 20,709 — 1,245 — 21,954
1,578 18,658 1,350 — 6,774 — 28,360
34,254 — 213 — 8,919 — 43,386
392 — — — — 15,494 15,886
1,311 — — — 89 — 1,400
27 677 594 — 22,074 296 23,736
— 3,270 — — — 17,414 26,428
— 190,956 — 15,788 58,572 3,417 270,193
— 49,144 — — 201 35 49,823
— 1,089 — — — 601 1,690
— 146,983 — 6,765 9,269 3,674 167,289
— — — — — — 6,967
— — — — 3,186 2,300 5,486
— (174,616) — (7,624) (21,020) (4,910) (215,673)
— 216,826 — 14,929 50,208 22,531 312,203
37,812 236,161 22,866 14,929 89,309 38,478 465,652
47,834 327 357,536 39,910 26,210 160,909 59,999 948,170

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Net Assets

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued)

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Patriots Point State Tuition
Patients' Development Second Housing Prepayment
Compensation Authority Injury Corporation Program
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNLS PAYADIE. ... .ciiiiiiiiiie e $ 17 $ 255 $ 2 $ — $ —
Accrued salaries and related eXpenses..........c.cccevvveennins 17 249 95 — —
Accrued interest payable............cccooiiiiiiiiie — — — 24 —
Retainages payable........... . — — — — —
Tuition benefits payable — — — — 2,280
Policy claims................... 35,000 — — — —
Due to other fuNdS.........coooiiiiiiiiie e — 14 806 — —
Deferred reVENUES...........uuveeiieeiieee et 12,100 617 — — —
Securities lending collateral...........c.cccovoiiiiiiiiieiiieee 757 — 31,647 — 26,800
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Accrued interest payable............cccoooiiiiiiiiiin — — — — —
OFNET ..ottt — — 75,253 — —
NOtES payabIe.......c.coiiiiiiiiiiicie e — — — — —
Revenue bonds payable.............ccccooieiiiiiiiiiin — — — — —
Certificates of participation payable.............cccccceevviiennnnen. — — — — —
Capital leases payable.................... — — — — —
Compensated absences payable . 9 261 81 — —
Other current liabilities ..........cccooiiiiiiiii e — — — — —
Total current liabilities...............ccoceeviiiiiiiiiiice, 47,900 1,396 107,884 24 29,080
Long-term liabilities:
Tuition benefits payable.........c.cccooiiiiiii, — — — — 111,725
POIICY CIAIMS....ciiiiiiiii e 175,312 — — — —
Interfund payables............cccooiiiiiiiii — — — 4,950 —
NOtES PAY@ADIE.....cciiiiiiiiii it — — — — —
Revenue bonds payable.............ccccooieiiiiiiiiiiin — — — — —
Capital leases payable................. . — — — — —
Compensated absences payable.... 6 — 24 — —
Other long-term liabilities..........coooveieiiieiieecece — — — — —
Total long-term liabilities...........ccccovveiiiiiiiiiee e, 175,318 — 24 4,950 111,725
Total liabilities.........ccoceiiiiiii 223,218 1,396 107,908 4,974 140,805
NET ASSETS (DEFICITS)
Invested in capital assets, net of related debit..................... — 7,696 13 — —
Restricted:
Expendable:
Education......... — — — — —
Capital projects — — — — —
Debt SEIVICE......ceoiiiiiiiiiiiic — — — — —
OtNET ...t — — — — —
Nonexpendable:
EdUCAtiON.......ccoiiiiiiii s — — — — —
Unrestricted........coeeiiiiiiiii e (218,514) 5,380 — (16) (17,415)
Total net assets (defiCits)......covriviiiiiiieiicieiee $ (218,514) $ 13,076 $ 13 $ (16) $ (17,415)

150



State of South Carolina

Pharmaceutical Medical Medical University
Education and University University of South University
The Citadel Development Hospital Facilities Carolina Medical Other
Trust, Inc. Foundation Authority Corporation Trust Associates Enterprise Totals

$ 2 $ 5,374 $ 19,815 $ = $ 2,532 $ 1,602 $ 1,671 $ 31,270
12 — 12,257 — 33 3,784 213 16,660
— — 2,613 733 — 279 — 3,649
— — 832 — — — — 832
— — — — — — — 2,280
— — — — — — — 35,000
— — 7,919 — — 835 175 9,749
— — — — — — 33 12,750
— — — — — — 797 60,001
— — — — — — 516 516
— — — — — — 65 75,318
— — 490 1,000 — 25,784 2 27,276
— — — 478 420 — — 898
— — — 13,525 — — — 13,525
— — 6,970 — 76 557 — 7,603
— — 11,991 — 673 1,277 395 14,687
8 — 75 — — 2,025 — 2,108
22 5,374 62,962 15,736 3,734 36,143 3,867 314,122
= = = = = = = 111,725
— — — — — — — 175,312
= 1,000 = = = = 15,494 21,444
— — 12,393 12,500 — 94,393 16 119,302
= = 96,963 10,341 9,340 = = 116,644
— — 21,196 — 44 579 — 21,819
= = = = = 852 98 980
603 1,443 — — 922 1,528 — 4,496
603 2,443 130,552 22,841 10,306 97,352 15,608 571,722
625 7,817 193,514 38,577 14,040 133,495 19,475 885,844
— — 78,815 — 5,049 (1,329) 22,513 112,757
22,221 — — — — — — 22,221
218 — — — — — — 218
— — — 1,333 — 9,081 2,868 13,282
— — — — — — 50 50
19,200 — — — — — — 19,200
5,570 (7,490) 85,207 — 7,121 19,662 15,093 (105,402)
$ 47,209 $ (7,490) $ 164,022 $ 1,333 $ 12,170 $ 27,414 $ 40,524 $ 62,326
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changesin Fund Net Assets

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating revenues:
Charges fOor SEIVICES.........uuiiiiiiiiiiiei it
Contributions
Interest and other investment income................ .
Operating revenues pledged for revenue bonds......................
Other operating rEVENUES. .........ocvuiiieeiiiiiiee et

Total operating reVENUES.........ccovviviieeiiiiiiee e

Operating expenses:
General operations and administration.............cccceeeeviviveenninns
Benefits and Claims..........cccoooiiiiiiiiii e
Tuition plan disbursements...
INEEIEST. .o
Depreciation and amortization.............ccccceevvivieeeeniiiene e,
Other operating eXPENSES.......c.uuviiieiiiiiieee it e e

Total operating EXPENSES.......covvviieiiiiieee e
Operating iNComMe (I0SS)....uuiuiiiiiieiiiiiiiee e

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
INEreSt INCOME......uiiiiiiiiiie e
CONtHBULIONS. .....vvieiiicee e
Local/private grants and CONtracts..........cc..ocuvveeeeeiiiveeesiiiinnes
Interest expense
Other nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES)........uveeevriveeeeininnnes

Total nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES).......cccvevruveeennns

Income (loss) before other revenues, expenses,
losses, and transferS........oovvveieee i,

Local/private capital grants and contracts...........cccccovvvveeeennnnns
Additions to endowments
Special items...........cccvvee .
TranSFErS OUL.......cvviiiiiieiiee e

Change in Net @SSetS.......cccuviiiiiiiiiiieeiiiee e
Net assets (deficits) at beginning of year (restated).............

Net assets (deficits) at end of year.........c.cceevveviiiiiiencicnns

Patriots Point State Tuition
Patients’ Development Second Housing Prepayment
Compensation Authority Injury Corporation Program

$ 37,855 $ 7,511 $ 1,602 $ — $ 85
— — — — 15,673
— — — 8 5,607
37,855 7,511 1,602 8 21,365
746 6,506 1,574 — 504

49,367 — — — —
— — — — 26,704

— — — 24 —

— 320 4 — —

— 138 25 — —
50,113 6,964 1,603 24 27,208
(12,258) 547 (1) (16) (5,843)

344 150 — — —

— 22 — — —

— (22) — — —

344 150 — — —
(11,914) 697 1) (16) (5,843)

(1,505) (131) (3) — —
(13,419) 566 (4) (16) (5,843)
(205,095) 12,510 17 — (11,572)
$ (218,514) $ 13,076 $ 13 $ (16) $ (17,415)
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State of South Carolina

Pharmaceutical Medical Medical University
Education and University University of South University
The Citadel Development Hospital Facilities Carolina Medical Other
Trust, Inc. Foundation Authority Corporation Trust Associates Enterprise Totals

$ — $ — $ — $ — $ 21,076 $ 184,454 $ 24,015 $ 276,598
— — — — — — — 15,673
— — — — — — — 5,615
— — 535,212 1,909 — — — 537,121
1,432 — 13,113 — 14,574 4,411 207 33,737
1,432 — 548,325 1,909 35,650 188,865 24,222 868,744
108 267 506,651 1,919 34,957 148,430 21,744 723,406
— — — — — — — 49,367
— — — — — — — 26,704
— — — — — — — 24
— — 17,365 21 911 2,779 458 21,858
— — — — — — 802 965
108 267 524,016 1,940 35,868 151,209 23,004 822,324
1,324 (267) 24,309 (31) (218) 37,656 1,218 46,420
= 5 63 = (884) 1,616 1,500 2,794
3,278 — — — — — — 3,300
66 — — — — — 1,200 1,266
— — (5,846) — (471) (6,362) (1,230) (13,909)
(5) 100 = = = 3,483 (39) 3,517
3,339 105 (5,783) — (1,355) (1,263) 1,431 (3,032)
4,663 (162) 18,526 (31) (1,573) 36,393 2,649 43,388
59 — — — @) — — 52
405 — — — — — — 405
— — — — — (458) — (458)
(3,204) — (5,810) (35) — (10,757) (3,005) (24,450)
1,923 (162) 12,716 (66) (1,580) 25,178 (356) 18,937
45,286 (7,328) 151,306 1,399 13,750 2,236 40,880 43,389
$ 47,209 $ (7,490) $ 164,022 $ 1,333 $ 12,170 $ 27,414 $ 40,524 $ 62,326
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Patriots
Point
Patients’ Development
Compensation Authority

Second
Injury

State
Housing
Corporation

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers, patients, and third-party payers............... $ 37,155 $ 4,940
ASSESSMENLS rECEIVEM......oiiiiiiiiiiii e — —
Tuition plan contributions received.. — —
Other operating cash receipts.......... — 2,633
Claims and benefits paid............ccoccviiiiiiiiiii e (41,707) —
Payments to suppliers for goods and Services.............ccccocvevriirennnen. — (3,027)
Payments to employees — (3,164)
Internal activity - payments to other funds............ccccooiieiiiniiennns — —
Other operating cash payments..........cccoccevoviiiiiieiic i (817) (374)

(110,105)

(1,585)

(68)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities................... (5,369) 1,008

21,698

(68)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Principal payments received from other funds...........c.cccocvevieiinenn. — —
Principal payments made to other funds............cccccoeiiiiiieiiniiiineene — —
Interest payments made to other funds............ccoccveiieeniiicniic e, — —
Proceeds from issuance of noncapital debt...............ccccooviieieniinnen. — —
Principal paid on noncapital debt .
Interest payments on noncapital debt..............cccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiineees — —
Payment of bond iSSUANCE COSES........cuvviveeiiiiiiiie e — —
Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes.............cccceeevuveeenn. — —
Other Cash reCeIPLS ......ccvviiiiiiiiiieeiie e — —
Other cash payments ..
TranSErS QUL .....cooiiiiiiiiiee e (1,505) (131)

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing
ACTIVITIES .ttt (1,505) (131)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets............. e — (448)
Principal payments on notes payable..... — —
Proceeds from issuance of capital debt............ccccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiineene — —
Principal paid on capital debt and [ease.............ccccocovveriieiiiiciinienns — —
Interest payments on capital debt.............cccceeeiiiiiiiiii e, — —
Payment of agent and broker fees..........ccceeviieieiiiiiiiee e — —
Proceeds from sale or disposal of capital assets... .
Capital grants and gifts received.............cceevviiiiieeiiiieiiiec e — —

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related
fiNANCING ACHIVIIES ...eiiiiiieiiiii e — (448)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments......................... — —
Purchase of INVESIMENLS .......ccccviiiiie e — —
Interest and dividends on iNVESIMENLS..........uvvvviiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeieceeinns 367 150
Collection of escrow payments from borrower.............ccccceviiiininenns — —

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities.................. 367 150

6,127

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (6,507) 579

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (restated)............... 10,328 5,577

27,822
47,319

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year..........cccoocveeiiiiiiiinnienene $ 3,821 $ 6,156

$ 75,141

$ 4,890
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State of South Carolina

Pharmaceutical Medical Medical University
Tuition Education and University University of South University
Prepayment The Citadel Development Hospital Facilities Carolina Medical Other
Program Trust, Inc. Foundation Authority Corporation Trust Associates Enterprise Totals

215  $ = $ = $ 531,778 $ — $ 21337 $ 158,197 $ 22,791 $ 776,413
— — — — — — — — 133,388
18,717 — — — — — — — 18,717
— — 300 12,673 — 12,927 5,786 1,009 35,328
— — — — — — — — (151,812)
(504) (44) (319) (224,843) — (14,843) (50,921) (20,151) (314,720)
— (64) (80) (222,039) — (20,986) (76,724) (4,683) (327,740)
— — — (54,307) — — — — (54,307)
(434) — — — — — (2,782) (925) (6,917)
17,994 (108) (99) 43,262 — (1,565) 33,556 (1,959) 108,350
— — — — — — — 3,082 3,082
— — — — — — — (446) (446)
— — — — — — — (1,275) (1,275)
— — — — 13,500 — 22,500 — 36,000
— — — — (1,219) — (23,206) — (24,425)
— — — — (1,895) — (3,516) — (5,411)
— — — — (436) — (117) — (553)
— 3,934 — — — — — 1,200 5,134
— 211 — — — — — 96 307
- — - — — @) — — ()
— (3,204) — (5,810) (35) — (10,757) (3,005) (24,450)
— 941 — (5,810) 9,915 (7) (15,096) (348) (12,044)
— — — (28,376) — (2,058) (856) (1,452) (33,190)
= = = = = = = &) %)
— — — — — — — — 4,950
— — — (7,878) — (515) (1,321) (3,736) (13,450)
— — — (3,291) — (472) (2,901) 1) (6,665)
— — — — — — (121) — (121)
— — — — — — 19 44 63
— 59 — — — — — — 59
— 59 — (39,545) — (3,045) (5,180) (5,147) (48,356)
— 43,433 — — 2,388 3,129 8,210 — 57,160
— (45,352) — — (1,277) (1,550) (7,226) — (55,405)
5,169 976 5 1,308 1,909 95 905 406 17,425
— — — — — — — 1,566 1,566
5,169 (943) 5 1,308 3,020 1,674 1,889 1,972 20,746
23,163 (51) (94) (785) 12,935 (2,943) 15,169 (5,482) 68,696
48,641 2,201 421 46,750 2,796 5,525 29,866 20,413 219,837
71,804 $ 2,150 $ 327 $ 45965 % 15731 $ 2582 $ 45035 $ 14931 $ 288,533

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Reconciliation of operating income(loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating iNCOME (I0SS)....ccouveeiiiieiiiie ettt
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ............cccccoereieieeiniiiiene e
Provision for bad debts...........cocooiiiiii
Realized gains and losses on investments............ccccceeeeviveeenn.

Interest payments reclassified as noncapital financing activities.......

Interest and dividends on investments and interfund loans......

Amounts received for payment of claims..........c.ccccooevvevieenn
Payment of ClaimsS..........coi i

Other nonoperating revenues....
Other nonoperating expenses...

Change in assets—decreases (increases):
Accounts receivable, Net..............coooiiiiiiiiiiieeeen
Receivable from participants, net.
Accrued interest........
Due from other funds.

LN VZ=T 01 (0] £ = OO

OthEr @SSELS ....uvviiiiiei e it e e e re e e e e e snnaereeas

Change in liabilities—increases (decreases):
Accounts payable.............cccoeiiinnns
Accrued salaries and related expenses.

Accrued interest payable..........cccoooiiiiiiiiiii

Tuition benefits payable.............ccooiiiiiiiiii

Policy claims....................

Due to other funds.....

Deferred revenues ..........ccccceeeeeniineennn.

Liabilities payable from restricted assets..........cccccocvvviniveninenn.

Interfund payables............ooiiiiiiiii e

Compensated absences payable ....

Other abilitieS......c.ovvviiiiiiii e,

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities..........

Noncash capital, investing, and financing activities:

Acquisition of capital assets through assumption of liabilities...

Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments......................
Assumption of debt..........cocoviiiiiiiii

Total noncash capital, investing, and financing activities

Patriots
Point State
Patients’ Development Second Housing
Compensation Authority Injury Corporation
(12,258) $ 547 1) $ (16)
— 320 4 -
— — — ®
— — 131,786 —
— — (110,105) —
— 22 — —
— — 1 —
— 26 — —
— (4) — —
— 25 — —
(60) (66) — (68)
® 82 () —
1 36 9 —
— — — 24
7,660 — — —
@ 8) = =
(700) 27 — —
3) 1 5 —
(5,369) $ 1,008 21,698 $ (68)
— $ — — $ —
— $ — — $ —
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State of South Carolina

Pharmaceutical Medical Medical University
Tuition Education and University University of South University
Prepayment The Citadel Development Hospital Facilities Carolina Medical Other
Program Trust, Inc. Foundation Authority Corporation Trust Associates Enterprise Totals

$ (5,843) $ 1324 % 267) $ 24,309 (31 % (218) $ 37,656 % 1,218 $ 46,420
— — — 17,365 21 911 2,779 458 21,858
— — — 37,468 — — 21,603 — 59,071
— (514) — — — — — — (514)
— — — — 1,919 — — — 1,919
(5,607) (918) — — (1,909) — — — (8,442)
— — — — — — — — 131,786
— — — — — — — — (110,105)
— — 100 — — — 5,451 3 5,576
— — — — — — (367) (255) (622)
1 — — 332 — — — 571 905
129 — 200 (40,902) — (2,384) (20,914) 1,323 (61,522)
3,044 — — — — — — — 3,044
— — — — — — — 55 51
— — — — — — (8,243) 84 (8,159)
— — — — — — — (2,112) (2,087)
— — — (335) — — 600 (20) 51
— — (71) 4,598 — (651) (2,158) (3,385) (1,594)
— — — 3,144 — 47) (454) 7 2,696
— — — 363 — — (28) — 359
26,270 — — — — — — — 26,270
— — — — — — — — 7,660
— — (710) (3,080) — — 1,658 9 (2,132)
— — — — — — 3 (676)
— — — — — — — 41 41
— — (623) — — — — — (623)
— — — — — 22 (878) 47 (806)
— — 1,272 — — (198) (3,149) — (2,075)
$ 17,994 $ (108) $ 99) $ 43,262 — $ (1565 $ 33556 $ (1,959) $ 108,350
$ = $ = $ = $ = = $ = $ 52 $ = $ 52
— 2,719 — — — (595) 705 — 2,829
— — — — — — (18) — (18)
$ — $ 2,719 $ — $ — — $ (595) $ 739 % — $ 2,863
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Net Assets

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Central
Employee State Supplies
Insurance Insurance Accident General and
Reserve Programs Fund Services Equipment
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents............ccccocvevvveeieeiiieccieennns $ 83,698 $ 60,784 $ 14,764 $ 32,415 $ 854
Invested securities lending collateral 53,975 14,031 2,869 1,037 —
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNLES .ottt 11,568 3,481 59,472 219 —
AcCCrued INtEreSt........cooiiiiiiiiiieee e 3,170 335 210 83 —
Due from other funds..........cccooviiiiiiiie e 1,788 28,223 891 9,260 557
Due from component units... — — — 1 —
INVENEOMIES. ... — — — 1,188 1,630
Other CUIrent aSSetS.......c.uuueeieeiiiiiiee e 11,118 — 278 — —
Total current assets.........covvviirieeeiieeeniee e 165,317 106,854 78,484 44,203 3,041
Long-term assets:
INVESTMENTS. ....oiiiiiiiiiecce e 191,082 22,537 943 — —
Accounts receivable, Net...........coccoveeiiiiiiiiie e — — 165 — —
Interfund receivables.............cccooiiiiiieniic 22,436 — — 22,356 —
Other 10Ng-term assSets........ccoouuiiiieiiiiiiiee e — — 9 — —
Deferred Charges.......cccvvieieeee e — — — 173 —
Capital assets:
Land and improvements........ — — — 6,914 —
Buildings and improvements. — — — 179,419 —
CONStruction iN Progress..........eeeveeerieeenieeenieeenneeenes — — — 30 —
VERNICIES. ... — — — 1,610 30
Machinery and equipment...........ccocveviieeeinneeniieeenne. 363 250 851 48,870 8
Intangible asSets. ... — — 8,152 891 —
Less: accumulated depreciation............c.cceevveeerieeenns (240) (175) (6,509) (104,606) (10)
Total capital assets, Net..........cccceveeiiiiiiiieeiniiieeeee 123 75 2,494 133,128 28
Total long-term assets........cccccveevcivieeeeeiiiiieee e 213,641 22,612 3,611 155,657 28
Total @SSeLS...uiiiiiiiiiiieeiiee e 378,958 129,466 82,095 199,860 3,069
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State of South Carolina

Governor's
Pension School for Other
Motor Adminis- Prison the Arts Internal

Pool tration Industries Foundation, Inc. Service Totals
$ 9,166 $ 891 $ 2,669 $ 1,476 $ 236 $ 206,953
— 199 — — — 72,111
325 — 1,806 401 1 77,273
— 31 — — — 3,829
2,327 110 494 — 54 43,704
— — — — — 1
14 — 3,928 — — 6,760
— — — — — 11,396
11,832 1,231 8,897 1,877 291 422,027
— — — 353 — 214,915
— — — — — 165
500 — — — — 45,292
— — — — — 9
— — — — — 173
928 — — — — 7,842
527 — 5,703 — — 185,649
— — 68 — — 98
34,958 — 1,180 — — 37,778
31 2,531 6,497 — — 59,401
— 343 — — — 9,386
(24,876) (1,772) (6,546) — — (144,734)
11,568 1,102 6,902 — — 155,420
12,068 1,102 6,902 353 — 415,974
23,900 2,333 15,799 2,230 291 838,001

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Net Assets

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (Continued)

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable............cccieiiiiii e
Accrued salaries and related expenses
Accrued interest payable.............ccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee
Retainages payable............ccoeiiiiiiiiiini
Policy Claims..........cooiiiiiiiee e
Due to other funds...........ccoovviiiiiiiee e
Deferred revenues................
Securities lending collateral..
Notes payable.........ccccccce.e.
Revenue bonds payable............ccccoovieiiiiiniiiinicce,
Limited obligation bonds payable................cccccueeenne.
Capital leases payable..........cccooveiriiiiniciniieece
Compensated absences payable............ccccceeeeviiieeenn.
Other current liabilities............cccoovveiiiiinii e

Total current liabilities............cccocviiiviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee,

Long-term liabilities:
Policy Claims.........coooiiiiiiiieee e
Interfund payables...........ccoociiiiiini
Notes payable.................
Revenue bonds payable....
Limited obligation bonds payable
Capital leases payable...........ccooveiriiiiiiceniiiece
Compensated absences payable.............cccceeeeviiieeenn.

Total long-term liabilities..........cccoccveeviiiiee e
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS (DEFICITS)
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt................
Restricted:
Expendable:
LOAN PrOGramS. ......uveriiiiiiiiieieieeieeete et e e e e e e
INSUranCce Programs..........coceeeveeereeneeeneeireeseesnens
Nonexpendable:
EdUCALION. .....coiiiiiiccii e
Unrestricted...

Total net assets (AefiCitS)..ccccceviirieeeiiiiieeeiiiienennn

Central
Employee State Supplies

Insurance Insurance Accident General and
Reserve Programs Fund Services Equipment
413 $ 99 $ 1,164 4,104 441

226 302 308 1,461 —

— — — 935 —

— — — 139 —

206,884 188,153 39,249 — —

9 140 7 1,207 23
29,097 6,290 62,139 — —
53,975 14,031 2,870 1,036 —

— — — 108 —

— — — 1,140 —

— — — 3,755 —

— — — 419 —

48 35 255 1,984 —
— — 2,615 — —
290,652 209,050 108,607 16,288 464

— — 37,600 — —

— — — 6,531 700

— — — 113 —

— — — 24,894 —

— — — 23,285 —

— — — 1,678 —
212 331 82 850 —
212 331 37,682 57,351 700

290,864 209,381 146,289 73,639 1,164
122 75 2,495 103,990 28
20,000 — — — —
67,972 — — — —
— (79,990) (66,689) 22,231 1,877
88,094 $ (79,915) $ (64,194) $ 126,221 1,905
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State of South Carolina

Governor's
Pension School for Other
Motor Adminis- Prison the Arts Internal

Pool tration Industries Foundation, Inc. Service Totals
$ 905 $ 234 $ 513 $ — $ — $ 7,873
81 505 566 — 17 3,466
— — — — — 935
— — — — — 139
— — — — — 434,286
77 355 272 — 8 2,098
— — — — — 97,526
— 199 — — — 72,111
— — — — — 108
— — — — — 1,140
— — — — — 3,755
— — 131 — — 550
92 658 406 — 20 3,498
— — — — — 2,615
1,155 1,951 1,888 — 45 630,100
— — — — — 37,600
— — — — — 7,231
— — — — — 113
— — — — — 24,894
— — — — — 23,285
— — 714 — — 2,392
39 282 174 — 9 1,979
39 282 888 — 9 97,494
1,194 2,233 2,776 — 54 727,594
11,568 1,101 6,058 — — 125,437
— — — — — 20,000
— — — — — 67,972
— — — 353 — 353
11,138 (1,001) 6,965 1,877 237 (103,355)
$ 22,706 $ 100 $ 13,023 $ 2,230 $ 237 $ 110,407
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

and Changesin Fund Net Assets

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Central
Employee State Supplies
Insurance Insurance Accident General and
Reserve Programs Fund Services Equipment
Operating revenues:
Charges for SEIVICES. .......uvuiiiieiieeeiiee e $ 43,146 $ 1,166,679 $ 55,599 $ 81,542 $ 8,908
Contributions — — — — —
Interest and other investment inCOmMe.............cccocveeieeninnn. — — — — —
Other operating reVENUES. .........oovvvveiiiieeeiiieesieee e e — 11,833 — — —
Total operating reVeNUES........ccccuveviieeeeiieeaiieeeniee e 43,146 1,178,512 55,599 81,542 8,908
Operating expenses:
General operations and administration............c.cccccceeveen. 51,813 117,710 5,198 72,114 8,921
Benefits and Claims..........ccoovveiiiiiiiicie e 54,775 1,075,098 60,808 — —
Depreciation and amortization. . a7 15 1,756 6,444 5
Other operating EXPENSES.........cocvviiiieeiiieeinieeesieeesnieeeans — — 3,015 454 —
Total operating EXPENSES......ccevueeeeiieeeiieeeiiieeeiiee s 106,635 1,192,823 70,777 79,012 8,926
Operating iNnComMe (I0SS)...cccueieiiuieerieeeiee e (63,489) (14,311) (15,178) 2,530 (18)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
INEreSt INCOME......eiiiiiiieiecret e 17,842 7,311 1,121 385 —
INEEIESt EXPENSE. .. .eeeeiiie ettt — — — (2,174) —
Other nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES)........cccvevvveerenee 1 — 70 109 —
Total nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES)......cceevveeenns 17,843 7,311 1,191 (1,680) —
Income (loss) before other revenues and
ErANSTEIS ..o (45,646) (7,000) (13,987) 850 (18)
Capital contributioNS.........ccccveviiieiii e — — — 157 —
Transfers in — 3,197 — 3,786 —
TranSTEIS OUL......uvieeieiiie e (23,574) (6,497) (1,808) (4,816) —
Change in Net aSSetS......cccccvvviiieiiiie e (69,220) (10,300) (15,795) (23) (18)
Net assets (deficits) at beginning of year.........ccccccceene. 157,314 (69,615) (48,399) 126,244 1,923
Net assets (deficits) at end of year.......c.ccoocvvevvveeeeeennnen. $ 88,094 $ (79,915) $ (64,194) $ 126,221 $ 1,905
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State of South Carolina

Governor's
Pension School for Other
Motor Adminis- Prison the Arts Internal
Pool tration Industries Foundation, Inc. Service Totals
16,373 $ 15,581 $ 19,090 $ — $ 386 $ 1,407,304
— — — 777 — 777
— — — 49 — 49
— — — 24 — 11,857
16,373 15,581 19,090 850 386 1,419,987
8,204 15,031 18,240 804 439 298,474
— 42 — — — 1,190,723
5,057 329 515 — — 14,168
2 77 3 — — 3,551
13,263 15,479 18,758 804 439 1,506,916
3,110 102 332 46 (53) (86,929)
— 138 — — — 26,797
— — — — — (2,174)
371 (8) (383) — — 160
371 130 (383) — — 24,783
3,481 232 (51) 46 (53) (62,146)
30 — 72 — — 259
570 1 — — — 7,554
(3,889) — — — (639) (41,223)
192 233 21 46 (692) (95,556)
22,514 (133) 13,002 2,184 929 205,963
22,706 $ 100 $ 13,023 $ 2,230 $ 237 $ 110,407
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Employee State
Insurance Insurance Accident General
Reserve Programs Fund Services
Cash flows from operating activities:
ReCeipts from CUSIOMEIS. .......ciiiiiiiiiiie e $ 3379 % 910,940 $ 14,909 $ —
Internal activity—payments from other funds............ccoccovvveriiiniciciienne 32,208 252,751 52,299 81,890
Other operating Cash reCeIPLS.......cuiiiiiiiiiie e 637 10,050 — —
CIAIMS PAI. v+ ettt (41,560) (1,070,762) (56,935) —
Payments to suppliers for goods and Services..............cccoevvveiiiiiiiiiiiennne (39,934) (86,428) (3,621) (45,119)
Payments to emPIOYEES...........cccoviiiiiiiiiic i (2,816) (2,966) (3,870) (26,226)
Internal activity—payments to other funds. (782) — (10,577) (732)
Other operating cash Payments. ..........ccovvvieiiiiienieeeee e — — (35) —
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities............cccccceeveruenee. (48,868) 13,585 (7,830) 9,813
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Principal payments received from other funds 959 — — —
Receipt of interest from other funds.............ccocoiiiiiiiiiis 1,412 — — —
Loans made to other funds............ccccoeiiiiiiiiiiii e, (1,339) — — (22,357)
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds...........ccoevvviiiiiiiiiinieiiecece — — — 26,164
B = V017 (] 6T TR — 3,197 — 3,786
TEANSTEIS OUL......vvirieeie ettt (23,574) (6,497) (1,808) (4,816)
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
fiINANCING ACHIVITIES ..ot (22,542) (3,300) (1,808) 2,777
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital @SSets............ccceiiiiiiiiii s (24) (28) 7) (4,208)
Principal payments on notes payable...........ccccoevveiieiiinieiie e — — — (2,919)
Principal payments on limited obligation bonds.............ccccocvcviiiiiiiniens — — — (3,575)
Principal paid on capital debt and lease................ccccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiicice — — — (119)
Interest payments on capital debt............cccooeiiiiiiiiicie — — — (2,174)
Proceeds from sale or disposal of capital assets...........cccocceeeriiieiniieennines — — — —
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities..................... (24) (28) (17) (12,995)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments.............ccocovveiiinnnens 148,804 3,262 — —
Purchase of Investments.............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiii (103,620) (3,244) — —
INterest 0N INVESIMENTS. .......ccoiiiiiieie e 14,163 6,061 1,180 385
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities...........cc.ccoccvveenens 59,347 6,079 1,180 385
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents............cccocccvcennene. (12,087) 16,336 (8,475) (20)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .........cc.ccocevviniiiniiieene 95,785 44,448 23,239 32,435
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year..........cccocceociiiiniciiiiiciicee, $ 83,698 $ 60,784 $ 14,764 $ 32,415
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State of South Carolina

Central Governor's
Supplies Pension School for Other
and Motor Adminis- Prison the Arts Internal
Equipment Pool tration Industries Foundation, Inc. Service Totals

= $ = $ = $ 19,089 $ 1,220 $ 385 $ 949,922
8,908 15,662 15,879 — — — 459,597

— — 1 714 — 1 11,403
— — — — — — (1,169,257)
(8,711) (6,460) (5,326) (8,320) (302) (224) (204,445)

— (1,526) (8,775) (9,922) (502) (251) (56,854)
— (334) (2,153) (29) — (5) (14,602)
— — — (1,000) — — (1,035)
197 7,342 (374) 542 416 (94) (25,271)

— — — — — — 959
_ — — — — — 1,412
— — — — — — (23,696)
— — — — — — 26,164
— 570 1 — — — 7,554
— (3,889) — — — (639) (41,223)
— (3,319) 1 — — (639) (28,830)
(12) (4,673) (230) (329) — — (9,521)

— — — — — — (2,919)
— — — — — — (3,575)
— — — (130) — — (249)
— — — — — — (2,174)
— 242 — — — — 242
(12) (4,431) (230) (459) — — (18,196)

— — — — — — 152,066
— — — — (187) — (107,051)
— — 138 — — — 21,927
— — 138 — (187) — 66,942
185 (408) (465) 83 229 (733) (5,355)

669 9,574 1,356 2,586 1,247 969 212,308

854 $ 9,166 $ 891 $ 2,669 $ 1,476 $ 236 $ 206,953

Continued on Next Page

165



State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Employee State
Insurance Insurance Accident General
Reserve Programs Fund Services

Reconciliation of operating income(loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating iNCOME (I0SS).....c..coviiuiiieieiieie ettt st sreebesre e sreere e $ (63,489) $ (14,311) $ (15,178) % 2,530
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

DEPIECIALION ...ttt 47 15 1,756 6,444
Other NONOPEratiNg FEVENUES. ... ...cciiuiieiiieeaiieeaiieeateee et eieee e e neeee e — — — —
Other NONOPEratiNng EXPENSES. ......ccueiuieriiieiereeire et — — — —
(@1 T<Y SRS — ) 17 64
Change in assets—decreases (increases):
Accounts receivable, Net.............ccocoiiiiiiiiiiii e (8,502) (2,011) (14,501) 332
ACCIUEH INLEIESE......ciitiiiiiii s — — — (83)
Due from other funds ...........ccccoiiiiiiiiiii — (6,986) — (1,182)
Inventories........... . — — — 64
Other assets (676) — (34) =
Change in liabilities—increases (decreases):
ACCOUNES PAYADIE. ..ottt (434) (396) (4,840) (1,438)
Accrued salaries and related eXPENSES..........cccvveerieiierinenineee e — — — 1,461
Accrued interest payable............cccooiiiiiiii s — — — 935
Retainages payable. — — — 4)
PONCY ClAIMS....eiuiieiie ettt ettt et et eenbeebeenne e 21,881 33,084 8,527 —
Due to other fuNds..........cccooiiiiiiiiiic s — — — 531
DEfEITEA FEVENUES ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e eeaaaes 2,303 4,225 16,410 —
Compensated absences payable... 2 (34) 13 178
Other ADIIHIES. ..ot — — — (19)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities..........ccccceeeeeineene $ (48,868) $ 13,585 $ (7,830) $ 9,813
Noncash capital, investing, and financing activities:
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments.............ccccoccooviiiiiiinins $ (4,456) $ 1,311 $ — $ —
Long-term debt forgiven — — — 673
Total noncash capital, investing, and
fiINANCING ACHIVITIES ...cuiiiiiiii e $ (4,456) $ 1,311 $ — $ 673
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State of South Carolina

Central Governor's
Supplies Pension School for Other
and Motor Adminis- Prison the Arts Internal
Equipment Pool tration Industries Foundation, Inc. Service Totals
(18 % 3,110 $ 102 $ 332 $ 46 $ 53) % (86,929)
5 5,057 329 515 — — 14,168
— — — 714 — — 714
— — — (1,000) — — (1,000)
1 6 1) — 1) 1 86
— (41) 332 151 371 ) (23,870)
— (675) — — — (40) (798)
331 3) (110) 8 — — (7,942)
7 — — (208) — — (137)
— — — — — — (710)
(142) (151) (1,611) (265) — (18) (9,295)
— — 505 566 — 17 2,549
— — (31) — — — 904
— 36 — 1 — — 33
— — — — — — 63,492
13 — 23 (287) — (6) 274
— — — — — — 22,938
— 4 89 15 — 6 273
— @ @ — — — (21)
197 $ 7,342 $ (374) $ 542 $ 416 $ 94) % (25,271)
— $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ (3,145)
— — — — — — 673
— $ — $ — $ — $ — $ = $ (2,472)
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State of South Carolina

Fiduciary Funds

. Fiduciary funds include pension trust funds,
investment trust funds, private-purpose trust funds,
and ageng[y funds. Notelb in the notes to the
financia statements provides definitions of each of
these fund types.

~ This subsection of the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report provides the following
fsupglementary information for the State’s fiduciary
unds:

= Combining Statement of Plan Net
Assets—Pension Trust Funds

= Combining Statement of Changesin Plan
Net Assets—Pension Trust Funds

= Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net
Assets—Private-Purpose Trust Funds

= Combining Statement of Changesin
Fiduciary Net Assets—Private-Purpose
Trust Funds

= Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net
Assets—Agency Funds

= Combining Statement of Changesin
Assets and Liabilities—Agency Funds

The State maintains only one investment trust
fund, so no combining statements are necessary for
that fund type. The paragraphs below describe all
other individual fiduciary funds that the State uses.

a. Pension Trust Funds

South Carolina Retirement System. This is a
multiple-employer  pension . system that benefits
employees of the State, public schools, and political
subdivisions of the State.

Police Officers’ Retirement System. This is a
multiple-employer pension system that benefits
g(t)llce officers” and fire fightérs employed by the

ate or its political subdivisions.

_ General Assembly Retirement System. Thisisa
single-employer pension system” that benefits
members of the South Carolina General Assembly.

) J_udgies' and Solicitors' Retirement System. This
isasingle-employer pension system that benefits the
judges “of the State's Supréme Court, Court of
Appeals, circuit courts, family courts, and the State's
circuit solicitors.
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National Guard Pension System. The State
administers this single-employer pension system that
provides a supplemental tetirement benefit to
members of the South Carolina National Guard.
Ths? State is a nonemployer contributor to the
system.

b. Private-Purpose Trust Funds

College Savings Plan Fund. The Future Scholar
529 College Savings Plan (the Plan), accounted for
in this fund, provides participant families a tax-
advantaged method of saving for future college
costs. primary objective of both the financia
advisor program and the direct program within the
Plan is to provide families with flexibility and
Prqfonal investment management in mieeting
heir college savings objectives.

Other Private-Purpose Trust Funds. This fund
accounts for monies the State has received as trustee
under various trust arrangements that sgeufy how
the principal and interest earnings must be used. In
each case, all of the principa and income benefit
individuals, private organizations, or governments
outside the State reporting entity; none of the
monies may be used for “State purposes. The
purposes to"which the resources of these funds are
dedicated include scholarships, the operation of the
equestrian center and activities at the S_E)rlnfgdale
Race Course (for the exclusive benefit of the
Carolina Cup Racing Association, Inc,, a private
nonprofit corporation), and the decommissioning of
a low-level radioactive waste disposal facility” on
behalf of Chem-Nuclear Systems, Inc., a for-profit
corporation.

c. Agency Funds

Insurance Company Deposits Fund. This fund
accounts for deposits which are required to be made
by insurance companiesin lieu of surety bonds.

Payroll Clearing Fund. This fund accounts for
employee deductions and contributions for the short
period of time between the issuance of payroll
checks and payment to the proper recipient.

Other Agency Funds. Balances in these funds,
aggregated Tor ~“presentation purposes, represent
amounts held for prisoners and patients of State
ingtitutions, cash 'bonds, miscellaneous clearing
accounts, and other deposits.



State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Plan Net Assets

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Judges'
South Police General and National
Carolina Officers' Assembly Solicitors' Guard
Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Pension
System System System System System Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents...............c.......... $ 2,422,406 $ 427,306 $ 3,043 $ 12,386 $ 11,332 $ 2,876,473
Receivables:
ContributioNS.........ooviiieiiiie e 107,547 12,692 52 324 — 120,615
Employer long-term..........cccooceeriiienineennns 1,550 17 — — — 1,567
Accrued interest........cccoovvveerieiinieeiiieees 144,152 16,171 385 905 134 161,747
Unsettled investment sales.. 18,013 2,055 44 98 — 20,210
Total receivables............ 271,262 30,935 481 1,327 134 304,139
Due from other funds............ccccoviiieieennnee 2,936 836 4 — — 3,776
Investments, at fair value:
United States government securities......... 1,994,697 196,796 4,016 3,179 — 2,198,688
United States government agencies and
government-insured securities.................. 1,580,521 196,529 3,768 11,956 — 1,792,774
Corporate bonds...........cccoevvieiiieiniieeninen. 4,611,780 525,793 11,908 29,470 — 5,178,951
Financial and other...........ccccccoviniiiennnen. 2,336,091 254,640 4,225 9,646 — 2,604,602
EQUItIES....oiiiiiieiiiiee e 7,034,108 833,168 16,130 36,023 — 7,919,429
Total investments..........ccocveevvieeiienennnn 17,557,197 2,006,926 40,047 90,274 — 19,694,444
Invested securities lending collateral............ 3,535,984 352,687 8,633 15,589 1,000 3,913,893
Capital assets, net. 3,651 373 11 17 — 4,052
Other assets.........ccoveriiiiiieeeeiiiiee e 528 64 1 3 — 596
Total asSetS.....oocveiiiieiiiieiieeiieee 23,793,964 2,819,127 52,220 119,596 12,466 26,797,373
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable...........ccccceeiiiiiiii. 3,717 453 8 20 — 4,198
Accounts payable—unsettled investment
PUIrChaSES.......c.cceiiiiiiiiiie e 27,600 3,268 62 140 — 31,070
Due to other funds..........cccoooeiiiiieiiiiiiieeee 27,826 906 11 22 — 28,765
Deferred retirement benefits.. 424,906 — — — — 424,906
Securities lending collateral........................ 3,535,984 352,687 8,633 15,589 1,000 3,913,893
Other liabilities............eveeiiiiiiiiceieeeeee 3,106 591 8 — — 3,705
Total liabilities.......ccceeeiiieiiiiieiiies 4,023,139 357,905 8,722 15,771 1,000 4,406,537

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits.... $ 19,770,825 $ 2,461,222 $ 43498 $ 103825 $ 11,466 $ 22,390,836
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes

IN Plan Net Assets
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

(Expressed in Thousands)

Additions:
Retirement contributions:
EMPIOYeT...cceviiiiiiieiicccce e
EMPIOYEE.....ouiiiiiiiie e

Total retirement contributions..............cc.......
Investment iNCOMEe........ccccevvcvvieeeeeiiiiiiee e
INVestMent EXPENSE.........ccveveeeieeireeiieseeaneens

Net income from investing activities...............

Securities lending iNCOME............ccooeviiieeeeennnee
Securities lending expense

Net income from securities lending activities.
Total net investment income...................

Transfers between pension trust funds............
Transfers in

Total additionS.......ccoveveeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii,

Deductions:

Regular retirement benefits............cccceveevenneen..
Supplemental retirement benefits..
Deferred retirement benefits.............
Refunds of retirement contributions

to MEMDbErS......coooiiii
Group life insurance claims............ccccceeeeene
Accidental death benefits
Depreciation.........cccocuveiiieiiiiiieee e
Administrative eXpense..........ccccoevveeiiieeiiineennns
Transfers between pension trust funds............

Total deductions.......cccccevevvicieivcieenen,
Change in net assets ........cccceeeeueeen.

Net assets at beginning of year......................

Net assets at end of year..........cccceevvvveeeennnen.

Judges’

South Police General and National

Carolina Officers' Assembly Solicitors' Guard

Retirement  Retirement Retirement Retirement Pension

System System System System System Totals

$ 512,345 $ 86,563 $ 2,577 $ 6,014 $ 2,133 % 609,632
408,325 55,641 612 1,131 — 465,709
920,670 142,204 3,189 7,145 2,133 1,075,341
1,662,778 184,350 4,006 8,821 925 1,860,880
16,776 1,988 37 80 — 18,881
1,646,002 182,362 3,969 8,741 925 1,841,999
58,898 6,733 165 241 — 66,037
42,119 4,918 129 187 — 47,353
16,779 1,815 36 54 — 18,684
1,662,781 184,177 4,005 8,795 925 1,860,683
34 1,461 7 78 — 1,580
2,688 82 — — — 2,770
2,586,173 327,924 7,201 16,018 3,058 2,940,374
1,022,993 124,634 5,073 8,217 2,231 1,163,148
2,688 82 — — — 2,770
240,667 — — — — 240,667
60,133 11,452 72 — — 71,657
14,759 1,594 5 8 — 16,366
— 955 — — — 955
107 11 — 1 — 119
12,815 1,561 29 66 27 14,498
1,525 — 55 — — 1,580
1,355,687 140,289 5,234 8,292 2,258 1,511,760
1,230,486 187,635 1,967 7,726 800 1,428,614
18,540,339 2,273,587 41,531 96,099 10,666 20,962,222
$ 19,770,825  $ 2,461,222 $ 43,498 $ 103,825 $ 11,466 $ 22,390,836
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Totals

30,569

81

376

792
145,205
6,167
4,482

187,672

254

693
6,167

7,114

Other
College Private-Purpose
Savings Plan Trust
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents............cccooveeeiieeennnns $ = $ 30,569
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNTES......oiiiiiiiiiiiiee e — 81
AcCrued INtErest........cccvvevcirvierieee e 63 313
Unsettled investment sales............ccccocceeeivineeen. 792 —
INVESIMENTS.....ooiee e 145,205 —
Invested securities lending collateral ................... — 6,167
Other @SSEtS.......vvviiririicieee e — 4,482
Total ASSEtS..ccuniiieiieiieee e 146,060 41,612
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable............coccoeiii 229 25
Accounts payable—unsettled investment
PUICNASES. ... eeieeiiiiii e 693 —
Securities lending collateral..............cccceivinirennne. — 6,167
Total [1abilitieS....ccoceuuiiiieeieie e 922 6,192
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for other purposes..........c.c.c....... $ 145,138 $ 35,420

180,558
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes

In Fiduciary Net Assets

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Totals

276
116,260
10,206
597

127,339

996
597
340

1,933

Other
College Private-Purpose
Savings Plan Trust
Additions:
Licenses, fees, and permitS.............cccecvveeeevvveeeenns $ — $ 276
Tuition plan deposits........ccccceeeeviiciiiiieee e 116,260 —
INtEreSt INCOME.....coeviviiiiieiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeveveveveeereeanees 8,175 2,031
TraNSTEIS INuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e — 597
Total additioNS......coocvveiiiiiieeiee e, 124,435 2,904
Deductions:
Administrative eXpense..........cccceeveiiiiieeieeeeeniiiieeen 854 142
Transfers OUL........ooovvveeiiiieeeecee e — 597
Other EXPENSES.....coiiieiiieeeeee et e — 340
Total dedUCtioNS.........vvvvvvvveieieiereierererererennns 854 1,079
Change in net assets........ccccceeeeviiiiiieneennn. 123,581 1,825
Net assets at beginning of year, restated ............ 21,557 33,595
Net assets at end of year.........ccoceeeeiiiiiiicecens $ 145,138 $ 35,420

125,406
55,152

180,558
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Assetsand Liabilities

AGENCY FUNDS

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Insurance
Company Payroll Other
Deposits Clearing Agency Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents.............ccccvvveeeeeeiiiinnns $ — $ 10,849 $ 159,723 $ 170,572
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES. ... oiieiiiiie et — 26 12,388 12,414
ACCrUEd INTEIESt......uviiiiiieiiiee e — — 1,215 1,215
KBS it e bababarebsbebarsasrsrsrssnrsrereren — — 3,045 3,045
Due from other funds............ooevvveeiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeiee — 47,420 10,282 57,702
INVESIMENTS. ... — — 14,444 14,444
Securities held in lieu of surety bonds................... 334,528 — 165 334,693
Invested securities lending collateral .................... — — 25,748 25,748
Total ASSELS..cceueiiieiieiie e $ 334,528 $ 58,295 $ 227,010 $ 619,833
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable...........oocvivieiiee i $ — $ 10,939 $ 17,828 $ 28,767
Tax refunds payable..........cccccvvvvieeiiiiiiiiiiee e, — — 481 481
Intergovernmental payables...........ccccccveeeeiiiinnnenn. — — 5,901 5,901
DEPOSIES. .evieeeeie ittt — — 744 744
Amounts held in custody for others....................... 334,528 47,356 176,308 558,192
Securities lending collateral.............cccccceveeeiiiiins — — 25,748 25,748
Total liabilitieS........coevvveveieiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaes $ 334,528 $ 58,295 $ 227,010 $ 619,833
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes
In Assets and Liabilities

AGENCY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2002 Additions Deductions June 30, 2003
INSURANCE COMPANY DEPOSITS
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.............cccocevveiiniiiiiinnnnns $ — 35,389 35,389 $ —
Securities held in lieu of surety bonds 369,918 113,251 148,641 334,528
TOtal @SSELS..cuiiiiiiiiiiiieciie e $ 369,918 148,640 184,030 $ 334,528
Liabilities:
Amounts held in custody for others.............ccoceeviieenne. $ 369,918 113,251 148,641 $ 334,528
Total llabilitieS....ccccociririiiiiiieeeeeeee e $ 369,918 113,251 148,641 $ 334,528
PAYROLL CLEARING
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.............cccocevveiiiiiiicinnnnnns $ 11,170 1,051,137 1,051,458 $ 10,849
Accounts receivable 25 26 25 26
Due from other funds..........ccoccovviiiiiiiciiiice e 46,524 47,420 46,524 47,420
Total ASSELS...cciiiiiiiiiiee s $ 57,719 1,098,583 1,098,007 $ 58,295
Liabilities:
Due to other funds...........oooveiiiiiii e $ 10,995 10,811 21,806 $ —
Accounts payable..........coocveiieiiiiii i 161 10,939 161 10,939
Amounts held in custody for others..............ccceeveennnn 46,563 888,944 888,151 47,356
Total liabilities. ..o $ 57,719 910,694 910,118 $ 58,295
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State of South Carolina

Balance Balance
July 1, 2002 Additions Deductions June 30, 2003
OTHER AGENCY
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 151,027 $ 1,892,328 $ 1,883,632 $ 159,723
Accounts receivable................... 9,510 34,350 31,472 12,388
Accrued interest receivable.............ccocoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiee. 1,194 1,215 1,194 1,215
Taxes receivable. ..o 3,137 3,045 3,137 3,045
Due from other funds..........cccoooeiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,501 10,282 5,501 10,282
INVESTMENTS. ....oviiiiiiieec e 21,507 — 7,063 14,444
Securities held in lieu of surety bonds............c..ccceene. 165 — — 165
Invested securities lending collateral................cccceene... 27,970 25,748 27,970 25,748
T E88EB0mconsomnm0mamamacencasnsasasasassnsacasasaseaasncosasososos $ 220,011 $ 1,966,968 $ 1,959,969 $ 227,010
Liabilities:
Due to other funds...........oooveiiiiiiiiiie s $ 15 $ 192 $ 207 $ —
Accounts payable.........cccoccveiiiiiiiie 8,585 22,804 13,561 17,828
Tax refunds payable............cccceiiiiiiiiiiiii, 44 481 44 481
Intergovernmental payables............ccccocveeiiiiiiiiciiicens 3,075 5,901 3,075 5,901
Deposits.......cocvvieiiiieeiiie e e 733 744 733 744
Amounts held in custody for others.............ccoceeriieennn. 179,589 1,477,742 1,481,023 176,308
Securities lending collateral...............cccooviiiiiieiiienen, 27,970 25,748 27,970 25,748
Total Habilities. ... $ 220,011 $ 1,533,612 $ 1,526,613 $ 227,010
TOTALS--ALL AGENCY FUNDS
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.............cccoccevveiiniiiicinnnnns $ 162,197 $ 2,978,854 $ 2,970,479 $ 170,572
Accounts receivable.............. 9,535 34,376 31,497 12,414
Accrued interest receivable......... 1,194 1,215 1,194 1,215
Taxes receivable. ... 3,137 3,045 3,137 3,045
Due from other funds...........ccooveiiiiiiiiiiic e 52,025 57,702 52,025 57,702
INVESIMENTS.....oviiiiiiiiiiieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee 21,507 — 7,063 14,444
Securities held in lieu of surety bonds... 370,083 113,251 148,641 334,693
Invested securities lending collateral...............cccccoeenee 27,970 25,748 27,970 25,748
LGl C1S S O T $ 647,648 $ 3,214,191 $ 3,242,006 $ 619,833
Liabilities:
Due to other funds..........cccoovviiiiieiiiiiee e $ 11,010 $ 11,003 $ 22,013 $ —
Accounts payable............ccccoooiiiiiiiiini 8,746 33,743 13,722 28,767
Tax refunds payable . 44 481 44 481
Intergovernmental payables..............ccocceeviiiiiiiiiiens 3,075 5,901 3,075 5,901
DEPOSIES. ..o 733 744 733 744
Amounts held in custody for others..............ccceeviinennn. 596,070 2,479,937 2,517,815 558,192
Securities lending collateral............cccccccooiiiiiiiieniecenn, 27,970 25,748 27,970 25,748
Total liabilities........ccoviii $ 647,648 $ 2,557,557 $ 2,585,372 $ 619,833
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State of South Carolina

Discretely Presented Component Units

Note la in the notes to the financia statements
explains the relationship of component units to the
Brlmary government and the differences between

lended Component units and, discretely presented

compaonent units. Notelb in the ndtes to the
financial statements explains that the State has
designated four of its_  discretely presented
component units as mgor component units.
Government-wide financia “statements for each of
the four major component unit are included in the
basic financial statements (immediately preceding
the notes to the financial statements).

~ This subsection of the Comprehensive Annual
Financiadl Report provides the following
supplementary information for the State’s nonmajor
discretely presented component units:

=  Combining Statement of Net Assets—
Nonmagjor Discretely Presented
Component Units

= Combining Statement of Activities—
Nonmagjor Discretely Presented
Component Units

» Balance Sheet—First Stepsto School
Readiness Board of Trustees

= Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances—First Steps to
School Readiness Board of Trustees

a. Nonmajor Discretely Presented Component
Units

The paragraphs below describe the State's
nonmajor discretely presented component units:

~ The South Carolina Medical Malpractice Liability
Joint Underwriting Association (the Association) was
established to~ provide  medical _ malpréactice
insurance on a self supporting basis. The financia
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information presented in the accompanying
supplemental information is for the Association’s
fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

The South Carolina First Steps to School
Readiness Board of Trustees (First Steps) was
established in 1999 as a nhon-profit, tax-exempt
corporation_under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The corporation was created
Epecn‘_lcall to carry out the objectives of The South

arolina First Steps to School Readiness Act and to
lessen the burdens on government b){1 overseeing the
South, Carolina First "Steps to School Readiness
initiative  for  improving early  childhood
development.

The Children’s Trust Fund of South Carolina, Inc.
(the Fund), is a hon-profit, tax-exempt organization
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Interna™ Revenue
Code. . The Fund’s ci)urpose is to simulate
innovative prevention and treatment programming to
meet critical needs of South Carolina s children by
awarding grants to private non-profit organizations.
The financial information. presented  in the
accompanying supplemental information is for the
Fund' sfiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

The Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund was
established in 1990. It maintains a revolving loan
fund to promote economic development in the
State's Savannah Lakes Region.

b. First Steps to School Readiness Board of
Trustees (First Steps)

_ The State presents fund financial statements for
First Steps, 'a nonmaor discretely presented
component unit, because that organizafion does not
issue ser_paratel audited financial statements of its
own. First Steps uses accounting principles that

ply to special revenue funds. As'such, it uses the
currént financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting.



State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Net Assets
NONMAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Medical First Steps
Malpractice to School Savannah
Joint Readiness Children's Lakes
Underwriting Board Trust Fund Regional
Association of Trustees of S.C., Inc. Loan Fund Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents............cccoccoveeereene $ 13,695 $ 1,700 201 % 378 $ 15,974
INVESIMENTS......ovviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee . — — 545 140 685
Invested securities lending collateral............... — 159 — — 159
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNTS...coeiiiiiiiiiiee e 88 — — — 88
Contributions..........ceeeiiiii e, — — 1 — 1
Accrued interest.........ccccovveveriieeniieenee e, 296 59 — — 355
Due from primary government . — 3 — — 3
Other current @ssets.........cccocveevieeiiieeesiieeenins 13 — — — 13
Total current assets........coocveeeeeeiiiiiieeeennne 14,092 1,921 747 518 17,278
Long-term assets:
INVESTMENES. ....vviiieiiiieee e 23,465 — 18 — 23,483
Depreciable capital assets, net.............cccee... — 3 — — 3
Total long-term assets..........ccccevevvvveeeeeiinnnns 23,465 3 18 — 23,486
Total @SSetS....cccvviiiiiiiiieies e 37,557 1,924 765 518 40,764
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable............ccocoiiiiiii, 146 34 28 5 213
Accrued salaries and related expenses......... — 50 — — 50
Intergovernmental payables............cccoecieeene — 38 — — 38
Policy claims.........ccccoccvvvveeenn. 25,787 — — — 25,787
Due to primary government — 4 — — 4
Deferred revenues and deferred credits......... 17,433 — — — 17,433
DEPOSItS. ..ot 73 — — — 73
Securities lending collateral...............cccvee..... — 159 — — 159
Compensated absences payable................... — 73 — — 73
Total current liabilities 43,439 358 28 5 43,830
Long-term liabilities:
Policy claims. ..o 116,789 — — — 116,789
Compensated absences payable................... — 31 — — 31
Total long-term liabilities 116,789 31 — — 116,820
Total liabilities. ..., 160,228 389 28 5 160,650
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.. — 3 — — 3
Restricted, expendable:
Education.........cccoovviiiiiieiiie e — 1,532 — — 1,532
Other ... 1,915 — 254 — 2,169
unrestricted........oooovevviiieiie e (124,586) — 483 513 (123,590)
Total net assets (defiCit)......ccooververeennen. $ (122,671) $ 1,535 737 % 513 $ (119,886)
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Activities

NONMAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Net
Charges for Grants and (Expense)
Expenses Services Contributions Revenue
Medical Malpractice Joint Underwriting
ASSOCIALION. ... $ 34,371 $ 27,785 $ 1,808 $ (4,778)
First Steps to School Readiness
Board of TrUSLEES.......eeveiiiieeeeiiiee e 34,518 — 27,254 (7,264)
Children's Trust Fund of S.C., INC.......cccceevviniiennnnnnn. 97 — (11) (108)
Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund...................... 8 — 7 (1)
TOLAIS et $ 68,094 $ 27,785 $ 29,058 $ (12,151)
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Net Assets (Deficit)

Beginning Net Assets (Deficit)
of Year End
(Restated) of Year

(117,893) $ (122,671)

8,799 1,535

845 737

514 513
(107,735) $ (119,886)

State of South Carolina
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State of South Carolina

Balance Sheet

FIRST STEPS TO SCHOOL READINESS
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLES. ...........ooeeiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e e $ 1,700

Invested securities lending collateral...........c...uevvvie i 159

Accrued interest receivable..............oooo 59

Due from primary gOVEIMMENT.........iicuviieeieeeeeeseeeiieeeeeeeessessnraeereeeeessssnnsrnreeeeeeesesanns 3
LI L= L= Y= = = PP $ 1,921

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts and vouchers payable...........c.uuvuieiee i $ 34
Accrued salaries and related payroll eXPENSES.........ccovcveeerriieeeiiiiiee e 50
Intergovernmental PAYabIES. .........ovviiii i 38
Due t0 Primary QOVEINMENT........uuiiiierieeiiiieeessireeesseaeeesasreeesassteeesasssaeesesssaeessnnens 4
Securities lending Collateral.............oocuviiiiiee i 159
TOtal [1ADIITIES .o 285

Fund Balance:
Unreserved, UNdeSIGNAted. . .......ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiieee et 1,636

Total liabilities and fund balanCe..........cooovveeiiieiiiiiie e, $ 1,921

Reconciliation of the First Steps Balance Sheet to the Combining Statement of Net Assets
Nonmajor Discretely Presented Component Units

Total fund balance - First Steps.......ccccvvviieiee i $ 1,636

Amounts reported for First Steps in the Combining Statement of
Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the Balance
Sheet. These assets consist of:

Capital ASSELS......ceeiiiieee i $ 36
Accumulated depreciation...........cccccveveeeieiiicciieeec e (33)
Total capital @SSetS......c..vvviiiiee i 3

Compensated absences payable are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the
Balance Sheet...........oooii i, (104)

Net assets Of FirSt SEPS....ciiiiiiiiie e $ 1,535
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changesin Fund Balance

FIRST STEPS TO SCHOOL READINESS
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Interest and other iINVestMent iINCOME...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiie e $ 452
State operating grants and CONLraCtS...........ccccuvveireeeeeiiriieeer e 25,540
(0] 011 ] o 1011 o] 0 F-J PP PPTPPR SO 1,262
TOLAl FEVENUES ...t 27,254
Expenditures:
Current:
=0 0T 1 o] o FO PP RUT R UOPPPPPPPP 3,059
T 10=Tq o [o)V 7= g ] =T o] = | SRR 31,452
Total eXPENAITUIES...coi i 34,511
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures..........ccccocoeiiiiiiiiciiin e, (7,257)
Fund balance at beginning of Year.........ccccovvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e 8,893
Fund balance at end Of Y ar........cciiiiiiiiiii e $ 1,636

Reconciliation of the First Steps Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changesin Fund Balanceto the Combining Statement of Activities
Nonmajor Discretely Presented Component Units

Net change in fund balance - First Steps......cccccvvie i $ (7,257)

Amounts reported for First Steps in the Combining Statement of
Activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in the Balance Sheet.
However, in the Combining Statement of Activities the cost of
capital assets is allocated over their useful lives as depreciation
expense. In the current period this amount is:
DEPreciation EXPENSE. ......uuuuuirerererereiririrrrreierrrrrrrrrrr————————————————. (25)

Compensated absences expenses reported in the Combining Statement
of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in the governmental fund.
Decrease in compensated absences payable..........ccccccccoovviivieennnnn. 18

Change in net assets of First StEPS. . $ (7,264)
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State of South Carolina

Expenditures by Function

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES*

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

Function 1994 1995 1996 1997

General governmentb .................................... $ 399,456 $ 352,015 $ 330,519 $ 351,156
Education ..........oevveeiiiiiiiiiiie e 293,158 322,219 379,984 326,103
Health and environment®.........ccccccovvvvveeiennnn. 2,166,088 2,320,642 2,946,457 3,032,995
Social ServiCes........cccccoevieii, 678,772 697,958 709,747 700,442
Administration of justiCe...........ccceeevvieeeinnnnnnn. 405,503 457,008 488,425 543,456
Resources and economic development........ 138,937 139,635 155,302 150,131
Transportation...........ccoeeeeveeeeiiiieiiieeeeeeeeeis 214,574 203,837 218,366 230,384
Capital outlay.........ccccvveveeeeiiiiiieee e 391,848 385,698 398,776 436,798
Debt service:

Principal retirement..........cccccooeevvvviiieeeneennen. 82,602 88,765 82,997 97,728

Interest and fiscal charges.............cccccc........ 49,107 48,796 50,574 53,493
Intergovernmental..........cccooeeeeieiieeieiiiiiinneenes 2,157,866 2,358,823 2,636,440 2,805,584

Total expenditures.........cccceveeiiiiiniineeennnns $ 6,977,911 $7,375,396 $8,397,587 $ 8,728,270

a General governmental fund types include the General Fund and special revenue funds.

b Until July 1, 2001, the State Infrastructure Bank (the Bank) was reported as part of the general government function. Since July 1, 2001, the
Bank has been reported as part of the transportation function. Prior years were not restated for this change.

Before July 1, 1995, the State used an agency fund to account for Medicaid assistance that the South Carolina Department of Health and Human
Services paid to other State agency providers. Effective July 1, 1995, the State began classifying these transactions as quasi-external
transactions (interfund services provided and used) in the governmental fund types. Prior years were not restated for this change.
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State of South Carolina

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
$ 352,065 $ 3555558 $ 422935 $ 488,865 $ 491678 $ 475,705
318,558 355,927 403,453 443,540 485,131 632,904
3,121,887 3,443,809 3,600,808 4,200,086 4,218,410 4,512,620
662,912 648,689 674,353 720,602 803,304 844,927
592,556 632,872 694,845 716,462 644,270 644,896
160,242 159,546 180,403 198,351 180,011 162,794
281,021 303,824 518,584 324,207 435,384 559,466
396,801 453,708 527,769 589,107 535,512 443,343
110,076 90,786 107,621 139,977 185,031 231,533
51,132 55,193 81,632 102,435 226,568 236,281
3,032,018 3,262,640 3,874,298 4,132,596 4,530,261 4,469,022
$9,079,268 $9,762,552 $ 11,086,701 $ 12,056,228 $12,7355560 $ 13,213,491
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State of South Carolina

Revenues by Source

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES®

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

Sources 1994 1995 1996 1997

Taxes:

Individual income...........ccccceeevviveeeeeeenee $ 1,519,030 $ 1,646,375 $ 1,809,287 $ 1,927,600

Retail sales and use.............ccccvvvvevveeeenen. 1,756,157 1,892,801 2,034,484 2,141,864

Other.....ceeeee e 999,077 1,059,846 1,149,342 1,163,889
Licenses, fees, and permits....................... 307,939 255,570 243,502 258,960
Interest and other investment

INCOME..ceiiiieiiiiiiiiee e 48,596 82,412 98,728 113,199
Federal, local, and private grants.............. 2,582,498 2,787,132 2,907,661 3,087,312
Departmental SEIVICES oo, 161,375 215,485 535,117 533,395
(00] 0111 0101 [0 ] o ISP 82,507 89,797 106,606 115,739
Fines and penalties............cccceeeeeeeiivinnnnnnn. 51,926 54,881 55,340 58,170
Tobacco legal settlement...........c.............. — — — —
Other. ... 53,195 59,716 73,639 70,424

Total revenuUEsS.......cccceeeeeeeiiiiiieee e $ 7,562,300 $ 8,144,015 $ 9,013,706 $ 9,470,552

* General governmental fund types include the General Fund and special revenue funds.

° Before July 1, 1995, the State used an agency fund to account for Medicaid assistance that the South Carolina Department of Health and Human
Services paid to other State agency providers. Effective July 1, 1995, the State began classifying these transactions as quasi-external

transactions (interfund services provided/used) in the governmental fund types. Prior years were not restated for this change.
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State of South Carolina

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
$ 2,103,799 $ 2,282,509 $ 2,453,465 $ 2,492,877 $ 2,340,840 $ 2,287,989
2,304,004 2,521,264 2,676,686 2,705,207 2,771,191 2,817,138
1,190,605 1,274,366 1,227,671 1,241,362 1,241,065 1,288,592
281,242 290,530 306,067 309,017 269,917 390,291
130,155 122,002 154,753 243,201 195,225 156,740
3,213,004 3,445,858 3,708,958 4,172,450 4,573,972 5,009,147
540,047 539,863 539,549 563,667 637,718 699,157
155,137 192,852 251,335 159,357 178,228 327,692
61,744 69,862 69,017 74,959 82,878 81,532
— — 96,274 73,747 88,291 86,313
81,067 80,220 83,650 100,569 120,275 123,423
$ 10,060,804 $ 10,819,326 $ 11,567,425 $ 12,136,413 $ 12,499,600 $ 13,268,014




State of South Carolina

Income and Sales Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year Individual Corporate Retail
Ended Income Income Sales
June 30 Tax Tax Tax®
1994 2.50- 7% 5% 5%
1995 2.50 - 7% 5% 5%
1996 2.50-7% 5% 5%
1997 2.50 - 7% 5% 5%
1998 2.50 - 7% 5% 5%
1999 2.50 - 7% 5% 5%
2000 2.50- 7% 5% 5%
2001 2.50 - 7% 5% 5%
2002 2.50- 7% 5% 5%
2003 2.50 - 7% 5% 5%

% Excludes the 2% accommodations tax and the local option sales tax; includes the 4% retail sales tax and
1% Education Improvement Act sales tax.

Source: Department of Revenue.

188



State of South Carolina

Net General Obligation Bonds and Notes Per Capita

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Debt Payable

Gross From Higher Net General Net General

Fiscal Bonded Education Bonded Bonded

Year Ended  Population? Debt” Fund Debt © Debt

June 30 (Thousands) (Thousands) (Thousands) (Thousands) Per Capita
1994 3,705 $ 929,571 % 40,420 $ 889,151 % 239.99
1995 3,749 898,047 44,345 853,702 227.71
1996 3,796 1,007,394 41,900 965,494 254.35
1997 3,860 1,052,173 85,365 966,808 250.47
1998 3,919 1,036,642 84,465 952,177 242.96
1999 3,975 1,218,872 78,305 1,140,567 286.94
2000 4,024 1,493,551 99,945 1,393,606 346.32
2001 4,062 2,151,806 96,310 2,055,496 506.03
2002 4,107 2,348,630 142,635 2,205,995 537.13
2003 4,136 2,448,175 208,968 2,239,207 541.39

& Source: Office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board. Population statistic for
2003 is projected.

® Includes general obligation bonds payable and general obligation bond anticipation notes reported as
governmental activities or in the Higher Education Fund; also includes general obligation notes
payable reported as governmental activities.

° Net general bonded debt is the gross general bonded debt less the general obligation debt payable
not expected to be repaid through general governmental resources (e.g., the debt payable from the
Higher Education Fund).

Note: Assessed value data is not presented because the State of South Carolina does not receive
property tax revenue.
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State of South Carolina

Computation of Legal Debt Margin

June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

Section 59-107-90 of the South Carolina Code
of Laws states that the maximum amount of annual
debt service on ingtitution bonds for each institution
shall not exceed ninety percent of the sums received
from tuition fees for the preceding fiscal year.

Section 57-11-240 of the South Carolina Code
of Laws and Article X, Section 13 of the South
Carolina Constitution state that highway bonds may
be issued if such bonds are additionally secured by a

the proceeds received from the designated revenues
for the fiscal year next precedi n%.

Furthermore, Section 11-11-430 states: "The
issuance of general obligation bonds of the State
must be limited so that the maximum annual debt
service on all %eneral obligation bonds of the State
(excluding highway bonds, State institution bonds,
tax anticipation notes, and bond anticipation notes)
may not exceed five percent of the general revenues

pledge of revenues designated by the Generd
Assembly for State highway ﬁurposes from taxes or
licenses imposed for using the public highways of
the State. The maximum annual debt service on all
highway bonds shall not exceed fifteen percent of

of the State for the fiscal year next preceding
(excluding revenues which are authorized to be
pledged for State highway bonds and State
Institution bonds)."

INSTITUTION BONDS

Prior Year 90% Maximum
Institution Revenues Computation Debt Service Margin

The Citadel...........ccooeeeiiiieiieecenn. $ 561 $ 505 $ 460 $ 45
Clemson University.........c.ccoovveenneee. 4,843 4,359 4,046 313
Coastal Carolina University............... 841 757 696 61
College of Charleston....................... 2,500 2,250 573 1,677
Medical University of South Carolina.. 11,521 10,369 4,938 5,431
South Carolina State University......... 679 611 318 293
University of South Carolina.............. 9,771 8,794 6,522 2,272
Winthrop University.............c.cccoeenee. 1,190 1,071 910 161
Midlands Technical College.............. 1,132 1,019 827 192
Central Carolina Technical College.... 728 655 202 453
Tri-County Technical College............ 1,075 968 735 233

TotalS....oviii e, $ 34841 $ 31,358 % 20,227 $ 11,131

HIGHWAY BONDS

2001-2002 Budgetary General Fund revenues pledged for highway bonds..............cooooviiiiiiiiininnn. $ 50,974
2001-2002 other revenues pledged for highway boNds.............cooiiiiiiiiiiii 497,276
2001-2002 revenues pledged for highway DONAS............oouiiiii e 548,250
15% of 2001-2002 revenues pledged for highway bonds....... ..o 82,238
Less: maximum annual debt senice for highway bonds 2 ...............coiiiieiiiiii e 60,226
Legal debt service margin at June 30, 2003--highway bonds...........ccoviiiiiiiiiiiii e $ 22,012

& As of June 30, 2003, the maximum annual debt service will occur in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Computation of Legal Debt Margin (Continued)
June 30, 2003
(Expressed in Thousands)

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (EXCLUDING INSTITUTION AND HIGHWAY BONDS AND BANS)

2001-2002 Budgetary General FUNA FEVENUES .........uoiuneieiii e e et ee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaneeaaeannas $ 4,923,599
Less: 2001-2002 Budgetary General Fund revenues pledged for

RIGWAY DONOS 2 ...t e e e e e 50,974
2001-2002 net Budgetary General FUNA FEVENUES...........oiiuii e e e e e e e e eeneeens 4,872,625
5% of 2001-2002 net Budgetary General FUNA FEVENUES...........ivuuiiiniei e eeee e e e eeaneeen 243,631
Less: maximum annual debt senice for general obligation bonds

excluding institution and highway bonds and bond anticipation notes ®..............cccocoeeevveivecieeennn. 218,653

Legal debt service margin at June 30, 2003--general obligation bonds
excluding institution and highway bonds and bond anticipation notes.............cccccovvevviinannes $ 24,978

% For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, there were no net Budgetary General Fund revenues pledged for
institution bonds or bond anticipation notes.
® As of June 30, 2003, the maximum annual debt service will occur in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2005.

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures
for General Obligation Debt to Total

General Gover nmental Expenditures’
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Ratio of
Year Total General Debt Service to
Ended Debt Governmental General Governmental
June 30 Principal Interest Service Expenditures Expenditures
1994 $ 82,602 $ 49,107 $ 131,709 $ 6,977,911 1.89%
1995 88,765 48,796 137,561 7,375,396 1.87%
1996 82,997 50,574 133,571 8,397,587 1.59%
1997 97,728 53,493 151,221 8,728,270 1.73%
1998 110,076 51,132 161,208 9,079,268 1.78%
1999 90,786 55,193 145,979 9,762,552 1.50%
2000 107,621 81,632 189,253 11,086,701 1.71%
2001 139,977 102,435 242,412 12,056,228 2.01%
2002 185,031 226,568 411,599 12,735,560 3.23%
2003 231,533 236,281 467,814 13,200,996 3.54%

% General Governmental Expenditures include the General and Special Revenue Funds.
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State of South Carolina

Revenue Bond Coverage—Enterprise Funds®

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Dallarsin Thousands)

Fiscal

Year Net Revenue Debt Service Requirements

Ended Available for Coverage
June 30 Debt Service Principal Interest Total Ratio

The Citadel—1997 Revenue Bonds

1998 $ 3,080 $ 735 $ 609 $ 1,344 2.29
1999 3,767 870 1,182 2,052 1.84
2000 3,734 905 1,138 2,043 1.83
2001 3,979 955 1,094 2,049 1.94
2002 4,343 990 1,048 2,038 2.13
2003 4,901 1,040 1,000 2,040 2.40

Clemson University—1998 Plant Improvement Bonds

1999 $ 1,160 $ 390 $ 428 $ 818 1.42
2000 1,114 485 354 839 1.33
2001 1,204 515 324 839 1.44
2002 1,177 570 292 862 1.37
2003 1,002 590 266 856 1.17

Clemson University—2001 Athletic Facilities Revenue Bonds
2002 $ 3,360 $ 1,025 $ 823 $ 1,848 1.82
2003 4,299 985 871 1,856 2.32

Clemson University—1998 Revenue Bonds

1998 $ 7,392 $ 1,395 $ 467 $ 1,862 3.97
1999 6,848 2,325 1,339 3,664 1.87
2000 8,437 2,340 1,235 3,575 2.36
2001 9,116 2,340 2,398 4,738 1.92
2002 10,760 2,445 2,290 4,735 2.27
2003 12,141 2,435 2,157 4,592 2.64

Coastal Carolina University—1999 Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds

2000 $ 2,875 $ 320 $ 1,573 $ 1,893 1.52
2001 3,127 635 1,554 2,189 1.43
2002 3,352 675 1,520 2,195 1.53
2003 3,159 710 1,485 2,195 1.44

College of Charleston—1992 Plant Improvement Bonds

1994 $ 1,988 $ 485 $ 429 $ 914 2.18
1995 2,047 565 393 958 2.14
1996 2,075 595 354 949 2.19
1997 1,152 600 319 919 1.25
1998 1,088 615 289 904 1.20
1999 1,024 630 259 889 1.15
2000 1,096 465 233 698 1.57
2001 1,098 505 209 714 1.54
2002 1,142 545 183 728 1.57
2003 1,188 580 168 748 1.59

@ All of the bonds described in this schedule are accounted for in the Higher Education Fund, a major enterprise fund.
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State of South Carolina

Fiscal

Year Net Revenue Debt Service Requirements

Ended Available for Coverage
June 30 Debt Service Principal Interest Total Ratio

College of Charleston—1992 Revenue Bonds

1994 $ 2,134 $ 595 $ 1,108 $ 1,703 1.25
1995 2,302 625 1,076 1,701 1.35
1996 2,081 655 1,048 1,703 1.22
1997 2,414 685 1,015 1,700 1.42
1998 2,211 715 982 1,697 1.30
1999 2,814 750 954 1,704 1.65
2000 2,363 785 907 1,692 1.40
2001 2,425 825 865 1,690 1.43
2002 1,830 865 822 1,687 1.08
2003 2,996 580 1,976 2,556 1.17

Francis Marion University—1999 Revenue Bonds

2000 $ 1,272 $ 885 $ 300 $ 1,185 1.07
2001 1,542 930 250 1,180 131
2002 1,506 980 216 1,196 1.26
2003 1,725 1,000 179 1,179 1.46

Lander University—2002 Higher Education Facilities Revenue Bonds
2003 $ 1,352 $ 165 $ 94 $ 259 5.22

Medical University of South Carolina—1986 Parking Facilities Revenue Bonds

1994 $ 943 $ 290 $ 420 $ 710 1.33
1995 961 305 403 708 1.36
1996 1,039 325 383 708 1.47
1997 1,406 345 361 706 1.99
1998 1,467 375 338 713 2.06
1999 1,545 395 312 707 2.19
2000 1,336 425 284 709 1.88
2001 1,518 455 254 709 2.14
2002 2,204 490 221 711 3.10
2003 2,510 525 186 711 3.53

South Carolina State University—1991 Student Revenue Bonds

1994 $ 681 $ 80 $ 294 $ 374 1.82
1995 379 125 290 415 0.91
1996 517 170 284 454 1.14
1997 (106) 175 276 451 (0.24)
1998 (553) 185 266 451 (1.23)
1999 111 195 256 451 0.25
2000 289 205 246 451 0.64
2001 248 220 234 454 0.55
2002 459 230 222 452 1.02
2003 890 245 209 454 1.96

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Revenue Bond Cover age—Enter prise Funds® (Continued)

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Dollarsin Thousands)

Fiscal
Year Net Revenue Debt Service Requirements
Ended Available for Coverage
June 30 Debt Service Principal Interest Total Ratio
South Carolina State University—1993 Stadium Improvement Revenue Bonds
1994 $ (338) $ — $ 57 $ 57 (5.93)
1995 (682) 110 138 248 (2.75)
1996 (762) 110 134 244 (3.12)
1997 (1,016) 115 130 245 (4.15)
1998 (732) 120 128 248 (2.95)
1999 (741) 125 122 247 (3.00)
2000 (791) 125 118 243 (3.26)
2001 (1,384) 135 112 247 (5.60)
2002 (3,946) 140 108 248 (15.91)
2003 (3,963) 140 102 242 (16.38)
Spartanburg Technical College—1999 Special Student Fee Capital Improvement Bonds
2000 $ 326 $ 213 $ 85 $ 298 1.09
2001 332 153 145 298 1.11
2002 389 160 138 298 1.31
2003 377 168 130 298 1.27
Spartanburg Technical College—2001 Special Fee Capital Improvement Bonds
2002 $ 370 $ 129 $ 115 $ 244 1.52
2003 312 127 117 244 1.28
University of South Carolina Aiken Campus—1999 Auxiliary Revenue Bonds
2000 $ 407 $ 160 $ 247 $ 407 1.00
2001 386 165 221 386 1.00
2002 389 175 214 389 1.00
2003 387 180 207 387 1.00
University of South Carolina Columbia Campus—1995 Parking Facilities
1996 $ 237 $ — $ 237 $ 237 1.00
1997 1,054 580 474 1,054 1.00
1998 1,051 605 446 1,051 1.00
1999 1,032 615 417 1,032 1.00
2000 1,033 645 388 1,033 1.00
2001 1,007 650 357 1,007 1.00
2002 987 660 327 987 1.00
2003 630 335 295 630 1.00
University of South Carolina Columbia Campus—1996 Auxiliary Revenue Bonds
1997 $ 1,099 $ — $ 1,099 $ 1,099 1.00
1998 1,781 315 1,466 1,781 1.00
1999 1,779 335 1,444 1,779 1.00
2000 1,786 365 1,421 1,786 1.00
2001 1,787 390 1,397 1,787 1.00
2002 1,790 420 1,370 1,790 1.00
2003 1,791 450 1,341 1,791 1.00

@ All of the bonds described in this schedule are accounted for in the Higher Education Fund, a major enterprise fund.
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State of South Carolina

Fiscal

Year Net Revenue Debt Service Requirements

Ended Available for Coverage
June 30 Debt Service Principal Interest Total Ratio

University of South Carolina Columbia Campus—2000 Auxiliary Revenue Bonds

2001 $ 1,449 $ 270 $ 1,179 $ 1,449 1.00
2002 1,470 305 1,165 1,470 1.00
2003 1,469 320 1,149 1,469 1.00

University of South Carolina Columbia Campus—2002 Athletic Facilities Revenue Bonds
2003 $ (202) $ — $ 1,223 $ 1,223 (0.17)

University of South Carolina Spartanburg Campus—1997 Auxiliary Revenue Bonds

1998 $ 414 $ 130 $ 284 $ 414 1.00
1999 372 135 237 372 1.00
2000 375 145 230 375 1.00
2001 372 150 222 372 1.00
2002 374 160 214 374 1.00
2003 376 170 206 376 1.00

Winthrop University—1997 Auxiliary Facilities Revenue Bonds

1998 $ 182 $ 60 $ 29 $ 89 2.04
1999 213 48 40 88 2.42
2000 242 51 38 89 2.72
2001 267 54 35 89 3.00
2002 266 58 31 89 2.99
2003 280 61 27 88 3.18

Winthrop University—2001 Athletic Facilities Revenue Bonds
2002 $ 458 $ 120 $ 67 $ 187 2.45
2003 486 120 105 225 2.16

Winthrop University—2002 Higher Education Facilities Revenue Bonds
2003 $ 603 $ 340 $ 210 $ 550 1.10
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State of South Carolina

Demographic Statistics

Last Ten Years
Median
Per Capita Age® School Unemployment
Population® Income® (Years) Enrollment” Rate®
at Year Ended at at at
Year June 30 December 31 June 30 June 30 December 31
1993 3,663,314 $ 17,242 32.9 688,513 7.3%
1994 3,705,397 18,072 33.3 692,515 5.2%
1995 3,748,582 19,473 33.7 701,140 5.5%
1996 3,796,200 20,403 341 699,058 5.8%
1997 3,859,696 20,998 34.5 708,751 3.6%
1998 3,919,235 22,115 35.0 718,969 4.2%
1999 3,974,682 22,914 35.4 720,855 4.4%
2000 4,023,725 24,209 354 716,721 4.1%
2001 4,062,125 24,840 35.7 714,427 5.9%
2002 4,107,183 25,400 36.0 723,313 6.2%
2003 4,136,020 d 36.3 725,638 d

% Source: Office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board. Population statistic for

b . .
Source: South Carolina Department of Education.

2003 is projected.

Cc
Source: South Carolina Employment Security Commission.

d

Not yet available.
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State of South Carolina

Property Value, Construction, and Bank Deposits
Last Ten Years
(Dollarsin Millions)

Nonresidential Residential

Construction Construction® Property value®

Thousands of Number of Bank Nonresidential Residential

Square Feet at Units at Value at Deposits at at at
Year December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 June 30 June 30
1992 15,052 20,853 $ 1,585 $ 30,224 $ 41,104 $ 45,926
1993 15,840 21,186 1,662 31,005 43,084 50,963
1994 20,369 23,670 1,898 30,475 44,204 54,118
1995 22,345 22,400 1,826 33,035 45,334 57,987
1996 25,816 28,281 2,402 30,032 46,864 60,977
1997 31,397 27,984 2,430 23,515 48,409 63,905
1998 23,763 31,070 2,821 24,729 51,294 70,109
1999 26,181 32,894 3,261 25,921 57,699 77,131
2000 23,396 30,777 3,278 27,443 61,943 81,611
2001 26,424 27,975 3,183 29,269 72,803 92,494
2002 24,896 30,969 3,811 31,459 ¢ ¢
2003 ¢ ¢ © ¢ d d

% The residential construction statistics exclude mobile home permits.
b Property taxes do not represent a source of revenue for the State.

° Not yet available.

‘ Due to legislation requiring that tax assessments be based on the prior year's property value, neither the 2002 nor 2003

information is yet available.

Sources: Board of Economic Advisors, State Budget and Control Board; Department of Revenue; University of South
Carolina, Moore School of Business, Division of Research.

197



State of South Carolina

Largest M anufacturing Companiesa
December 31, 2002

Number of Plants Number of Employees
Name in South Carolina in South Carolina
Washington Group International .................... 1 11,700
Michelin North America Incorporated.............. 8 5,903
Springs Industries, Incorporated..................... 10 5,748
Robert Bosch GmbH...........ccooociiiiiiiee, 6 5,279
BMW AG.....oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 1 4,300
General Electric Company..............cccccoeeee. 2 4,000
West Point StEVENS........ccccovveeiieeeiieee e 4 3,646
AB EIECHrOIUX ..ocooiviieiiiiiie e 2 3,500
Timken Company.........cccccvveeieeeeeiscciiieeeee e 5 3,344
Sealed Air Corporation...........ccccccveveveveeinenen... 3 2,994
Gold Kist Incorporated..........ccccceeveeeeeiinvnnnnnn. 1 2,338
Sonoco Products Company........cccceeeeeeeieennnn. 3 2,136
Conbraco Industries Incorporated................... 4 1,921
Mohawk Industries Incorporated..................... 5 1,795
Nucor Corporation..........ccccceeeeeeeeeiiccinnneeeeeeenn 4 1,751
Mead Westvaco Corporation...............cccceee.e. 3 1,694
Georgia-Pacific Corporation.............ccccvvveen... 11 1,661
Avondale MillS...........cccoveriiiiiieee e 7 1,649
Maytag Corporation............ccccvveeeeeeeeiicvenennnnn. 2 1,644

®Based on number of employees. This list includes all companies with 1,600 or more employees.

Source: South Carolina Department of Commerce
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State of South Carolina

M iscellaneous Statistics
December 31, 2002 (Except as Noted)

Date of ratification--U. S. CONSEItUtiON........ccoeeeviivviiiiieiieeeeevieee e

FOorm of QOVEINMENT..........viiiiiiii e
Miles of State highways..........ccccccoiii

Land area (SQUAre MiIl€S).......ccciiicurreireeee i ieiiieiee e e e e e s s s e e e e e e e

State police protection:

Police and sheriff agenCies..........ccvvvivieeei i
Total number of SWOrn offiCerS.........ooiiiviieeiiiiiieee e

Higher education (universities, colleges, and
technical education centers):

NUumber of CAMPUSES. ...
Number Of StUAENTS.......coeeeee e

Recreation:

Number of State parks and historical Sites............oooocciiieeiiiinnnns
Area of State Parks........c.eeeeiiiiii e
Area Of State fOrestS........coviiiiiiiiiie e

State employees--all funds (at June 30, 2003)

Sources:

42003 Legislative Manual

bDepartment of Transportation

‘Office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board

dState Law Enforcement Division

®Commission on Higher Education

fDepartment of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism

9Forestry Commission

"Office of State Budget, State Budget and Control Board

1788°

Legislative-Executive-Judicial
66,195

30,111°

297¢
9,503

60°
177,536°

53
80,902 acres'
73,730 acres®

61,719"
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State of South Carolina

Section 1-11-425 of the South Carolina Code of Laws requiresinclusion of the following information:
Total printing cost was $107.40; 15 copies were printed at a cost of $7.16 each.
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OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER GENERAL

305 Wade Hampton Office Building
1200 Senate Street ¢ Columbia, South Carolina 29201
Telephone: 803-734-2121 o Fax: 803-734-2064

E-Mail: cgoffice@cg.state.sc.us * Home Page: www.cg.state.sc.us
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